












































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION &  

INITIAL STUDY PART II 
 

InterHealth Corporation 
Three-Story Medical Office Building 

12438 Bloomfield Avenue 
 

 
 
 

Prepared for: 
City of Santa Fe Springs 

Planning and Development Department 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
NOVEMBER 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 ii

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

                                                                    
 PAGE 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM............................................................................................... IV 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION......................................................................................................................1 
 A.  Project Location ...............................................................................................................1 
 B. Background and Project Site Setting ................................................................................1 
 C. Project Characteristics ......................................................................................................1 
 D.  Required Discretionary Actions........................................................................................2 
 
PURPOSE AND INTENDED USES OF THIS DOCUMENT.........................................................................2 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED......................................................................3 
 I.  Aesthetics.................................................................................................................3 
 II.  Agricultural and Forestry Resources .......................................................................7 
 III.  Air Quality ...............................................................................................................9 
 IV.  Biological Resources .............................................................................................15 
 V.    Cultural Resources .................................................................................................19 

 VI.   Geology and Soils ..................................................................................................21 
 VII.   Greenhouse Gas Emissions....................................................................................27 

VIII.       Hazards and Hazardous Materials.........................................................................31 
IX.        Hydrology and Water Quality................................................................................36 

 X.    Land Use and Planning ..........................................................................................44 
 XI.   Mineral Resources .................................................................................................47 
 XII.    Noise ......................................................................................................................48 
 XIII.   Population and Housing.........................................................................................55 
 XIV.  Public Services.......................................................................................................57 
 XV.  Recreation ..............................................................................................................62 
 XVI.  Transportation/Traffic............................................................................................63 
 XVII.   Utilities and Service Systems ................................................................................71  
 XVIII.  Mandatory Findings of Significance......................................................................81 
 
APPENDICES  
          Appendix A: Mitigation Monitoring Program.................................................................. A-1 
          Appendix B: Response to Comments ................................................................................B-1 

Appendix C: Traffic Impact Study....................................................................................C-1 
 
 
 
 



 iii

LIST OF TABLES  
 
TABLES    
 
1. Regional Construction Emissions ............................................................................11 
2. Regional Operational Emissions ..............................................................................12 
3. Greenhouse Gas Emissions ......................................................................................29 
4. Existing Noise Levels...............................................................................................49 
5. Maximum Noise Levels of Common Construction Machines.................................50 
6. Typical Outdoor Construction Noise Levels............................................................50 
7. Construction Noise Levels .......................................................................................51 
8. Estimated Community Noise Equivalent Level .......................................................52 
9. Vibration Velocities for Construction Equipment ...................................................54 
 



 iv

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM 
 

 
1. Project Title:  
 InterHealth Corp. Medical Office Building (MOB) 
 
2. Lead agency name and address: 

City of Santa  Fe Springs, Planning and Development Department                                                          
11710 E. Telegraph Road 

  Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670                                                                                                   
 
3. Contact person and phone number: 
    Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 
           (562) 868-0511, extension 7550  
 
4. Project location:  
 12438 Bloomfield Avenue, Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
 Latitude/Longitude is 33° 55' N/ 118° 3' W                                    
 
5. Project sponsor’s name and address: 
 Interhealth Corp., Attn: Dave Klinger 

12401 Washington Boulevard  
Whittier, CA 90602  
 
Initial Study prepared by: 
Planning Associates, Inc. 
4040 Vineland Avenue, Suite 108 
Studio City, CA 91604                                                                                                       

 
6. General plan designation: 
 Industrial 
 
7. Zoning:  
 M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) 
 
8. Description of project: (Describe the whole action involved, including but not limited to 

later phases of the project, and any secondary, support, or off-site features necessary for its 
implementation. Attach additional sheets if necessary.) 

 
 The proposed project analyzed in the following Initial Study consists of a Development 
Plan Approval (DPA) and Code Amendment request that will permit development of a 
three-story, metal Medical Office Building (MOB) for outpatient uses, owned and operated 
by InterHealth Corp., at the project site, located at 12438 Bloomfield Avenue, Santa Fe 
Springs, California 90670. The following Initial Study will analyze the impacts of the 
proposed project and determine if any significant impacts caused by development and 
changes at the project site will result, which may require preparation of an Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR). 

  
9. Surrounding land uses and setting: 

Immediately adjacent to the project site are commercial uses. To the north, the project site 
is bordered by a multi-tenant industrial warehouse with associated parking; to the east, the 
project site is bordered by a multi-tenant industrial business center with associated 
parking; to the south, the project site is bordered by a multi-tenant commercial business 



 v

center with associated parking; and to the west across Bloomfield Avenue (within the City 
of Norwalk), there is vacant land with a driveway and remnant pavement slabs. The border 
between the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk is located along the centerline of 
Bloomfield Avenue.  

 
10.  Other public agencies whose approval is required 

City of Santa Fe Springs Public Works Department, Transportation Services Department, 
Police Services Department, and Fire-Rescue Department. Concurrence from the City of 
Norwalk.                                                                                        

 





 vii

 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

I.  AESTHETICS -- Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse 
effect on a scenic vista?     

b) Substantially damage scenic 
resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock outcrops, 
and historic buildings within a 
City designated scenic 
highway? 

    

c) Substantially degrade the 
existing visual character or 
quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

    

d) Create a new source of 
substantial light or glare which 
would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

    

II.  AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES -- Would the project: 
a) Convert Prime Farmland, 
Unique Farmland, or Farmland 
of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the 
maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to 
non-agricultural use? 

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning 
for agricultural use, or a 
Williamson Act contract? 

    

c) Conflict with existing zoning 
for, or cause rezoning of, forest 
land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 
12220(g)), timberland (as 
defined by Public Resources 
Code section 4526), or 
timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by 
Government Code section 
51104I(g))? 

    



 viii

 

 
 
 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

d) Result in the loss of forest 
land or conversion of forest land 
to non-forest use? 

    

e) Involve other changes in the 
existing environment which, 
due to their location or nature, 
could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural 
use or conversion of forest land 
to non-forest use? 

    

III. AIR QUALITY –  Would the project: 
a) Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the 
applicable air quality plan? 

    

b) Violate any air quality 
standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or 
projected air quality violation? 

    

c) Result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment 
under an applicable federal or 
state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed 
quantitative thresholds for 
ozone precursors)? 

    

d) Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

    

e) Create objectionable odors 
affecting a substantial number 
of people? 

    

 
 

 



 ix

 
 
 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES –  Would the project: 
a) Have a substantial adverse 
effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a 
candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or 
regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

    

b) Have a substantial adverse 
effect on any riparian habitat or 
other sensitive natural  
community identified in local or 
regional plans, policies, 
regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
or US Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

    

c) Have a substantial adverse 
effect on federally protected 
wetlands as defined by Section 
404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, 
marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, 
hydrological interruption, or 
other means? 

    

d) Interfere substantially with 
the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with 
established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native 
wildlife nursery sites? 

    

e) Conflict with any local 
policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, 
such as a tree preservation 
policy or ordinance? 

    



 x

 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

 Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

f) Conflict with the provisions 
of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, 
or other approved local, 
regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

    

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES – Would the project: 
a) Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a 
historical resource as defined in 
§15064.5? 

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of an 
archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5? 

    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy 
a unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

    

d) Disturb any human remains, 
including those interred outside 
of formal cemeteries? 

    

VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS – Would the project: 
a) Expose people or structures 
to potential substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of 
loss, injury, or death involving: 

    

i) Rupture of a known 
earthquake fault, as delineated 
on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning 
Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based 
on other substantial evidence of 
a known fault? Refer to 
Division of Mines and Geology 
Special Publication 42. 

    

ii) Strong seismic ground 
shaking?     

iii) Seismic-related ground 
failure, including liquefaction?     



 xi

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

 Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

iv) Landslides?     
b) Result in substantial soil 
erosion or the loss of topsoil?     

c) Be located on a geologic unit 
or soil that is unstable, or that 
would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and 
potentially result in on- or off-
site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or 
collapse? 

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, 
as defined in Table 18-1-B of 
the Uniform Building Code 
(1994), creating substantial 
risks to life or property? 

    

e) Have soils incapable of 
adequately supporting the use of 
septic tanks or alternative waste 
water disposal systems where 
sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water? 

    

VII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS – Would the project: 
a) Generate greenhouse gas 
emissions, either directly or 
indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the 
environment? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable 
plan, policy, or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of 
greenhouse gases? 

    

VIII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS – Would the project: 
a) Create a significant hazard to 
the public or the environment 
through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

    



 xii

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Create a significant hazard to 
the public or the environment 
through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or 
handle hazardous or acutely 
hazardous materials, substances, 
or waste within one-quarter mile 
of an existing or proposed 
school? 

    

d) Be located on a site which is 
included on a list of hazardous 
materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65962.5 and, as a result, 
would it create a significant 
hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

    

e) For a project located within 
an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use 
airport, would the project result 
in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the 
project area? 

    

f) For a project within the 
vicinity of a private airstrip, 
would the project result in a 
safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the 
project area? 

    

g) Impair implementation of or 
physically interfere with an 
adopted emergency response 
plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

   
 
 
 

 



 xiii

 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

h) Expose people or structures 
to a significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving 
wildland fires, including where 
wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where 
residences are intermixed with 
wildlands? 

    

IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY – Would the project: 
a) Violate any water quality 
standards or waste discharge 
requirements? 

    

b) Substantially deplete 
groundwater supplies or 
 interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that 
there would be a net deficit in 
aquifer volume or a lowering of 
the local groundwater table 
level (e.g., the production rate 
of pre-existing nearby wells 
would drop to a level which 
would not support existing land 
uses or planned uses for which 
permits have been granted)? 

    

c) Substantially alter the 
existing drainage pattern of the 
site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a 
stream or river, in a manner 
which would result in 
substantial erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site? 

    

d) Substantially alter the 
existing drainage pattern of the 
site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a 
stream or river, or substantially 
increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding 
on- or off-site? 

    



 xiv

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) Create or contribute runoff 
water which would exceed the 
capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional 
sources of polluted runoff? 

    

f) Otherwise substantially 
degrade water quality?     

g) Place housing within a 100-
year flood hazard area as 
mapped on a federal Flood 
Hazard Boundary or Flood 
Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map? 

    

h) Place within a 100-year flood 
hazard area structures which 
would impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

    

i) Expose people or structures to 
a significant risk of loss, injury 
or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of 
the failure of a levee or dam? 

    

j) Inundation by seiche, 
tsunami, or mudflow?     

X.  LAND USE AND PLANNING - Would the project: 
a) Physically divide an 
established community?     

b) Conflict with any applicable 
land use plan, policy, or 
regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project 
(including, but not limited to the 
general plan, specific plan, local 
coastal program, or zoning 
ordinance) adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental 
effect? 

    



 

 xv

 

 
 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Conflict with any applicable 
habitat conservation plan or 
natural community conservation 
plan? 

 
 

   
 

XI.  MINERAL RESOURCES – Would the project: 
a) Result in the loss of 
availability of a known mineral 
resource that would be of value 
to the region and the residents 
of the state? 

    

b) Result in the loss of 
availability of a locally-
important mineral resource 
recovery site delineated on a 
local general plan, specific plan 
or other land use plan? 

    

XII.  NOISE – Would the project result in: 
a) Exposure of persons to or 
generation of noise levels in 
excess of standards established 
in the local general plan or 
noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

    

b) Exposure of persons to or 
generation of excessive 
groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels? 

    

c) A substantial permanent 
increase in ambient noise levels 
in the project vicinity above 
levels existing without the 
project? 

    
 
 

d) A substantial temporary or 
periodic increase in ambient 
noise levels in the project 
vicinity above levels existing 
without the project? 

  
 

 
 

 
 



 

 xvi

 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) For a project located within 
an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use 
airport, would the project 
expose people residing or 
working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

    

f) For a project within the 
vicinity of a private airstrip, 
would the project expose people 
residing or working in the 
project area to excessive noise 
levels? 

    

XIII.  POPULATION AND HOUSING – Would the project: 
a) Induce substantial  
population growth in an area, 
either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and 
businesses) or indirectly (for 
example, through extension of 
roads or other infrastructure)? 

    

b) Displace substantial numbers 
of existing housing, 
necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

    

c) Displace substantial numbers 
of people, necessitating the 
construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

    



 

 xvii

 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

XIV.  PUBLIC SERVICES - Would the project: 
a) Result in substantial adverse 
physical impacts associated with 
the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental 
facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental 
facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order 
to maintain acceptable service 
ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any 
of the public services: 

    

i) Fire protection?     
ii) Police protection?     
iii) Schools?     
iv) Parks?     
v) Other public facilities?     
XV.  RECREATION - Would the project: 
a) Increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional 
parks or other recreational 
facilities such that substantial 
physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be 
accelerated? 

    

b) Does the project include 
recreational facilities or require 
the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which 
might have an adverse physical 
effect on the environment? 

    



 

 xviii

 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

XVI. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC -- Would the project: 
a) Conflict with an applicable 
plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of 
effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation 
system, taking into account all 
modes of transportation 
including mass transit and non-
motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation 
system, including but not 
limited to intersections, streets, 
highways, and freeways, 
pedestrian and bicycle paths, 
and mass transit? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable 
congestion management 
program, including, but not 
limited to level of service 
standards and travel demand 
measures, or other standards 
established by the county 
congestion management agency 
for designated roads or 
highways? 

    

c) Result in a change in air 
traffic patterns, including either 
an increase in traffic levels or a 
change in location that results in 
substantial safety risks? 

    

d) Substantially increase 
hazards due to a design feature 
(e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

    

e) Result in inadequate 
emergency access?     



 

 xix

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

f) Conflict with adopted 
policies, plans, or programs 
regarding public transit, bicycle, 
or pedestrian facilities, or 
otherwise decrease the 
performance or safety of such 
facilities? 

    

XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS – Would the project: 
a) Exceed wastewater treatment 
requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control 
Board? 

    

b) Require or result in the 
construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities 
or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

    

c) Require or result in the 
construction of new storm water 
drainage facilities or expansion 
of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could 
cause significant environmental 
effects? 

    

d) Have sufficient water 
supplies available to serve the 
project from existing 
entitlements and resources, or 
are new or expanded 
entitlements needed? 

    

e) Result in a determination by 
the wastewater treatment 
provider which serves or may 
serve the project that it has 
adequate capacity to serve the 
project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s 
existing commitments? 

    



 

 xx

 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 

No 
Impact 

f) Be served by a landfill with 
sufficient permitted capacity to 
accommodate the project’s solid 
waste disposal needs? 

    

g) Comply with federal, state, 
and local statutes and 
regulations related to solid 
waste? 

    

XVII. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE – Would the project: 
a) Does the project have the 
potential to degrade the quality 
of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat 
of a fish or wildlife species, 
cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal 
community, reduce the number 
or restrict the range of a rare or 
endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of 
the major periods of California 
history or prehistory? 

    

b) Does the project have 
impacts that are individually 
limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? (“Cumulatively 
considerable”) means that the 
incremental effects of a project 
are considerable when viewed 
in connection with the effects of 
past projects, the effects of 
other current projects, and the 
effects of probable future 
projects)? 

    

c) Does the project have 
environmental effects which 
will cause substantial adverse 
effects on human beings, either 
directly or indirectly? 

    



 

1 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
A. Project Location 
 
The project is generally located in an area easterly of the Santa Ana Freeway (I-5) and San 
Gabriel River Freeway (I-605) within the City of Santa Fe Springs. The City of Santa Fe Springs 
is approximately 16 miles southeast of Los Angeles, bound by the Cities of Downey, Pico 
Rivera, South Whittier, La Mirada, and Norwalk. The project site address is 12438 Bloomfield 
Avenue, Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670, which lies along the border between the Cities of Santa Fe 
Springs and Norwalk. According to the Los Angeles County Assessor, the project site address 
(APN 8026-042-019) is shared with a second parcel (APN 8026-042-018), which is located 
offsite to the east of the project site. This parcel is not contiguous with the project site parcel and 
is not included as part of the project site. Direct access to the project site is provided by 
Bloomfield Avenue (Major Highway), and the project site is just north of Imperial Highway 
(Major Highway). To the north, east, and south, the project site is directly adjacent to 
commercial and industrial uses. To the west, across Bloomfield Avenue (in the City of Norwalk), 
there is vacant land. The project site does not lie within a “Special Study Area” or “Sphere of 
Influence” according to the City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan. 
 
B. Background and Project Site Setting 
 
Historical information reviewed for the project site dated back to 1869 and indicated that the 
project site was undeveloped land and/or used for agricultural purposes prior to construction of 
three office and warehouse structures on the northern, western, and eastern portions of the site in 
the early 1950s. The three office and warehouse structures remained onsite until the late 1980s 
and were used by various tenants for offices and storage of concrete pipes and palm trees. Truck 
fueling was also conducted onsite during this time. All project site buildings were demolished by 
approximately 1989. Since that time, the project site has been used as a truck storage lot and by 
the City of Norwalk as a storage yard. 
 
The current project site consists of the following: The northern portion of the project site is 
occupied by Big Truck, as a truck storage lot. The southern portion of the project site is occupied 
by the City of Norwalk Public Services Department as a City storage yard. There are currently 
no permanent buildings located onsite. Various roll-off bins and storage trailers are located 
within the City yard and are used by the City of Norwalk for storage of various materials 
including gardening equipment for Parks and Recreation, old electrical equipment, and 
construction materials/equipment. Access to the project site is via paved, gated driveways from 
Bloomfield Avenue. 
 
C. Project Characteristics 
 
The proposed project will be an approximately 35,076 square foot Medical Office Building 
(MOB) for outpatient uses on land that is zoned M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) with an Industrial 
land use designation. The MOB will house outpatient uses and doctor's offices typical of a 
medical office building, providing approximately 100 medical-related jobs to the area. The MOB 



 

2 

represents an approximately $22 million investment by the applicant. The MOB will stand 
approximately 51 feet in height to the top of the parapet (55 feet to the top of the rooftop 
equipment screening), totaling three stories above grade level and no subterranean levels. There 
will be two driveways for ingress/egress along Bloomfield Avenue that will provide public 
access to the MOB, as well as an internal driveway at the southeast corner of the project site that 
will accommodate access to the adjoining property to the east. The surface parking lot 
surrounding the MOB will contain 179 parking spaces, including 12 handicap accessible parking 
spaces. The drive aisles in the surface parking lot will be at least 26 feet wide to accommodate 
fire emergency access for the MOB.  
 
The architecture of the MOB will be consistent with other commercial buildings in the project 
area, consisting of granite veneer, pre-finished metal panels, and reflective glazing, using 
primarily white, grey, green, and blue colors. The landscaping along the Bloomfield Avenue 
frontage of the project site, around the perimeter of the MOB and the project site, as well as 
throughout the unpaved areas of the surface parking lot will occupy approximately 16,434 square 
feet of the project site. The project will maintain a 30-foot landscape setback along Bloomfield 
Avenue. Building wall signs, totaling approximately 160 square feet in area, will be installed 
below the parapet walls on the west and south elevations of the building for identification 
purposes, including the address and the name of the establishment. Monument signs, totaling 
approximately 80 square feet in area, will be installed at each driveway entrance to the project 
site along Bloomfield Avenue. All signage will be installed through separate approvals and 
permits. The trash facilities for the MOB will be enclosed and obstructed from view at the 
northeast corner of the surface parking lot, not visible from Bloomfield Avenue. The project will 
retain a small electrical building on the southeast corner of the project site, which currently 
exists and is operated by Southern California Edison. The lower finished floor of the MOB is 
planned to be established at Elevation 106.4 based on the preliminary grading plan dated June 
2013. Only minor grading and site work are planned. 
 
D.   Required Discretionary Actions  
 

• Development Plan Approval (DPA) to allow development of the MOB on the 
project site, as permitted by-right and in compliance with the Municipal Code. 

• Amendment to the Municipal Code to permit the use of metal materials on or 
within the proposed MOB. 

• Issuance of a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND). 
 
PURPOSE AND INTENDED USES OF THIS DOCUMENT 
 
It is the intent of this document to provide current environmental information to aid in the 
decision-making process for the City and related public agencies regarding the proposed project 
actions itemized above. This analysis addresses the impacts associated with development at 
12438 Bloomfield Avenue, Santa Fe Springs, California 90670. This analysis concludes that the 
proposed development does not pose a significant adverse environmental impact, or a substantial 
increase in the severity of existing environmental conditions due to development with 



 

3 

mitigations. The Mitigation Monitoring Program for the project is incorporated into this 
document as "Appendix A." 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 
 
The environmental factors indicated below have been reviewed to ensure that no potentially 
adverse environmental affects are posed by the proposed project. 
 
I.  AESTHETICS -- Would the project: 
 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is located in the central portion of the City of Santa Fe Springs at the border with 
the City of Norwalk. The City and project area are relatively flat with background views of the 
Puente Hills located three miles to the northeast, the Coyote Hills located approximately 6.5 
miles to the southeast, and the San Gabriel Mountains located approximately 15 miles to the 
north. Neither the San Gabriel River to the northwest of the project site nor the La Canada Verde 
Creek to the southeast are visible from the project site or area. Commercial and industrial land 
uses abut the project site on the north, south, and east sides, while vacant land is located directly 
to the west across Bloomfield Avenue in the City of Norwalk. The proposed project will involve 
construction of a new three-story, 51-foot tall building that will be located in the central portion 
of the project site surrounded by surface parking and landscaping. 
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan does not identify any significant views or scenic 
vistas in the proposed project area. Additionally, the project site is not located along a designated 
scenic highway, as determined by the California Department of Transportation.1 Finally, there 
are a number of intervening tall structures in the immediate project vicinity that currently 
obstruct views of mountains in the distance, including a seven-story commercial office building 
to the southwest along Imperial Highway, a six- to seven-story commercial office building just 
west of the vacant land across Bloomfield Avenue, and a three- to four-story commercial 
office/industrial building directly to the north of the project site. 
 
Although the aesthetics and general character of the project site will change due to the 
construction of a 51-foot tall structure (55-feet to the top of mechanical equipment screening) 
where no permanent structure currently exists, based on the lack of identified significant views, 
scenic vistas, or designated scenic highways in the project area, as well as the intervening view 
obstructions from taller buildings in the immediate project area, less than significant project and 
cumulative impacts are anticipated to occur with development of the proposed project. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

                                                 
1 California Department of Transportation, California Scenic Highway Program, 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/scenic_highways/scenic_hwy.htm (July 24, 2013). 



 

4 

 
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcrops, 

and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
Roadways in the immediate vicinity of the project site include Bloomfield Avenue, a Major 
Highway, and Imperial Highway, a Major Highway. The I-605 (San Gabriel River) and I-5 
(Santa Ana) Freeways are both within 2.5 miles west of the proposed project. None of these 
roadways have been designated as a State or County scenic highway or scenic corridor by either 
the California Department of Transportation or the City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan, 
respectively. 
 
The project site and the project area are developed with no natural landforms or features 
remaining. The project site is fully improved and paved with the exception of landscaping and 
ornamental trees along the property frontage and along the perimeter of the project site. As such, 
there are no specific trees, rock outcroppings, or other natural features on the project site that 
would be considered scenic resources. Finally, as there are no permanent structures currently 
existing on the project site, there are no historically significant buildings that could be affected 
by the proposed project. 
 
As a result, the proposed project will have no significant project or cumulative impacts on scenic 
resources, including, but not limited to, specific trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings 
within a state scenic highway. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its 

surroundings? 
 
Finding: Less than significant with mitigation incorporated 
 
The project site is currently used as both a truck storage lot and as a City yard for the City of 
Norwalk Public Service Department. Commercial and industrial land uses abut the project site 
on the north, south, and east sides, while vacant land is located directly to the west across 
Bloomfield Avenue in the City of Norwalk. With the exception of the vacant land to the west, 
the existing visual character of the project site and its surroundings is one of commercial and 
industrial uses. The project site consists of pavement with temporarily stored items and vehicles, 
and it appears more industrial in visual character than the surrounding and adjacent commercial 
and light industrial warehouse buildings and business centers. The visual character of the vacant 
land to the west appears as if a previous commercial or industrial use may have existed at one 
time. The vacant land does not have visually scenic natural landforms or features and contains 
multiple driveways and remnants of a defunct surface parking lot.  
 



 

5 

The proposed project will involve construction of a new three-story, 51-foot tall building (55-
feet to the top of mechanical equipment screening) that will be located in the central portion of 
the project site surrounded by surface parking and landscaping. During the construction phase, 
views across the project site from surrounding areas would be disrupted. Graded surfaces, 
construction debris, construction equipment, and truck traffic would be visible. Additionally, soil 
may be stockpiled and equipment for minor grading activities would be staged on the project 
site. Construction-related activities would be visible from the surrounding office, commercial, 
and light industrial uses and motorists traveling along Bloomfield Avenue. However, 
implementation of the below mitigation measures related to screening of construction activities 
will reduce any construction related impacts to a less than significant level.  
 
In relation to long-term operations, the commercial visual character of the project site with 
implementation of the project, in contrast to the industrial visual character of the existing storage 
uses onsite, will be more consistent with the existing commercial and light industrial visual 
character of the surrounding uses and area. A new three-story MOB will appear visually 
consistent with the existing three- to four-story commercial office/industrial building directly to 
the north, the one- and two-story commercial business center directly to the east, the two-story 
commercial business center directly to the south, as well as other commercial and light industrial 
buildings in the area. Although the land to the west is currently vacant, the land is for sale and 
suited for a six-story commercial office building, which would also appear consistent with the 
proposed project when or if developed. 
 
As the project will develop a building and parking lot that do not currently exist on the project 
site, poor maintenance of the proposed building, surface parking lot, and landscaping during 
operation of the MOB may result in a degraded visual character of the project site. However, 
with implementation of the below mitigation measures related to maintenance practices for the 
project during operation, all potential impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level. 
Compliance with the mitigation measures will also ensure that any signage proposed for the 
building will be compliant with City sign regulations and with the surrounding area. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: The following mitigations will reduce the potential aesthetic impacts 
to levels that are less than significant. 
 

 During the construction/demolition phase of the project, equipment, materials, and 
temporary facilities (such as construction trailers, staging sites, and portable toilets) shall 
be stored on the project site and appropriately screened by temporary opaque 
construction fencing.  

 
 The exterior building walls and any fencing must be maintained free of graffiti at all 

times. Any graffiti found shall be removed or painted over within 24 hours of 
observation. 

 
 The landscape areas must be maintained free of debris and trash at all times. 

 



 

6 

 All signage and advertising must comply with the City of Santa Fe Springs Zoning 
Requirements and shall require issuance of all necessary permits for installation. 

 
d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or 

nighttime views in the area? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Lighting and glare at the existing project site are minimal or non-existent due to the use of the 
site as a storage lot without any permanent structures. Light sources from existing surrounding 
uses in the area include nighttime lighting for large commercial and industrial buildings and their 
associated parking lots for security purposes along both Bloomfield Avenue and Imperial 
Highway, as well as public roadway lighting and vehicular lighting along Bloomfield Avenue 
and Imperial Highway, both Major Highways. Glare sources from existing surrounding uses 
include glass windows on all surrounding buildings, especially those six- to seven-story 
structures along Imperial Highway to the west of the project site. 
 
There are no light or glare sensitive land uses located in the vicinity of the project site. The 
nearest residential uses, which are considered to be light/glare sensitive, are multi-family 
apartment units located approximately 740 feet to the south of the project site within the City of 
Norwalk. However, the project site is not visible from most of the apartment units in the 
complex due to orientation or intervening buildings and foliage, which obscure views of the 
project site. A few apartment units along Imperial Highway may have very minimal views of the 
proposed project, but these views are largely obscured by the intervening commercial building at 
the northeast corner of Bloomfield Avenue and Imperial Highway.  
 
Lighting for the proposed project will include security lighting on the building and in the parking 
lot, street lighting, and vehicular lights associated with the construction and operation of the 
proposed project. The proposed use will be similar to those currently existing in the project 
vicinity and will not create a substantial new source of light. Any night lighting on the project 
site will be for security purposes and will be directed on-site and/or shielded such that it will not 
adversely impact surrounding properties outside of the project site. The project would also be 
minimally visible or not visible from the only light sensitive residential uses in the area to the 
south. Additionally, the project buildings will not include a substantial amount of glass that 
could create a significant impact from glare. No lighting or glare impacts are anticipated during 
construction, but any potential impacts will be temporary and minimal since construction 
activities will be occurring during the daytime. As a result, due to the project site location and 
proposed building location in relation to the nearest sensitive residential units, as well as the type 
and character of lighting proposed for the building, the proposed project will result in less than 
significant project and cumulative impacts to views in the area due to the creation of a 
substantial new source of light or glare.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
  
 



 

7 

 
 
II.  AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES -- Would the project: 
 
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance 

(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site and surrounding properties are not currently used for agricultural activities. The 
project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s. The soils underlying the 
project site are mapped as Perkins-Rincon association.2 This soil classification is not considered 
to be Prime Farmland soil or soil of Statewide Importance in Los Angeles County.3 According to 
the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program maps, the project site and surrounding area are 
not considered to be Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance.4 
As a result, the proposed project will not convert any Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance, thus resulting in no significant or cumulative impacts to 
farmland and lands used for agricultural purposes. 
 
Recommended Mitigation:  None 
 
b)  Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site and surrounding properties are not currently used for agricultural activities. The 
project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s. The Industrial General 
Plan designation and M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) zoning do not permit agricultural land uses 
within the project site or on the adjacent parcels. The Williamson Act enables local governments 
to enter into contracts with private landowners for the purpose of restricting specific parcels of 
land to agricultural uses, in return for lower property tax assessments. Because the project site 
does not currently include agricultural uses, the site does not meet the requirements to enter into 
a Williamson Act contract. Therefore, the proposed project will not conflict with existing zoning 
that supports an agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract, and will result in no significant or 
cumulative impact to agricultural lands. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

                                                 
2 URS Corporation Americas, Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (Los Angeles: URS Corporation 
Americas, 2012), 7. 
3 California Department of Conservation, Soil Candidate Listing for Prime Farmland and Farmland of Statewide 
Imporance, http://www.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/fmmp/pubs/soils/Documents/LOSANGELES_ssurgo.pdf  (August 
31, 2009). 
4 California Department of Conservation, California Important Farmland Finder, 
http://maps.conservation.ca.gov/ciff/ciff.html (July 26, 2013). 



 

8 

 
c)  Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 

Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code 
section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government 
Code section 51104(g))? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site and surrounding properties are not currently used for forest land, timberland, or 
Timberland Production. The project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 
1950s. The project site and the City of Santa Fe Springs are part of a larger urban area and no 
forest lands are located within the entire City. There are no areas of the City that are zoned for 
forest land or timberland preservation. The proposed project would not include changes in the 
environment that would result in conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest 
land, timberland, or timberland zoned Timberland Production. Therefore, the proposed project 
will result in no significant or cumulative impacts to forest land or timberland uses and zones. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
d)  Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site and surrounding properties are not currently used for forest land. The project site 
has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s. The City of Santa Fe Springs is void 
of any designated forest land or forest use and no loss or conversion of existing forest lands will 
result from the implementation of the proposed project. Therefore, the project will result in no 
significant or cumulative impact to forest land or uses. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
e)  Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, 

could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest 
land to non-forest use? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site and surrounding properties are not currently used for farmland or forest land. 
The project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s. No agricultural 
activities, farmland uses, or forest land uses are located in the City of Santa Fe Springs. The 
project would not include changes in the environment that would result in the conversion of 
Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. Therefore, the 
proposed project will result in no significant or cumulative impacts to Farmland or forest land. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 



 

9 

 
 
III. AIR QUALITY -- Would the project: 
 
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Air quality in the United States is governed by the Federal Clean Air Act (CAA), administered 
by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). In addition to being subject to 
the requirements of the CAA, air quality in California is also governed by more stringent 
regulations under the California Clean Air Act (CCAA), administered by the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) at the state level and by the Air Quality Management Districts at the 
regional and local levels. 
 
In California, the CARB, which became part of the California Environmental Protection Agency 
(CalEPA) in 1991, is responsible for meeting the state requirements of the Federal CAA, 
administering the CCAA, and establishing the California Ambient Air Quality Standards 
(CAAQS). The CARB regulates mobile air pollution sources, such as motor vehicles. 
 
Each area designated as non-attainment under the CCAA is required to prepare plans 
demonstrating how the area will meet the state air quality standards by its attainment dates. The 
Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) is the region’s plan for improving air quality in the 
region. 
 
The South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) monitors air quality within the 
project area. The SCAQMD is the agency principally responsible for comprehensive air 
pollution control in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), specifically for monitoring air quality, as 
well as planning, implementing, and enforcing programs designed to attain and maintain state 
and federal ambient air quality standards in the district. The proposed project is located within 
the Los Angeles County portion of the SCAB. 
 
Regional construction and operational emissions were estimated using the California Emissions 
Estimator Model (CalEEMod) approved by the SCAQMD. CalEEMod is a Statewide land use 
emissions computer model designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies, 
land use planners, and environmental professionals to quantify potential criteria pollutants 
associated with both construction and operation (including vehicle use) from a variety of land 
use projects. CalEEMod default assumptions were utilized (e.g., equipment mix) to estimate 
construction emissions. Operational emissions were based on the size of the proposed project 
and the estimated average daily tri rate for the proposed MOB. As calculated, the proposed 
project is estimated to generate 1,227 new net daily passenger vehicle trips.5 
 

                                                 
5 Source: Linscott Law & Greenspan Engineers, Interhealth Corporation MOB Project Traffic Impact Study, 22 
August 2013. 



 

10 

 
Construction Air Quality 
 
Activities for each construction phase over the project site would occur sequentially without 
overlap. The following list of construction phases are expected to generate pollutant emissions 
non-concurrently: 
 

 Site preparation 
 Grading 
 Building construction 
 Paving 
 Architectural coating 

 
The regional construction emissions are presented in Table 1: Regional Construction 
Emissions for several criteria pollutants, including volatile organic compounds (VOC), nitrogen 
oxides (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO), sulfur dioxide (SOx), and particulate matter (PM2.5 and 
PM10), all of which can pose potential health risks to humans at high levels which exceed the 
established SCAQMD daily significance thresholds, which are also shown in Table 1. VOC 
emissions would primarily result from architectural coating activities. NOx and CO emissions 
would primarily result from the onsite equipment and truck exhaust. Fugitive dust emissions 
would primarily result from site preparation activities. The analysis assumes compliance with 
SCAQMD Rule 403 (Fugitive Dust). 
 
In sum, Table 1 shows that daily construction activities for the proposed project will not exceed 
the established thresholds and thus will result in a less than significant impact to air quality for 
all pollutants. Implementation of standard construction practices will further reduce the less than 
significant impact of the construction related activities. Furthermore, all construction related 
impacts are temporary, only occurring during the construction/demolition phase of the proposed 
project. Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will not 
contribute considerably to any cumulative impacts relating to construction air quality. Other 
related projects will have to perform individual environmental analyses, obtain approval from 
the City, and implement standard construction practices to ensure impacts are not cumulatively 
considerable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11 

 
TABLE 1 

REGIONAL CONSTRUCTION EMISSIONS 
[1] 

Pollutant (Pounds per day) 
Construction Phase 

VOC NOx CO SOx PM2.5 PM10 

Site Preparation 3.1 33.1 19.6 <1 1.5 1.9 

Grading 3.2 31.7 21.0 <1 5.0 8.0 

Building Construction 6.1 29.7 23.8 <1 2.0 2.5 

Paving 2.9 20.5 13.4 <1 1.2 1.4 

Architectural Coating 44.4 2.8 2.7 <1 0.3 0.3 

Total 44.4 33.1 23.8 <1 5.0 8.0 

Regional Significance 
Threshold 

75 100 550 150 55 150 

Exceed Threshold? No No No No No No 

[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Memorandum Re: InterHealth Corp. Santa Fe Springs Medical Office 
Building Project – Air Quality Analysis, 26 August 2013. 

 

Operational Air Quality 
 
Due to the nature of the proposed project, operational or long-term project-related emissions 
would be generated primarily by mobile sources (motor vehicles). For comparison purposes, 
operational emissions were estimated for Future No Project (2015) and Future With Project 
(2015) conditions to show the cumulative emissions of all uses in the project vicinity if the 
project was not operational (not constructed) in year 2015 and if the project was operational (as 
proposed) in year 2015.6 Regional operational emissions are presented in Table 2: Regional 
Operational Emissions, along with the SCAQMD significance thresholds. The majority of 
operational emissions would be generated by vehicle trips associated with the proposed project. 
Additional emissions would be generated by area sources (e.g., landscaping maintenance) and 
energy use. 
 
As shown in Table 2, the estimated daily operational emissions for the proposed project would 
not exceed established SCAQMD thresholds for any pollutant in 2015 either with or without 
development of the project. Therefore, the proposed project will result in a less than significant 
operational impact to air quality 
 

                                                 
6 Cumulative air pollutant emission calculations are based on cumulative traffic calculations obtained from the 
project traffic study prepared by Linscott Law & Greenspan Engineers, Interhealth Corporation MOB Project 
Traffic Impact Study, 20 November 2013, which includes projected ambient growth traffic conditions in 2015 and 
anticipated traffic produced by all related projects proposed to be developed in the project area by 2015. See Section 
XVI: Transportation/Traffic of this Initial Study for more information. 



 

12 

 
TABLE 2 

REGIONAL OPERATIONAL EMISSIONS 
[1]

 

Pollutant (Pounds per day) 
Scenario and Source 

VOC NOx CO SOx PM2.5 PM10 

Future No Project (2015) 

Area -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Energy -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Mobile 0.7 0.6 2.3 <1 0.1 0.3 

Total 0.7 0.6 2.3 <1 0.1 0.3 

Regional Significance 
Threshold 

55 55 550 150 55 150 

Exceed Threshold? No No No No No No 

Future With Project (2015) 

Area 0.9 <1 <1 0.0 <1 <1 

Energy <1 0.1 0.1 <1 <1 <1 

Mobile 21.7 18.9 73.2 0.2 3.1 10.9 

Total 22.6 19.0 73.3 0.2 3.1 10.9 

Net Emissions [2] 22.0 18.4 71.0 0.2 3.0 10.6 

Regional Significance 
Threshold 

55 55 550 150 55 150 

Exceed Threshold? No No No No No No 

[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Memorandum Re: InterHealth Corp. Santa Fe Springs Medical Office 
Building Project – Air Quality Analysis, 26 August 2013. 

[2] “Net emissions” account for the elimination of the current uses and all associated operational pollutant emissions on the 
project site in favor of development of the proposed project and all associated operational pollutant emissions. 

   

Consistency with the AQMP 
 
Consistency with the AQMP is determined by consistency with the General Plan, meeting 
pollutant emission thresholds, and not increasing air quality violations. Based on calculations in 
the above Table 1: Regional Construction Emissions and Table 2: Regional Operational 
Emissions for construction and operational emissions during the life of the proposed project, the 
proposed project will result in a less than significant impact, and will not increase air quality 
violations. Additionally, the proposed project will not change the current M-2 (Heavy 
Manufacturing) zoning or Industrial land use designation on the project site, and as such, will be 
consistent with the General Plan. Therefore, the proposed project would be considered consistent 



 

13 

with the AQMP due to consistency with the General Plan, meeting pollutant emission thresholds, 
and not increasing air quality violations, resulting in a less than significant air quality impact due 
to conflict or obstruction with the implementation of the applicable AQMP. 
 
Recommended Mitigation:  Compliance with all regulatory agency requirements relating to 
construction dust control, equipment exhaust emissions, and trucks, as well as operational air 
filtration, will be implemented as required and necessary. No additional mitigation measures are 
required. 
 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation? 

 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
As analyzed in Section III.a, Air Quality above, the proposed project will not exceed daily 
thresholds for regional construction and operational air quality, and will be consistent with the 
AQMP. As such, the proposed project will not violate any air quality standards and will not 
contribute cumulatively or substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation. 
Therefore, the proposed project will result in a less than significant air quality impact.   
 
Recommended Mitigation: Compliance with all regulatory agency requirements relating to 
construction dust control, equipment exhaust emissions, and trucks, as well as operational air 
filtration, will be implemented as required and necessary. No additional mitigation measures are 
required. 
 
c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 

project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The SCAB is a designated non-attainment area for ozone and particulates. Established thresholds 
for criteria pollutants consider the cumulative net increase of criteria pollutants in the project 
region. As analyzed in Section III.a, Air Quality above, the proposed project will not 
cumulatively exceed the established pollutant thresholds for any criteria pollutant during short-
term construction or long-term operation of the project. Therefore, the potential cumulative air 
quality impacts are anticipated to be less than significant. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: Compliance with all regulatory agency requirements relating to 
construction dust control, equipment exhaust emissions, and trucks, as well as operational air 
filtration, will be implemented as required and necessary. No additional mitigation measures are 
required. 
 
 



 

14 

 
d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The project site is located in a developed area of the City, populated mostly by commercial and 
industrial uses. Immediately adjacent to the project site are commercial and industrial uses. To 
the north, the project site is bordered by a multi-tenant commercial warehouse with associated 
parking; to the east, the project site is bordered by a multi-tenant commercial business center 
with associated parking; to the south, the project site is bordered by a multi-tenant commercial 
business center with associated parking; and to the west across Bloomfield Avenue (within the 
City of Norwalk), there is vacant land with a driveway and remnant pavement slabs, intended for 
commercial offices. 
 
Some land uses are considered more sensitive to changes in air quality than others, depending on 
the population groups and the activities involved. Locations that may contain a high 
concentration of highly sensitive population groups are called “sensitive receptors” and include 
residential areas, hospitals, daycare facilities, elder care facilities, elementary schools, and parks. 
The nearest sensitive receptors to the project site are multi-family residential units located 
approximately 740 feet to the south of the project site within the City of Norwalk. The project 
site is not visible from the residential uses. The nearest school is Southeast Academy High 
School approximately ¾ mile southeast of the project site, located within the City of Norwalk. 
The nearest school within the City of Santa Fe Springs is St. Pius X Pre/Elementary School, 
approximately 1½ miles to the northwest of the project site. The nearest hospital is Norwalk 
Community Hospital, approximately ½ mile south of the project site. 
 
The proposed project is consistent with existing adjacent uses and is not anticipated to expose 
sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. The proposed project will not 
introduce a new significant source of air pollution into the project vicinity and will not 
substantially reduce the existing ambient air quality. The significance of localized project 
impacts under CEQA depends on whether ambient carbon monoxide levels in the vicinity of the 
project are above or below State and/or Federal standards for that criteria pollutant and the 
proximity of the emissions source to sensitive receptors. As determined in the Traffic Impact 
Study for the project (refer to Section XVI, Transportation/Traffic), the proposed project’s trip 
generation will not have a significant impact on any of the studied intersections and therefore 
will not result in a carbon monoxide “hot spot” that could trigger or worsen exceedance of the 
State’s one-hour or eight-hour carbon monoxide standards. Since the proposed project will not 
result in any significant net increase in peak hour traffic impacts, no significant change in the 
existing Level of Service (LOS) for any area intersections will occur (refer to Section XVI, 
Transportation/Traffic). Therefore, the proposed project will not result in the cumulative 
exceedance of established SCAQMD thresholds of significance for any of the identified criteria 
pollutants, and will not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, thus 
resulting in a less than significant impact. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 



 

15 

 
e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Land uses that are typically associated with odor complaints include activities involving 
livestock, rendering facilities, food processing plants, chemical plants, composting activities, 
refineries, landfills, and businesses involved in fiberglass molding. Medical office uses, such as 
that of the proposed project, are typically interior uses and do not generate substantial odors. The 
proposed project would be consistent and compatible with existing land uses surrounding the 
project site. The proposed project will not introduce a new stationary source of air pollution into 
the proposed project vicinity that may cause objectionable odors. Odorous emissions anticipated 
from the proposed project are primarily from mobile sources (vehicles) coming to and from the 
project site, which are currently existing and common sources of emissions in the proposed 
project area. Additionally, trash receptacles and/or dumpsters that service the proposed project 
may create objectionable odors.  
 
The nearest sensitive receptors to the project site are multi-family residential units located 
approximately 740 feet to the south of the project site, south of Imperial Highway, within the 
City of Norwalk. The project site is largely not visible from these residential units due to 
intervening buildings and trees, and odors from the project site (primarily from mobile sources) 
would largely be unnoticed due to existing odors from mobile sources along Imperial Highway 
(a Major Highway). Additionally, as previously established in Section III.a, Air Quality, the 
proposed project will not result in the exceedance of established SCAQMD thresholds for any of 
the identified criteria pollutants, therefore, odors associated with these emissions would not 
exceed tolerable levels to sensitive receptors.  
 
As required by the Municipal Code, the trash receptacles for the proposed MOB will not be 
visible from the street or adjoining properties. The trash receptacles will be located at the 
northeast corner of the property (back of the property) across the parking lot from the MOB; not 
visible from Bloomfield Avenue; and enclosed, gated, and landscaped with trees so that the 
receptacles are not visible from the adjoining properties. As such, required compliance with the 
Code will ensure odors from the trash receptacles will not become a nuisance. Therefore, the 
proposed project will have a less than significant air quality impact due to the creation of 
objectionable odors that might affect a substantial number of people. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES -- Would the project: 
 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any 

species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 



 

16 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is located in a commercial/industrial district in the central portion of the City. 
Commercial development abuts the site on the north, east, and south sides. Vacant land intended 
for commercial use is located to the west of the project site across Bloomfield Avenue. The 
project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s and is currently nearly 100 
percent paved. 
 
The plans, policies and regulations considered significant to the project site regarding both plant 
and animal species and their habitats, are administered by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). The RWQCB 
monitors and regulates those discharges of fill material into waters of the State that do not fall 
under the jurisdiction of the Army Corps of Engineers pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act. However, no jurisdiction of the RWQCB that would require analysis is known to 
exist on the project site or surrounding area. 
 
CDFW regulates all diversions, obstructions, or changes to the natural flow or bed, channel, or 
bank of any river, stream, or lake, which support fish or wildlife. During grading and 
construction for the previous uses and structures on the project site, as well as the current storage 
yard and current structures on surrounding properties, the project site and the surrounding area 
were heavily disturbed and the integrity of any plant or animal habitat was likely destroyed. As 
such, the project site and area have limited biological value and would contribute little to 
wildlife movement corridors.  
 
Review of the State of California’s Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) did not reveal the 
presence of sensitive or endangered species on the project site or on the surrounding area.7 As a 
result, no impacts on any candidate, sensitive, or special status species will result from the 
project’s development. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 

community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 

The project site is located in a commercial/industrial district in the central portion of the City. 
Commercial development abuts the site on the north, east, and south sides. Vacant land intended 
for commercial use is located to the west of the project site across Bloomfield Avenue. The 

                                                 
7 California Department of Fish and Wildlife, California Natural Diversity Database – CNDDB Quick Viewer, 
accessed 26 July 2013. 



 

17 

project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s and is currently nearly 100 
percent paved. 
 
There are no native or natural riparian plant habitats found within the project site or in the 
surrounding properties. There are no “blue line” streams or “Waters of the U.S.” located within 
the project site or surrounding area.8 Further, during grading and construction for the previous 
uses and structures on the project site, as well as the current storage yard and current structures 
on surrounding properties, the project site and the surrounding area were heavily disturbed and 
the integrity of any plant habitat was likely destroyed. As such, the project site and area have 
limited biological value.  
 
Review of the CNDDB did not reveal the presence of sensitive or endangered species on the 
project site or on the surrounding area.9 As a result, no impacts on any natural or riparian 
habitats are anticipated from implementation of the project.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 

404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 
etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

 
Finding: No impact  
 

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, the Army Corps of Engineers (“Corps”) 
regulates the discharge of dredged and/or fill material into waters of the United States. The 
project site is located in a commercial/industrial district in the central portion of the City. 
Commercial development abuts the site on the north, east, and south sides. Vacant land intended 
for commercial use is located to the west of the project site across Bloomfield Avenue. The 
project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s and is currently nearly 100 
percent paved. 
 
There are no federally protected wetlands, “blue line” streams, or “Waters of the U.S.” located 
within the project site or surrounding area.10 Further, during grading and construction for the 
previous uses and structures on the project site, as well as the current storage yard and current 
structures on surrounding properties, the project site and the surrounding area were heavily 
disturbed and the integrity of any water habitat was destroyed. As such, the project site and area 
have limited biological value. As a result, the proposed project will not impact any protected 
wetland area or designated blue-line stream.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

                                                 
8 United States Geological Survey (USGS), Whittier Quadrangle 7.5-Minute Series, released April 5, 2012. 
9 California Department of Fish and Wildlife, California Natural Diversity Database – CNDDB Quick Viewer, 
accessed 26 July 2013. 
10 United States Geological Survey (USGS), Whittier Quadrangle 7.5-Minute Series, released April 5, 2012. 



 

18 

 
d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or 

wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 

The project site is located in a commercial/industrial district in the central portion of the City. 
Commercial development abuts the site on the north, east, and south sides. Vacant land intended 
for commercial use is located to the west of the project site across Bloomfield Avenue. The 
project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s and is currently nearly 100 
percent paved. As such, no natural open space areas are located on-site or in the surrounding area 
that would potentially serve as an animal migration corridor. Therefore, the proposed project will 
not interfere substantially with the movement of any wildlife species or with established 
migratory corridors or nursery sites and will result in no biological resource impact. 
 

Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a 

tree preservation policy or ordinance? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs requires approval for removal of any trees within the City limits. 
The project site has been previously graded and disturbed since the 1950s and is currently nearly 
100 percent paved. The proposed project will also comply with all City landscape requirements 
with regard to tree planting and will be subject to approval of a Landscape Plan by the City. 
Therefore, the proposed project will not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 
biological resources, including any tree preservation policies or ordinances, and no additional 
mitigation is required beyond existing requirements already adopted by the City. 
  
Recommended Mitigation: None                                                                                                                                
 
f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 

Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
According to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, the project site is not included in 
any local, regional, or State habitat conservation plans or Natural Community Conservation 
Plans (NCCP).11As indicated previously, the project site is located within an urban area and no 

                                                 
11 California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Habitat Conservation Planning website: 
http://www.dfg.ca.gov/habcon/nccp/ 



 

19 

natural habitats are found within the project site or within the surrounding properties. Therefore, 
the project will result in no impacts on local, regional, or State habitat conservation plans. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
V.  CULTURAL RESOURCES -- Would the project: 
 
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined 

in Section 15064.5 of the State CEQA Guidelines? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The State of California, through the Office of Historic Preservation (OHP), maintains an 
inventory of sites and structures that are considered to be historical resources, known as the 
California Register. A “historical resource” is a resource listed in, or determined to be eligible 
for listing in the California Register, a local register, or determined by a lead agency to be a 
historic resource as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1 (j) or 5024.1. The U.S. 
Department of the Interior, National Park Service also maintains an inventory of historical 
resources known as the National Register of Historic Places (National Register). There are 
currently two locations in the City of Santa Fe Springs recorded on the National Register 
including the Clark Estate at 10211 Pioneer Boulevard and the Hawkins-Nimocks Estate-Patricio 
Ontiveros Adobe at 12100 Telegraph Road, none of which are near or in the vicinity of the 
project site. 
 
A “substantial adverse change” is defined under Section 15064.5 (b) (1) as a physical 
demolition, destruction, relocation or alteration of the resource or its immediate surroundings 
such that the significance of a historical resource would be materially impaired. 
 
As a storage yard, there are currently no permanent structures on the project site. As such, no 
structures could be considered historically significant. Further, the project site is not listed by the 
OHP as being included in the National Register or California Register, or as being a State 
Landmark or Point of Interest.12 Due to the lack of permanent structures, as well as the lack of 
historical resources on the project site, the proposed project will not result in the demolition, 
destruction, relocation or alteration of a historical resource. Per the definition provided by 
Section 15064.5, the proposed project will not result in a substantial adverse change to a 
historical resource and will result in no impact to historical resources. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource 

pursuant to Section 15064.5? 

                                                 
12 California State Parks, Office of Historic Preservation, California Historical Resources website: 
http://ohp.parks.ca.gov/ListedResources/?view=county&criteria=19 



 

20 

 
Finding: No impact  
 
Prior to European contact, the local Gabrielino Indians lived in more than 50 villages located 
throughout the Los Angeles Basin. Two village sites were located in the West Whittier-Los 
Nietos area to the north of the City of Santa Fe Springs: Naxaaw’na and Sehat. The sites of 
Naxaaw’na and Sehat are thought to be near the adobe home of Jose Manuel Nietos that was 
located near the San Gabriel River.13 No village sites are known or suspected to be present 
within or adjacent to the project site.   
 
The proposed project includes construction of a medical office building that is not anticipated to 
have a basement or subterranean level. This will reduce the amount of excavation necessary at 
the project site, which will reduce possible effects of the proposed project on any archaeological 
resources. Additionally, no significant archaeological sites are likely to be discovered given the 
degree of previous disturbance. Therefore, no impacts on archaeological resources are 
anticipated from the proposed project. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

 
c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic 

feature? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
No known paleontological resources are known to exist at or adjacent to the project site.14 The 
proposed project includes construction of a medical office building that is not anticipated to have 
a basement or subterranean level. This will reduce the amount of excavation necessary at the 
project site, which will reduce possible effects of the proposed project on any paleontological 
resources. The potential for paleontological resources in the area is considered low due to the 
degree of previous disturbance. Therefore, no impacts on paleontological resources are 
anticipated from the proposed project. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 

                                                 
13 U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service. National Register of Historic Places. 
www.nationalregisterofhistoricplaces.com 
14 Based on findings in the Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, dated July 10, 2012, completed by URS, 
which states that the site was already previously excavated for installment of underground storage tanks (USTs), 
which were removed from the site by the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works. No paleontological 
resources were known to have been found during installation or during removal of the USTs by L.A. County Public 
Works.  



 

21 

No known human remains are known to exist at or adjacent to the project site. The project site 
lies within a commercial/industrial sector of the City of Santa Fe Springs, and has undergone 
prior disturbance, grading, and site preparation. Based on previous site disturbance, no buried 
human remains are known or have been found to exist at the project site or surrounding area. 
Additionally, there are no formal or active cemeteries in the project area. The nearest cemetery 
to the project site is Little Lake Cemetery (operated by the Little Lake Cemetery District), which 
is located on the east side of Pioneer Boulevard and south of Florence Avenue, approximately 
1.3 miles to the northwest of the project site. Therefore, the proposed project will not result in a 
significant impact to interred human remains. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

 
 
VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS -- Would the project: 
 
a)  Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 

loss, injury, or death involving: 
 

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or 
based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines 
and Geology Special Publication 42. 

 
  Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
  According to the Report of Geotechnical Investigation prepared for the proposed 

project, the project site is not located within a currently established Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zone for surface rupture hazards.15 This claim is further backed 
by the City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan, Safety Element, which states that 
no active faults are known to exist or pass through the City of Santa Fe Springs.  

 
The closest Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone, established for the Whittier 
fault of the Elsinore fault zone, is located 5.2 miles northeast of the project site. 
The Newport-Inglewood-Rose Canyon Fault Zone, which runs 
northwest/southeast along western California is approximately 11 miles to the 
southwest and the Sierra Madre Fault Zone, which runs east/west through Los 
Angeles County, is approximately 15 miles to the north. The City is underlain by 
the Santa Fe Springs Blind Thrust Fault, which is a segment of the Puente Hills 
Blind Thrust Fault that was responsible for the Whittier Narrows Earthquake in 
1987. Based on available geologic data, active or potentially active faults with the 
potential for surface fault rupture are not known to be located directly beneath or 
projecting toward the site. Therefore, the potential for surface rupture due to fault 

                                                 
15 AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. Report of Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Medical Office 
Building. September 25, 2013. 



 

22 

plane displacement propagating to the surface at the project site during the design 
life of the proposed MOB is considered low. Additionally, structures on fault 
traces of Earthquake Fault Zones are prohibited per the Alquist-Priolo Special 
Studies Act of 1972.  
 
The proposed project has been appropriately located with respect to the existing 
Earthquake Fault Zones in the area, within a long established and developed 
commercial/industrial district of the City where, historically, people and 
structures have not been exposed to loss, injury, or death due to rupture of known 
earthquake faults. The project site will continue to be exposed to potential 
ground-shaking in the event of an earthquake. The degree of ground-shaking is 
dependent on the location of the earthquake epicenter, the earthquake's intensity, 
and a number of other variables. For the project site, the degree of impact will not 
be significantly different from that anticipated for the surrounding areas. 
Therefore, the proposed project is anticipated to result in a less than significant 
geologic hazards impact due to fault rupture. 

 
  Recommended Mitigation: None 
  

ii)  Strong seismic ground shaking? 
 

Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
  The major cause of structural damage from earthquakes is groundshaking. The 

amount of ground motion expected at a building site can vary from minimal to 
forceful depending upon the distance to the fault, the magnitude of the 
earthquake, and the local geology. The project site is not located within an 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone, and as such, is less likely to incur 
excessively strong seismic ground shaking that would expose people or structures 
to the risk of loss, injury, or death. However, the project site is located within the 
seismically active Southern California region, in which a certain degree of ground 
shaking is common and likely to occur due to earthquakes caused by movement 
of faults. According to the City General Plan, “Ground shaking in Santa Fe 
Springs can be expected from any moderate earthquake in the Los Angeles 
basin.” However, as required, the design and construction of the proposed project 
will be in conformance with all current building codes and engineering practices, 
which will mitigate the effects of any potential ground shaking. Therefore, with 
adherence to all required building codes imposed by the City, the proposed 
project will result in a less than significant geologic hazards impact due to seismic 
ground shaking and mitigation measures are not required. 

 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

 
 
 



 

23 

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 
 
  Finding: Less than significant impact 
  
  Liquefaction and ground failure potential have been found to be greatest where 

the groundwater level is shallow, and loose fine sands occur within 50 feet of the 
ground surface. Liquefaction potential decreases within increasing grain size and 
clay and gravel content, but increases as the ground acceleration and duration of 
shaking increase. 

 
  According to the County of Los Angeles Seismic Safety Element (1990), the 

project site is classified as having very low liquefaction susceptibility. 
Additionally, according to the Seismic Hazard Zones Map prepared for the 
Whittier 7.5 Minute Quadrangle (1999) by the California Department of 
Conservation, the project site is located outside an area where historic occurrence 
of liquefaction, or local geological, geotechnical, and groundwater conditions 
indicate a potential for permanent ground displacements such that mitigation 
would be required. As described in the Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
prepared for the proposed project, the soils encountered during borings at the 
project site are generally medium dense to dense. As such, the potential for 
liquefaction adversely impacting the project site is considered to be low. 16 

 
Furthermore, according to the City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan, 
“Liquefaction within the City is generally not a hazard as the water table is 
generally deeper than 50 feet. Areas immediately adjacent to the San Gabriel 
River may have moderate liquefaction risk.” The project site is not adjacent to the 
San Gabriel River and, similar to the majority of the City, likely contains a water 
table that is deeper than 50 feet. Although, it is possible for groundwater levels to 
rise shallower than 50 feet below ground surface due to water “banking”17 for 
local municipalities, current groundwater fluctuations are now primarily governed 
by seasonal rainfall. Groundwater was not encountered in recent borings drilled to 
depths of 25 feet below ground surface.18  
 
Finally, the proposed project does not involve excavation for subterranean levels 
and will be in conformance with all City requirements with regard to grading and 
compaction. Therefore, the proposed project will result in a less than significant 

                                                 
16 AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. Report of Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Medical Office 
Building. September 25, 2013. 
17 Water banking is an institutional mechanism used to facilitate the legal transfer and market exchange of various 
types of surface, groundwater, and storage entitlements. The term “water banking” is widely used to refer to a 
variety of water management practices. In general, no single or common definition exists for water banking, 
probably because there are such a wide range of approaches to water banking.  
18 AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. Report of Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Medical Office 
Building. September 25, 2013. 



 

24 

geologic hazards impact due to seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction. 

 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

  
iv)  Landslides 
 

Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
  The project site and project area are relatively flat, and there are no known 

landslides near the project site, nor is the project site in the path of any known or 
potential landslides. According to the County of Los Angeles Seismic Safety 
Element (1990), the project site is not within an area identified as having a 
potential for slope instability. Additionally, according to the California 
Department of Conservation’s landslide and slope instability map, the project site 
is not within an area identified to have potential for seismic slope instability.19  
Therefore, the proposed project will result in a less than significant geologic 
impact due to landslides. 

 
  Recommended Mitigation: None. 
  
b)  Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 
  
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 

 The project site is relatively flat and currently covered with almost 100 percent impervious 
surfaces, including asphalt pavement with only minor landscaping. The project site will continue 
to remain covered in almost 100 percent impervious surfaces, including the proposed MOB and 
asphalt pavement, with minor landscaping. The pervious landscape areas proposed on the project 
site represent approximately 16 percent of the total area, which would likely represent a minor 
increase in pervious surface area at the site. However, the minor increase in pervious surfaces 
will not be substantial, and as such, it is not anticipated that there will be a substantial increase in 
stormwater runoff generated from the site that could result in an increase in soil erosion or loss 
of topsoil. Furthermore, since the project site is relatively flat, there is a low risk of soil erosion 
or loss of topsoil on adjacent sites due to runoff from the project site, as would be the case in 
hillside areas. Similar to current conditions, the proposed project will comply with City and 
County regulations regarding adequate drainage of surface water by sufficiently sloping all 
surfaces and providing positive drainage away from the proposed building to the street drainage 
system, which would minimize infiltration of water beneath footings, floor slabs, and pavement. 
Given the developed character of the project site and the proposed project’s required compliance 

                                                 
19 California Department of Conservation. Map of Localities in Los Angeles Region Where Slope Failures and 
Debris Flooding During February-March 1978 Rains Caused Serious Property Damage and Loss of Life. 
Published 1978. 



 

25 

with City and County regulations, less than significant impacts related to soil erosion or loss of 
topsoil are anticipated.   
 
Recommended Mitigation: None. 
  
c)  Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 

result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

 
Finding: Less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated 
 
A geotechnical investigation was completed for the proposed project, which included subsurface 
exploration (borings) to 25 feet below existing grade, engineering analyses, and laboratory tests 
for moisture content and dry density determinations, fines content, direct shear, consolidation, 
hydroconsolidation, Expansion Index, Stabilometer (R-Value), and corrosivity.  
 
Approximately 12 inches of base course was encountered below the existing 3- to 4-inch thick 
asphalt concrete paving on the project site. Other than the base course, fill materials were not 
encountered, however, fill soils could be present between borings and at other unexplored 
locations, particularly in areas where underground utilities are present. The underlying natural 
soils consist predominately of medium dense to dense silty and poorly graded sand with 
alternating layers of stiff to hard sandy and clayey silt to the depth explored. The upper onsite 
silty sand soils are somewhat susceptible to hydroconsolidation (collapse) and may become 
somewhat weaker and more compressible when wet. Groundwater was not encountered within 
the 25-foot depth explored at the site. The onsite soils are classified as moderately corrosive to 
ferrous metals, non-aggressive to copper, and the sulfate attack potential on concrete is 
negligible. Finally, the project site is not considered susceptible to subsidence associated with 
peat oxidation or hydrocompaction.20 
 
As mentioned, fill soils were not encountered at the project site; however, fill soils may be 
present at locations not explored. Since records of the placement and compaction of fill soils at 
the site are not available, any fill soils encountered would not be considered suitable for support 
of the proposed MOB, pavement, or other concrete walks and slabs on grade, and as such, would 
be removed and replaced as properly compacted fill in compliance with established City 
requirements. The proposed MOB would also be supported on conventional spread/continuous 
footings in the properly compacted fill and/or undisturbed natural soils in compliance with 
established City requirements. Full compliance with City requirements would ensure soil 
stability for the proposed project. However, since the upper onsite silty sand soils are somewhat 
susceptible to hydroconsolidation (collapse), the mitigation measure below should be 
implemented for the proposed project, if not already required through City regulations. 
 

                                                 
20 AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. Report of Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Medical Office 
Building. September 25, 2013. 



 

26 

Furthermore, as identified previously, no area of the project site is located within identified areas 
of landslides and liquefaction, and according to the geotechnical investigation prepared for the 
project, the potential for geologic hazards such as slope instability, seiche, tsunamis, inundation, 
and subsidence affecting the proposed improvements is considered to be low.21 Therefore, with 
implementation of the following mitigation measure and compliance with all City regulations 
with regard to foundation design and support, the proposed project will result in a less than 
significant impact.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: Environmental impacts related to the project site’s susceptibility to 
hydroconsolidation will be mitigated to a less than significant level by implementation of the 
following measure: 
 

 Good drainage of surface water shall be provided by adequately sloping all surfaces 
and providing positive drainage away from the proposed building. Such drainage will 
be important to minimize infiltration of water beneath footings, floor slabs, and 
pavement. 

 
d)  Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 

(1994), creating substantial risks to life or property? 
  
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The project site has been developed with several uses since the 1950s, which included 
construction of foundations, slabs, pavement, and buildings. As such, it is anticipated that the 
underlying soil on the project site is suitable for development. According to the Expandion Index 
test conducted as part of the geotechnical investigation prepared for the proposed project, the 
Expansion Index of the soils underlying the project site is 5.22 A soil Expansion Index of below 
20 is considered to have very low potential for expansion. Additionally, the foundation for the 
proposed building on the project site will be constructed in compliance with all City regulations 
and requirements. Therefore, the impacts of the proposed project related to expansive underlying 
soil are less than significant. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None.  
       
e)  Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste 

water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is currently serviced by wastewater disposal sewers. The proposed project will 
not utilize septic tanks on the project site. Therefore, the proposed project will not result in any 

                                                 
21 Ibid. 
22 AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. Report of Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Medical Office 
Building. September 25, 2013. 



 

27 

incremental or cumulative impacts due to the installation of a septic tank on soils incapable of 
adequately supporting it. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
VII.  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS - Would the project:  
 
a)  Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 

significant impact on the environment? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions refer to a group of emissions that are generally believed to 
affect global climate conditions. Simply put, the greenhouse effect compares the Earth and the 
atmosphere surrounding it to a greenhouse with glass panes. The glass panes in a greenhouse let 
heat from sunlight in and reduce the amount of heat that escapes. GHGs, such as carbon dioxide 
(CO2), methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O) keep the average surface temperature of the 
Earth close to 60 degrees Fahrenheit (°F). Without the greenhouse effect, the Earth would be a 
frozen globe with an average surface temperature of about 5°F.  

In addition to CO2, CH4, and N2O, GHGs include hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulfur 
hexafluoride, and water vapor. Of all the GHGs, CO2 is the most abundant pollutant that 
contributes to climate change through fossil fuel combustion.  CO2 comprised 81 percent of the 
total GHG emissions in California in 2002 and non-fossil fuel CO2 comprised 2.3 percent.23  The 
other GHGs are less abundant but have higher global warming potential than CO2. To account 
for this higher potential, emissions of other GHGs are frequently expressed in the equivalent 
mass of CO2, denoted as CO2e. The CO2e of CH4 and N2O represented 6.4 and 6.8 percent, 
respectively, of the 2002 California GHG emissions. Other high global warming potential gases 
represented 3.5 percent of these emissions.

24
 In addition, there are a number of man-made 

pollutants, such as CO, NOX, non-methane VOC, and SO2, that have indirect effects on 
terrestrial or solar radiation absorption by influencing the formation or destruction of other 
climate change emissions. 
 
In response to growing scientific and political concern with global climate change, California 
adopted a series of laws to reduce emissions of GHGs into the atmosphere including Assembly 
Bill 1493, Executive Order S-3-05, Assembly Bill 32, CEQA Guidelines Amendments, Senate 
Bill 375,  the California Air Resources Board (CARB) Guidance, and the South Coast Air 
Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Guidance. 
 

                                                 
23 California Environmental Protection Agency, Climate Action Team Report to Governor Schwarzenegger and the 
Legislature, March 2006, p. 11. 
24 Ibid. 



 

28 

The greenhouse gas emissions for the proposed project are based on the operational air quality 
impacts, as determined in Section III, Air Quality above. The majority of emissions would be 
associated with mobile sources followed by general electricity generation, soild waste 
decomposition from project-related trash, electricity generation associated with the water cycle, 
natural gas usage, and construction activity. The greenhouse gas emissions were estimated for 
the proposed project under Future No Project (2015) and Future With Project (2015) conditions 
to compare the cumulative greenhouse emissions both with and without the project during the 
buildout year. Greenhouse gas emissions are presented in Table 3: Greenhouse Gas Emissions.  
 
The regional significance threshold for greenhouse gas emissions is 10,000 metric tons per year 
of Carbon Dioxide Equivalent. Mobile sources for emissions are predicted to be lower in 2015 
when compared to the present day due to engine turnover and associated improvements in engine 
technology. As shown in Table 3, when the proposed project is built and operational, the 
greenhouse gas emissions from the proposed project will not exceed the regional significance 
threshold of 10,000 metric tons of Carbon Dioxide Equivalent per year25 and therefore would 
result in a less than significant impact, both incrementally and cumulatively. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
25 The SCAQMD has not approved a GHG significance threshold for the development of non-SCAQMD and non-
industrial uses. However, the 10,000 metric tons per year threshold, as suggested by the Market Advisory 
Committee for inclusion in a GHG Cap and Trade System in California, is being used as the most appropriate 
threshold for such a metropolitan area development to determine if the proposed project’s GHG emissions are 
“cumulatively considerable”. 



 

29 

TABLE 3 
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

[1] 

Scenario and Source Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (Metric Tons Per Year) 

Future No Project Conditions (2015) 

Mobile 73 

General Electricity -- 

Water Cycle Electricity -- 

  Natural Gas -- 

Solid Waste Decomposition -- 

Construction [2] -- 

Total 73 

Future Plus Project Conditions (2015) 

Mobile 2,327 

General Electricity 284 

Water Cycle Electricity 43 

Natural Gas 21 

Solid Waste Decomposition 172 

Construction 
[2] 11 

Total 2,858 

Net Emissions 2,784 

[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Memorandum Re: InterHealth Corp. Santa Fe Springs Medical Office 
Building Project – Air Quality Analysis. 26 August 2013. 
[2] Total construction emissions were amortized over 30 years per SCAQMD guidance to obtain an annual emission rate. 

 

Recommended Mitigation: None. 
 
b)  Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of 

reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The proposed project, which consists of development of an approximately 35,076 square foot 
medical office building and approval of a Code Amendment, would meet the objectives and 
overall intent of reducing greenhouse gases consistent with direction from and measures of the 
California Climate Action Team and the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association 
(CAPCOA).  



 

30 

 
Project consistency with the Climate Action Team’s greenhouse gas emission reduction 
strategies include:  
 

 Diesel Anti-Idling: The proposed project will comply with State law, which restricts 
diesel truck idling to five minutes or less. Diesel trucks making deliveries to the 
project site would be subject to this Statewide law. Construction vehicles would also 
be subject to this regulation 

 Achieve 50 Percent Statewide Recycling Goal: The proposed project will comply 
with the City of Santa Fe Springs Construction and Demolition Recycling 
Requirements, which require a goal to reuse or recycle at least 75 percent of project 
waste. 

 Urban Forestry: The proposed project will include planting new landscape trees 
along the front yard landscape setback, around the perimeter of the proposed MOB, 
and throughout the surface parking lot of the proposed project.  

 Smart Land Use and Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS): The proposed 
project is located in close proximity to residential uses and basic commercial 
services. The proposed project will also provide new and additional employment 
opportunities, which will improve the region’s job-housing balance. The proposed 
project will be located in close proximity to public transit opportunities, located an 
approximately 5-minute walk (according to Mapquest.com) from the Norwalk/Santa 
Fe Springs Metrolink station to the southeast.  

 
Project consistency with the CAPCOA greenhouse gas reduction measures include:  
 

 T3 – Minimum Parking: The proposed project will include 179 surface parking 
spaces, including 12 handicap parking spaces to comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. The 179 parking spaces will exceed the 175 parking spaces required 
by the City Code for the proposed use. 

 T8 – Landscaping: The proposed project will comply with all required City codes 
and Ordinances, including the required City of Santa Fe Springs Landscape 
Guidelines and California AB 1881 (the Model Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance). As required, all project landscaping designs and plans will consider 
xeriscape materials and methods, including consideration of the use of drought 
resistant native trees, and trees with low emissions and high carbon sequestration 
potential.  

 
Furthermore, the City’s building permit process for the proposed project will ensure that all 
standards related to greenhouse gas emissions will be complied with before issuance of a 
building permit and certificate of occupancy.  
 
Therefore, the proposed project will not conflict with any applicable plans, policies, or 
regulations aimed at reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and will result in a less than significant 
impact, both incrementally and cumulatively. 



 

31 

 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
VIII.  HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - Would the project: 
 
a)  Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, 

use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Hazardous materials, as defined by the California Code of Regulations (CCR), are substances 
with certain physical properties that could pose a substantial present or future hazard to human 
health or the environment when improperly handled, disposed, or otherwise managed. Hazardous 
materials are grouped into four categories, based on their properties, including: 1) Toxic, which 
causes human health effects, 2) Ignitable, which has the ability to burn, 3) Corrosive, which 
causes severe burns or damage to materials, and 4) Reactive, which causes explosions or 
generates toxic gases.  
 
There are currently no permanent structures on the project site. As such, the proposed project 
would not require demolition of any old buildings that may contain lead-based paint or asbestos-
containing materials (ACMs). Grading and construction activities associated with the proposed 
project may involve the limited transport, storage, usage, or disposal of hazardous materials, 
such as the fueling/servicing of construction equipment. However, such activity is short-term or 
one-time in nature and is subject to federal, State, and local health and safety requirements. 
Adherence to federal, State, and local health and safety requirements would reduce the potential 
impacts associated with construction activities to less than significant. 
 
As a medical office building, the proposed project would generate medical waste, which is waste 
that is generated or produced as a result of diagnosis, treatment, or immunization of human 
beings, including biohazardous waste (e.g., blood and blood-contaminated materials) and 
“sharps” waste (e.g., needles). However, the proposed project will be required to adhere to 
federal, State, and local health and safety requirements and basic compliance measures, 
including the possibility of obtaining a Hazardous Waste Generator Permit from the Certified 
Unified Program Agency (CUPA) and filing a Hazardous Material Business Plan (HMBP) 
Statement with the City of Sante Fe Springs Fire Department, as required for all businesses in 
the City and mandated by Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code. Adherence to 
federal, State, and local health and safety requirements and issuance of all required permits for 
the proposed project would reduce the potential impacts associated with generation and transport 
of hazardous waste during operational activities to less than significant. 
 
Therefore, the proposed project will result in a less than significant impact, both incrementally 
and cumulatively, as a result of hazardous materials transport or disposal, and no mitigation 
measures are required. 
 



 

32 

Recommended Mitigation: None  
 
b)  Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials 
into the environment? 

 
Finding: Less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated 
 
The proposed project consists of development of a medical office building. No major toxic, 
ignitable, corrosive, or reactive hazardous materials will be handled at the project site that would 
pose a potential hazardous materials impact due to the reasonably foreseeable upset involving 
the release of these hazardous materials. As noted in the previous section, all medical waste 
produced at the medical office building will be disposed of in accordance with all federal, State, 
and local health and safety requirements. Thus, the proposed project will not result in any 
significant impacts related to the release of hazardous materials from the proposed use.  
 
However, there are a number of landfills located in the vicinity of the project site that could 
result in potential methane releases in the absence of mitigation. Methane is a direct result of the 
decomposition of organic materials that were disposed of in the area landfills. Methane is an 
odorless, combustible gas that may become explosive if concentrations are great enough in 
enclosed, unventilated spaces. Methane migrates in the subsurface soils into the surface layers of 
the soil, ultimately being released into the air. According to the City of Santa Fe Springs 
Methane Zone map, a northern portion of the project site is located within 1,000 feet of the 
Kalico No. 3: Greenstone Avenue Landfill to the northeast. As such, the project site falls within 
a “Methane Zone”. Based on the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment performed on the 
project site, there is no indication of a release from the landfills or that the landfills have created 
impacts to soil or groundwater that appear to have affected the project site.26 However, due to the 
proximity of the landfills in the site vicinity and in accordance with City of Santa Fe Springs 
Municipal Code Section 117.131, implementation of the following mitigation measures would 
reduce any potential significant impacts involving release of hazardous materials into the 
environment to a less than significant level. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: Environmental impacts related to the project site’s location within a 
Methane Zone will be mitigated to a less than significant level by implementation of the 
following measures: 
 

 A soils gas investigation shall be required as part of the granting of a Planning 
entitlement or building permit. If deemed necessary by the findings of the soils gas 
investigation, the installation of a methane monitoring system shall be required 
beneath future subject property buildings. 

                                                 
26 URS Corporation Americas. Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 12438 Bloomfield Avenue Santa Fe 
Springs, California 90650. July 10, 2012. 



 

33 

 The proposed project shall conform with all requirements of the City of Santa Fe 
Springs Municipal Code Section 117.131 (Ordinance No. 955), pertaining to the 
Methane Zone Program, administered by the Fire Department.  

 
c)  Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 

substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
There are no schools within ¼-mile from the project site. The nearest school to the project site is 
the Southeast Academy High School approximately ¾ mile to the southeast, located within the 
City of Norwalk. The nearest school to the project site within the City of Santa Fe Springs is St. 
Pius X Pre/Elementary School, approximately 1½ miles to the northwest. There are no known 
new schools proposed for the proposed project area. Therefore, no significant adverse or 
cumulative impacts concerning a release of hazardous materials that would potentially affect a 
nearby school are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
d)  Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled 

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would create a significant 
hazard to the public or the environment?  

 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The Hazardous Waste and Substances Sites (Cortese) List is a planning document used by the 
State, local agencies and developers to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act 
requirements in providing information about the location of hazardous materials release sites.27 
Government Code section 65962.5 requires that the List is updated, at a minimum, annually. 
There are four sites28 within the City of Santa Fe Springs that are identified on the Cortese List. 
However, the project site is not identified on the Cortese List as having a hazardous materials 
problem that might need remediation. Therefore, the proposed project will not result in a 
significant impact due to identification on the Cortese List. 
 
In a search for facilities listed by other regulatory agencies as potentially having environmental 
concerns, the project site was identified as Industrial Asphalt of California in the Los Angeles 
County Hazardous Materials System (HMS) database and as Johnny Johnson in the Los Angeles 
HMS and Statewide Environmental Evaluation and Planning System Underground Storage Tank 

                                                 
27 California Environmental Protection Agency (Cal/EPA) website: 
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/sitecleanup/corteselist. October 15, 2013. 
28 According to the Cortese List, the four sites include "Waste Disposal, Inc." at 12731 Los Nietos Rd, "McKesson 
Chemical Company" at 9005 Sorenson Avenue, "Neville Chemical Company" at 12800 Imperial Highway, and 
"Angeles Chemical Company Inc." at 8915 Sorenson Avenue (provided by the Department of Toxic Substances 
Control - EnviroStor). 



 

34 

(SWEEPS UST) databases.29 However, the facility status is listed as closed in both Los Angeles 
County HMS listings. The SWEEPS UST listing does not provide additional details regarding 
former USTs at the project site; however, according to the Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment prepared for the project site, three USTs were removed from the central portion of 
the project site in May 1987, including two 7,500-gallon gasoline USTs and one 550-gallon 
waste oil UST. The removal was completed under Los Angeles County Department of Public 
Works permit #2585B. A total of five confirmation soil samples were taken from beneath the 
former USTs at the time of removal and were analyzed for total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH). 
The soil samples collected from beneath the two former gasoline USTs were also analyzed for 
lead. TPH and lead were not detected in the samples analyzed. The Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Works issued a no further action letter for the UST removal on July 8, 
1987. As a result, it is concluded in the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for the project 
site, that no recognized environmental conditions (RECs) were found in connection with current 
or historic operations at the project site.30 Therefore, the project site is not considered to be a 
hazardous materials site, and implementation of the proposed project would not create a 
significant hazard to the public or the environment, resulting in a less than significant impact. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
e)  For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been 

adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project 
result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is not located within two miles of an operational public use airport. The nearest 
public airport is the Fullerton Muni Airport (FUL), which is located approximately 6.3 miles to 
the southeast of the project site. The Long Beach/Daugherty Field Airport (LGB) is located 
approximately 9.4 miles to the southwest of the project site. The Compton/Woodley Airport 
(CPM) is located approximately 10.7 miles to the southwest, the El Monte Airport (EMT) is 
located approximately 10.8 miles to the northeast, and the Los Angeles International Airport 
(LAX) is located approximately 19.7 miles to the west. The proposed project’s implementation 
will not present a safety hazard to aircraft and/or airport operations at a public use airport. 
Therefore, no significant adverse or cumulative impacts are anticipated.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
f)  For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety 

hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 
 
Finding: No impact 

                                                 
29 URS Corporation Americas. Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 12438 Bloomfield Avenue Santa Fe 
Springs, California 90650. July 10, 2012. 
30 Ibid. 



 

35 

 
The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. The nearest private airstrip 
is the Los Alamitos Airfield (SLI), which is located approximately 9.8 miles to the southwest of 
the project site. The proposed project’s implementation will not present a safety hazard related to 
aircraft and/or airport operations at a private use airstrip. Therefore, no significant adverse or 
cumulative impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
g)  Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response 

plan or emergency evacuation plan?  
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs adopted the City of Santa Fe Springs Natural Hazards Mitigation 
Plan (Mitigation Plan), which includes resources and information to assist City residents, public 
and private sector organizations, and others interested in participating in planning for natural 
hazards, such as earthquakes and flooding. The Mitigation Plan provides a list of activities that 
may assist the City of Santa Fe Springs in reducing risk and preventing loss from future natural 
hazard events.  
 
The project site is served by Bloomfield Avenue (a public street) and the proposed project will 
provide two ingress/egress driveways along Bloomfield Avenue for public and emergency 
access. There will also be a third driveway on the southeast corner of the project site, providing 
access to the adjacent easterly and southeasterly properties, which then provide access to 
Imperial Highway (a public street). All surface parking lot driveway aisles for the proposed 
project have been designed with a sufficient and approved width to provide proper fire access to 
the Santa Fe Springs Fire Department. Operations of the proposed MOB will not involve 
handling of toxic, ignitable, corrosive, or reactive hazardous materials that if improperly handled 
or damaged could cause serious secondary dangers to the public during a natural hazard. 
 
As a private facility on private property, it is anticipated and expected that at no time during the 
construction or operational phases of the proposed project will Bloomfield Avenue be closed to 
traffic. As such, the proposed project will not obstruct access on public streets to any of the 
critical or essential facilities listed in the Mitigation Plan, which are vital to the continued 
delivery of key government services during an emergency.31 Therefore, the proposed project will 
not impair implementation of or physically interfere with the City’s adopted emergency response 
plan and no significant adverse or cumulative impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
  

                                                 
31 City of Santa Fe Springs. Cit of Santa Fe Springs Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan. Adopted October 11, 2004. 



 

36 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 
wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where 
residences are intermixed with wildlands? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
During grading and construction activities for previous and current uses on the project site, the 
land was disturbed and all natural vegetation was removed which would reduce the potential for 
wildland fires. The project site is also surrounded by existing commercial/industrial development 
within a built-up, urbanized area. There are no areas of native vegetation found within the 
project site or in the surrounding properties that could provide a fuel source for a wildfire. The 
proposed project, including a medical office building and a surrounding surface parking lot, will 
be designed in accordance with all requirements of the Santa Fe Springs Fire Department. 
Therefore, there are no significant or cumulative impacts associated with potential wildfires from 
off-site locations. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None. 
 
 
IX.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY -- Would the project: 
  
a)  Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The project site is located within an urbanized, commercial/industrial section of the City where 
storm water is degraded when runoff mixes with pollutants across the streets and parking areas. 
Potential water quality issues are associated with storm water runoff across surface parking areas 
that have accumulated grease and trash, and from roofs covered by asphalt materials.  
 
Currently, the northern portion of the project site is occupied by Big Truck, as a truck storage 
lot. The southern portion of the project site is occupied by the City of Norwalk Public Services 
Department as a City storage yard. There are currently no permanent buildings located onsite. 
Various roll-off bins and storage trailers are located within the City yard and are used by the City 
of Norwalk for storage of various materials including gardening equipment for Parks and 
Recreation, old electrical equipment, and construction materials/equipment. As such, the project 
site is currently made up largely of impervious paved surfaces and minimal landscaping.  
 
The proposed project includes development of an approximately 35,076 square foot medical 
office building with associated surface parking and landscaping, and approval of a Code 
Amendment for building materials. Although the amount of impervious vs. pervious surface area 
on the project site will remain similar to existing conditions, pervious surface area will likely 
increase under the proposed project due to an increased amount of landscaped areas. The 
increase in pervious surface area is anticipated to decrease the total amount of runoff from the 
site that drains into the storm water system. Additionally, due to the change in use of the site to a 



 

37 

medical office building from a vehicle/equipment storage yard, the quality of the runoff from the 
project site is anticipated to improve, as there will be less deposits of oil and fuel on the paved 
surfaces. Therefore, the proposed project will have less adverse impacts on water quality than 
from current conditions, therefore resulting in a less than significant impact with regard to 
violation of water quality standards or waste discharge requirements. 
 
Furthermore, the proposed project will be required to comply with National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permitting requirements provided by the state and the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency. The project applicant would be required to submit a 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), in accordance with the NPDES. The SWPPP 
would detail the treatment measures and BMPs to control pollutants and an erosion control plan 
that outlines erosion and sediment control measures that would be implemented during the 
construction and post-construction phases of project development. 
 
Finally, as required by federal law and Chapter 52 of the Santa Fe Springs Code of Ordinances, 
the proposed project will also be required to implement specific Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) identified by either the City of Santa Fe Springs BMP Checklist, the California 
Storwater Quality Association BMP Handbook, or Appendix B of the Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Works BMPs for Industrial and Commercial Facilities, to the maximum 
extent practicable. BMPs are good housekeeping solutions that include the proper handling, 
storage, and disposal of materials to prevent storm water pollution. Examples include: covering 
outdoor storage, routinely sweeping storage areas, keeping absorbent material onsite to clean up 
spills or leaks, or having spill prevention and control procedures in place. It is anticipated that 
grass swale will be utilized for storm water management on the site and that fossil filters and 
underground infiltrator chambers are not required. Therefore, with implementation of required 
and necessary BMPs in accordance with federal and City regulations, the proposed project would 
not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements, resulting in a less than 
significant impact. Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will 
not contribute considerably to any cumulative impacts relating to water quality or water 
discharge, thus resulting in a less than significant cumulative impact.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

 
b)  Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater 

recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the 
local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would 
drop to a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which 
permits have been granted)? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is located in the Central Subbasin of the Coastal Plain of Los Angeles 
groundwater Basin. Groundwater is present within the Holocene and Pleistocene age alluvial 
deposits beneath the site. According to the California Geological Survey (CGS), the historic high 
groundwater level was at a depth of about 10 feet. Groundwater wells in the County of Los 



 

38 

Angeles Department of Public Works (LADPW) and the Water Replenishment District of 
Southern California (WRD) databases report historic high water levels of 68 feet below ground 
surface (bgs) or deeper. The wells are within one mile of the project site and levels were 
recorded between 1959 and 2013. According to the WRD for Norwalk Community Hospital, 
located 0.6 miles south of the project site, water levels in the Central Subbasin have steadily 
risen since the 1960s, and peaked in the mid to late 1990s to current levels. 
 
The proposed project involves development of a medical office building, and as such, is not 
anticipated to extract groundwater, including for irrigation of landscaping. Therefore, the 
proposed project will not deplete local groundwater supplies. The project will connect to the 
City's water supply system via either a 6 inch water main or 12 inch water main in Bloomfield 
Avenue. The proposed project will not increase impervious surface at the project site from 
current conditions, and as such, will not interfere with groundwater recharge at the site. 
Additionally, the City's Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) evaluated the City's existing 
and planned water sources, and water distribution systems with respect to their ability to meet 
the City's and the proposed project's water demands. The project is being developed by-right 
(with respect to land use) and will not change the zoning or the General Plan land use 
designation on the site, and thus, will not be interfering with the water resources allocated and 
planned for the intended use on the site as part of the UWMP. Therefore, the proposed project 
will not result in significant or cumulative groundwater impacts based on substantial depletion of 
groundwater supplies or interference with groundwater recharge. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
c)  Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 

alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
Currently, the storm water at the project site is diverted off the paved areas via sheet flow to 
storm drains in Bloomfield Avenue. The project site is currently made up of mostly 100 percent 
impervious paved surfaces with minimal pervious landscaping.  
 
The proposed project includes development of approximately 35,076 square feet of MOB with 
associated surface parking and landscaping. The project will not alter the existing drainage 
pattern on the site, which flows in the southerly direction. The project will develop grass swales 
and parkway storm drain inlets for stormwater management to direct and collect the runoff from 
the site. The two proposed parkway storm drain inlets towards the southern end of the project 
site will have a peak design flow for Q25 (Peak Design Flow Rate for 25-year Storm Frequency) 
of 0.98 cubic feet per second (cfs) and 4.69 cfs, respectively, on the project site. With 
implementation of grass swales as a BMP, the peak mitigation flow rate (QPM) anticipated for 
the parkway storm drain inlets will be 0.06 cfs and 0.27 cfs, respectively, which are well within 
peak design flow rates. 
 



 

39 

Due to the proposed project’s increase in landscape area on the project site in comparison to 
current conditions, the development will not increase the amount of impervious surface area at 
the project site, and thus will not alter the existing storm water drainage patterns across the site, 
which will continue to drain to Bloomfield Avenue. The increased pervious surface area due to 
landscaping will not permeate the surface, rather, the stormwater would be directed to onsite 
drainage infrastructure, following the existing pattern of drainage on the site, and then to the 
existing local storm drain system. 
 
Additionally, the proposed project will be required to comply with the City and County 
requirements with regard to curb and gutter designs and adequate sloping on the site to provide 
positive drainage away from the building to minimize infiltration of water beneath footings, floor 
slabs, and pavement. The project applicant would be required to submit a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP), in accordance with the NPDES. The SWPPP would detail the 
treatment measures and BMPs to control pollutants and an erosion control plan that outlines 
erosion and sediment control measures that would be implemented during the construction and 
post-construction phases of project development. The drainage system for the project is designed 
to control the flow rate of on-site runoff so as not to exceed the pre-development condition so 
that the drainage pattern of the area will not be altered to the extent flooding will occur. 
 
Furthermore, there are no natural lakes or streams within or adjacent to the project area. The 
nearest surface water body is the San Gabriel River, located approximately 2 3/4 –mile west of 
the project site. The project area is an urbanized commercial/industrial section of the City, and as 
such, no natural drainage or riparian areas remain within the project area due to past and existing 
development and disturbance of land. As such, the proposed project will not alter the course of 
any stream or river in the area. Therefore, the proposed project is not anticipated to have any 
significant or cumulative impacts on drainage patterns in the area that would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on or off-site. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None. 
 
d)  Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 

alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
Currently, the storm water at the project site is diverted off the paved areas via sheet flow to 
storm drains in Bloomfield Avenue and Imperial Highway, which are the nearest surrounding 
streets. The project site is currently made up of mostly 100 percent impervious paved surfaces 
with minimal pervious landscaping. 
 
The proposed project includes development of approximately 35,076 square feet of MOB with 
associated surface parking and landscaping. The project will not alter the existing drainage 
pattern on the site, which flows in the southerly direction. The project will develop grass swales 
and parkway storm drain inlets for stormwater management to direct and collect the runoff from 



 

40 

the site. The two proposed parkway storm drain inlets will have a peak design flow for Q25 
(Peak Design Flow Rate for 25-year Storm Frequency) of 0.98 cubic feet per second (cfs) and 
4.69 cfs, respectively, on the project site. With implementation of grass swales as a BMP, the 
peak mitigation flow rate (QPM) anticipated for the parkway storm drain inlets will be 0.06 cfs 
and 0.27 cfs, respectively, which are well within peak design flow rates. 
 
Due to the proposed project’s increase in landscape area on the project site in comparison to 
current conditions, the development will not increase the amount of impervious surface area at 
the project site, and thus will not alter the existing storm water drainage patterns across the site, 
which will continue to drain to Bloomfield Avenue. The increased pervious surface area due to 
landscaping will not permeate the surface, rather, the stormwater would be directed to onsite 
drainage infrastructure, following the existing pattern of drainage on the site, and then to the 
existing local storm drain system. 
 
Additionally, the proposed project will be required to comply with the City and County 
requirements with regard to curb and gutter designs and adequate sloping on the site to provide 
positive drainage away from the building to minimize infiltration of water beneath footings, floor 
slabs, and pavement. The project applicant would be required to submit a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP), in accordance with the NPDES. The SWPPP would detail the 
treatment measures and BMPs to control pollutants and an erosion control plan that outlines 
erosion and sediment control measures that would be implemented during the construction and 
post-construction phases of project development. The drainage system for the project is designed 
to control the flow rate of on-site runoff so as not to exceed the pre-development condition so 
that the drainage pattern of the area will not be altered to the extent flooding will occur. 
 
Furthermore, there are no natural lakes or streams within or adjacent to the project area. The 
nearest surface water body is the San Gabriel River, located approximately 2 3/4 –mile west of 
the project site. The project area is an urbanized commercial/industrial section of the City, and as 
such, no natural drainage or riparian areas remain within the project area due to past and existing 
development and disturbance of land. As such, the proposed project will not alter the course of 
any stream or river in the area. 
 
Therefore, the proposed project is not anticipated to have any significant or cumulative impacts 
on drainage patterns, runoff rate, or amount, in the area that would result in flooding on or off-
site. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
e)  Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 

stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
No significant change in the amount of surface runoff volumes within the project site is 
anticipated due to the nature and extent of the existing impervious surfaces. Currently, the 



 

41 

project site is comprised of mostly 100 percent impervious paved surfaces with minimal pervious 
landscaping.  
 
The proposed project includes development of approximately 35,076 square feet of MOB with 
associated surface parking and landscaping. The project will develop grass swales and parkway 
storm drain inlets for stormwater management to direct and collect the runoff from the site. The 
two proposed parkway storm drain inlets will have a peak design flow for Q25 (Peak Design 
Flow Rate for 25-year Storm Frequency) of 0.98 cubic feet per second (cfs) and 4.69 cfs, 
respectively, on the project site. With implementation of grass swales as a BMP, the peak 
mitigation flow rate (QPM) anticipated for the parkway storm drain inlets will be 0.06 cfs and 
0.27 cfs, respectively, which are well within peak design flow rates. As such, the drainage 
system is designed to control the flow rate of on-site runoff so as not to exceed the pre-
development condition so that the capacity of the existing or planned storm drain system will not 
be exceeded.  
 
Additionally, landscaping will represent approximately 16 to 20 percent of the land area of the 
project site under the proposed project. Due to the proposed project’s increase in landscape area 
on the project site in comparison to current conditions, the development will decrease the 
amount of impervious surface area at the project site, and thus will decrease ruonoff water 
draining into the local storm water drainage system along Bloomfield Avenue. Additionally, due 
to the change in use of the site to a medical office building from a vehicle/equipment storage 
yard, the general water quality of the runoff from the project site is anticipated to improve, as 
there will be less deposits of oil and fuel on the paved surfaces. Finally, the paved surfaces will 
be reconstructed so that they conform to all required City and County requirements with regard 
to curb and gutter designs, storm water contamination prevention improvements, and adequate 
sloping on the site.  
 
The project applicant would be required to submit a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP), in accordance with the NPDES. The SWPPP would detail the treatment measures and 
BMPs to control pollutants and an erosion control plan that outlines erosion and sediment 
control measures that would be implemented during the construction and post-construction 
phases of project development. The drainage system for the project is designed to control the 
flow rate of on-site runoff so as not to exceed the pre-development condition so that the drainage 
pattern of the area will not be altered to the extent flooding will occur. Therefore, no significant 
or cumulative impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
f)  Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
Currently, the northern portion of the project site is occupied by Big Truck, as a truck storage 
lot. The southern portion of the project site is occupied by the City of Norwalk Public Services 
Department as a City storage yard. There are currently no permanent buildings located onsite. 



 

42 

Various roll-off bins and storage trailers are located within the City yard and are used by the City 
of Norwalk for storage of various materials including gardening equipment for Parks and 
Recreation, old electrical equipment, and construction materials/equipment. The proposed 
project will be comprised of a medical office building, a surface parking lot, and landscaping. 
Due to the change in use of the site to a medical office building from a vehicle/equipment 
storage yard, the quality of the runoff from the project site is anticipated to improve, as there will 
be less deposits of oil, fuel, gardening chemicals, and debris on the paved surfaces. Additionally, 
the paved surfaces will be reconstructed so that they conform to all required City and County 
requirements with regard to storm water contamination prevention improvements. With respect 
to groundwater, according to the most recent City of Santa Fe Springs Water Utility Authority 
Annual Water Quality Report (2012), groundwater supplies are considered most vulnerable to 
certain land uses, including chemical/petroleum processing/storage, automobile repair shops, 
automobile gas stations, dry cleaners, fleet/truck/bus terminals, landfills/dumps, motor pools, 
sewer collection systems, water supply wells, electrical/electronic manufacturing, metal 
plating/finishing/fabricating, furniture repair/manufacturing, machine shops, plastics/synthetics 
producers, airport maintenance/fueling areas, food processing, photograph processing/printing, 
and hardware/lumber/parts stores. The proposed medical office building will not contain any of 
these uses. Therefore, no significant or cumulative impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
  
g)  Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 

Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
As a medical office building, the proposed project does not include a residential component that 
would be affected by a 100-year flood hazard area. Regardless, the project site is not located 
within a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)-designated 100- or 500-year flood 
zone.32 The project site is in an area of moderate to minimal flooding potential (Zone X). Zone 
X, as defined by FEMA, is an area of 0.2% annual chance flood; or in an area subject to shallow 
(flood depth less than one foot) 100-year flooding or drainage areas less than one square mile. 
Therefore, the proposed project is not anticipated to have significant adverse or cumulative 
impacts by placing housing within a 100-year flood hazard area. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures that would impede or redirect flood 

flows?  
 
Finding: No impact 
 

                                                 
32 URS Corporation Americas. Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 12438 Bloomfield Avenue Santa Fe 
Springs, California 90650. July 10, 2012. 



 

43 

The project site is not located within a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)-
designated 100- or 500-year flood zone.33 The project site is in an area of moderate to minimal 
flooding potential (Zone X). Zone X, as defined by FEMA, is an area of 0.2% annual chance 
flood; or in an area subject to shallow (flood depth less than one foot) 100-year flooding or 
drainage areas less than one square mile. Further, the project site is not within a Local Flooding 
Zone, as designated on “Map 3C” of the City’s General Plan, Safety Element.34 No wetlands 
were identified or observed on the project site and the site is not located within a coastal zone.35 
Therefore, the proposed project is not anticipated to have significant adverse or cumulative 
impacts by placing structures within a 100-year flood hazard area or redirecting flood flows. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
i)  Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 

flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is not located within a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)-
designated 100- or 500-year flood zone.36 The project site is in an area of moderate to minimal 
flooding potential (Zone X). Zone X, as defined by FEMA, is an area of 0.2% annual chance 
flood; or in an area subject to shallow (flood depth less than one foot) 100-year flooding or 
drainage areas less than one square mile. No wetlands were identified or observed on the project 
site and the site is not located within a coastal zone.37  
 
According to the City of Santa Fe Springs Safety Element of the General Plan (1994), the 
Whittier Narrows Dam is located 5 miles to the northwest of the City of Santa Fe Springs' 
northern boundary. In the unlikely event of dam failure, the water flow direction would be 
southerly toward the City. However, according to the General Plan, the area of inundation 
(approximated depth level of 5 feet is predicted) would be bounded by Norwalk Boulevard on 
the east and the Los Angeles River on the west, within the northern and western portions of the 
City. The project site and proposed project would not be within this predicted dam failure flood 
area, and as such, would be at very minimal risk of inundation due to the dam's failure.38 
Therefore, the proposed project will not result in a significant adverse or cumulative impact by 
exposing people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 

                                                 
33 URS Corporation Americas. Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 12438 Bloomfield Avenue Santa Fe 
Springs, California 90650. July 10, 2012. 
34 City of Santa Fe Springs. The General Plan of the City of Santa Fe Springs, California, Safety Element. Adopted 
April 14, 1994. 
35 Ibid. 
36 Ibid. 
37 Ibid. 
38 The project site lies outside of the dam failure flood area according to Map 3A: City of Santa Fe Springs Dam 
Failure Flood Inundation Map, within the Safety Element of the General Plan. 



 

44 

 
j)  Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is not located within a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)-
designated 100- or 500-year flood zone.39 The project site is in an area of moderate to minimal 
flooding potential (Zone X). Zone X, as defined by FEMA, is an area of 0.2% annual chance 
flood; or in an area subject to shallow (flood depth less than one foot) 100-year flooding or 
drainage areas less than one square mile. No wetlands were identified or observed on the project 
site and the site is not located within a coastal zone.40  
 
According to the City of Santa Fe Springs Safety Element of the General Plan (1994) and the 
County of Los Angeles Seismic Safety Element (1990), the project site is not located within a 
potential inundation area for seiche (oscillating waves that form in an enclosed or semi-enclosed 
body of water).41 Furthermore, the project site is not located in close proximity to the coast. As 
such, and according to the California Geological Survey (CGS), tsunamis (seismic sea waves) 
are not considered a significant hazard at the project site.42 Finally, according to the County of 
Los Angeles Seismic Safety Element (1990), the site is not within an area identified as having a 
potential for slope instability, which would result in mudflow. There a no known landslides near 
the site, nor is the site in the path of any known or potential landslides or mudflows.43 Therefore, 
the proposed project will not result in a significant adverse or cumulative impact by exposing 
people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving inundation by seiche, 
tsunami, or mudflow. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
X.  LAND USE AND PLANNING - Would the project: 
 
a)  Physically divide an established community? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The predominant land uses in the City in terms of total land area are manufacturing and 
industrial uses, though residential uses provide housing for 16,816 residents.44 The project site is 

                                                 
39 URS Corporation Americas. Draft Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 12438 Bloomfield Avenue Santa Fe 
Springs, California 90650. July 10, 2012. 
40 Ibid. 
41 Ibid. 
42 Ibid. 
43 Ibid. 
44 State of California. Department of Finance, Demographic Unit. Table 2, Report E-5. City and County Population 
and Housing Estimates. January 2013 <http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-5/2011-
20/view.php> 



 

45 

located in the midst of a commercial/industrial district located in the central portion of the City. 
Commercial and industrial development abuts the project site on the east, south, and north sides. 
Vacant land is located to the west of the project site across Bloomfield Avenue in the City of 
Norwalk, which is suited for a 6-story office building. The project site is situated in an area with 
only Manufacturing (M) or Commercial (C) zoning and Industrial or Commercial General Plan 
land use designations. There are no residential zones or land use designations in the vicinity of 
the project site within the City of Santa Fe Springs. The nearest residential units are multi-family 
residential units located approximately 740 feet to the south of the project site within the City of 
Norwalk.  
 
The proposed medical office building will be located completely within the established 
commercial/industrial district of the City and will not encroach into residentially used, zoned, or 
designated land in either the City of Santa Fe Springs or the City of Norwalk. The proposed use 
of the MOB will be compatible with surrounding commercial/industrial uses and the building 
will be designed and constructed in a manner that is consistent with the existing neighborhood 
appearance and scale. Additionally, the proposed project will not involve the permanent closure 
of any existing roadways or otherwise result in the division of an established residential 
neighborhood. Therefore, no impacts will result from the proposed project’s implementation 
with respect to the division of an established community. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
b)  Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with 

jurisdiction over the project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, 
local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

 
Finding: Less than significant with mitigation incorporated 
 
The project site is located within the central commercial/industrial portion of the City of Santa 
Fe Springs. The project site is not located within any Special Study Areas, adopted specific plan 
areas, or coastal zones. Like most areas of the City, the project site falls within a Consolidated 
Redevelopment Project Area (CRPA), which promotes enhancing the tax base, creating jobs, and 
aesthetically improving commercial and industrial properties in the City, all of which the 
proposed project satisfies, including the creation of approximately 100 new jobs on the site.45 
The proposed project does not include any Change of Zone from the current M-2 (Heavy 
Manufacturing) zoning or General Plan Amendment requests from the current Industrial land 
use designation. The zoning and land use designation on the project site permit a wide range of 
commercial and industrial activities, and as such, the proposed project is permitted “by-right” on 
the project site. Further, the Industrial land use designation in the City’s General Plan 
encourages development of offices of all types, which would include medical office buildings.46 

                                                 
45 City of Santa Fe Springs. Ordinance No. 1010. Adopted and passed July 15, 2009. 
46 City of Santa Fe Springs. The General Plan of the City of Santa Fe Springs, California, Land Use Element. 
Adopted June 24, 1993. 



 

46 

Overall, the proposed project falls within the purview of the planned uses for the project site as 
set forth in the City's General Plan through its land use designation as well as its established 
zoning. As an additional safeguard to ensure land use consistency, like many new developments 
in the City, the proposed project will require approval of a Development Plan Approval (DPA) 
from the Planning and Development Department to ensure that the proposed MOB is consistent 
with the underlying M-2 zoning, the Industrial land use designation, and the provisions of the 
General Plan Land Use Element.  
 
It is anticipated that the design of the proposed MOB will use metal materials on the facade of 
the building and potentially within the building. However, according to Section 155.461 of the 
City of Santa Fe Springs Municipal Zoning Code, as adopted under Ordinance No. 822, metal 
building are not permitted in any zone except when subject to a Development Plan Approval 
composed of filled land where, due to geotechical reasons, no other construction method is 
reasonably feasible, and in the construction of portable metal sheds not visible from the street 
that do not require a building permit. The project site and proposed project do not fall into either 
of the exceptions presented, and thus, the proposed project will not be in compliance with 
Chapter 155: Zoning of the Municipal Code, resulting in a significant impact with regard to 
conflict with an applicable land use regulation. With implementation of the below mitigation 
measure, however, the significant impact would be reduced to a less than significant level, thus 
avoiding conflict with the applicable land use regulation.  
 
Therefore, with implementation of the recommended mitigation measure, the proposed project 
will not have any anticipated land use impacts due to conflict with a land use plan, policy, or 
regulation. 

  
Recommended Mitigation: Environmental impacts may result from conflict with the Zoning 
Code with relation to the use of metal materials on the proposed project building. However, the 
potential impacts will be mitigated to a less than significant level by incorporating the following 
mitigation measure in compliance with local requirements: 
 

 The design of the proposed building shall either avoid the use of metal materials in 
conformance with the Municipal Zoning Code, or shall otherwise obtain approval for 
an amendment to the Municipal  Zoning Code to permit the use of metal materials.  

 
c)  Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation 

plan? 
 
Finding: No impact 
   
The project site is located in the midst of an existing urbanized commercial/industrial area. 
According to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, neither the project area nor the 
project site are included in any local, regional, or state habitat conservation plans.47 Further, the 

                                                 
47 California Department of Fish and Game website: <http://www.dfg.ca.gov/about/data.html> 



 

47 

project site is not located within a Natural Community Conservation Plan (NCCP).48 Therefore, 
no impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
XI.  MINERAL RESOURCES -- Would the project:     
 
a)  Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to 

the region and the residents of the State? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The Santa Fe Springs General Plan identified 149 active producer well sites, 47 active water 
injection wells, 133 inactive producer wells, and eight inactive water injection well sites 
throughout the City's oil fields, as well as eight oil industry tank farms and compression plants. 
A large number of active and plugged wells are located to the north of the project area; however, 
according to the California Department of Conservation, Division of Oil, Gas, and Geothermal 
Resources (DOGGR), there are no new, active producer, active injector, dry, or plugged oil or 
gas wells underlying the project site.49 Further, there are no geothermal resources located within 
the City of Santa Fe Springs, in the project area, or at the project site.50 Finally, the project site is 
not located within a Significant Mineral Aggregate Resource Area (SMARA), nor is it located in 
an area with active mineral extraction activities. According to the California Department of 
Conservation, Office of Mine Reclamation, there are no mines located within the City of Santa 
Fe Springs, in the project area, or at the project site.51 Therefore, no significant or cumulative 
impacts on mineral resources will result. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
b)  Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site 

delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
There are no active mineral, oil, or energy extraction and/or generation activities located within 
the project site that are delineated in the Santa Fe Springs General Plan. Therefore, the proposed 

                                                 
48 California Department of Fish and Game website: <http://www.dfg.ca.gov/habcon/nccp/> 
49 California Department of Conservation, Division of Oil, Gas, and Geothermal Resources. DOGGR Online 
Mapping System. Accessed October 5, 2013 < 
http://www.conservation.ca.gov/dog/maps/Pages/GISMapping2.aspx> 
50 California Department of Conservation, Division of Oil, Gas, and Geothermal Resources. Geothermal Resources - 
Maps. Accessed October 5, 2013 < http://www.conservation.ca.gov/omr/Pages/index.aspx> 
51 California Department of Conservation, Office of Mine Reclamation. Mines On Line (MOL). Accessed October 5, 
2013 < http://www.conservation.ca.gov/omr/Pages/index.aspx> 



 

48 

project will not result in a significant or cumulative impact to the availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
XII.  NOISE - Would the project result in:     
 
a)  Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in 

the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Sound is technically described in terms of the loudness (amplitude) and frequency (pitch) of the 
sound. The standard unit of measurement for sound is the decibel (dB). The human ear is not 
equally sensitive to sound at all frequencies. The “A-weighted scale,” abbreviated dBA, reflects 
the normal hearing sensitivity range of the human ear. This noise analysis discusses sound levels 
in terms of Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) and Equivalent Noise Level (Leq).  
CNEL is an average sound level during a 24-hour period. CNEL is a noise measurement scale, 
which accounts for noise source, distance, single-event duration, single-event occurrence, 
frequency, and time of day. Human reaction to sound between 7:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m. is as if 
the sound were actually 5 dBA higher than if it occurred from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  From 
10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m., humans perceive sound as if it were 10 dBA higher due to the lower 
background level. Hence, the CNEL is obtained by adding an additional 5 dBA to sound levels 
in the evening from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. and 10 dBA to sound levels in the night from 10:00 
p.m. to 7:00 a.m. Because CNEL accounts for human sensitivity to sound, the CNEL 24-hour 
figure is always a higher number than the actual 24-hour average.   
 
Leq is the average noise level on an energy basis for any specific time period. The Leq for one 
hour is the average energy noise level during the hour. The average noise level is based on the 
energy content (acoustic energy) of the sound. Leq can be thought of as the level of a continuous 
noise which has the same energy content as the fluctuating noise level. The equivalent noise 
level is expressed in units of dBA.  

Studies have shown that the smallest perceptible change in sound level for a person with normal 
hearing sensitivity is approximately 3 dBA. A change of at least 5 dBA would be noticeable and 
would likely evoke community awareness. A 10-dBA increase is subjectively heard as a 
doubling in loudness and would cause a community response. 

Noise- and vibration-sensitive land uses are locations where people reside or where the presence 
of unwanted sound could adversely affect the use of the land.  Residences, schools, hospitals, 
guest lodging, libraries, and some passive recreation areas would each be considered noise- and 
vibration-sensitive and may warrant unique measures for protection from intruding noise.  
Sensitive receptors near the project site include: 
 



 

49 

 Los Angeles County Mental Health Facility, located approximately 420 feet to the 
northwest 

 Residences near the intersection of Imperial Highway and Bloomfield Avenue, located 
approximately 460 feet to the south   

 A government services complex (e.g., County of Los Angeles Buildings), located 
approximately 460 feet to the southwest   

 Residences near the intersection of Imperial Highway and Balsam Street, located 
approximately 1,000 feet to the west 

 The Norwalk Library, located approximately 1,675 feet to the southwest   
 
Pertinent to the construction analysis, although not considered typical noise-sensitive land uses, 
commercial/industrial land uses are located on the adjacent north, east, and west properties. A 
vacant lot is located to the west across Bloomfield Avenue.  
 
The existing noise environment near these receptors is predominantly characterized by vehicular 
traffic and typical urban noise (e.g., sirens). Sound measurements were taken using a SoundPro 
DL Sound Level Meter on June 23, 2014 to determine existing noise levels in the project 
vicinity. Daytime measurements were used to establish existing ambient noise conditions and to 
provide a baseline for evaluating impacts. As shown in Table 4: Existing Noise Levels, daytime 
existing ambient sound levels ranged between 55.8 and 72.1 dBA Leq.   
     

TABLE 4 
EXISTING NOISE LEVELS

[1] 

LOCATION SOUND LEVELS (dBA, Leq) 

Los Angeles County Mental Health Facility 69.1 

Residences at Imperial Highway and Bloomfield Avenue 72.1 

Government Services Complex 55.8 

Norwalk Library 63.2 

[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Interhealth Corporation Santa Fe Springs Medical Office Building Project - Noise 
and Vibration Assessment. 7 July 2014. 

 
Construction Noise 
 
Noise levels would fluctuate depending on the construction phase, equipment type and duration 
of use, distance between the noise source and receptor, and presence or absence of noise 
attenuation barriers. Construction activities typically require the use of numerous pieces of 
noise-generating equipment. Typical noise levels from various types of equipment that may be 
used during construction are listed in Table 5: Maximum Noise Levels of Common 
Construction Machines. This table shows noise levels at distances of 50 and 100 feet from the 
construction noise source. 

 



 

50 

TABLE 5 
MAXIMUM NOISE LEVELS OF COMMON CONSTRUCTION MACHINES

[1] 
NOISE LEVEL (dBA) 

NOISE SOURCE 
50 FEET 100 FEET 

Front Loader 80 74 

Trucks 89 83 

Jackhammers 90 84 

Generators 77 71 

Back Hoe 84 78 

Tractor 88 82 

Scraper/Grader 87 81 

Paver 87 81 
[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Interhealth Corporation Santa Fe Springs Medical Office Building Project - Noise 
and Vibration Assessment. 7 July 2014. 

 
The noise levels shown in Table 6: Typical Outdoor Construction Noise Levels take into 
account the likelihood that multiple pieces of construction equipment would be operating 
simultaneously and the typical overall noise levels expected for each phase of construction. 
When considered as an entire process with multiple pieces of equipment, excavation activity 
would generate a noise level of approximately 89 dBA Leq at 50 feet. 

TABLE 6 
TYPICAL OUTDOOR CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVELS

[1] 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE NOISE LEVEL AT 50 FEET (dBA) 

Ground Clearing 84 

Grading/Excavation 89 

Foundations 78 

Structural 85 

Finishing 89 
[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Interhealth Corporation Santa Fe Springs Medical Office Building Project - Noise 
and Vibration Assessment. 7 July 2014. 

 
The City of Santa Fe Springs has not adopted noise standards specific to construction in the City 
Code or adopted CEQA significance thresholds. Although this is not a transit project, the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) has published guidance for assessing construction noise.52 The 
FTA guidance states that the one-hour Leq should not exceed 90 dBA at residences or 100 dBA 
at commercial and industrial land uses. This analysis considers non-residential sensitive 
receptors (e.g., Norwalk Library) as residences. The noise level during the construction period at 
each receptor location was calculated by making a distance adjustment to the construction source 
sound level. Table 7: Construction Noise Levels presents the estimated noise levels at land 
uses adjacent to the project site and sensitive receptors near the project site. Construction noise 

                                                 
52FTA, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment, May 2006.  



 

51 

levels would not exceed the FTA guidance. Therefore, the proposed project would result in a less 
than significant impact related to construction noise.  

TABLE 7 
CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVELS

[1] 

LAND USE/SENSITIVE RECEPTOR 
DISTANCE 

(FEET) 

MAXIMUM 
NOISE LEVEL 

(dBA) 

FTA IMPACT 
CRITERIA 

Commercial/Industrial Land Use to the East Adjacent 89.0 100 
Commercial/Industrial Land Use to the South  Adjacent 89.0 100 
Commercial/Industrial Land Use to the North 100 83.0 100 
Los Angeles County Mental Health Facility 420 70.5 90 
Residences at Imperial Highway and Bloomfield Avenue 460 69.7 90 
Government Services Complex 870 64.2 100 
Residences at Imperial Highway and Balsam 1,000 63.0 90 
Norwalk Library 1,675 58.5 90 
[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Interhealth Corporation Santa Fe Springs Medical Office Building Project - Noise 
and Vibration Assessment. 7 July 2014. 

 
Operational Noise 
 
Operational sources of noise include on-road vehicles, parking lots, and mechanical equipment.  
Each of these sources have been assessed below.  
 
Mobile Sources. The proposed project is expected to generate 1,227 net trips per weekday (80 
AM peak-hour trips and 125 PM peak-hour trips). To ascertain mobile noise impacts, future 
roadway noise levels were calculated based upon the proximity to noise-sensitive uses and with 
the most increases in traffic volume from the proposed project to represent the worst-case 
conditions. The Federal Highway Administration RD-77-108 noise calculation formulas were 
used to predict future noise levels. Results of the analysis are summarized in Table 8: Estimated 
Community Noise Equivalent Level. The greatest project-related noise increase would be 0.3 
dBA CNEL and would occur along Bloomfield Avenue between Florence Avenue and Imperial 
Highway. The roadway noise increase attributed to the proposed project would not be audible at 
this segment or any other roadway segment. Therefore, the proposed project would result in a 
less than significant impact related to mobile sources. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

52 

TABLE 8 
ESTIMATED COMMUNITY NOISE EQUIVALENT LEVEL

[1] 
ESTIMATED dBA (CNEL) 

ROADWAY SEGMENT EXISTING 
(2013) 

FUTURE WITH 
PROJECT 

(2015) 
IMPACT 

Bloomfield Avenue between Florence Avenue and Imperial Highway 71.7 72.0 0.3 

Bloomfield Avenue between Civic Center Drive and Imperial 
Highway 

71.1 71.3 0.2 

Imperial Highway between Norwalk Boulevard and Bloomfield 
Avenue 

73.2 73.4 0.2 

Imperial Highway between Bloomfield Avenue and Shoemaker 
Avenue 

73.0 73.1 0.1 

[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Interhealth Corporation Santa Fe Springs Medical Office Building Project - Noise 
and Vibration Assessment. 7 July 2014. 

 
Parking Sources. A total of 179 surface parking spaces are planned to be provided as part of the 
proposed project. Noise sources associated with parking include car alarms, car horns, slamming 
of car doors, engine revs, and tire squeals. Instantaneous noise events, such as car alarm and horn 
noise, would generate sound levels as high as 83 dBA at a distance of 25 feet. However, car 
alarm and horn noise would be short-term and intermittent. Automobile movements would 
comprise the most continuous noise source. Automobile movements would generate a noise level 
of approximately 58 dBA Leq at a distance of 50 feet.53 This would result in a noise level of 
approximately 39 dBA Leq at the nearest noise-sensitive land uses (i.e., Los Angeles County 
Mental Health Facility and residences near the intersection of Imperial Highway and Bloomfield 
Avenue). The existing noise levels at the Los Angeles County Mental Health Facility and 
residences were 69.1 dBA and 72.1 dBA Leq, respectively. The increase in existing noise levels 
at these land uses would be less than 1.0 dBA and would not be audible. Therefore, the proposed 
Project would result in a less than significant impact related to surface parking lot activity. 
 
Mechanical Equipment Sources. Potential stationary noise sources related to the long-term 
operations of the proposed project include air conditioning equipment. Air conditioning 
equipment typically generates noise level of approximately 61 dBA Leq or less at 50 feet. This 
would result in a noise level of approximately 42 dBA Leq at the nearest noise-sensitive land uses 
(i.e., Los Angeles County Mental Health Facility and residences near the intersection of Imperial 
Highway and Bloomfield Avenue). The existing noise levels at the Los Angeles County Mental 
Health Facility and residences were 69.1 dBA and 72.1 dBA Leq, respectively. The increase in 
existing noise levels at these land uses would be less than 1.0 dBA and would not be audible. 
Therefore, the proposed project would result in a less than significant impact related to 
mechanical equipment. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: Compliance with all regulatory agency requirements, City Noise 
Ordinance requirements, and other City standard conditions of approval relating to the emission 

                                                 
53The reference parking noise level is based on a series of one-hour noise measurements completed 50 feet from 
vehicles accessing a parking area.   



 

53 

or creation of noise, maximum noise levels, and construction and operational noise will be 
implemented as required and necessary. No additional mitigation measures are required. 
 
b)  Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive ground borne vibration or ground 

borne noise levels? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Construction 
 
Construction activities can generate varying degrees of vibration, depending on the construction 
procedures and the type of construction equipment used. High levels of vibration may cause 
physical personal injury or damage to buildings. However, vibrations rarely affect human health. 
The operation of construction equipment generates vibrations that spread through the ground and 
diminish with distance from the source. Unless heavy construction activities are conducted 
extremely close (within a few feet) to the neighboring structures, vibrations from construction 
activities rarely reach the levels that damage structures.  
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs has not adopted standards specific to construction noise or 
vibration in the City Code or adopted CEQA significance thresholds. Although this is not a 
transit project, the FTA has published guidance for assessing construction vibration. According 
to the FTA, non-engineered timber and masonry buildings can be exposed to ground-borne 
vibration levels of 0.2 inches per second without experiencing structural damage.54   
 
Typical vibration levels associated with construction equipment are provided in Table 9: 
Vibration Velocities for Construction Equipment. Heavy equipment (e.g., a large bulldozer) 
generates vibration levels of 0.089 inches per second peak particle velocity (PPV) at a distance 
of 25 feet. The nearest structure to the project site would be adjacent and to the east. It is not 
anticipated that heavy-duty construction equipment would operate within 20 feet of the adjacent 
structure. The vibration level from a large bulldozer would be approximately 0.12 inches per 
second at 20 feet. Construction vibration would not exceed the 0.2 inches per second PPV 
damage threshold at the adjacent structure. Therefore, the proposed project would result in a less 
than significant impact related to construction vibration. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
54FTA, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment, May 2006.  



 

54 

TABLE 9 
VIBRATION VELOCITIES FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT

[1] 
EQUIPMENT PPV AT 25 FEET (INCHES/SECOND) 

Large Bulldozer 0.089 

Loaded Trucks 0.076 

Jackhammer 0.035 

Small Bulldozer 0.003 
[1] Source: Terry A. Hayes and Associates, Inc., Interhealth Corporation Santa Fe Springs Medical Office Building Project - Noise 
and Vibration Assessment. 7 July 2014. 

 
Operational Vibration 
 
The proposed project would not include significant stationary sources of vibration, such as heavy 
equipment operations. Operational vibration in the project vicinity would be generated by 
vehicular travel on the local roadways. Similar to existing conditions, traffic-related vibration 
levels would not be perceptible by sensitive receptors. Therefore, the proposed project would 
result in a less than significant impact related to operational vibration levels. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
   
c)  A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above 

levels existing without the project? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Potential permanent increases in ambient noise levels were assessed above in Section XII.a, 
Noise for on-road vehicles, parking activity, and mechanical equipment. As discussed 
previously, operational activity would not result in a significant impact. Therefore, the proposed 
project would result in a less than significant impact related to substantial permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: See Section XII.a, Noise 
 
d)  A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project 

vicinity above levels existing without the project? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Potential temporary increases in ambient noise levels were assessed above in Section XII.a, 
Noise for construction equipment. As discussed previously, construction activity would not 
result in a significant impact. Therefore, the proposed project would result in a less than 
significant impact related to substantial temporary increase in ambient noise levels. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: See Section XII.a, Noise 



 

55 

 
e)  For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been 

adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project 
expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is not located within two miles of an operational public use airport. The nearest 
public airport is the Fullerton Muni Airport (FUL), which is located approximately 6.3 miles to 
the southeast of the project site. The Long Beach/Daugherty Field Airport (LGB) is located 
approximately 9.4 miles to the southwest of the project site. The Compton/Woodley Airport 
(CPM) is located approximately 10.7 miles to the southwest, the El Monte Airport (EMT) is 
located approximately 10.8 miles to the northeast, and the Los Angeles International Airport 
(LAX) is located approximately 19.7 miles to the west. Therefore, no significant adverse or 
cumulative impacts are anticipated.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
f)  For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people 

residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. The nearest private airstrip 
is the Los Alamitos Airfield (SLI), which is located approximately 9.8 miles to the southwest of 
the project site. Therefore, no significant adverse or cumulative impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
XIII.  POPULATION AND HOUSING -- Would the project: 
 
a)  Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by 

proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of 
roads or other infrastructure)? 

 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The proposed project will include development of a medical office building (MOB), which will 
not include residential dwelling units, and thus, will not directly contribute to a substantial  
population growth in the City by creating new housing.  
 
The proposed project is anticipated to employ approximately 100 new employees in the form of 
high quality healthcare, professional, and management jobs or other jobs typically present within 
a medical office building (e.g., administrative, clerical, building maintenance, etc). However, it 



 

56 

is not anticipated that a substantial number of new residents will move into the City due to the 
proposed project. In 2012, the total number of jobs in the City of Santa Fe Springs decreased by 
12.4 percent from 2007, to a current total of approximately 45,817 jobs in the City.55 The 100 
jobs anticipated to be provided by the proposed project will add to the inventory of jobs 
available in the City. In examining employment trends, approximately 10.48 percent of jobs in 
the City are taken by local residents within the City, while 89.52 percent of jobs are taken by 
commuter residents from other jurisdictions.56 It is anticipated that these same proportions will 
apply to the 100 anticipated jobs created by the proposed project. Furthermore, the current 
unemployment rate is approximately 10.8 percent (as of July 2013)57 in the City, which is higher 
than the State unemployment rate of 8.9%58. As such, any new employment will be a benefit to 
the local community given the area's high unemployment rate (10.8%). Therefore, the project 
will not have a significant direct affect on any regional population, housing, and employment 
projections prepared for the City by the Southern California Association of Governments 
(SCAG).  
 
Indirect growth-inducing impacts are generally associated with the provision of urban services to 
an undeveloped or rural area, such as utilities, improved roadways, and expanded public 
services. Since the City of Santa Fe Springs is 100% urban and contains an existing network of 
utilities, improved roadways, and public services, which will serve the proposed project, indirect 
growth-inducing impacts are not anticipated. 
 
Finally, as discussed previously in Section X, Land Use and Planning, the project site is located 
within the central commercial/industrial portion of the City of Santa Fe Springs. The proposed 
project does not include any Change of Zone from the current M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) 
zoning or General Plan Amendment requests from the current Industrial land use designation. 
The zoning and land use designation on the project site permit a wide range of commercial and 
industrial activities, and as such, the proposed project is permitted “by-right” on the project site. 
Further, the Industrial land use designation in the City’s General Plan encourages development 
of offices of all types, which would include medical office buildings.59 Overall, the proposed 
project falls within the purview of the population growth anticipated for the planned uses on the 
project site as set forth in the City's General Plan through its land use designation. As an 
additional safeguard to ensure land use and population growth consistency, like many new 
developments in the City, the proposed project will require approval of a Development Plan 
Approval (DPA) from the Planning and Development Department to ensure that the proposed 
MOB is consistent with the underlying M-2 zoning, the Industrial land use designation, and the 
anticipated population growth of the General Plan. 

                                                 
55 Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG). Profile of the City of Santa Fe Springs. May, 2013. 
<http://www.scag.ca.gov/Documents/SantaFeSprings.pdf> accessed September, 2013. 
56 Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG). Profile of the City of Santa Fe Springs. May, 2013. 
<http://www.scag.ca.gov/Documents/SantaFeSprings.pdf> accessed September, 2013. 
57 City-Data.com. Santa Fe Springs, California. 2013. <http://www.city-data.com/city/Santa-Fe-Springs-
California.html > accessed September, 2013. 
58 U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. California, Unemployment Rate - Seasonally Adjusted. November 7, 2013. 
59 City of Santa Fe Springs. The General Plan of the City of Santa Fe Springs, California, Land Use Element. 
Adopted June 24, 1993. 



 

57 

 
As a result, less than significant growth-inducing impacts are anticipated from the proposed 
project, either directly or indirectly. Similarly, due to the project's less than significant impact, 
the project is not anticipated to contribute considerably to cumulative growth that may be caused 
by the related projects in the area, which consist of both residential and commercial/industrial 
projects. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None  
 
b)  Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
There are currently no residential structures built on the project site. The project site is currently 
developed and zoned for non-residential uses. As such, no housing units will be displaced by the 
proposed project and no significant or cumulative impacts related to housing displacement will 
result from the proposed project's implementation. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
c)  Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement 

housing elsewhere? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
There are currently no residential structures built on the project site. The project site is currently 
developed and zoned for non-residential uses. As such, no housing units will be displaced by the 
proposed project and no significant or cumulative impacts related to housing displacement will 
result from the proposed project's implementation. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
      
XIV.  PUBLIC SERVICES -- Would the project: 
  
a)  Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or 

physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the public services: 

 
 i)   Fire protection? 
 
 Finding: Less than significant impact 



 

58 

 
 The proposed project will consist of construction and operation of a new medical office 

building on a site that currently contains no permanent structures. The project will have 
primary site access from Bloomfield Avenue. Driveway aisles proposed within the 
project site will range from 26 feet wide to 27 feet-8 inches wide to accommodate Fire 
Department access onto and within the site. The project does not include development of 
residential units or new residences. The project does not include development of any 
above-ground storage tanks or high voltage power transmission lines, which may 
increase the urban fire hazard on the site. And, as is the case for the entire City, there is 
minimal to no risk for significant brush wildfires at the project site.60 The project site is 
located with a Methane Zone, which was discussed and mitigated earlier in Section 
VIII.b, Hazards and Hazardous Materials. 

 
 The City of Santa Fe Springs Fire Department provides fire prevention and emergency 

medical services within the City. The Department consists of three separate divisions: 
Operations, Fire Prevention, and Environmental Protection. Currently, the Department 
has 53 firefighters, three fire prevention personnel, and seven environmental protection 
personnel.61 The Fire Department currently operates from four stations: Fire Station No. 
1 (11300 Greenstone Avenue), Fire Station No. 2 (8634 Dice Road), Fire Station No. 3 
(15517 Carmenita Road), and Fire Station No. 4 (11736 Telegraph Road). The nearest 
fire station to the project site is Fire Station No. 1, which is approximately 1.5 miles to 
the northeast in driving distance (on existing roadways) from the project site 
(approximately 3,912 feet direct line distance). Within the City's respective districts, the 
response times range from approximately four minutes, 38 seconds to five minutes, 57 
seconds.62 

 
 Due to the relatively close proximity of Fire Station No. 1 to the project site, and the 

sufficient ability of the Fire Department to currently handle emergencies within the City, 
the proposed project will not have a significant adverse impact on Fire Department 
coverage, the Department's ability to serve the public during an emergency, or the 
Department's service ratios and response times. The proposed project is being developed 
within a highly urbanized area, on an existing site with currently existing uses that will 
be removed to accommodate the project. The project is not changing the zoning or 
General Plan land use designation of the site, and as such, has already been planned for 
by the Fire Department as a commercial/industrial property. Development of the 
proposed project will not require expansion of roadways that may require an expansion 
of Fire Department coverage and will not require the construction of new Fire 
Department facilities. With development of the project and existing accommodation for 
the site as a commercial/industrial use and property, the Fire Department's service ratio 

                                                 
60 As stated in the City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan, Safety Element. 
61 As stated on the Santa Fe Springs Firefighters website 
[http://www.sfsfirefighters.org/index.cfm?section=24&pagenum=160] 
62 Molina, Sandra. Whittier Daily News. 6 February 2014 [http://www.whittierdailynews.com/government-and-
politics/20140206/reopened-fire-station-in-santa-fe-springs-helps-improve-emergency-response-times] 



 

59 

will not be impacted and the City's average response time (ranging from four minutes, 38 
seconds to five minutes, 57 seconds) will be maintained for both the project site and all 
surrounding commercial and industrial properties that are currently served by the Fire 
Department. As a result of the project, no existing fire stations will require alteration or 
expansion and no new fire stations will need to be constructed.  

 
 Ultimately, the applicant will be required to conform to all Fire Department 

requirements, which will be imposed on the project through standard conditions of 
approval and compliance measures. Such requirements would include providing 
sprinklers within the building to the satisfaction of the Fire Department, and providing 
any required fire hydrants around or on the site at a minimum of 300 feet apart, to the 
satisfaction of the Fire Department. In addition, the new construction of the proposed 
project will be undertaken pursuant to current Building Code requirements. Therefore, 
compliance with all existing Fire Department requirements for the proposed project will 
ensure that no impacts on the Fire Department will result from the proposed project's 
implementation. Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project 
will not have a considerable contribution to any cumulative impacts relating to fire 
protection.  

 
 Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 ii)   Police protection? 
 
 Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
 The City of Santa Fe Springs Department of Police Services (DPS) is responsible for the 

management of all law enforcement services within the City. The DPS is staffed by both 
City personnel and officers from the City of Whittier Police Department (WPD) that 
provide contract law enforcement services to Santa Fe Springs.  

 
 The City of Santa Fe Springs is divided into three law enforcement Public Service Areas. 

The project site is located within Public Service Area 2, which covers the portion of the 
City south of Telegraph Road and north of Imperial Highway, headed by Sergeant Jim 
De Masi and a team of police officers and public safety officers. 

 
  The proposed project consists of development of a medical office building. The project 

site, which is currently used for commercial and City (of Norwalk) storage purposes, will 
continue to be used for commercial/medical office purposes under the proposed project. 
The project is not changing the zoning or General Plan land use designation of the site, 
and as such, has already been planned for by the DPS as a commercial/industrial property 
within a commercial/industrial district. Additionally, the proposed project will be 
developed in a highly urbanized area on a project site that currently has sufficient police 
protection services. No additional streets or infrastructure will be developed for the 
project, which would require the expansion of police service coverage. Since the project 



 

60 

will not significantly change the DPS safety plan for the area, it is anticipated that current 
service ratios and response times will be maintained.  

 
  The project would not include development of new residential units (especially multi-

family residential) that would create a greater need for police services due to an increase 
in the permanent, resident population in the project area. Additionally, according to the 
Safety Element of the City General Plan, specific types of business uses tend to create 
higher levels of crime incidence, including alcohol sales, banking institutions, 
entertainment, guns and ammunition sales, and multi-tenant retail sales.63 The medical 
office use proposed on the site will not encourage any higher level of crime incidence 
that may require more extensive police coverage for the area beyond current conditions. 
As such, it is not anticipated that the proposed project will increase the need for 
additional police services in the area. Ultimately, the contractors and operators of the 
facility will be required to conform to all DPS requirements, which will be imposed on 
the project through standard conditions of approval and compliance measures. Such 
conditions would include submittal and approval of a proposed lighting (photometric) 
and security plan for the project site to ensure adequate lighting and security for public 
safety on the site.  

 
 Therefore, police protection adequacy is not expected to decrease significantly with the 

addition of the proposed project to the area. And with conformance to all standard 
conditions of approval, the project is anticipated to have a less than significant impact to 
police projection services related to acceptable service ratios, response times, or other 
performance objectives relative to police protection. Additionally, due to the project's 
less than significant impact, the project will not have a considerable contribution to any 
cumulative impacts relating to police protection.  

     
 Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 iii)   Schools? 
 
 Finding: No impact 
 
 A project would require additional environmental analysis for school services if it would 

result in a substantial direct net increase of residential units. The proposed project 
includes development of a medical office building and will not result in a direct increase 
of residential units or residential population in the City. 

 
 Further, as analyzed in Section XIII, Population and Housing, since the project site is in 

a highly urbanized area, the proposed project will not significantly induce indirect 
residential population growth in the City, which is generally associated with the 
provision of urban services to an undeveloped or rural area, such as utilities, improved 

                                                 
63 City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan, Safety Element, Table 9B: City of Santa Fe Springs Crime Characteristics 
- High Risk Locations. 



 

61 

roadways, and expanded public services. The project is not changing the zoning or 
General Plan land use designation of the site, and as such, has already been planned for in 
the General Plan for commercial/industrial uses.  

 
 Therefore, the proposed project will not involve any development and/or uses that could 

potentially affect school enrollments, and no significant or cumulative impacts on schools 
will result from the proposed project's implementation. 

 
 Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 iv)   Parks? 
 
 Finding: No impact 
 
 According to the Open Space/Conservation Element of the City General Plan, there are 

approximately 149 acres of schools, parks, and recreation facilities developed within the 
City limits. Since the publication of the Open Space/Conservation Element, the amount 
of open space may have fluctuated to a minor extent. There are six public parks and a 
number of small pocket parks ("parkettes") within the City, in addition to joint use 
school/park facilities and community/cultural sites, which all provide recreational space 
and activities for residents.  

 
 A project would require additional environmental analysis for park systems if it would 

result in a substantial net increase in residential units and a resulting increased demand 
for recreational facilities at the time of project construction. The proposed project 
includes development of a medical office building and will not result in a direct increase 
of residential units or residential population in the City. 

 
 Further, as analyzed in Section XIII, Population and Housing, since the project site is in 

a highly urbanized area, the proposed project will not significantly induce indirect 
residential population growth in the City, which is generally associated with the 
provision of urban services to an undeveloped or rural area, such as utilities, improved 
roadways, and expanded public services. 

 
 Ultimately, the proposed project will not have any significant impacts on the planned or 

existing open space ratio of open space acreage-to-residents in the City. According to the 
Open Space/Conservation Element, the City already exceeds the open space ratios per 
resident suggested by the National Recreation and Parks Association (NRPA) and the 
Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG). The project is not changing 
the zoning or General Plan land use designation of the site, and as such, has already been 
planned for in the General Plan for commercial/industrial uses. And the project does not 
require the removal of any existing open space/recreational areas for development.  

 
 Therefore, the proposed project will not involve any development and/or uses that could 

potentially affect park or recreational system demand and usage, and no significant or 



 

62 

cumulative impacts on parks or recreational facilities will result from the proposed 
project's implementation. 

 
 Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 v)   Other public facilities? 
         
 Finding: No impact  
 
 The proposed project will not result in the need for additional or special government 

services. The proposed project is not anticipated to result in an increased demand on 
other public facilities based on the fact that the proposed project will not include 
development of residential units and will not result in significant direct or indirect 
population growth. Therefore, the proposed project will not result in significant 
incremental or cumulative impacts to other public facilities. Governmental service 
impacts related to waste management, water service, and electricity service are discussed 
in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems. 

 
 Recommended Mitigation: None 
   
 
XV.  RECREATION – Would the project: 
 
a)  Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational 

facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be 
accelerated? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs Parks and Recreation Services operates six public parks. In 
addition, there are a number of "parkettes" that are more passive in nature. As the project site is 
within an industrial/commercial district of the City, there are no parks or related recreational 
facilities in the immediate vicinity of the project site. The nearest parks to the project site are 
Mayberry Amelia Park in the City of Whittier and John Zimmerman Park in the City of 
Norwalk. The nearest City park to the project site is Little Lake Park, approximately 1.5 miles to 
the northwest. 
 
A project would require additional environmental analysis for park and recreation systems if it 
would result in a substantial net increase in residential units and a resulting increased demand for 
recreational facilities at the time of project construction. The proposed project includes 
development of a medical office building and will not result in a direct increase of residential 
units or residential population in the City. 
 
Further, as analyzed in Section XIII, Population and Housing, since the project site is in a 
highly urbanized area, the proposed project will not significantly induce indirect residential 



 

63 

population growth in the City, which is generally associated with the provision of urban services 
to an undeveloped or rural area, such as utilities, improved roadways, and expanded public 
services. 
 
Therefore, the proposed project will not involve any development and/or uses that could 
potentially increase demand for or usage of public park facilities and services. As a result, no 
significant or cumulative impacts are anticipated from implementation of the proposed project. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
b)  Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 

recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 

A project would require additional environmental analysis for park and recreation systems if it 
would result in a substantial net increase in residential units and a resulting increased demand for 
recreational facilities at the time of project construction. The proposed project includes 
development of a medical office building and will not result in a direct increase of residential 
units or residential population in the City. Additionally, no recreational facilities are proposed to 
be developed in conjunction with the MOB, as part of the project. 
 
Further, as analyzed in Section XIII, Population and Housing, since the project site is in a 
highly urbanized area, the proposed project will not significantly induce indirect residential 
population growth in the City, which is generally associated with the provision of urban services 
to an undeveloped or rural area, such as utilities, improved roadways, and expanded public 
services. 
 
Therefore, due to the fact that the proposed project will not include or require the construction or 
development of any new recreational facilities nor the expansion of existing recreational 
facilities, the proposed project will not result in a significant or cumulative recreational impact 
due to an adverse physical effect on the environment. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
XVI.  TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC -- Would the project: 
 
a)  Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of 

effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes 
of transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, streets, 
highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

 
Finding: Less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated 



 

64 

 
The proposed project will include development of an approximately 35,076 square foot medical 
office building, which could potentially affect traffic conditions in the area.  
 
The traffic impact analysis (traffic study) was prepared to evaluate the potential traffic impacts 
of the proposed project following City of Santa Fe Springs traffic study guidelines and consistent 
with traffic impact assessment guidelines set forth in the Los Angeles County Congestion 
Management Program.64 The impact of the proposed project is determined by comparing the 
changes in traffic conditions at selected study intersections in the project vicinity. The amount of 
new traffic added to an intersection by the proposed project determines the significance of the 
project traffic impact. Potential traffic impacts caused by the proposed project that exceed limits 
established by the City of Santa Fe Springs traffic impact criteria are deemed significant traffic 
impacts.  
 
The Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) method was used to determine Volume-to-Capacity 
(V/C) ratios and corresponding Levels of Service (LOS) at 11 key intersections (based upon 
coordination with the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk staff) analyzed in the project 
vicinity. All of these intersections provide local access to the proposed project. While the project 
site is situated within the jurisdiction of the City of Santa Fe Springs, the traffic study also 
evaluates potential traffic impacts associated with the proposed project at study intersections 
located in the City of Norwalk, since the proposed project is situated immediately opposite this 
jurisdiction.  
 
Construction of the proposed MOB (along with removal of the existing uses on the project site)   
is expected to commence in 2014 with occupancy and operation in 2015. During a weekday P.M. 
peak hour, the proposed project is expected to generate a net increase of 125 vehicle trips (35 
inbound trips and 90 outbound trips). Over a 24-hour period, the proposed project is forecast to 
generate a net increase of 1,227 daily vehicle trip ends during a typical weekday (approximately 
614 inbound trips and 614 outbound trips).65 Using criteria adopted by the City of Santa Fe 
Springs, it has been determined that the change in traffic flow generated by the proposed project 
under “Existing With Ambient Growth Plus Project Conditions” (i.e., existing traffic in the 
current year, plus ambient growth traffic to the year 2015, plus traffic from the proposed project) 
is not expected to create significant impacts at any of the 11 study intersections. Incremental, but 
not significant, impacts are noted at the study intersections. As such, no traffic mitigation 
measures are required or recommended with implementation of the proposed project. 
 
Under “Future Cumulative Conditions” (i.e., existing traffic in the current year, plus ambient 
growth traffic to the year 2015, plus traffic from the proposed project, plus reasonably 

                                                 
64 Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers. Traffic Impact Study InterHealth Corporation MOB Project. November 
20, 2013. As reviewed by the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk. 
65 Estimates of the traffic generated by the proposed project were calculated using the industry standard traffic 
generation rates developed by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) “Trip Generation”, 9th Edition, 2012. 



 

65 

anticipated traffic from other present and future related development projects in the area66) will 
significantly impact four of the 11 intersections before implementation of mitigation:67 
 

 Int. No. 6: Bloomfield Ave/Imperial Hwy.            A.M. Peak Hour: V/C = 0.904, LOS E 
        P.M. Peak Hour: V/C = 0.838, LOS D 
 

 Int. No. 9: Shoemaker Ave./Florence Ave.            A.M. Peak Hour: V/C = 0.818, LOS D 
               
 Int. No. 10: Shoemaker Ave./Imperial Hwy.         A.M. Peak Hour: V/C = 0.818, LOS D 

 
 Int. No. 11: Carmenita Rd./Imperial Hwy.         P.M. Peak Hour: V/C = 0.971, LOS E 

 
To mitigate the cumulative impacts on these four intersections, the recommended cumulative 
traffic mitigation program below includes physical roadway improvements and traffic signal 
operational improvements. The proposed project would be required to participate on a fair-share 
basis towards implementation of these measures to mitigate cumulative traffic impacts. It is 
noted that the cost of cumulative mitigation measures and fair-share contributions likely will 
require agreements between the City of Santa Fe Springs and any other jurisdictions that may 
share responsibility for the study intersections.  
 
With regard to public transit circulation, bus service within the project area is currently provided 
by Metro and Norwalk Transit. Rail transit service within the project area is currently provided 
by Metrolink, with the Norwalk/Santa Fe Springs station located approximately ¼-mile away 
from the project site. As required by the 2010 Congestion Management Program (CMP), a 
review has been made of the potential impacts of the proposed project on transit service. 
Pursuant to CMP guidelines, the proposed project is forecast to generate demand for 4 transit 
trips during the weekday A.M. peak hour and 6 transit trips during the weekday P.M. peak hour. 
Over a 24-hour period, the proposed project is forecast to generate demand for 60 weekday daily 
transit trips. A total of eight bus/train transit lines are provided adjacent to or in close proximity 
to the project site. These eight transit lines provide services for an average of (i.e., average of the 
directional number of buses/trains during the peak hours) generally 34 and 29 buses/trains during 
the weekday A.M. and P.M. peak hours. Therefore, based on the above calculated weekday A.M. 
and P.M. peak hour trips, this would correspond to less than one additional transit rider per 
bus/train.68 It is anticipated that the existing transit service in the project area will adequately 
accommodate the increase of project-generated transit trips. Thus, given the number of project-
generated transit trips per bus/train, no project impacts on existing or future transit services in 
the project area are expected to occur due to implementation of the proposed project. 

                                                 
66 "Related projects" are other known development projects in the area (either proposed or approved) that provide a 
context in which to evaluate cumulative impacts of the proposed project. The related projects in the City of Santa Fe 
Springs consist of a total of approximately 700 residential dwelling units and approximately 982,433 square feet of 
industrial uses. The list of related projects considered can be found in the referenced Traffic Impact Study (page 
22). 
67 Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers. Traffic Impact Study InterHealth Corporation MOB Project. November 
20, 2013. As reviewed by the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk. 
68 Ibid. 



 

66 

 
With regard to pedestrian access and circulation, the proposed project is designed to encourage 
pedestrian activity and walking as a transportation mode. The project will not impede existing 
pedestrian access to the project site or surrounding properties. Walkways are planned within the 
proposed project, which will connect to adjacent sidewalks in a manner that promotes 
walkability. Walkability is a term for the extent to which walking is readily available as a safe, 
connected, accessible and pleasant mode of transport. The proposed project and project site are 
situated along or near the Bloomfield Avenue and Imperial Highway corridors where office, 
retail, restaurant, and other commercial businesses are located in close proximity, as well as the 
Metrolink Santa Fe Springs/Norwalk station, which is located approximately ¼-mile away. The 
pedestrian walkways for the proposed project will be appropriately landscaped and adorned to 
provide a friendly and safe walking environment. Therefore, no project impacts on existing or 
future pedestrian pathways in the project area are expected to occur due to implementation of the 
proposed project. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: Although the implementation of the proposed project is not 
anticipated to result in significant impacts, there will be significant cumulative impacts at four 
intersections in the project vicinity. However, these significant cumulative impacts can be offset 
and fully mitigated to a less than significant level by the following cumulative transportation 
mitigation measures.

69 

  
 Bloomfield Avenue/Imperial Highway: Fair-share contribution towards restriping the 

southbound approach to the intersection to provide a second left-turn lane. The 
resulting lane configurations at the southbound approach would provide two left-turn 
lanes, one through lane, and one shared through/right-turn lane. A traffic signal 
modification may be required to accommodate this improvement. 

 
 Shoemaker Avenue/Florence Avenue: Fair-share contribution towards restriping the 

eastbound approach to the intersection to provide a right-turn only lane. The resulting 
lane configuration of the eastbound approach would provide one left-turn lane, two 
through lanes, and one right-turn only lane. 

 
 Shoemaker Avenue/Imperial Highway:  Fair share contribution towards restriping the 

southbound approach to the intersection to provide a second left-turn lane and 
restriping the northbound approach to accommodate better alignment for the through 
travel lane. The resulting lane configuration at the southbound approach would 
provide two left-turn lanes and one shared through/right-turn lane. The resulting lane 
configuration at the northbound approach would provide one left-turn lane and one 
shared through/right-turn lane. A traffic signal modification may be required to 
accommodate these improvements. 

 

                                                 
69 Further details and articulation on the recommended mitigation measures can be found in the referenced traffic 
study. 



 

67 

 Carmenita Avenue/Imperial Highway: Fair share contribution towards restriping the 
northbound approach to the intersection to provide a right-turn only lane. The 
resulting lane configuration at the northbound approach would provide one left-turn 
lane, two through lanes, and one right-turn only lane. It may be necessary to modify 
the raised median islands, both north and south of the intersection, to accommodate 
this improvement. 

 
It should be noted that due to shared jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe Springs, City of 
Norwalk, and County Department of Public Works at some intersections, all respective agencies 
with jurisdiction over an intersection must approve the mitigation measure recommended. 
 
b)  Conflict with an applicable congestion management program including, but not limited to 

level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by 
the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?  

 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The County of Los Angeles Congestion Management Program (CMP) is a State-mandated 
program that was adopted to regulate and monitor regional traffic growth and transportation 
improvement programs. The CMP designates a transportation network that includes all State 
highways and some arterials within the County of Los Angeles. If the level of service standard 
deteriorates on the CMP network, then the City of Santa Fe Springs must prepare a deficiency 
plan to be in conformance with the Los Angeles County CMP. The intent of the CMP is to 
provide information to decision makers to assist in the allocation of transportation funds through 
the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) process. 
 
There are three CMP intersection monitoring locations in the project vicinity, including the 
intersections of Carmenita Road/Imperial Highway (CMP Station No. 94), Firestone 
Boulevard/Imperial Highway (CMP Station No. 113), and Norwalk Boulevard/Imperial 
Highway (CMP Station No. 114). There are also two CMP freeway monitoring locations in the 
project vicinity, including the I-5 Freeway at Lemoran Avenue (CMP Station No. 1002) and the 
I-605 Freeway north of Telegraph Road (CMP Station No. 1075). The CMP Traffic Impact 
Assessment (TIA) guidelines require that intersection monitoring locations must be examined if 
a proposed project will add 50 or more weekday A.M. or P.M. peak hour trips and that freeway 
monitoring locations must be examined if a proposed project will add 150 or more trips weekday 
A.M. or P.M. peak hour trips (in either direction). The proposed project will not add 50 or more 
trips during either the weekday A.M. or P.M. peak hours (i.e., of adjacent street traffic) at CMP 
monitoring intersections; therefore, no further review of potential impacts to intersection 
monitoring locations that are part of the CMP highway system is required, and less than 
significant impacts would result.70 Similarly, the proposed project will not add 150 or more trips 
(in either direction) during either the weekday A.M. or P.M. peak hours to CMP freeway 
monitoring locations; therefore, no further review of potential impacts to freeway monitoring 

                                                 
70 Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers. Traffic Impact Study InterHealth Corporation MOB Project. November 
20, 2013. As reviewed by the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk. 



 

68 

locations that are part of the CMP highway system is required, and less than significant impacts 
would result.71  
 
Finally, although not required to reduce potential significant impacts, the proposed project will 
be required to comply with the CMP Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Ordinance, 
which applies to all new non-residential development in Los Angeles County and requires 
certain TDM-friendly development standards such as carpool/vanpool preferential parking. The 
applicable development standards are triggered when a new project exceeds established gross 
square footage thresholds. TDM measures are aimed at decreasing the number of vehicular trips 
generated by persons traveling to/from the site by offering facilities, services, and actions 
designed to increase the use of alternative transportation modes (e.g., transit, rail, walking, 
bicycling, etc.) and ridesharing. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
c)  Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a 

change in location that results in substantial safety risks? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The project site does not lie within the flight path of an airport or airfield. The nearest airport is 
the Fullerton Muni Airport (FUL), which is located approximately 6.3 miles to the southeast of 
the project site. The Long Beach/Daugherty Field Airport (LGB) is located approximately 9.4 
miles to the southwest of the project site. The proposed project’s implementation will not present 
a safety hazard to aircraft and/or airport operations or air traffic patterns at an airport. Therefore, 
no significant adverse or cumulative impacts are anticipated. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
d)  Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 

intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated 
 
The proposed project will include development of a 35,076 medical office building on a project 
site with existing public street access along Bloomfield Avenue. The project site is located 
within a commercial/industrial district of the City and will be compatible with the 
commercial/industrial uses in the vicinity of the project site. The proposed project will not create 
new public streets or physically alter the orientation of any public streets that may result in sharp 
curves or other hazardous design features. The project will be designed to provide daily and 
emergency access for the MOB, and all associated pathways, driveways, and parking lots are 
designed to cause the least amount of circulation hazards. Circulation plans will be approved by 

                                                 
71 Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers. Traffic Impact Study InterHealth Corporation MOB Project. November 
20, 2013. As reviewed by the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk. 



 

69 

the City of Santa Fe Springs Planning and Development Department and Department of Public 
Works during the Development Plan Approval, CEQA clearance, and plan checking processes 
required for development of the project.  
 
Additionally, as determined in Section XVI.a, Transportation/Traffic, the proposed project will 
not result in any significant traffic impacts during the build-out/operational year, considering 
ambient growth. As such, the implementation of the proposed project would not result in such an 
increase in traffic on the surrounding streets so as to increase hazards due to dangerous 
intersections and congested traffic conditions. Although the project will have significant 
cumulative traffic impacts in combination with all related projects in the area during the build-
out/operational year, these impacts can be mitigated to a less than significant level with 
mitigation measures recommended above. With fair-share contribution to the traffic mitigation 
measures, which consist of restriping improvements and potential traffic signal/median 
modifications, the cumulative impacts of the proposed project would not contribute to dangerous 
intersections caused by increased or congested traffic conditions. Therefore, with 
implementation of the mitigation measures recommended under Section XVI.a, 
Transportation/Traffic, the proposed project will result in less than significant incremental and 
cumulative impacts due to design feature hazards.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: See Section XVI.a, Transportation/Traffic 
 
e)  Result in inadequate emergency access? 
 
Finding: No impact 
 
The proposed project is designed to meet the access requirements of the City of Santa Fe Springs 
Fire Department and Police Services Department. The project will provide two public and 
emergency access driveways along the east side of Bloomfield Avenue (along the western 
project site frontage). The northerly project driveway, near the northwest corner of the project 
site, will accommodate full access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning 
movements), with the southbound left-turn ingress movement made via the two-way left-turn 
lane provided along Bloomfield Avenue. The southerly project driveway, near the southwest 
corner of the project site, will accommodate full access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and 
egress turning movements), with the southbound left-turn ingress movement made via the two-
way left-turn lane provided along Bloomfield Avenue. Both driveways will be constructed to 
City of Santa Fe Springs design standards. The project will also include an internal driveway at 
the southeast corner of the project site that will accommodate access to the adjoining property to 
the east and the Southern California Edison electrical building situated at the southeast corner of 
the project site. 
 
As determined by the Fire Department in review of plans for the site, the site access from 
Bloomfield Avenue and the driveway aisles proposed within the project site, ranging from 26 
feet wide to 27 feet-8 inches wide, are sufficient to accommodate Fire Department access onto 
and within the site. 
 



 

70 

 Ultimately, the contractors and operators of the facility will be required to conform to all Fire 
Department and Police Services Department requirements, which will be imposed on the project 
through standard conditions of approval and compliance measures. Therefore, compliance with 
all existing Fire and Police Services Department requirements for the proposed project will 
ensure that no impacts to emergency access will result from the proposed project's 
implementation. Additionally, since the project will have no impact, the project will not have a 
considerable contribution to any cumulative impacts relating to emergency access. Other related 
projects will have to perform individual environmental analyses, obtain approval from the City, 
and conform to all Fire and Police Services Department requirements to ensure impacts are not 
cumulatively considerable. As a result, no additional mitigation measures are required. 

  
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
f)  Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or 

pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
With regard to public transit circulation, bus service within the project area is currently provided 
by Metro and Norwalk Transit. Rail transit service within the project area is currently provided 
by Metrolink, with the Norwalk/Santa Fe Springs station located approximately ¼-mile away 
from the project site. The proposed project is forecast to generate demand for 4 transit trips 
during the weekday A.M. peak hour and 6 transit trips during the weekday P.M. peak hour. Over 
a 24-hour period, the proposed project is forecast to generate demand for 60 weekday daily 
transit trips. A total of eight bus/train transit lines are provided adjacent to or in close proximity 
to the project site. These eight transit lines provide services for an average of (i.e., average of the 
directional number of buses/trains during the peak hours) generally 34 and 29 buses/trains during 
the weekday A.M. and P.M. peak hours. Therefore, based on the above calculated weekday A.M. 
and P.M. peak hour trips, this would correspond to less than one additional transit rider per 
bus/train.72 It is anticipated that the existing transit service in the project area will adequately 
accommodate the increase of project-generated transit trips. Thus, given the number of project-
generated transit trips per bus/train, no project impacts on existing or future transit services in 
the project area are expected to occur due to implementation of the proposed project. 
 
With regard to pedestrian access and circulation, the proposed project is designed to encourage 
pedestrian activity and walking as a transportation mode. The project will not impede existing 
pedestrian access to the project site or surrounding properties. Walkways are planned within the 
proposed project, which will connect to adjacent sidewalks in a manner that promotes 
walkability. Walkability is a term for the extent to which walking is readily available as a safe, 
connected, accessible and pleasant mode of transport. The proposed project and project site are 
situated along the Bloomfield Avenue and Imperial Highway corridors where office, retail, 
restaurant, and other commercial businesses are located in close proximity, as well as the 

                                                 
72 Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers. Traffic Impact Study InterHealth Corporation MOB Project. November 
20, 2013. As reviewed by the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Norwalk. 



 

71 

Metrolink Santa Fe Springs/Norwalk station, which is located approximately ¼-mile away. The 
pedestrian walkways for the proposed project will be appropriately landscaped and adorned to 
provide a friendly and safe walking environment. Therefore, no project impacts on existing or 
future pedestrian pathways in the project area are expected to occur due to implementation of the 
proposed project. 
 
With regard to bikeways and bike paths, the project site does not lie within the Bikeway 
Planning Area designated in the City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan, which centers around the 
civic center, Lake Center Athletic Park, Little Lake Park, and Santa Fe Springs Park to the 
northwest of the project site.73 As such, the proposed project will not impact any existing or 
future bike paths, bike trails, bike lanes, or bikeways detailed in the City's Bikeway Plan. 
 
Therefore, the proposed project will not conflict with any adopted policies, plans, or programs 
regarding public transit, pedestrian access, or the City Bikeway Plan, or otherwise decrease the 
performance or safety of such facilities, resulting in a less than significant impact. Additionally, 
due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will not have a considerable 
contribution to any cumulative impacts relating to public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities. 
Other related projects will have to perform individual environmental analyses and obtain 
approval from the City to ensure impacts are not cumulatively considerable. As a result, no 
mitigation measures are required. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
 
XVII.  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS -- Would the project: 
 
a)  Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality 

Control Board? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County (LACSD) treat wastewater from the City 
of Santa Fe Springs.74 Local sewer lines are maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs, while 
the LACSD owns, operates, and maintains the large trunk sewers of the regional wastewater 
conveyance system. The wastewater generated in the project area is conveyed to the Los Coyotes 
Water Reclamation Plant (Los Coyotes WRP), which is operated by the LACSD. The Los 
Coyotes WRP, located at the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River and Artesia (91) 
Freeway, provides preliminary, secondary, and tertiary treatment. The Los Coyotes WRP has a 
design capacity of 37.5 million gallons per day (mgd)75 and currently processes an average flow 

                                                 
73 City of Santa Fe Springs. General Plan, Circulation Element. Adopted January 11, 1994. 
74 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts. http://www.lacsd.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=4445 
75 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts. 
http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/joint_outfall_system_wrp/los_coyotes.asp <Accessed November 
2013> 



 

72 

of approximately 31.8 mgd. The Joint Water Pollution Control Plant (JWPCP) located in the 
City of Carson has a design capacity of 400 mgd for primary and secondary treatment, and 
currently processes an average flow of 280 mgd.76 The Long Beach WRP has a design capacity 
of 25 mgd77 for primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment, and currently processes an average 
flow of 20.2 mgd. 
 
There is no wastewater currently generated from the project site as there are no permanent 
structures on the site. The proposed 35,076 square foot medical office building (MOB) is 
anticipated to generate approximately 8,769 gpd (or 0.008769 mgd) of wastewater, which 
represents an increase of wastewater generation at the site when compared to existing 
conditions.78 However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project would fall within the 
design capacity of the Los Coyotes WRP, the JWPCP, and the Long Beach WRP. With the 5.7 
mgd capacity remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP (where the project wastewater will most likely 
be conveyed), the project's approximately 0.008769 mgd of wastewater generation represents 
approximately 0.154% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the 
existing wastewater treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum net 
increase of 8,769 gpd resulting from the proposed project. In addition, all of the new plumbing 
fixtures that will be installed in the building will consist of water conserving fixtures as required 
by the current City Code requirements. As a result, the proposed project would not exceed 
wastewater treatment requirements and would result in a less than significant impact to 
wastewater treatment in the proposed project area.  
 
Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will not contribute 
considerably to any cumulative impacts relating to wastewater generation. Other related projects 
in the City of Santa Fe Springs, made up of residential and industrial uses, would generate a total 
approximately 178,649 gpd (or 0.178649 mgd) of wastewater.79 The combination of the 
proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a wastewater generation of 
3.29% (percent) of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP, if under worst case scenario, 
all related project wastewater was routed to Los Coyotes WRP. All related projects will have to 
perform individual environmental analyses and obtain approval from the City to ensure impacts 
are not cumulatively considerable. As a result, no additional mitigation measures are required. 

                                                 
76 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts. http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/jwpcp/ <Accessed 
November 2013> 
77 Los Angeles County Sanitation District. 
http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/joint_outfall_system_wrp/long_beach.asp <Accessed November 
2013> 
78 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. The generation rates for ‘Medical Office/Clinic” is as follows: 250 gpd/1000 gross square feet of area. As 
the largest City in the County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds are stringent 
and sufficient measurements to estimate the wastewater generation for projects in Los Angeles County. 
 
79 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. The generation rates used are as follows: Residential: Duplex/Townhouse/SFD - 3 Bd. = 230 gpd/DU; 
Residential: Apt - 3 Bedroom = 200 gpd/DU; and Warehouse = 20 gpd/1000 Gr. sq. ft. As the largest City in the 
County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds are stringent and sufficient 
measurements to estimate the wastewater generation for projects in Los Angeles County. 



 

73 

 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
b)  Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or 

expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The proposed project will include development of a 35,076 square foot medical office building 
on the project site. The proposed project is anticipated to generate approximately 8,769 gpd (or 
0.008769 mgd) of wastewater. However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project 
would fall within the design capacity of the Los Coyotes WRP, the JWPCP, and the Long Beach 
WRP, as analyzed in Section XVII.a, Utilities and Service Systems above. With the 5.7 mgd 
capacity remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP (where the project wastewater will be conveyed), 
the project's approximately 0.008769 mgd of wastewater generation represents approximately 
0.00154% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the existing 
wastewater treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum net increase 
of 8,769 gpd resulting from the proposed project. 
 
With respect to water facilities, the City of Santa Fe Springs is essentially built out and current 
entitlements are adequate to meet foreseeable demands into the future under normal 
circumstances. Because the land use proposed (i.e., MOB) for the project site is consistent with 
the City's General Plan and zoning, the uses have been taken into account in the planned growth 
of the water system as outlined in the 2010-2014 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). The 
proposed project, if approved, would ensure that land use patterns would continue in accordance 
with approved General Plan and zoning designations, and no changes are proposed with respect 
to those designations. However, because the project site is currently underutilized with an 
existing storage yard (with no permanent structures), it is anticipated that redevelopment would 
result in increased development intensity over existing levels, even though the project area is 
essentially built out. 
 
Water consumption for the proposed project was estimated from the wastewater generation rate 
determined above. In order to present a conservative analysis, water consumption is assumed to 
be 120 percent of the wastewater generated for the proposed land use.80 Conventional 
methodologies generally use water factors reflecting a 10 percent increase over wastewater rates, 
however, this analysis is assuming a more conservative approach.81 As such, the proposed 
project is anticipated to generate a water demand of approximately 10,523 gpd or 11.79 acre-feet 
per year (AFY).  

                                                 
80 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. The generation rates for ‘Medical Office/Clinic” is as follows: 250 gpd/1000 gross square feet of area. As 
the largest City in the County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds are stringent 
and sufficient measurements to estimate the water demand for projects in Los Angeles County. 
81 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. 



 

74 

 
The City of Santa Fe Springs has approximately 6,015 service connections through a pipeline 
network of approximately 108 miles. The large industrial makeup of the City creates high 
daytime water demands and low nighttime water demands. The City's potable system is supplied 
by one local water well, two connections from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (MWD), a connection from the Central Basin Municipal Water District's (CBMWD) 
groundwater treatment facility in Whittier Narrows, and two four-million gallon reservoirs, each 
reservoir with a booster pumping station.82 83 In addition to the potable water system, the City 
utilizes reclaimed water for irrigation needs in many locations, of which the City shares 
maintenance of reclaimed water mains with Central Basin Municipal Water District 
contractors.84 In 2015, the projected year of opening and operation of the proposed medical 
office building, the total planned water supply from all sources is 7,407 AFY.85 The 
approximately 11.79 AFY of water demand anticipated from the proposed project represents less 
than one percent, approximately 0.159% (rounded), of the total planned water supply from all 
sources in 2015, representing a less than significant impact to water supply. Due to increased 
water supply in the future, the proposed project would represent an even smaller percentage, 
0.129%, of the total water supply from all sources in the year 2030 UWMP planning horizon. 
Additionally, the proposed project must comply with any mandatory water conservation 
measures (e.g., toilet requirements, irrigation requirements, etc.) required by the Department of 
Public Works, Maintenance Services Division or Water Utility Authority regarding water system 
operation and maintenance. 
 
Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will not contribute 
considerably to any cumulative impacts relating to water demand. Other related projects in the 
City of Santa Fe Springs, made up of residential and industrial uses, are anticipated to demand a 
total approximately 240 AFY of water (potable or undrinkable).86 The combination of the 
proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a water demand of 3.40% 
(percent) of the City's planned water supply in the year 2015, and less in the year 2030 UWMP 
planning horizon. All related projects will have to perform individual environmental analyses, 
obtain approval from the City, and comply with mandatory water conservation measures to 
ensure impacts are not cumulatively considerable. 
 
Therefore, the proposed project will not require the construction of new water or wastewater 
treatment facilities and will result in no significant or cumulatively considerable impact with 

                                                 
82 City of Santa Fe Springs, Department of Public Works, Utility Services Division. Urban Water Management Plan 
(2010-2014). Resolution 9329, adopted June 23, 2011. 
83 City of Santa Fe Springs Water Utility Authority. Annual Water Quality Report 2012. Viewed December 16, 
2013. 
84 City of Santa Fe Springs, Department of Public Works, Utility Services Division. Urban Water Management Plan 
(2010-2014). Resolution 9329, adopted June 23, 2011. 
85 Ibid. 
86 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. Water consumption/demand is assumed to be 120 percent of the wastewater generated for the proposed 
land use. As the largest City in the County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds 
are stringent and sufficient measurements to estimate the wastewater generation for projects in Los Angeles County. 



 

75 

respect to construction of new water or wastewater facilities or expansion of existing facilities, 
the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts.  
  
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
c)  Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion 

of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental 
effects?  

 
Finding: No impact 
 
The proposed project includes development of an approximately 35,076 square foot medical 
office building with associated surface parking and landscaping. Currently, the storm water at 
the project site is diverted off the paved areas via sheet flow to storm drains in Bloomfield 
Avenue and Imperial Highway, which are the nearest surrounding streets. The project site is 
currently made up of mostly 100 percent impervious paved surfaces with minimal pervious 
landscaping. Under the proposed project, pervious surface area will increase, as landscaping will 
represent approximately 16 percent of the project site land area. As such, the development will 
not increase the amount of impervious surface area at the project site, and thus will not increase 
the amount of surface runoff or alter the existing storm water drainage patterns across the site, 
which will continue to drain to Bloomfield Avenue. Additionally, the proposed project will be 
required to comply with the City and County requirements with regard to curb and gutter designs 
and adequate sloping on the site to provide positive drainage away from the building to minimize 
infiltration of water beneath footings, floor slabs, and pavement. Therefore, the proposed project 
will not require the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, and will result in no significant or cumulatively considerable impacts. As such, no 
mitigation measures are required. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
d)  Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements 

and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 
 

  Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
With respect to water facilities, entitlements, and resources, the City of Santa Fe Springs is 
essentially built out and current entitlements are adequate to meet foreseeable demands into the 
future under normal circumstances. Because the medical office land use proposed for the project 
site is consistent with the City's General Plan and zoning, the uses have been taken into account 
in the planned growth of the water system as outlined in the 2010-2014 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP). The proposed project, if approved, would ensure that land use 
patterns would continue in accordance with the approved General Plan and zoning designations, 
and no changes are proposed with respect to those designations. However, because the project 
site is currently underutilized with an existing storage yard (with no permanent structures), it is 



 

76 

anticipated that redevelopment would result in increased development intensity over existing 
levels, even though the project area is essentially built out. 
 
Water consumption for the proposed project was estimated from the wastewater generation rate. 
In order to present a conservative analysis, water consumption is assumed to be 120 percent of 
the wastewater generated for the proposed land use.87 Conventional methodologies generally use 
water factors reflecting a 10 percent increase over wastewater rates, however, this analysis is 
assuming a more conservative approach.88 As such, the proposed project is anticipated to 
generate a water demand of approximately 10,523 gpd or 11.79 acre-feet per year (AFY).  
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs has approximately 6,015 service connections through a pipeline 
network of approximately 108 miles. The large industrial makeup of the City creates high 
daytime water demands and low nighttime water demands. The City's potable system is supplied 
by one local water well, two MWD connections, a connection from the CBMWD groundwater 
treatment facility in Whittier Narrows, and two four-million gallon reservoirs, each reservoir 
with a booster pumping station.89 90 In addition to the potable water system, the City utilizes 
reclaimed water for irrigation needs in many locations, of which the City shares maintenance of 
reclaimed water mains with CBMWD contractors.91 In 2015, the projected year of opening and 
operation of the proposed MOB, the total planned water supply from all sources is 7,407 AFY.92 
The approximately 11.79 AFY of water demand anticipated from the proposed project represents 
less than one percent, approximately 0.159% (rounded), of the total planned water supply from 
all sources in 2015, representing a less than significant impact to water supply. Due to increased 
water supply in the future, the proposed project would represent an even smaller percentage, 
0.129%, of the total water supply from all sources in the year 2030 UWMP planning horizon. 
Additionally, the proposed project must comply with any mandatory water conservation 
measures (e.g., toilet requirements, irrigation requirements, etc.) required by the Department of 
Public Works, Maintenance Services Division or Water Utility Authority regarding water system 
operation and maintenance. 
 
Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will not contribute 
considerably to any cumulative impacts relating to water demand. Other related projects in the 
City of Santa Fe Springs, made up of residential and industrial uses, are anticipated to demand a 
total approximately 240 AFY of water (potable or undrinkable).93 The combination of the 

                                                 
87 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. The generation rates for ‘Medical Office/Clinic” is as follows: 250 gpd/1000 gross square feet of area. As 
the largest City in the County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds are stringent 
and sufficient measurements to estimate the water demand for projects in Los Angeles County. 
88 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. 
89 City of Santa Fe Springs, Department of Public Works, Utility Services Division. Urban Water Management Plan 
(2010-2014). Resolution 9329, adopted June 23, 2011. 
90 City of Santa Fe Springs Water Utility Authority. Annual Water Quality Report 2012. Viewed December 16, 
2013. 
91 City of Santa Fe Springs, Department of Public Works, Utility Services Division. Urban Water Management Plan 
(2010-2014). Resolution 9329, adopted June 23, 2011. 
92 Ibid. 
93 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 



 

77 

proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a water demand of 3.40% 
(percent) of the City's planned water supply in the year 2015, and less in the year 2030 UWMP 
planning horizon due to increased water supply. All related projects will have to perform 
individual environmental analyses, obtain approval from the City, and comply with mandatory 
water conservation measures to ensure impacts are not cumulatively considerable. 
 
Therefore, the proposed project will result in less than significant and cumulative impacts with 
respect to water supply availability. As such, no mitigation measures are required.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
e)  Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may 

serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing commitments?  

 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County (LACSD) treat wastewater from the City 
of Santa Fe Springs.94 Local sewer lines are maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs, while 
the LACSD owns, operates, and maintains the large trunk sewers of the regional wastewater 
conveyance system. The wastewater generated in the project area is conveyed to the Los Coyotes 
Water Reclamation Plant (Los Coyotes WRP), which is operated by the LACSD. The Los 
Coyotes WRP, located at the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River and Artesia (91) 
Freeway, provides preliminary, secondary, and tertiary treatment. The Los Coyotes WRP has a 
design capacity of 37.5 million gallons per day (mgd)95 and currently processes an average flow 
of approximately 31.8 mgd. The Joint Water Pollution Control Plant (JWPCP) located in the 
City of Carson has a design capacity of 400 mgd for primary and secondary treatment, and 
currently processes an average flow of 280 mgd.96 The Long Beach WRP has a design capacity 
of 25 mgd97 for primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment, and currently processes an average 
flow of 20.2 mgd. The JWPCP and Long Beach WRP are alternative treatment plants in the area 
that may accept the wastewater generated from the proposed project, as necessary. 
 
There is no wastewater currently generated from the project site as there are no permanent 
structures on the site. The proposed 35,076 square foot medical office building (MOB) is 
                                                                                                                                                             
M.2-24. Water consumption/demand is assumed to be 120 percent of the wastewater generated for the proposed 
land use. As the largest City in the County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds 
are stringent and sufficient measurements to estimate the wastewater generation for projects in Los Angeles County. 
94 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts. http://www.lacsd.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=4445 
95 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts. 
http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/joint_outfall_system_wrp/los_coyotes.asp <Accessed November 
2013> 
96 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts. http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/jwpcp/ <Accessed 
November 2013> 
97 Los Angeles County Sanitation District. 
http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/joint_outfall_system_wrp/long_beach.asp <Accessed November 
2013> 



 

78 

anticipated to generate approximately 8,769 gpd (or 0.008769 mgd) of wastewater, which 
represents an increase of wastewater generation at the site when compared to existing 
conditions.98 However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project would fall within the 
design capacity of the Los Coyotes WRP, the JWPCP, and/or the Long Beach WRP. With the 
5.7 mgd capacity remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP (where the project wastewater will 
primarily be conveyed), the project's approximately 0.008769 mgd of wastewater generation 
represents approximately 0.154% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, 
the existing wastewater treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum 
net increase of 8,769 gpd resulting from the proposed project. In addition, all of the new 
plumbing fixtures that will be installed in the building will consist of water conserving fixtures 
as required by the current City Code requirements. As a result, the proposed project would not 
exceed wastewater treatment requirements and would result in a less than significant impact with 
respect to the wastewater treatment provider's capacity.  
 
Additionally, due to the project's less than significant impact, the project will not contribute 
considerably to any cumulative impacts relating to wastewater generation. Other related projects 
in the City of Santa Fe Springs, made up of residential and industrial uses, would generate a total 
approximately 178,649 gpd (or 0.178649 mgd) of wastewater.99 The combination of the 
proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a wastewater generation of 
3.29% (percent) of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP, if under worst case scenario, 
all related project wastewater was routed to Los Coyotes WRP. All related projects will have to 
perform individual environmental analyses and obtain approval from the City to ensure impacts 
are not cumulatively considerable. As a result, no mitigation measures are required. 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
f)  Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s 

solid waste disposal needs? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
Waste disposal sites or landfills in Los Angeles County are operated by the Los Angeles County 
Sanitation Districts (LACSD) and by private companies. In 2012, over 80% of the City of Santa 
Fe Springs' solid waste is hauled to Puente Hills Landfill, Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill, 
and Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill.100 The remaining approximately 20% is disposed of 

                                                 
98 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. The generation rates for ‘Medical Office/Clinic” is as follows: 250 gpd/1000 gross square feet of area. As 
the largest City in the County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds are stringent 
and sufficient measurements to estimate the wastewater generation for projects in Los Angeles County. 
99 Derived from the Los Angeles CEQA Threshold Guide, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. 2006. Pg. 
M.2-24. The generation rates used are as follows: Residential: Duplex/Townhouse/SFD - 3 Bd. = 230 gpd/DU; 
Residential: Apt - 3 Bedroom = 200 gpd/DU; and Warehouse = 20 gpd/1000 Gr. sq. ft. As the largest City in the 
County of Los Angeles, the City of Los Angeles CEQA policies and thresholds are stringent and sufficient 
measurements to estimate the wastewater generation for projects in Los Angeles County. 
100 California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). Disposal Reporting System (DRS). 



 

79 

at 11 other landfills (as well as other non-landfill treatment centers).101 Since over 80% of the 
City's solid waste is hauled to the three aforementioned landfills, it can be assumed for worst 
case scenario, that the proposed project's solid waste will go to one of these three landfills.  
 
The proposed project will include development of an approximately 35,076 square foot medical 
office building, estimated to employ approximately 100 full-time employees. During operation, 
the proposed project is anticipated to generate approximately 4,034 pounds (or 2 tons) per day of 
solid waste using a conservative generation rate for professional offices.102 It is anticipated that 
since there are no permanent structures on the site, that the demolition solid waste from existing 
uses will be minimal. Additionally, the project construction is required to comply with City of 
Santa Fe Springs Ordinance No. 914, regarding the identification of materials that will be reused, 
recycled, or disposed from the project, with a required goal to reuse or recycle at least 75% of 
the project construction waste. 
 
According to the County of Los Angeles Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan 2012 
Annual Report, the Puente Hills Landfill has a maximum permitted daily capacity of 13,200 tons, 
and in 2012, received a daily average of 6,625 tons.103 The remaining capacity at the landfill is 
about 6,096,969 tons, estimating approximately 1 year of remaining life.104 105 The Savage 
Canyon (Whittier) Landfill has a maximum permitted daily capacity of 350 tons, and in 2012, 
received a daily average of 240 tons.106 The remaining capacity at the landfill is about 3,556,023 
tons, estimating approximately 13 years of remaining life.107 108 There is also an expansion 
planned for this landfill that would extend it's life by an additional 35 years. The Sunshine 
Canyon City/County Landfill has a maximum permitted daily capacity of 12,100 tons, and in 
2012, received a daily average of 7,221 tons.109 The remaining capacity at the landfill is about 
74,367,562, estimating approximately 20 years of remaining life.110 111 
 

                                                                                                                                                             
<http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/LGCentral/Reports/DRS/Destination/JUrDspFa.aspx>. 2012 data was used since 
2013 data is not available on the DRS. 
101 Ibid. 
102 A solid waste generation rate of 0.084 lbs/sq. ft./day was used for "Professional office" uses per the generation 
rates provided by CalRecycle: http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/WasteChar/WasteGenRates/Commercial.htm 
103 Los Angeles County Department of Public Works. County of Los Angeles Countywide Integrated Waste 
Management Plan 2012 Annual Report. Published August 2013 
<http://dpw.lacounty.gov/epd/swims/ShowDoc.aspx?id=590&hp=yes&type=PDF> 
104 Ibid. 
105 Remaining life was calculated as of December 31, 2012. 
106 Los Angeles County Department of Public Works. County of Los Angeles Countywide Integrated Waste 
Management Plan 2012 Annual Report. Published August 2013 
<http://dpw.lacounty.gov/epd/swims/ShowDoc.aspx?id=590&hp=yes&type=PDF> 
107 Ibid. 
108 Remaining life was calculated as of December 31, 2012. 
109 Los Angeles County Department of Public Works. County of Los Angeles Countywide Integrated Waste 
Management Plan 2012 Annual Report. Published August 2013 
<http://dpw.lacounty.gov/epd/swims/ShowDoc.aspx?id=590&hp=yes&type=PDF> 
110 Ibid. 
111 Remaining life was calculated as of December 31, 2012. 



 

80 

Assuming (worst case) that no solid waste can be sent to the Puente Hills Landfill due  to 
decreasing capacity, and that most, if not all, of the proposed project's solid waste will be sent to 
either the Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill or the Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill, the 
project would represent a small percentage of the maximum permitted daily capacity and the 
average daily intake for either landfill. For the Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill, the project 
solid waste would represent approximately 0.57% of the maximum permitted daily capacity and 
0.83% of the average daily intake (using 2012 figures). For the Sunshine Canyon City/County 
Landfill, the project solid waste would represent approximately 0.017% of the maximum 
permitted daily capacity and 0.028% of the average daily intake (using 2012 figures). As such, 
the proposed project's generation of solid waste and contribution to the daily intake at either 
landfill is marginal and less than significant, and would fall within the total remaining capacity 
planned at both landfills. Either landfill would have sufficient capacity to absorb the project's 
solid waste generation without any significant impacts. The project's contribution to solid waste 
disposal at the landfills would likely be further reduced due to recycling programs that may be 
implemented during operation of the MOB, which is not considered in the calculations above. 
 
Additionally, since the project's solid waste generation is marginal and the project will have a 
less than significant impact to area landfill capacities, it is anticipated that the project would not 
contribute considerably to cumulative impacts. Further, the related projects in the City of Santa 
Fe Springs, which consist of residential and industrial land uses, are anticipated to generate 
approximately 69,963 pounds (or 34 tons) per day of solid waste.112 In combination, the 
proposed project and related projects in the City would represent approximately 10.3% of 
maximum permitted daily capacity taken in at the Savage Canyon Landfill and approximately 
0.30% of the maximum permitted daily capacity taken in at the Sunshine Canyon Landfill. As 
such, the cumulative generation of solid waste could be absorbed into either landfill (but 
especially Sunshine Canyon) without significant impacts to capacities and remaining life. The 
cumulative contributions to solid waste disposal at the landfills would likely be further reduced 
due to City and individual recycling programs. Therefore, mitigation measures are not required.  
 
Recommended Mitigation:  None 
 
g)  Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste? 
 
Finding: Less than significant impact 
 
The proposed project will comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations related to solid waste generation, collection and disposal. To comply with federal, 
state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste, the proposed project would have to 
institute measures, through City and CEQA approvals, to conform to the California Integrated 
Waste Management Act and City Ordinance No. 914 requirements for recycling and diversion of 

                                                 
112 A solid waste generation rate of 12.23 lb/household/day was used for "Residential" uses per the generation rates 
provided by CalRecycle: http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/WasteChar/WasteGenRates/Residential.htm. A rate of 62.5 
lb/1000 sf/day was used for "Industrial" uses per the generation rates provided by CalRecycle: 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/WasteChar/WasteGenRates/Industrial.htm. 



 

81 

construction and operational solid waste. In addition, all new construction must have recycling 
storage as part of the City development and planning review process. These mandatory 
requirements would reduce potential impacts to less than significant levels, and no supplemental 
mitigation is required.  
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
 
          
XVIII.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE – Would the project: 
 
The following findings can be made regarding the Mandatory Findings of Significance set forth 
in Section 15065 of the CEQA Guidelines based on the results of this environmental assessment: 
 

 The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have the 
potential to degrade the quality of the environment, with the implementation of the 
mitigation measures included herein. 

 
 The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have the 

potential to achieve short-term goals to the disadvantage of long-term environmental 
goals, with the implementation of the mitigation measures included herein. 

 
 The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have 

impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable, when considering 
planned or proposed development in the immediate vicinity, with the implementation of 
mitigation measures contained herein.  

 
 The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have 

environmental effects that will adversely affect humans, either directly or indirectly, with 
the implementation of the mitigation measures included herein. 

 
 The Initial Study indicated there is no evidence that the proposed project will have an 

adverse effect on wildlife resources. or the habitat upon which any wildlife depends.  
 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX A   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE A-1 

 

APPENDIX A 
MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 

 
 
AESTHETICS 
 
MM AES-1: During the construction/demolition phase of the project, equipment, materials, 

and temporary facilities (such as construction trailers, staging sites, and portable 
toilets) shall be stored on the project site and appropriately screened by temporary 
opaque construction fencing.  

 
Monitoring Phase:    Construction 

 Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 
     Enforcement Agency:   Building Department 
 
MM AES-2: The exterior building walls and any fencing must be maintained free of graffiti at 

all times. Any graffiti found shall be removed or painted over within 24 hours of 
observation.  

 
Monitoring Phase:    Operation 

 Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 
  Enforcement Agency:   Building Department 
 
MM AES-3: The landscape areas must be maintained free of debris and trash at all times. 
 

Monitoring Phase:    Operation 
 Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 
  Enforcement Agency:   Building Department 
 
MM AES-4: All signage and advertising must comply with the City of Santa Fe Springs 

Zoning Requirements and shall require issuance of all necessary permits for 
installation. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 

 Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 
  Enforcement Agency:   Building Department 
 
 
GEOLOGY, SOILS, AND SEISMICITY 
 
MM GEO-1: Good drainage of surface water shall be provided by adequately sloping all 

surfaces and providing positive drainage away from the proposed building. Such 
drainage will be important to minimize infiltration of water beneath footings, 
floor slabs, and pavement.   

 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX A   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE A-2 

     Monitoring Phase:    Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Building Department 

  Enforcement Agency:   Building Department 
 
 
HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
MM HAZ-1: A soils gas investigation shall be required as part of the granting of a Planning 

entitlement or building permit. If deemed necessary by the findings of the soils 
gas investigation, the installation of a methane monitoring system shall be 
required beneath future subject property buildings. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Department of Fire 

  Enforcement Agency:   Department of Fire 
 
MM HAZ-2: The proposed project shall conform with all requirements of the City of Santa Fe 

Springs Municipal Code Section 117.131 (Ordinance No. 955), pertaining to the 
Methane Zone Program, administered by the Fire Department. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency: Department of Fire 

  Enforcement Agency:   Department of Fire 
 
 
LAND USE AND PLANNING 
 
MM LUP-1: The design of the proposed building shall either avoid the use of metal materials 

in conformance with the Municipal Zoning Code, or shall otherwise obtain 
approval for an amendment to the Municipal Zoning Code to permit the use of 
metal materials. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

  Enforcement Agency:   Planning and Development Department 
 
 
TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 
 
MM TRF-1: Bloomfield Avenue and Imperial Highway: The project shall make a fair share 

contribution towards restriping the southbound approach to the intersection to 
provide a second left-turn lane. The resulting lane configuration at the southbound 
approach would provide two left-turn lanes, one through lane, and one shared 
through/right-turn lane. A traffic signal modification shall be implemented if 
required to accommodate this improvement. As this intersection is under shared 
jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe Springs and City of Norwalk, the 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX A   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE A-3 

improvements shall require approval from both jurisdictions for implementation. 
A suitable and comparable substitute traffic mitigation measure, approved by both 
jurisdictions, can be implemented if necessary. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 
MM TRF-2: Shoemaker Avenue and Florence Avenue: The project shall make a fair share 

contribution towards restriping the eastbound approach to the intersection to 
provide a right-turn only lane. The resulting lane configuration of the eastbound 
approach would provide one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and one right-turn 
only lane.  

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 
MM TRF-3: Shoemaker Avenue and Imperial Highway: The project shall make a fair share 

contribution towards restriping the southbound approach to the intersection to 
provide a second left-turn lane and restriping the northbound approach to 
accommodate better alignment for the through travel lane. The resulting lane 
configuration at the southbound approach would provide two left-turn lanes and 
one shared through/right-turn lane. The resulting lane configuration at the 
northbound approach would provide one left-turn lane and one shared 
through/right-turn lane. A traffic signal modification shall be implemented if 
required to accommodate these improvements. As this intersection is under shared 
jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe Springs and County of Los Angeles, the 
improvements shall require approval from both jurisdictions for implementation. 
A suitable and comparable substitute traffic mitigation measure, approved by both 
jurisdictions, can be implemented if necessary. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 
MM TRF-4:  Carmenita Avenue and Imperial Highway: The project shall make a fair share 

contribution towards restriping the northbound approach to the intersection to 
provide a right-turn only lane. The resulting lane configuration at the northbound 
approach would provide one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and one right-turn 
only lane. Modification of the raised medians, both north and south of the 
intersection, shall be implemented if required to accommodate this improvement. 
As this intersection is under shared jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe 
Springs and County of Los Angeles, the improvements shall require approval 
from both jurisdictions for implementation. A suitable and comparable substitute 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX A   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE A-4 

traffic mitigation measure, approved by both jurisdictions, can be implemented if 
necessary. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 
MM TRF-5:  The Metro Bus Operations Control Special Events Coordinator shall be contacted 

at (213) 922-4632 regarding construction activities that may impact Metro bus 
lines. For closures that last more than six months, Metro's Stops and Zones 
Department shall also be notified at (213) 922-5188. Other municipal bus 
operators shall also be included in construction outreach efforts.  

 
Monitoring Phase:    Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 
MM TRF-6:  Transportation of heavy construction equipment and/or materials, which requires 

the use of oversized-transport vehicles on State highways, shall require a 
transportation permit from Caltrans. If possible, large size truck trips shall be 
limited to off-peak commute periods. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 
 
UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 
 
MM UTI-1: The developer shall contact the County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles 

County, Industrial Waste Section at (562) 908-4288, extension 2900, to determine 
if an Industrial Waste Discharge Permit is necessary and required. If necessary, 
the developer shall forward copies of final plans and supporting information for 
the proposed project to the County Sanitation Districts for review and approval 
before beginning project construction. 

 
Monitoring Phase:    Pre-Construction, Construction 
Monitoring Agency:   Planning and Development Department 

   Enforcement Agency:   Department of Public Works 
 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-1 

 

APPENDIX B 
RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 

 
The following responses are provided to address comments received from several public 
agencies on the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration/Initial Study Part II during the public 
review period (9/17/14 - 10/17/14). The comment letters/emails are provided as part of this 
Appendix B.  All revisions made to the Mitigation Monitoring Program in response to comments 
have been implemented in Appendix A: Mitigation Monitoring Program.  
 
 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES FIRE DEPARTMENT 
COMMENT DATED OCTOBER 7, 2014 
 
The County of Los Angeles Fire Department Planning Division, Land Development Unit, 
Forestry Division, and Health Hazardous Materials Division all indicated that the proposed 
project is not within their respective jurisdictions, would not appear to have any impacts, or did 
not provide a comment on the analyses. As such, there is no response necessary. 
 
 
L.A. COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (METRO) 
COMMENT DATED OCTOBER 14, 2014 
 
Metro provided a comment that the Metro Bus Operations Control Special Events Coordinator, 
as well as Municipal bus operators, should be contacted regarding construction activities that 
may impact bus lines in the area. As such, a new required Mitigation Measure, MM TRF-5, has 
been added to the Transportation/Traffic section of Appendix A: Mitigation Monitoring Program 
to ensure that the developer is required to take such actions. The language of the Mitigation 
Measure shall also be added to the "Recommended Mitigation" Section of Section XVI.a. 
Transportation/Traffic of the MND/Initial Study Part II.  
 
The new Mitigation Measure reads as follows: 
 
"The Metro Bus Operations Control Special Events Coordinator shall be contacted at (213) 922-
4632 regarding construction activities that may impact Metro bus lines. For closures that last 
more than six months, Metro's Stops and Zones Department shall also be notified at (213) 922-
5188. Other municipal bus operators shall also be included in construction outreach efforts." 
 
 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW) 
COMMENT DATED OCTOBER 16, 2014 
 
1) As requested by DPW, the following statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, 
Item a, which reads: 
 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-2 

"Local sewer lines are maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs, while the LACSD owns, 
operates and maintains the large trunk sewers of the regional wastewater conveyance system." 
 
Shall be revised to read: 
 
"Local sewer lines are operated and maintained by the Los Angeles County Department of 
Public Works Consolidated Sewer Maintenance District, while the LACSD owns, operates and 
maintains the large trunk sewers of the regional wastewater conveyance system." 
 
2) As requested by DPW, the following statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, 
Item e, which reads: 
 
"Local sewer lines are maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs, while the LACSD owns, 
operates and maintains the large trunk sewers of the regional wastewater conveyance system." 
 
Shall be revised to read: 
 
"Local sewer lines are operated and maintained by the Los Angeles County Department of 
Public Works Consolidated Sewer Maintenance District, while the LACSD owns, operates and 
maintains the large trunk sewers of the regional wastewater conveyance system." 
 
3) DPW commented that the Puente Hills Landfill is no longer in operation, and as such, all 
references to this landfill shall be removed or revised in the document, as follows: 
 
 a) As requested by DPW, the following statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service 
 Systems, Item f, which reads: 
 
"Waste disposal sites or landfills in Los Angeles County are operated by the Los Angeles County 
Sanitation Districts (LACSD) and by private companies. In 2012, over 80% of the City of Santa 
Fe Springs' solid waste is hauled to Puente Hills Landfill, Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill, 
and Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill. The remaining approximately 20% is disposed of at 
11 other landfills (as well as other non-landfill treatment centers). Since over 80% of the City's 
solid waste is hauled to the three aforementioned landfills, it can be assumed for worst case 
scenario, that the proposed project's solid waste will go to one of these three landfills." 
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
"Waste disposal sites or landfills in Los Angeles County are operated by the Los Angeles County 
Sanitation Districts (LACSD) and by private companies. In 2012, over 80% of the City of Santa 
Fe Springs' solid waste was hauled to Puente Hills Landfill, Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill, 
and Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill. The remaining approximately 20% was disposed of 
at 11 other landfills (as well as other non-landfill treatment centers). The Puente Hills Landfill 
stopped its operation in 2013; even with the closure of this landfill, it can be assumed that the 
proposed project's solid waste will go to the other two aforementioned landfills." 
 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-3 

 b) As requested by DPW, the following statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service 
 Systems, Item f, shall be deleted: 
 
"According to the County of Los Angeles Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan 2012 
Annual Report, the Puente Hills Landfill has a maximum permitted daily capacity of 13,200 tons, 
and in 2012, received a daily average of 6,625 tons. The remaining capacity at the landfill is 
about 6,096,969 tons, estimating approximately 1 year of remaining life." 
 
 c) As requested by DPW, the following statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service 
 Systems, Item f, which reads: 
 
"Assuming (worst case) that no solid waste can be sent to the Puente Hills Landfill due to 
decreasing capacity, and that most, if not all, of the proposed project's solid waste will be sent to 
either the Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill or the Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill, the 
project would represent a small percentage of the maximum permitted daily capacity and the 
average daily intake for either landfill." 
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
"All of the proposed project's solid waste will be sent to either the Savage Canyon (Whittier) 
Landfill or the Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill, however the project is not expected to 
have a significant impact on the capacity of these landfills since the project would represent a 
small percentage of the maximum permitted daily capacity and the average daily intake for either 
landfill." 
 
4) DPW provided a comment requesting submittal of the project traffic impact analysis, dated 
November 20, 2013, as well as conceptual plans of proposed traffic mitigation measures at 
County/City roadway intersections so that the County can determine the feasibility of those  
physical Mitigation Measures. As such, the project traffic impact analysis has been updated and 
revised (dated October 31, 2014) to include not only the requested conceptual plans reflecting 
the required traffic Mitigation Measures for those County/City intersections, but also to reflect 
responses to comments received from the City of Norwalk and Caltrans. In addition, both the 
November 20, 2013 traffic impact study and the revised traffic impact study (dated 10/31/14) 
employed the County’s analysis methodology, as indicated in the comment.  The revised project 
traffic impact analysis (dated 10/31/14) was submitted to Andrew Ngumba of the County’s 
Traffic and Lighting Division, as requested in the comment. 
 
 
COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICTS OF LOS ANGELES COUNTY (LACSD) 
COMMENT DATED OCTOBER 16, 2014 
 
1) LACSD provided a comment that the proposed project may require a permit for Industrial 
Wastewater Discharge. As such, a new required Mitigation Measure, MM UTI-1, has been added 
to the Utilities and Service Systems section of Appendix A: Mitigation Monitoring Program to 
ensure that the developer is required to take such actions, if necessary. 
 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-4 

2) The LACSD provided more accurate and up-to-date information with respect to wastewater 
facilities serving the project site, as follows: 
 
 a) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item a, which reads: 
 
"The wastewater generated in the project area is conveyed to the Los Coyotes Water 
Reclamation Plant (Los Coyotes WRP), which is operated by the LACSD. The Los Coyotes 
WRP, located at the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River and Artesia (91) Freeway, 
provides preliminary, secondary, and tertiary treatment. The Los Coyotes WRP has a design 
capacity of 37.5 million gallons per day (mgd) and currently processes an average flow of 
approximately 31.8 mgd. The Joint Water Pollution Control Plant (JWPCP) located in the City of 
Carson has a design capacity of 400 mgd for primary and secondary treatment, and currently 
processes an average flow of 280 mgd. The Long Beach WRP has a design capacity of 25 mgd 
for primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment, and currently processes an average flow of 20.2 
mgd." 
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
"The wastewater generated by the proposed project will discharge to a local sewer line, which is 
not maintained by the LACSD, for conveyance to the LACSD's Bloomfield Avenue Trunk 
Sewer, located in Imperial Highway at Bloomfield Avenue. This 15-inch diameter trunk sewer 
has a design capacity of 1.6 million gallons per day (mgd) and conveyed a peak flow of 0.2 mgd 
when last measured in 2013. The wastewater will be treated by the Los Coyotes Water 
Reclamation Plant (Los Coyotes WRP), which is operated by the LACSD. The Los Coyotes 
WRP, located at the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River and Artesia (91) Freeway in the 
City of Cerritos, provides preliminary, secondary, and tertiary treatment. The Los Coyotes WRP 
has a design capacity of 37.5 million gallons per day (mgd) and currently processes an average 
flow of approximately 22.1 mgd." 
 
 b) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item a, which reads: 
 
"There is no wastewater currently generated from the project site as there are no permanent 
structures on the site. The proposed 35,076 square foot medical office building (MOB) is 
anticipated to generate approximately 8,769 gpd (or 0.008769 mgd) of wastewater, which 
represents an increase of wastewater generation at the site when compared to existing conditions. 
However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project would fall within the design capacity 
of the Los Coyotes WRP, the JWPCP, and the Long Beach WRP. With the 5.7 mgd capacity 
remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP (where the project wastewater will most likely be conveyed), 
the project's approximately 0.008769 mgd of wastewater generation represents approximately 
0.154% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the existing wastewater 
treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum net increase of 8,769 
gpd resulting from the proposed project." 
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-5 

"There is no wastewater currently generated from the project site as there are no permanent 
structures on the site. The proposed 35,076 square foot medical office building (MOB) is 
anticipated to generate an average wastewater flow of approximately 10,523 gpd (or 0.010523 
mgd), which represents an increase of wastewater generation at the site when compared to 
existing conditions. However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project would fall 
within the design capacity of the Los Coyotes WRP. With the 15.4 mgd capacity remaining at 
the Los Coyotes WRP, the project's approximately 0.010523 mgd of wastewater generation 
represents approximately 0.068% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, 
the existing wastewater treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum 
net increase of 10,523 gpd resulting from the proposed project." 
 
 c) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item a, which reads: 
 
The combination of the proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a 
wastewater generation of 3.29% (percent) of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP, if 
under worst case scenario, all related project wastewater was routed to Los Coyotes WRP.  
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
The combination of the proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a 
wastewater generation of 1.16% (percent) of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP, if 
under worst case scenario, all related project wastewater was routed to Los Coyotes WRP.  
 
 d) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item b, which reads: 
 
The proposed project will include development of a 35,076 square foot medical office building 
on the project site. The proposed project is anticipated to generate approximately 8,769 gpd (or 
0.008769 mgd) of wastewater. However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project 
would fall within the design capacity of the Los Coyotes WRP, the JWPCP, and the Long Beach 
WRP, as analyzed in Section XVII.a, Utilities and Service Systems above. With the 5.7 mgd 
capacity remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP (where the project wastewater will be conveyed), 
the project's approximately 0.008769 mgd of wastewater generation represents approximately 
0.00154% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the existing wastewater 
treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum net increase of 8,769 
gpd resulting from the proposed project. 
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
The proposed project will include development of a 35,076 square foot medical office building 
on the project site. The proposed project is anticipated to generate approximately 10,523 gpd (or 
0.010523 mgd) of wastewater flow. However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project 
would fall within the design capacity of the Los Coyotes WRP, as analyzed in Section XVII.a, 
Utilities and Service Systems above. With the 15.4 mgd capacity remaining at the Los Coyotes 
WRP (where the project wastewater will be conveyed), the project's approximately 0.010523 
mgd of wastewater flow generation represents approximately 0.068% of the remaining capacity 
at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the existing wastewater treatment provider would have 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-6 

adequate capacity to serve the maximum net increase of 10,523 gpd resulting from the proposed 
project. 
 
 e) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item e, which reads: 
 
The wastewater generated in the project area is conveyed to the Los Coyotes Water Reclamation 
Plant (Los Coyotes WRP), which is operated by the LACSD. The Los Coyotes WRP, located at 
the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River and Artesia (91) Freeway, provides preliminary, 
secondary, and tertiary treatment. The Los Coyotes WRP has a design capacity of 37.5 million 
gallons per day (mgd) and currently processes an average flow of approximately 31.8 mgd. The 
Joint Water Pollution Control Plant (JWPCP) located in the City of Carson has a design capacity 
of 400 mgd for primary and secondary treatment, and currently processes an average flow of 280 
mgd. The Long Beach WRP has a design capacity of 25 mgd for primary, secondary, and tertiary 
treatment, and currently processes an average flow of 20.2 mgd. The JWPCP and Long Beach 
WRP are alternative treatment plants in the area that may accept the wastewater generated from 
the proposed project, as necessary. 
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
"The wastewater generated by the proposed project will discharge to a local sewer line, which is 
not maintained by the LACSD, for conveyance to the LACSD's Bloomfield Avenue Trunk 
Sewer, located in Imperial Highway at Bloomfield Avenue. This 15-inch diameter trunk sewer 
has a design capacity of 1.6 million gallons per day (mgd) and conveyed to a peak flow of 0.2 
mgd when lasted measured in 2013. The wastewater will then be treated by the Los Coyotes 
Water Reclamation Plant (Los Coyotes WRP), which is operated by the LACSD. The Los 
Coyotes WRP, located at the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River and Artesia (91) 
Freeway in the City Cerritos, provides preliminary, secondary, and tertiary treatment. The Los 
Coyotes WRP has a design capacity of 37.5 million gallons per day (mgd) and currently 
processes an average flow of approximately 22.1 mgd." 
 
 f) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item e, which reads: 
 
There is no wastewater currently generated from the project site as there are no permanent 
structures on the site. The proposed 35,076 square foot medical office building (MOB) is 
anticipated to generate approximately 8,769 gpd (or 0.008769 mgd) of wastewater, which 
represents an increase of wastewater generation at the site when compared to existing conditions. 
However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project would fall within the design capacity 
of the Los Coyotes WRP, the JWPCP, and/or the Long Beach WRP. With the 5.7 mgd capacity 
remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP (where the project wastewater will primarily be conveyed), 
the project's approximately 0.008769 mgd of wastewater generation represents approximately 
0.154% of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the existing wastewater 
treatment provider would have adequate capacity to serve the maximum net increase of 8,769 
gpd resulting from the proposed project. In addition, all of the new plumbing fixtures that will be 
installed in the building will consist of water conserving fixtures as required by the current City 
Code requirements. As a result, the proposed project would not exceed wastewater treatment 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-7 

requirements and would result in a less than significant impact with respect to the wastewater 
treatment provider's capacity.  
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
There is no wastewater currently generated from the project site as there are no permanent 
structures on the site. The proposed 35,076 square foot medical office building (MOB) is 
anticipated to generate approximately 10,523 gpd (or 0.010523 mgd) of wastewater flow, which 
represents an increase of wastewater generation at the site when compared to existing conditions. 
However, the wastewater generated by the proposed project would fall within the design capacity 
of the Los Coyotes WRP. With the 15.4 mgd capacity remaining at the Los Coyotes WRP 
(where the project wastewater will be conveyed), the project's approximately 0.010523 mgd of 
wastewater generation represents approximately 0.068% of the remaining capacity at the Los 
Coyotes WRP. Therefore, the existing wastewater treatment provider would have adequate 
capacity to serve the maximum net increase of 10,523 gpd resulting from the proposed project. 
In addition, all of the new plumbing fixtures that will be installed in the building will consist of 
water conserving fixtures as required by the current City Code requirements. As a result, the 
proposed project would not exceed wastewater treatment requirements and would result in a less 
than significant impact with respect to the wastewater treatment provider's capacity.  
 
 g) The statement in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item e, which reads: 
 
The combination of the proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a 
wastewater generation of 3.29% (percent) of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP, if 
under worst case scenario, all related project wastewater was routed to Los Coyotes WRP.  
 
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
The combination of the proposed project and related projects in the City would represent a 
wastewater generation of 1.16% (percent) of the remaining capacity at the Los Coyotes WRP, if 
under worst case scenario, all related project wastewater was routed to Los Coyotes WRP.  
 
 h) The Recommended Mitigation in Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item e, 
which reads: 
 
Recommended Mitigation: None 
  
 Shall be revised to read: 
 
Recommended Mitigation: Although all project and cumulative impacts were analyzed and 
determined to be less than significant with respect to wastewater treatment facilities, the 
following mitigation measure shall be implemented to ensure all necessary permits are obtained 
before the beginning of construction. 
 

 The developer shall contact the County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County, 
Industrial Waste Section at (562) 908-4288, extension 2900, to determine if an Industrial 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-8 

Waste Discharge Permit is necessary and required. If necessary, the developer shall 
forward copies of final plans and supporting information for the proposed project to the 
County Sanitation Districts for review and approval before beginning project 
construction. 

 
3) The LACSD provided a comment stating that a potential sewer connection fee may be 
charged in connection with development of the proposed project. The comment has been noted 
and the fee will be paid by the developer if required during the permitting process. 
 
4) The LACSD provided a comment stating that there is no guarantee of wastewater service and 
that the LACSD intends to provide wastewater service up to the levels that are legally permitted. 
The comment has been noted, but does not require a response. 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) 
COMMENT DATED OCTOBER 20, 2014 
 
1) Caltrans provided a comment that the traffic impact analysis associated with the MND/Initial 
Study shall be submitted for review. As such, the project traffic impact study has been updated 
and revised (dated 10/31/14) to include not only the comments from Caltrans, but also comments 
received from the City of Norwalk and the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works. 
The revised project traffic impact study (dated 10/31/14) was submitted to Alan Lin, District 7 - 
Office of Transportation Planning, as requested in the comment. 
 
2) Caltrans provided a comment requesting disclosure of the 11 study intersections analyzed in 
the traffic impact analysis. The revised traffic impact study (dated 10/31/14) has been submitted 
to Caltrans for review and contains the locations of the 11 study intersections originally studied 
(as noted in the November 20, 2013 traffic impact study), which include: 
 

 I-5 Freeway Northbound (NB) Off-Ramp/Imperial Highway (NB off-ramp closed 
permanently by Caltrans in September 2013) – Caltrans/City of Norwalk 

 Norwalk Boulevard/Imperial Highway – City of Norwalk 
 Norwalk Boulevard/Adoree Street-I-5 Freeway NB On-Off Ramps – Caltrans/City of 

Norwalk 
 San Antonio Drive-Union Street/I-5 Freeway Southbound (SB) On-Ramp – Caltrans/City 

of Norwalk 
 Bloomfield Avenue/Florence Avenue – City of Santa Fe Springs 
 Bloomfield Avenue/Imperial Highway – City of Santa Fe Springs/City of Norwalk 
 Bloomfield Avenue/Civic Center Drive – City of Norwalk 
 Bloomfield Avenue/I-5 Freeway NB On-Ramp – Caltrans/City of Norwalk 
 Shoemaker Avenue/Florence Avenue – City of Santa Fe Springs 
 Shoemaker Avenue/Imperial Highway – City of Santa Fe Springs/County of Los Angeles 
 Carmenita Road/Imperial Highway – City of Santa Fe Springs/County of Los Angeles 

 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-9 

As noted above, a total of four locations under shared Caltrans jurisdiction have been included in 
the traffic analysis. 
 
3) Caltrans commented that a queuing analysis should be conducted for the off-ramps of the 
nearby freeway to determine if the project or cumulative traffic would cause potential safety 
issues due to queuing. A queuing analysis in compliance with Caltrans methodology has been 
conducted and incorporated into the revised traffic impact study (dated 10/31/14), which was 
submitted to Alan Lin, District 7 - Office of Transportation Planning for review. 
 
4) Caltrans provided a comment indicating there may be a potential cumulative traffic impact 
resulting from the project and all related (cumulative) projects in the area. As discussed in the 
MND/Initial Study Part II, as well as the traffic impact study, the current analysis considers 
existing traffic, future project traffic, future ambient growth traffic, and future traffic generated 
by all related projects in the area. Under future cumulative conditions, a total of four 
intersections were found to be significantly impacted. However, it was determined that by 
contributing the project's fair share portion of cost to implement cumulative mitigation measures 
at the four impacted intersections, the significant cumulative impacts would be reduced to a less-
than-significant level. The project Applicant will work with the City of Santa Fe Springs to 
contribute a fair-share portion of funds to implement the cumulative mitigation measures 
proposed/required.  
 
Additionally, as discussed in the current traffic impact study, not only were related projects 
located within the City of Santa Fe Springs considered in the traffic impact analysis, but related 
projects within the County of Los Angeles and City of Norwalk jurisdictions were also 
considered and conservatively assumed to be built and operational by year 2015. 
 
A revised traffic impact study (dated 10/31/14) was submitted to Alan Lin, District 7 - Office of 
Transportation Planning for further review. 
 
5) Caltrans provided a comment that the preparer of the traffic impact study should consult as 
early as possible to determine the appropriate requirements and criteria of significance to be used 
in the traffic impact study. The current traffic impact study utilizes the Los Angeles County 
analysis methodology and thresholds of significance as required by the Lead Agency (City of 
Santa Fe Springs).  In addition, the revised traffic impact study includes Caltrans and City of 
Norwalk analysis methodologies. The traffic engineer for the project has prepared a revised 
traffic impact study (dated 10/31/14) that was submitted to Alan Lin, District 7, Office of 
Transportation Planning for further review.   
 
Based on recent coordination with Caltrans, it is important to note that analyses of Caltrans 
facilities should be conducted when and if a proposed project is expected to add 50 or more peak 
hour trips in either direction on a freeway mainline segment or 10 or more peak hour trips to a 
freeway ramp location.  While the proposed project in its entirety at build-out is expected to 
result in an increase of 80 AM peak hour vehicle trips and 125 PM peak hour vehicle trips, the 
project is not expected to generate 50 or more vehicle trips on the mainline (I-5 Freeway) during 
either the AM or PM commuter peak hours.  Thus, as the threshold for preparation of a Caltrans 
freeway mainline analysis is not exceeded, no further analysis of the mainline freeway system is 



INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE APPENDIX B   
INITIAL STUDY PART II - MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION   
 

 

 
PAGE B-10 

required.  In addition, while the proposed project will not add 10 or more vehicle trips during 
either the commuter AM or PM commuter peak hours at any freeway ramp location, which is the 
threshold for preparation of a Caltrans ramp analysis, the revised traffic impact study includes a 
review of freeway ramp vehicle queuing, as requested.  
 
6) Caltrans commented that the project shall be designed to discharge clean run-off water from 
the project site and that discharge of storm water run-off is not permitted onto State highway 
facilities without any storm water management plan. 
 
The MND/Initial Study addresses hydrology, run-off water, and storm water under the 
Hydrology and Water Quality section, which discussed that the project is required to be in 
compliance with all State, County, and local regulations relating to storm water run-off. Through 
compliance with these various established regulations, the proposed project will not have any 
significant impacts during construction or operation of the project. No additional Mitigation 
Measures are required to reduce potential impacts. 
 
7) Caltrans provided a comment that transportation of heavy construction equipment and/or 
materials on oversized-transport vehicles on State highways will require a transportation permit 
from Caltrans, and that large size truck trips be limited to off-peak commute periods. 
 
The recommendations from Caltrans have been incorporated as a new required Mitigation 
Measure, MM TRF-6, which has been added to the Transportation/Traffic section of Appendix 
A: Mitigation Monitoring Program to ensure that the developer is required to take such actions, 
if necessary. The language of the Mitigation Measure shall also be added to the "Recommended 
Mitigation" Section of Section XVI.a. Transportation/Traffic of the MND/Initial Study Part II. 
 
The new Mitigation Measure reads as follows: 
 
"Transportation of heavy construction equipment and/or materials, which requires the use of 
oversized-transport vehicles on State highways, shall require a transportation permit from 
Caltrans. If possible, large size truck trips shall be limited to off-peak commute periods." 
 









1

Wayne M. Morrell

From: DevReview <DevReview@metro.net>
Sent: Tuesday, October 14, 2014 3:56 PM
To: Wayne M. Morrell
Subject: InterHealth Corporation Medical Office Building MND
Attachments: InterHealth Corporation Medical Office Building - LACMTA Comments.pdf

Hello Wayne,  

 

Attached is our agency’s comments regarding the InterHealth Corporation Medical Office Building project.  A hard copy 

is also sent via U.S. Mail.  

 

Cheers,  

 
Xin Tong 
Development Review 
LA Metro, Planning Department 
One Gateway Plaza | Mail Stop: 99-18-3  
P: 213.922.8804 | F: 213.922.2228 
DevReview@metro.net 

 



 
 
October 14, 2014 
 
Wayne Morrell 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
 
 
RE:  InterHealth Corporation Medical Office Building Mitigated Negative Declaration & Initial 
Study Part II 
 
Dear Mr. Morrell, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed InterHealth Corporation Medical Office 
Building. This letter conveys recommendations from the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) concerning issues in relation to our facilities and services that 
may be affected by the proposed project.  
 
Metro bus lines operate on Bloomfield Avenue, adjacent to the proposed project. Although the project 
is not expected to result in any long-term impacts on transit, the developer should be aware of the bus 
services that are present. Metro Bus Operations Control Special Events Coordinator should be 
contacted at 213-922-4632 regarding construction activities that may Impact Metro bus lines. (For 
closures that last more than six months, Metro’s Stops and Zones Department will also need to be 
notified at 213-922-5188). Other municipal bus operators may also be impacted and should be 
included in construction outreach efforts.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this response, please contact Xin Tong at 213-922-8804 or by 
email at DevReview@metro.net.  
 

LACMTA Development Review  
One Gateway Plaza MS 99-18-3 
Los Angeles, CA 90012-2952 

          
                                                 
Sincerely, 

 
Xin Tong 
Development Review Coordinator, Planning Department 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

Wayne M. Morrell

From: Mardirosian, Teni <tmardirosian@dpw.lacounty.gov>
Sent: Thursday, October 16, 2014 9:42 AM
To: Wayne M. Morrell
Cc: Dubiel, Matthew; Cruz, Ruben; Sarda, Juan
Subject: 12438 Bloomfield Avenue- InterHealth Corporation-IS-MND - LACODPW Comments 
Attachments: 2014-10-16, 12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE , LACODPW Comments.pdf

Dear Mr. Morrell, 

  

Attached please find LA County Public Works’ comments  for the IS/MND for the InterHealth Corporation Office Building 

Project located at 12438 Bloomfield Avenue. Feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  

  

Thank you, 

  

Teni Mardirosian 
County of Los Angeles, Department of Public Works 
Land Development Division 
CUP/CEQA/B&T Planning Unit 
Office: (626) 458 – 4910 

  

  



October 16, 2014

Mr. Wayne Morrell
City of Santa Fe Springs
Planning Division
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA, 90670-3679

INITIAL STUDY- MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (IS-MND)
INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING
12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE
CITY OF SANTA FE

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS COMMENTS

We completed our review of the IS-MND for the InterHealth Corporation Medical Office Building
located at 12438 Bloomfield Avenue in the City of Santa Fe Springs. The proposed project
includes the construction of an approximately 35,076-square-foot, three-story medical office
building with associated surface parking lot and landscaping. Existing uses on the site will be
demolished to accommodate the project.

The following are County of Los Angeles, Department of Public Works’ comments for your
consideration and relate to the environmental document only:

For specific revisions, additions, or deletions of wording directly from the project
document, the specific section, subsection, and/or item along with the page number is
first referenced then the excerpt from the document is copied within quotations using
the following nomenclature:

Deletions are represented by a strikethrough.
Additions are represented by italics along with an underline.
Revisions are represented by a combination of the above.

Utilities and Service Systems

1. Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item a, page 71 of 81; Revise the
statement as follows:

“Local sewer lines are operated and maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs
Los Angeles County Department of Public Works Consolidated Sewer
Maintenance District , while the LACSD owns, operates and maintains the large
trunk sewers of the regional wastewater conveyance system”.



Mr. Wayne Morrell

October 16, 2014
Page 2

2. Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item e, page 77 of 81; Revise the
statement as follows:

“Local sewer lines are operated and maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs
Los Angeles County Department of Public Works Consolidated Sewer
Maintenance District, while the LACSD owns, operates and maintains the large
trunk sewers of the regional wastewater conveyance system”.

If you have any questions regarding the utilities and service systems comments one and
two, please contact Anna Marie Gilmore of Sewer Maintenance Division at (626) 300-3360
or agilmore@dpw.lacounty.gov.

3. Section XVII, Utilities and Service Systems, Item f: Puente Hills Landfill is no
longer in operation, remove all the references to this landfill in the document as
shown below:

On page 78 of 81:

“Waste disposal sites or landfills in Los Angeles County are operated by the Los
Angeles County Sanitation District (LACSD) and by private companies. In 2012,
over 80% of the City of Santa Fe Springs’ solid waste was hauled to Puente Hills
Landfill, Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill and Sunshine Canyon City/County
Landfill.…Since over 80% of the City’s solid waste is hauled to the three two
aforementioned landfills, The Puente Hills Landfill stopped its operation in 2013;
even with the closure of this landfill, it can be assumed for worst case scenario,
that the proposed project’s solid waste will go to one of these three other two
aforementioned landfills”.

On page 79 of 81:

“According to the County of Los Angeles Countywide Integrated Waste
Management Plan 2012 Annual Report, the Puente Hills Landfill has a maximum
permitted daily capacity of 13,200 tons and in 2012, received a daily average of
6,625 tons. The remaining capacity at the landfill is about 6,096,969 tons,
estimating approximately 1 year of remaining life”.

On page 80 of 81:

Assuming (worst case) that no solid waste can be sent to the Puente Hills Landfill
due to decreasing capacity, and that most, if not all, of All of the proposed
project’s solid waste will be sent to either Savage Canyon (Whittier) Landfill or
the Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill, however the project is not expected to
have a significant impact on the capacity of these landfills since the project would



Mr. Wayne Morrell

October 16, 2014
Page 2

represent a small percentage of the maximum permitted daily capacity and the
average daily intake for either landfill”.

If you have any questions regarding the utilities and service systems comment three,
please contact Dave Nguyen of Environmental Programs Division at (626) 458-5189 or
dnguyen@dpw.lacounty.gov.

Transportation/Traffic

1. The applicant shall submit the project traffic impact analysis dated November 20, 2013
for review and approval along with the proposed mitigation measures at the County/City
roadway intersections to ascertain their adequacy. All physical mitigation measures
proposed shall be accompanied by conceptual plans to determine their feasibility.

The County's methodology shall be used when evaluating the County intersections. A
copy of our Traffic Impact Analysis Report guidelines may be obtained on the
Public Works' website at http://dpw.lacounty.gov/Traffic.

If you have any questions regarding the transportation/traffic comment, please contact
Andrew Ngumba of Traffic and Lighting Division at (626) 300-4851 or
angumba@dpw.lacounty.gov.

If you have any other questions or require additional information, please contact
Teni Mardirosian of Land Development Division at (626) 458-4910 or
tmardirosian@dpw.lacounty.gov.

TM:
\\PW01\PWPublic\ldpub\SUBPCHECK\Plan Checking Files\Single Lots\12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE\IS-MND\12438 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE.docx











APPENDIX C: TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

i

TABLE OF CONTENTS
SECTION PAGE

1.0 Introduction ................................................................................................................................  1
1.1 Study Area ..........................................................................................................................  3 

2.0 Project Description ....................................................................................................................  4
2.1 Existing Project Site ...........................................................................................................  4 
2.2 Proposed Project Description ............................................................................................  4 
2.3 Project Parking ...................................................................................................................  7 

3.0 Site Access and Circulation ......................................................................................................  8
3.1 Vehicular Site Access ........................................................................................................  8 
3.2 Pedestrian Access ...............................................................................................................  9 

4.0 Existing Street System ...............................................................................................................  10
4.1 Regional Highway System ................................................................................................  10 
4.2 Local Street System ............................................................................................................  10 
4.3 Roadway Classifications ....................................................................................................  10
4.4 Roadway Descriptions .......................................................................................................  13
4.5 Public Transit Services .......................................................................................................  14 

5.0 Traffic Counts ............................................................................................................................  17

6.0 Cumulative Development Projects ..........................................................................................  22
6.1 Related Projects ..................................................................................................................  22 
6.2 Ambient Traffic Growth Factor .........................................................................................  27 

7.0 Traffic Forecasting Methodology ............................................................................................  28
7.1 Project Traffic Generation .................................................................................................  28
7.2 Project Trip Distribution and Assignment ........................................................................  29 

8.0 Traffic Impact Analysis Methodology ....................................................................................  34
8.1 Impact Criteria and Thresholds .........................................................................................  34 

8.1.1 City of Santa Fe Springs Impact Criteria and Thresholds ...................................  34 
8.1.2 City of Norwalk Impact Criteria and Thresholds ................................................  35 

8.2 Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios ....................................................................................  35 
8.2.1 City of Santa Fe Springs Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios ..............................  35 
8.2.2 City of Norwalk Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios ...........................................  36 



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

SECTION PAGE

9.0 City of Santa Fe Springs Traffic Analysis ..............................................................................  37
9.1 Existing Conditions ............................................................................................................  37 
9.2 Existing With Ambient Growth Conditions .....................................................................  37 
9.3 Existing With Ambient Growth Plus Project Conditions .................................................  39 
9.4 Future Cumulative Conditions ...........................................................................................  39 

10.0 City of Norwalk Traffic Analysis .............................................................................................  46
10.1 Existing With Project Conditions ......................................................................................  46 
10.2 Future With Project Conditions .........................................................................................  46 

11.0 Transportation Mitigation Measures ......................................................................................  48 
11.1 Summary of Project Mitigation .........................................................................................  48 
11.2 Summary of Cumulative Mitigation .................................................................................  48 
11.3 Fair Share Analysis ............................................................................................................  50 

12.0 Congestion Management Program Traffic Impact Assessment .........................................  52
12.1 Intersections ........................................................................................................................  52 
12.2 Freeways .............................................................................................................................  52 
12.3 Transit Impact Review .......................................................................................................  53
12.4 CMP TDM Requirement ...................................................................................................  53 

13.0 California Department of Transportation Analysis .............................................................  54

14.0 Conclusions .................................................................................................................................  58



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

iii

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)
SECTION—FIGURE # PAGE

1–1 Vicinity Map .............................................................................................................................  2 

2–1 Existing Project Site .................................................................................................................  5 

2–2 Project Site Plan ........................................................................................................................  6 

4–1 Existing Lane Configurations ..........................................................................................  12

4–2 Existing Public Transit Routes .................................................................................................  16 

5–1 Existing Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour ...........................................................  20 

5–2 Existing Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour ............................................................  21 

6–1 Location of Related Projects ....................................................................................................  24 

6–2 Related Projects Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour ..............................................  25 

6–3 Related Projects Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour ..............................................  26 

7–1 Project Trip Distribution ..........................................................................................................  31 

7–2 Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour .............................................................  32 

7–3 Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour ..............................................................  33 

9–1 Existing With Ambient Growth Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour ....................   40 

9–2 Existing With Ambient Growth Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour .....................  41 

9–3 Existing With Ambient Growth With Project Traffic Volumes–Weekday AM Peak Hr. ...  42 

9–4 Existing With Ambient Growth With Project Traffic Volumes–Weekday PM Peak Hr. ....  43 

9–5 Future Cumulative Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour .........................................  44 

9–6 Future Cumulative Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour ..........................................  45 



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

LIST OF TABLES
SECTION—TABLE # PAGE

4–1 List of Study Intersections ........................................................................................................  11 

4–2 Existing Transit Routes ............................................................................................................  15 

5–1 Existing Traffic Volumes .........................................................................................................  18 

6–1 List of Related Projects and Related Projects Trip Generation ..............................................  23 

7–1 Project Trip Generation ....................................................................................................  30 

8–1 City of Santa Fe Springs Intersection Impact Threshold Criteria ....................................  34 

9–1 City of Santa Fe Springs Intersection Level of Service Summary ..................................  38 

10–1 City of Norwalk Intersection Level of Service Summary ...............................................  47 

11–1 Pro-Rata Percentage of Cumulative Mitigation Costs .....................................................  51 

14–1 Summary of Potential Freeway Off-Ramp Vehicle Queuing ............................................  56 

14–2 Caltrans Intersection Impact Analysis .............................................................................  57 

APPENDICES
APPENDIX

A. Traffic Count Data

B. City of Santa Fe Springs: 

ICU and Levels of Service Explanation 

ICU Data Worksheets – Weekday AM and PM Peak Hours 

C. City of Norwalk: 

ICU and Levels of Service Explanation 

ICU Data Worksheets – Weekday AM and PM Peak Hours 

D. Conceptual Drawings for Los Angeles County Cumulative Mitigation Measures 

E. Caltrans Analysis Worksheets 



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY

INTERHEALTH CORPORATION MOB PROJECT
City of Santa Fe Springs, California 

October 31, 2014
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION
This revised traffic analysis1

The traffic analysis follows City of Santa Fe Springs traffic study guidelines and is consistent with 
traffic impact assessment guidelines set forth in the Los Angeles County Congestion Management 
Program.  While the project site is situated within the jurisdiction of the City of Santa Fe Springs, the 
traffic study also evaluates potential traffic impacts associated with the project at study intersections 
located in the City of Norwalk, as the proposed project is situated immediately opposite this 
jurisdiction.  This traffic analysis evaluates potential project-related impacts at 11 key intersections 
in the vicinity of the project site.  The study intersections were determined in consultation with City 
of Santa Fe Springs and City of Norwalk staff.  The Intersection Capacity Utilization method was 
used to determine Volume-to-Capacity ratios and corresponding Levels of Service at the study 
intersections.  A review also was conducted of Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority freeway and intersection monitoring stations to determine if a Congestion Management 
Program transportation impact assessment analysis is required for the proposed project. 

 has been conducted to identify and evaluate the potential traffic impacts 
of the proposed Interhealth Corporation Medical Office Building (MOB) project.  The proposed 
project is located at 12438 Bloomfield Avenue in the City of Santa Fe Springs, California.  The 
proposed project consists of the development of an outpatient medical office building with a total of 
approximately 35,076 gross square feet of building floor area.  The project site location and general 
vicinity are shown in Figure 1–1. 

This study presents (i) existing traffic volumes, (ii) forecasts future baseline traffic volumes, (iii) 
forecasts future baseline traffic volumes with the proposed project, (iv) forecasts future cumulative 
traffic volumes with the proposed project, and (v) recommends mitigation measures, where 
necessary.  For the City of Norwalk intersections, the study presents  (i) existing traffic volumes, (ii) 
forecasts existing with project traffic volumes, (iii) forecasts future baseline traffic volumes with 
ambient growth and cumulative projects, (iv) forecasts future cumulative traffic volumes with the 
proposed project, and (v) recommends mitigation measures, where necessary. 

                                                 
1 This revised traffic analysis supersedes the previously prepared report, Traffic Impact Study, InterHealth Corporation 
MOB Project, City of Santa Fe Springs, California, dated November 20, 2013 and prepared by LLG Engineers. 

- 1 -



- 2 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

1.1 Study Area
Based upon coordination with City of Santa Fe Springs and City of Norwalk staff, 11 study 
intersections have been identified for evaluation during the weekday morning and afternoon peak 
hours.  The 11 study intersections provide local access to the study area and define the extent of the 
boundaries for this traffic impact analysis.  Further discussion of the existing street system and study 
area is provided in Section 4.0. 

The general location of the project in relation to the study locations and surrounding street system is 
presented in Figure 1–1. The traffic analysis study area is generally comprised of those locations 
which have the greatest potential to experience significant traffic impacts due to the proposed project 
as defined by the Lead Agency.  In the traffic engineering practice, the study area generally includes 
those intersections that are: 

a.   Immediately adjacent or in close proximity to the project site; 
 
b.   In the vicinity of the project site that are documented to have current or projected 

future adverse operational issues; and 
 
c.   In the vicinity of the project site that are forecast to experience a relatively greater 

percentage of project-related vehicular turning movements (e.g., at freeway ramp 
intersections). 

 
The locations selected for analysis were based on the above criteria, proposed Interhealth 
Corporation MOB project peak hour vehicle trip generation, the anticipated distribution of project 
vehicular trips and existing intersection/corridor operations. 

- 3 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

2.1 Existing Project Site
The proposed project is located at 12438 Bloomfield Avenue in the City of Santa Fe Springs, 
California.  The project site is situated along the east side of Bloomfield Avenue, just north of 
Imperial Highway.  As noted previously, while the project site is situated within the jurisdiction of 
the City of Santa Fe Springs, the City of Norwalk is situated immediately opposite the project site 
(i.e., west side of Bloomfield Avenue is within the City of Norwalk).  The project site location and 
general vicinity are shown in Figure 1–1.  The existing project site is currently occupied by a City of 
Norwalk City Yard facility and surface parking spaces, which will be removed to accommodate 
construction of the proposed project.  An aerial photograph of the existing project site and adjacent 
street is presented in Figure 2-1. 

Currently, the subject property contains three driveways off of Bloomfield Avenue. The two 
northernmost driveways provide direct access to the existing City yard on the site. The third 
driveway is on the southernmost portion of the site and extends as a drive aisle (flanked by parking 
spaces) to the back of the subject property, connecting to an existing driveway to the east on the 
neighboring property. The neighboring property to the east is located at 12420 Bloomfield Avenue 
(APN 8026-042-020), and contains a commercial/industrial office complex with multiple tenants and 
surface parking spaces, known as the Imperial Square Office Park. The existing City yard on the 
subject property is presently fenced so that it is not accessible from the southern driveway. The 
commercial development to the south of the subject property does not have access to and cannot 
utilize the southern driveway. 

Although the site will be redeveloped and the existing southern driveway will be repaved and 
restriped to accommodate the project, the driveway will remain in the same location and will not 
impede access to the neighboring property to the east. To assure this, in approving the proposed 
project, the City of Santa Fe Springs has drafted a Condition of Approval that the owner/developer 
of the project shall "enter into a reciprocal easement agreement with the adjacent parcel to the east 
(APN 8026-042-020)." This reciprocal easement agreement would allow continued and future access 
to the driveway on the subject property so that patrons or employees of the Imperial Square Office 
Park will continue to have the ability to access the complex from Bloomfield Avenue. 

2.2 Project Description
InterHealth Corporation, a non-profit holding company, with a focused service area for residents of 
Whittier, Santa Fe Springs, Pico Rivera, Montebello, La Mirada, Hacienda Heights, the City of 
Industry, La Habra and beyond, seeks to obtain entitlements to construct a medical office building 
within the City of Santa Fe Springs.  The proposed project consists of the development of a medical 
office building with a total of approximately 35,076 square feet of floor area.  Construction of the 
proposed project is expected to commence in year 2014 with occupancy in the year 2015.  The site 
plan for the proposed project is illustrated in Figure 2-2. 

- 4 -



- 5 -



- 6 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

Vehicular access to the existing City of Norwalk Yard site and the adjoining property to the east is 
currently provided via a total of three driveways along the east side of Bloomfield Avenue.  A total 
of two driveways are planned to accommodate access to and from the project site.  Further 
discussion of the project’s site access and circulation scheme is provided in Subsection 2.1, above 
and Section 3.0 herein. 

2.3 Project Parking  
The number of parking spaces required to support the Interhealth Corporation MOB project was 
calculated using the parking Code requirements as contained in Chapter 155 Zoning of the City of 
Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code and compared with the proposed project parking supply.  
Specifically, requirements identified in Section 155.475 (Parking Facilities Required for New Uses) 
apply to the proposed land use associated with the medical office building project.  The City’s Code 
parking requirements for the proposed land use are as follows: 

(8)     Medical and dental clinics and offices.  Five parking spaces for each doctor or dentist 
plus one for each employee on the largest shift, or one for each 200 square feet of floor area, 
whichever is greater. 

The City Code parking requirements for the proposed Interhealth Corporation MOB project is 
calculated as follows: 

35,076 GSF ÷ 200 SF = 175.4 Spaces 

Direct application of the City Code parking requirements to the proposed project results in a Code 
requirement of 175 parking spaces.  As part of the parking supply, the project also must provide a 
minimum of six (6) handicap accessible spaces.  This complies with the American With Disabilities 
Act (ADA) requirement of a minimum of six handicap spaces for parking facilities with 151 to 200 
spaces, with one in every six handicap spaces being van accessible. 

A total of 179 parking spaces is planned to be provided as part of the proposed project, including 12 
ADA accessible spaces.  Thus, the planned project parking supply satisfies both the City Code and 
ADA parking requirements. 

 

 

- 7 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

3.0 SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION

3.1 Vehicular Site Access
The proposed site access scheme for the Interhealth Corporation MOB project is displayed in Figure 
2-2. Access to the proposed project site will be provided via a total of two driveways.  Descriptions 
of the planned project site access points are provided in the following paragraphs. 

Northerly Project Driveway 

This project driveway will be located along the east side of Bloomfield Avenue along the 
westerly property frontage, near the northwest corner of the project site.  The northerly 
project site driveway has been aligned with the driveway located along the west side of 
Bloomfield Avenue immediately opposite the project site in order to minimize potential 
turning movement conflicts.  This driveway will accommodate full access (i.e., left-turn and 
right-turn ingress and egress turning movements), with the southbound left-turn ingress 
movement made via the two-way left-turn lane provided along Bloomfield Avenue.  The 
northerly project site driveway will be constructed to City of Santa Fe Springs design 
standards. 

Southerly Project Driveway 

This project driveway will be located along the east side of Bloomfield Avenue along the 
westerly property frontage, near the southwest corner of the project site.  The southerly 
project site driveway will be located in close proximity to the southern-most existing site 
driveway (i.e., the southern-most existing site driveway providing access to the adjacent 
property and Southern California Edison electrical building).  This driveway will 
accommodate full access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements), 
with the southbound left-turn ingress movement made via the two-way left-turn lane 
provided along Bloomfield Avenue.  The southerly project site driveway will be constructed 
to City of Santa Fe Springs design standards. 

Although the site will be redeveloped and the existing southern driveway will be repaved and 
restriped to accommodate the project, the driveway will remain in the same location and will not 
impede access to the neighboring property to the east. To assure this, in approving the proposed 
project, the City of Santa Fe Springs has drafted a Condition of Approval that the owner/developer 
of the project shall "enter into a reciprocal easement agreement with the adjacent parcel to the east 
(APN 8026-042-020)." This reciprocal easement agreement would allow continued and future access 
to the driveway on the subject property so that patrons or employees of the Imperial Square Office 
Park will continue to have the ability to access the complex from Bloomfield Avenue.  It is noted 
that the project site will include an internal driveway at the southeast corner of the project site that 
will accommodate access to the adjoining property to the east. 

- 8 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

3.2 Pedestrian Access
The proposed project should be designed to encourage pedestrian activity and walking as a 
transportation mode2

Connectivity: People can walk from one place to another without encountering major obstacles, 
obstructions, or loss of connectivity. 

.  As indicated in Figure 2–2, walkways are planned within the proposed 
project which will connect to adjacent sidewalks in a manner that promotes walkability.  Walkability 
is a term for the extent to which walking is readily available as a safe, connected, accessible and 
pleasant mode of transport.  There are several criteria that are widely accepted as key aspects of the 
walkability of urban areas that should be satisfied.  The underlying principle is that pedestrians 
should not be delayed, diverted, or placed in danger.  The widely accepted characteristics of 
walkability are as follows: 

Convivial: Pedestrian routes are friendly and attractive, and are perceived as such by pedestrians. 

Conspicuous: Suitable levels of lighting, visibility and surveillance over its entire length, with 
high quality delineation and signage. 

Comfortable: High quality and well-maintained footpaths of suitable widths, attractive 
landscaping and architecture, shelter and rest spaces, and a suitable allocation of roadspace to 
pedestrians. 

Convenient: Walking is a realistic travel choice, partly because of the impact of the other criteria 
set forth above, but also because walking routes are of a suitable length as a result of land use 
planning with minimal delays. 

The proposed Interhealth Corporation MOB project site is situated along the Bloomfield Avenue and 
Imperial Highway corridors where office, retail, restaurant, and other commercial businesses are 
located. Further, regional and local public bus transit stops are provided near the project site along 
these key corridors.  In addition, the proposed project site is situated in close proximity to the 
Metrolink Santa Fe Springs/Norwalk station which is located approximately one-quarter mile away.  
The proposed Interhealth Corporation MOB project site pedestrian walkways should be 
appropriately landscaped and adorned to provide a friendly and safe walking environment. 

                                                 
2 For example, refer to http://www.walkscore.com/, which generates a walkability score of approximately 54 (Somewhat 
Walkable) out of 100 for the project site.  Walk Score calculates the walkability of an address by locating nearby stores, 
restaurants, schools, parks, etc. Walk Score measures how easy it is to live a car-lite lifestyle—not how pretty the area is 
for walking. 

- 9 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

4.0 EXISTING STREET SYSTEM

4.1 Regional Highway System
I-5 (Golden State) Freeway is a major north-south oriented freeway connecting Southern California 
with Central and Northern California.  I-5 Freeway contains three mainline freeway lanes in each 
direction in the project vicinity.  On/off-ramps to/from I-5 Freeway in the project vicinity are 
provided at Imperial Highway and Norwalk Boulevard. 

4.2 Local Street System
The list of 11 study intersections selected in consultation with City of Santa Fe Springs and City of 
Norwalk staff for analysis of potential impacts related to the proposed project is presented in Table 
4-1.  The study locations selected for analysis in the traffic study also are noted in Figure 1-1.   All 
11 study intersections are presently controlled by traffic signals.  The existing roadway 
configurations and intersection controls at the study intersections are displayed in Figure 4-1. 

4.3 Roadway Classifications
The City of Santa Fe Springs utilizes the roadway categories recognized by regional, state and 
federal transportation agencies. There are four categories in the roadway hierarchy, ranging from 
freeways with the highest capacity to two-lane undivided roadways with the lowest capacity. The 
roadway categories are summarized as follows: 

Freeways are limited-access and high speed travel ways included in the state and federal 
highway systems. Their purpose is to carry regional through-traffic. Access is provided by 
interchanges with typical spacing of one mile or greater. No local access is provided to adjacent 
land uses. 

Arterial roadways are major streets that primarily serve through-traffic and provide access to 
abutting properties as a secondary function. Arterials are generally designed with two to six 
travel lanes and their major intersections are signalized. This roadway type is divided into two 
categories: principal and minor arterials. Principal arterials are typically four-or-more lane 
roadways and serve both local and regional through-traffic. Minor arterials are typically two-to-
four lane streets that service local and commute traffic. 

Collector roadways are streets that provide access and traffic circulation within residential and 
non-residential (e.g., commercial and industrial) areas. Collector roadways connect local streets 
to arterials and are typically designed with two through travel lanes (i.e., one through travel lane 
in each direction) that may accommodate on-street parking. They may also provide access to 
abutting properties. 

 

- 10 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

Table 4-1
LIST OF STUDY INTERSECTIONS

TRAFFIC

NO. INTERSECTION CONTROL JURISDICTION(S)

1 I-5 Freeway Northbound (NB) Off-Ramp/Imperial Highway [1] City of Norwalk/Caltrans

2 Norwalk Boulevard/Imperial Highway Signalized City of Norwalk

3 Norwalk Boulevard/Adoree Street-I-5 Frewway NB On-Off Ramps Signalized City of Norwalk/Caltrans

4 San Antonio Drive-Union Street/I-5 Freeway Southbound (SB) On-Ramp Signalized City of Norwalk/Caltrans

5 Bloomfield Avenue/Florence Avenue Signalized City of Santa Fe Springs

6 Bloomfield Avenue/Imperial Highway Signalized City of Santa Fe Springs/City of Norwalk

7 Bloomfield Avenue/Civic Center Drive Signalized City of Norwalk

8 Bloomfield Avenue/I-5 Freeway NB On-Ramp Signalized City of Norwalk/Caltrans

9 Shoemaker Avenue/Florence Avenue Signalized City of Santa Fe Springs

10 Shoemaker Avenue/Imperial Highway Signalized City of Santa Fe Springs/County of LA

11 Carmenita Road/Imperial Highway Signalized City of Santa Fe Springs/County of LA

[1] The I-5 Freeway NB off-ramp at Imperial Highway was closed permanently by Caltrans in September 2013.

- 11 -



- 12 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

Local roadways distribute traffic within a neighborhood, or similar adjacent neighborhoods, and 
are not intended for use as a through-street or a link between higher capacity facilities such as 
collector or arterial roadways. Local streets are fronted by residential uses and do not typically 
serve commercial uses. 

4.4 Roadway Descriptions
A brief description of the important roadways in the project site vicinity is provided in the following 
paragraphs. 

Norwalk Boulevard is a north-south oriented roadway that is located west of the project site.  
Norwalk Boulevard is classified as a Major Highway in the City of Santa Fe Springs’ General Plan 
Circulation Element.  Two to three through travel lanes and intermittent raised median islands are 
provided on the roadway in the project study area.  Exclusive left-turn lanes are provided in both 
directions on Norwalk Boulevard at major intersections within the study area.  Norwalk Boulevard is 
posted for a speed limit of 35 miles per hour in the project vicinity. 

Bloomfield Avenue is a north-south oriented roadway that borders the project site to the west.  
Bloomfield Avenue is classified as a Major Highway in the City of Santa Fe Springs’ General Plan 
Circulation Element.  Two through travel lanes and a two-way left-turn lane are provided in each 
direction on the roadway in the project study area.  Exclusive left-turn lanes are provided in both 
directions on Bloomfield Avenue at major intersections within the study area.  Bloomfield Avenue is 
posted for a speed limit of 45 miles per hour north of Imperial Highway and a speed limit of 40 
miles per hour south of Imperial Highway. 

Shoemaker Avenue is a north-south oriented roadway that is located east of the project site.  
Shoemaker Avenue is classified as a Secondary Highway in the City of Santa Fe Springs’ General 
Plan Circulation Element.  Two through travel lanes are provided in each direction on the roadway 
north of Imperial Highway.  South of Imperial Highway, one through travel lane is provided in each 
direction on the roadway.  Exclusive left-turn lanes are provided in both directions on Shoemaker 
Avenue at major intersections within the study area.  Shoemaker Avenue is posted for a speed limit 
of 40 miles per hour north of Imperial Highway and a speed limit of 30 miles per hour south of 
Imperial Highway. 

Carmenita Road is a north-south oriented roadway that is located east of the project site.  Carmenita 
Road is classified as a Major Highway in the City of Santa Fe Springs’ General Plan Circulation 
Element.  Two through travel lanes in each direction and a raised median island are provided on the 
roadway in the project study area.  Exclusive left-turn lanes are provided in both directions on 
Carmenita Road at major intersections within the study area.  Carmenita Road is posted for a speed 
limit of 35 miles per hour in the project vicinity. 

- 13 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

Imperial Highway is an east-west oriented roadway that is located just south of the project site.  
Imperial Highway is classified as a Major Highway in the City of Santa Fe Springs’ General Plan 
Circulation Element.  Three through travel lanes are provided in each direction on the roadway in the 
project study area.  Exclusive left-turn lanes are provided in both directions on Imperial Highway at 
major intersections within the study area.  Intermittent raised median islands also are provided along 
Imperial Highway in the project vicinity.  Imperial Highway is posted for a speed limit of 45 miles 
per hour in the project vicinity. 

4.5 Public Transit Services
Public bus transit service within the project study area is currently provided by the Los Angeles 
County Metropolitan Transit Authority (Metro) and Norwalk Transit.  Rail transit service within the 
project study area is currently provided by Metrolink with the Norwalk/Santa Fe Springs station 
located approximately one-quarter mile away from the project site.  A summary of the existing 
transit service, including the transit route, destinations and peak hour headways is presented in Table 
4–2.  The existing public transit routes in the proposed project site vicinity are illustrated in Figure 
4–2.  In addition, should any future construction activities potentially impact any Metro bus lines, 
the project applicant will be required to contact the Metro Bus Operations Control Special Events 
Coordinator.  For any closures that last more than six months, Metro’s Stops and Zones Department 
also shall be notified.  Other municipal bus operators also will be included in outreach activities 
associated with construction activities, as necessary. 

 

- 14 -



LIN
SC

OT
T,

 LA
W

 &
 G

RE
EN

SP
AN

, e
ng

ine
er

s
LL

G
 R

ef
. 1

-1
3-

40
10

-1
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
(S

)

R
O

U
T

E
D

E
S

T
IN

A
T

IO
N

S
N

E
A

R
 S

IT
E

D
IR

A
M

P
M

M
et

ro
 6

2
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 to

 H
aw

ai
ia

n 
G

ar
de

ns
 v

ia
 B

oy
le

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

, I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

, 
EB

4
3

H
ei

gh
ts

, C
om

m
er

ce
, D

ow
ne

y,
 S

an
ta

 F
e 

Sp
rin

gs
, N

or
w

al
k,

 C
er

rit
os

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e,
 C

iv
ic

 C
en

te
r D

riv
e

W
B

4
3

M
et

ro
 2

70
N

or
w

al
k 

to
 M

on
ro

vi
a 

vi
a 

Sa
nt

a 
Fe

 S
pr

in
gs

, W
hi

tti
er

, R
io

 H
on

do
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e,

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
nu

e,
N

B
2

1
C

ol
le

ge
, E

l M
on

te
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

, C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r D
riv

e
SB

2
1

N
or

w
al

k 
R

ou
te

 1
R

io
 H

on
do

 C
ol

le
ge

 to
 B

el
lfl

ow
er

 v
ia

 S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

, N
or

w
al

k
Fl

or
en

ce
 A

ve
nu

e,
 N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
, I

m
pe

ria
l

N
B

2
2

H
ig

hw
ay

, C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r D
riv

e
SB

2
2

N
or

w
al

k 
R

ou
te

 2
N

SQ
/G

re
en

 L
in

e/
C

er
rit

os
 C

ol
le

ge
/C

er
rit

os
 M

al
l

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
, N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
, S

an
N

B
2

2
A

nt
on

io
 D

riv
e

SB
2

2

N
or

w
al

k 
R

ou
te

 3
W

hi
tti

er
 D

ep
ot

/N
or

w
al

k 
an

d 
A

lo
nd

ra
 v

ia
 S

an
ta

 F
e 

Sp
rin

gs
,

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

, I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

, C
iv

ic
N

B
1

1
N

or
w

al
k,

 C
er

rit
os

C
en

te
r D

riv
e

SB
1

1

N
or

w
al

k 
R

ou
te

 4
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

/M
et

ro
lin

k 
St

at
io

n
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

, N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

, B
lo

om
fie

ld
EB

4
3

A
ve

nu
e,

 C
ar

m
en

ita
 R

oa
d

W
B

4
3

M
et

ro
lin

k 
Li

ne
 9

1
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

R
iv

er
si

de
 to

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 U
ni

on
 S

ta
tio

n 
vi

a 
C

or
on

a,
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

, N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

EB
0

1
Fu

lle
rto

n,
 B

ue
na

 P
ar

k,
 N

or
w

al
k/

Sa
nt

a 
Fe

 S
pr

in
gs

W
B

1
0

M
et

ro
lin

k 
O

ra
ng

e 
C

ou
nt

y
O

ce
an

si
de

 to
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 U

ni
on

 S
ta

tio
n 

vi
a 

Sa
n 

C
le

m
en

te
, S

an
 Ju

an
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

, N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

EB
1

2
Li

ne
C

ap
is

tra
no

, L
ag

un
a 

N
ig

ue
l, 

Irv
in

e,
 T

us
tin

, S
an

ta
 A

na
, O

ra
ng

e,
 A

na
he

im
,

W
B

2
2

Fu
lle

rto
n,

 B
ue

na
 P

ar
k,

 N
or

w
al

k/
Sa

nt
a 

Fe
 S

pr
in

gs
, C

om
m

er
ce

To
ta

l
34

29

[1
] S

ou
rc

es
:  

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
(M

et
ro

), 
N

or
w

al
k 

Tr
an

si
t, 

an
d 

M
et

ro
lin

k 
w

eb
si

te
s, 

20
13

.

Ta
bl

e 4
-2

EX
IS

TI
NG

 T
RA

NS
IT

 R
OU

TE
S 

[1
]

N
O

. O
F

 B
U

S
E

S
/T

R
A

IN
S

D
U

R
IN

G
 P

E
A

K
 H

O
U

R

- 15 -



- 16 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

5.0 TRAFFIC COUNTS
New manual counts of vehicular turning movements were conducted at nine of the 11 study 
intersections during the weekday morning (AM) and afternoon (PM) commute periods to determine 
the peak hour traffic volumes.  The manual counts were conducted by a traffic count subconsultant, 
City Traffic Counters, at the study intersections from 7:00 to 9:00 AM to determine the AM peak 
commute hour, and from 4:00 to 6:00 PM to determine the PM peak commute hour. In conjunction 
with the manual turning movement vehicle counts, a count of bicycle and pedestrian volumes were 
collected during the peak periods.  The traffic counts were conducted when local schools were in 
session.  Traffic volumes at the study intersections show the morning and afternoon peak periods 
typically associated with commute peak hours in the metropolitan area. 

It is noted that new peak period traffic counts could not be conducted at the remaining two study 
intersections (No. 3, Norwalk Boulevard/Adoree Street-I-5 Freeway NB Ramps, and No. 4, San 
Antonio Drive/Union Street-I-5 Freeway SB On-Ramp) due to construction activities associated 
with the ongoing Caltrans Interstate 5 Corridor Improvement Project.  In addition, since the conduct 
of the existing traffic counts additional freeway ramp configurations are being modified and are also 
under construction.  Some of the freeway ramps will be permanently closed and replaced by new 
ramp reconfigurations.  Construction is expected to be completed after the proposed project.  .  As 
such, the peak hour traffic count data for Intersection Nos. 3 and 4 were researched from previously 
prepared traffic studies.3

The existing weekday AM and PM peak commuter period manual counts of turning vehicles at the 
study intersections are summarized in Table 5-1.  The existing traffic volumes at the study 
intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak commute hours are shown in Figures 5-1 and 5-
2, respectively.  Summary data worksheets of the manual traffic counts of the study intersections are 
contained in Appendix A. 

  These traffic count data were adjusted by one percent (1.0%) per year 
reflect year 2013 conditions.  Further, it is also noted that the traffic volume data at these two study 
intersections are not consistent from a corridor level traffic flow perspective with the recently 
conducted intersection traffic count at adjacent study intersections.  However, as new traffic counts 
could not be conducted at these two locations, the older pre-recession traffic counts were employed 
in the analysis and can be considered very conservative for impact determination purposes.  As the 
completion date of the Interstate 5 Corridor Improvement Project is beyond the timeframe of the 
proposed project and since travel patterns after the completion of the Interstate 5 Corridor 
Improvement Project will be completely altered, traffic impacts due to the proposed project have 
been analyzed based on current ramp configurations.  

 

 

                                                 
3 Source: The Villages at Heritage Springs Residential Development in the City of Santa Fe Springs, April 2005, 
prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

- 17 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

Table 5-1
EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR
NO. INTERSECTION DATE  DIR BEGAN VOLUME BEGAN VOLUME

1 I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:15 161 4:30 187
Imperial Highway SB 0 0

[1] EB 1,649 1,490
WB 1,670 1,829

2 Norwalk Boulevard/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:30 864 4:45 807
Imperial Highway SB 941 1,238

[1] EB 1,495 1,406
WB 1,525 1,627

3 Norwalk Boulevard/ 01/19/2005 NB 7:30 2,511 4:30 2,797
Adoree Street-I-5 Fwy NB Ramps SB 2,242 3,683

[2] EB 269 222
WB 486 407

4 San Antonio Drive/ 01/18/2005 NB 7:30 2,114 4:30 2,389
Union Street-I-5 Fwy SB On-Ramp SB 2,294 3,497

[2] EB 718 684
WB 0 0

5 Bloomfield Avenue/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:00 607 4:30 804
Florence Avenue SB 532 872

[1] EB 703 1,141
WB 1,271 996

6 Bloomfield Avenue/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:15 1,159 4:30 796
Imperial Highway SB 758 953

[1] EB 1,316 1,368
WB 1,867 1,387

7 Bloomfield Avenue/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:30 904 4:30 508
Civic Center Drive SB 666 898

[1] EB 420 570
WB 104 28

8 Bloomfield Avenue/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:30 317 4:30 429
I-5 Fwy NB On-Ramp SB 433 497

[1] EB 0 0
WB 0 0

9 Shoemaker Avenue/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:00 562 4:30 624
Florence Avenue SB 387 589

[1] EB 704 1,330
WB 1,222 812

10 Shoemaker Avenue/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:15 157 5:00 283
Imperial Highway SB 455 501

[1] EB 1,336 1,787
WB 1,835 1,184

[1] Counts conducted by City Traffic Counters
[2] Counts conducted by Southland Car Counters; Source: "The Villages at Heritage Springs Residential Development in

the City of Santa Fe Springs", April 2005, prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

- 18 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

Table 5-1 (Continued)
EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR
NO. INTERSECTION DATE  DIR BEGAN VOLUME BEGAN VOLUME

11 Carmenita Road/ 06/06/2013 NB 7:15 823 4:45 1,319
Imperial Highway SB 828 830

[1] EB 1,026 1,707
WB 1,365 1,141

[1] Counts conducted by City Traffic Counters
[2] Counts conducted by Southland Car Counters; Source: "The Villages at Heritage Springs Residential Development in

the City of Santa Fe Springs", April 2005, prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

- 19 -



- 20 -



- 21 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

6.0 CUMULATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
The forecast of future pre-project conditions was prepared in accordance to procedures outlined in 
Section 15130 of the CEQA Guidelines.  Specifically, the CEQA Guidelines provides two options 
for developing the future traffic volume forecast: 

“(A) A list of past, present, and probable future projects producing related or 
cumulative impacts, including, if necessary, those projects outside the control of the 
[lead] agency, or 

(B) A summary of projections contained in an adopted local, regional or statewide 
plan, or related planning document, that describes or evaluates conditions 
contributing to the cumulative effect.  Such plans may include: a general plan, 
regional transportation plan, or plans for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.  
A summary of projections may also be contained in an adopted or certified prior 
environmental document for such a plan.  Such projections may be supplemented 
with additional information such as a regional modeling program.  Any such 
document shall be referenced and made available to the public at a location specified 
by the lead agency.” 

Accordingly, the traffic analysis provides a highly conservative estimate of future pre-project traffic 
volumes as it incorporates both the “A” and “B” options outlined in CEQA Guidelines for purposes 
of developing the forecast. 

6.1 Related Projects
A forecast of on-street traffic conditions prior to occupancy of the proposed project was prepared by 
incorporating the potential trips associated with other known development projects (related projects) 
in the area. With this information, the potential impact of the proposed project can be evaluated 
within the context of the cumulative impact of all ongoing development. The list of related projects 
was based on information on file at the City of Santa Fe Springs Planning Department, County of 
Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning and City of Norwalk Planning Department, as well as 
recently accepted traffic impact analysis reports prepared for projects in the vicinity of the proposed 
Interhealth Corporation MOB project site. The list of related projects in the project site area is 
presented in Table 6-1. The location of the related projects is shown in Figure 6-1.  

Traffic volumes expected to be generated by the related projects were calculated using rates 
provided in the Institute of Transportation Engineers’ (ITE) Trip Generation Manual4

                                                 
4 Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition, 2012, Washington, D.C. 

.  The related 
projects respective traffic generation for the weekday AM and PM peak hours, as well as on a daily 
basis for a typical weekday, is summarized in Table 6-1. The anticipated distribution of the related 
projects traffic volumes to the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours is 
displayed in Figures 6-2 and 6-3, respectively. 

- 22 -



LIN
SC

OT
T,

 LA
W

 &
 G

RE
EN

SP
AN

, e
ng

ine
er

s
LL

G
 R

ef
. 1

-1
3-

40
10

-1
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct

Ta
bl

e 6
-1

RE
LA

TE
D 

PR
OJ

EC
TS

 L
IS

T 
AN

D 
TR

IP
 G

EN
ER

AT
IO

N 
[1

]

P
R

O
JE

C
T

D
A

IL
Y

A
M

 P
E

A
K

 H
O

U
R

P
M

 P
E

A
K

 H
O

U
R

M
A

P
P

R
O

JE
C

T
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
/N

U
M

B
E

R
L

A
N

D
 U

S
E

 D
A

T
A

D
A

T
A

T
R

IP
 E

N
D

S 
[2

]
V

O
L

U
M

E
S

 [
2]

V
O

L
U

M
E

S 
[2

]
N

O
.

ST
A

T
U

S
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

/L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
L

A
N

D
-U

S
E

SI
Z

E
SO

U
R

C
E

V
O

L
U

M
E

S
IN

O
U

T
T

O
T

A
L

IN
O

U
T

T
O

T
A

L
C

it
y 

of
 S

an
ta

 F
e 

S
p

ri
n

gs

S1
Pr

op
os

ed
V

ill
ag

e 
at

 H
er

ita
ge

 S
pr

in
gs

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 D
et

ac
he

d
20

0
D

U
[3

]
1,

91
4

38
11

3
15

1
12

7
75

20
2

B
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

Te
le

gr
ap

h 
R

oa
d 

to
 th

e 
no

rth
,

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 A
tta

ch
ed

45
0

D
U

[3
]

2,
63

7
34

16
4

19
8

15
7

77
23

4
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
 to

 th
e 

w
es

t, 
B

lo
om

fie
ld

A
ve

nu
e 

to
 th

e 
ea

st
, C

la
rk

 S
tre

et
 to

 so
ut

h

S2
A

pp
ro

ve
d

11
52

5 
Sh

oe
m

ak
er

 A
ve

nu
e

In
du

st
ria

l/W
ar

eh
ou

se
32

9,
00

0
G

SF
[4

]
1,

17
1

78
21

99
26

79
10

5

S3
Pr

op
os

ed
Fr

ee
w

ay
 S

pr
in

gs
In

du
st

ria
l/W

ar
eh

ou
se

44
8,

00
0

G
SF

[4
]

1,
59

5
10

6
28

13
4

36
10

7
14

3
13

83
3 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 D
riv

e

S4
Pr

op
os

ed
K

ea
na

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

pa
rtm

en
t

50
D

U
[5

]
33

3
5

21
26

20
11

31

S5
Pr

op
os

ed
D

ur
ab

le
 P

ro
pe

rti
es

Li
gh

t I
nd

us
tri

al
38

,0
00

G
SF

[6
]

26
4

31
4

35
4

33
37

99
51

 G
re

en
le

af
 A

ve
nu

e

S6
Pr

op
os

ed
Sm

ith
/N

or
w

al
k 

Pr
oj

ec
t

Li
gh

t I
nd

us
tri

al
93

,8
20

G
SF

[6
]

65
4

76
10

86
11

80
91

12
03

9 
&

 1
20

11
 S

m
ith

 A
ve

nu
e

S7
Pr

op
os

ed
R

yd
er

 T
ru

ck
s

Li
gh

t I
nd

us
tri

al
19

,0
00

G
SF

[6
]

13
2

15
2

17
2

16
18

13
63

0 
Fi

re
st

on
e 

B
ou

le
va

rd

S8
Pr

op
os

ed
D

ur
ab

le
 U

SA
Li

gh
t I

nd
us

tri
al

54
,6

13
G

SF
[6

]
38

0
44

6
50

6
47

53
12

92
6 

C
ar

m
en

ita
 R

oa
d

C
ou

n
ty

 o
f 

L
os

 A
n

ge
le

s

LC
1

Pr
op

os
ed

14
00

 G
le

ng
yl

e 
St

re
et

A
ss

ist
ed

 L
iv

in
g

18
O

cc
. B

ed
s

[7
]

49
2

1
3

3
2

5

C
it

y 
of

 N
or

w
al

k

N
1

Pr
op

os
ed

13
92

2 
G

ra
ce

be
e 

A
ve

nu
e

W
ar

eh
ou

se
13

,5
29

G
SF

[4
]

48
3

1
4

1
3

4

N
2

Pr
op

os
ed

14
35

5 
Pi

on
ee

r B
ou

le
va

rd
M

ed
ic

al
 O

ffi
ce

4,
37

6
G

SF
[8

]
15

8
8

2
10

4
12

16
R

et
ai

l
89

1
G

LS
F

[9
]

38
1

0
1

1
2

3

N
3

Pr
op

os
ed

11
91

3 
Fi

re
st

on
e 

B
ou

le
va

rd
M

ed
ic

al
 O

ffi
ce

8,
03

2
G

SF
[8

]
29

0
15

4
19

8
21

29

N
4

Pr
op

os
ed

11
93

6 
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

M
ed

ic
al

 O
ffi

ce
7,

08
2

G
SF

[8
]

25
6

13
4

17
7

18
25

N
5

Pr
op

os
ed

11
40

4 
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
ew

 C
ar

 S
al

es
3,

24
8

G
SF

[1
0]

10
5

5
1

6
4

5
9

N
6

Pr
op

os
ed

11
33

5 
Fi

re
st

on
e 

B
ou

le
va

rd
C

ar
 W

as
h

3,
84

4
G

SF
[1

1]
N

on
e

N
on

e
N

on
e

0
27

27
54

N
7

Pr
op

os
ed

12
02

3 
O

ra
ng

e 
St

re
et

C
on

do
m

in
iu

m
5

D
U

[1
2]

29
0

2
2

2
1

3

N
8

Pr
op

os
ed

11
00

9 
Pi

on
ee

r B
ou

le
va

rd
C

hi
ld

 C
ar

e
1,

58
2

G
SF

[1
3]

11
7

10
9

19
9

11
20

T
O

T
A

L
10

,1
70

48
4

39
3

87
7

45
5

62
7

1,
08

2

[1
]

So
ur

ce
: C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

, L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f R
eg

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g.
  T

rip
 g

en
er

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 re
la

te
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
 IT

E 
"T

rip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
M

an
ua

l"
, 9

th
 E

di
tio

n,
 2

01
2 

(a
s r

ef
er

en
ce

d 
in

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

at
a 

So
ur

ce
 c

ol
um

n)
.

[2
]

Tr
ip

s a
re

 o
ne

-w
ay

 tr
af

fic
 m

ov
em

en
ts

, e
nt

er
in

g 
or

 le
av

in
g.

[3
]

So
ur

ce
: "

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

 a
t H

er
ita

ge
 S

pr
in

gs
 R

es
id

en
tia

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
Tr

af
fic

 Im
pa

ct
 S

tu
dy

", 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s, 

In
c.

, A
pr

il 
20

05
.

[4
]

IT
E 

La
nd

 U
se

 C
od

e 
15

0 
(W

ar
eh

ou
se

) t
rip

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

av
er

ag
e 

ra
te

s.
[5

]
IT

E 
La

nd
 U

se
 C

od
e 

22
0 

(A
pa

rtm
en

t) 
tri

p 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

av
er

ag
e 

ra
te

s.
[6

]
IT

E 
La

nd
 U

se
 C

od
e 

11
0 

(L
ig

ht
-In

du
st

ria
l) 

tri
p 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
av

er
ag

e 
ra

te
s.

[7
]

IT
E 

La
nd

 U
se

 C
od

e 
25

4 
(A

ss
is

te
d 

Li
vi

ng
) t

rip
 g

en
er

at
io

n 
av

er
ag

e 
ra

te
s.

- 23 -



- 24 -



- 25 -



- 26 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

6.2 Ambient Traffic Growth Factor
In order to account for area-wide regional growth not included in this analysis, the existing traffic 
volumes were increased at an annual rate of one percent (1.0%) to the year 2015 (i.e., the anticipated 
year of project build-out).  The ambient growth factor was based on general traffic growth factors 
provided in the 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County (the “CMP 
manual”) and determined in consultation with City staff.  It is noted that based on review of the 
general traffic growth factors provided in the CMP manual for the project study area (i.e., RSA 22 
Southeast/Downey), it is anticipated that the existing traffic volumes are expected to increase at an 
annual rate of less than 1.0% per year between the years 2010 and 2015.  Thus, application of this 
annual growth factor allows for a conservative, worst case forecast of future traffic volumes in the 
area.  Further, it is noted that the traffic growth rate contained in the CMP manual is intended to 
anticipate future traffic generated by development projects in the project vicinity.  Thus, the 
inclusion in this traffic analysis of both a forecast of traffic generated by known related projects plus 
the use of an ambient growth traffic factor based on CMP traffic model data results in a conservative 
estimate of future traffic volumes at the study intersections. 

- 27 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

7.0 TRAFFIC FORECASTING METHODOLOGY
In order to estimate the traffic impact characteristics of the Interhealth Corporation MOB project, a 
multi-step process has been utilized.  The first step is trip generation, which estimates the total 
arriving and departing traffic volumes on a peak hour and daily basis. The traffic generation 
potential is forecast by applying the appropriate vehicle trip generation equations or rates to the 
project development tabulation. 

The second step of the forecasting process is trip distribution, which identifies the origins and 
destinations of inbound and outbound project traffic volumes.  These origins and destinations are 
typically based on demographics and existing/anticipated travel patterns in the study area. 

The third step is traffic assignment, which involves the allocation of project traffic to study area 
streets and intersections.  Traffic assignment is typically based on minimization of travel time, which 
may or may not involve the shortest route, depending on prevailing operating conditions and travel 
speeds.  Traffic distribution patterns are indicated by general percentage orientation, while traffic 
assignment allocates specific volume forecasts to individual roadway links and intersection turning 
movements throughout the study area. 

With the forecasting process complete and project traffic assignments developed, the impact of the 
proposed project is isolated by comparing operational (i.e., Levels of Service) conditions at the 
selected key intersections using existing and expected future traffic volumes with and without 
forecast project traffic.  The need for site-specific and/or cumulative local area traffic improvements 
can then be evaluated and the significance of the project’s impacts identified. 

7.1 Project Traffic Generation
Traffic volumes expected to be generated by the proposed project during the weekday AM and PM 
peak hours, as well as on a daily basis, were estimated using rates published in the ITE Trip 
Generation manual, 9th Edition publication.  Traffic volumes expected to be generated by the 
proposed project were based upon rates per 1,000 gross square feet.  ITE Land Use Code 720 
(Medical-Dental Office) trip generation average rates were used to forecast the traffic volumes 
expected to be generated by the proposed Interhealth Corporation MOB project. 

Traffic volumes to be generated by the existing project site use were forecast based on actual site 
driveway counts conducted during the weekday AM and PM peak hours.  The existing site manual 
driveway counts were conducted by a traffic count subconsultant, City Traffic Counters, from 7:00 
to 9:00 AM and from 4:00 to 6:00 PM to determine the existing site weekday AM and PM peak hour 
traffic generation.  Summary data worksheets of the existing site manual driveway traffic counts are 
contained in Appendix A. 

 

 

- 28 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

The trip generation forecast for the proposed project is summarized in Table 7-1.  As presented in 
Table 7-1, the proposed project is expected to generate a net increase of 80 vehicle trips (66 inbound 
trips and 14 outbound trips) during the weekday AM peak hour.  During the weekday PM peak hour, 
the proposed project is expected to generate a net increase of 125 vehicle trips (35 inbound trips and 
90 outbound trips).  Over a 24-hour period, the proposed project is forecast to generate a net increase 
of 1,227 daily trip ends during a typical weekday (approximately 614 inbound trips and 614 
outbound trips). 

7.2 Project Trip Distribution and Assignment
Project traffic volumes both entering and exiting the site have been distributed and assigned to the 
adjacent street system based on the following considerations: 

The site's proximity to major traffic corridors (i.e., Bloomfield Avenue, Imperial Highway, 
etc.); 

Expected localized traffic flow patterns based on adjacent roadway channelization and 
presence of traffic signals; 

Existing intersection traffic volumes; 

Existing site parcel access ingress/egress schemes; 

Ingress/egress scheme planned for the proposed project; 

Nearby population and employment centers; and 

The InterHealth Corporation health care service areas. 

The project traffic volume distribution percentages during weekday AM and PM peak hours at the 
study intersections are illustrated in Figure 7-1.  The forecast project traffic volumes at the study 
intersections for the weekday AM and PM peak hours are displayed in Figures 7-2 and 7-3, 
respectively.  The traffic volume assignments presented in Figures 7-2 and 7-3 reflect the traffic 
distribution characteristics shown in Figure 7-1 and the project traffic generation forecast presented 
in Table 7-1. 

 

 

- 29 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

Table 7-1
PROJECT TRIP GENERATION [1]

DAILY AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

TRIP ENDS [2] VOLUMES [2] VOLUMES [2]

LAND USE SIZE VOLUMES IN OUT TOTAL IN OUT TOTAL

Proposed Project

Medical Office [3] 35,076 GSF 1,267 66 18 84 35 90 125

Subtotal Proposed 1,267 66 18 84 35 90 125

Less Existing

City Yard [4] (40) 0 (4) (4) ---- ---- ----

Subtotal Existing (40) 0 (4) (4) 0 0 0

NET INCREASE 1,227 66 14 80 35 90 125

[1] Source: ITE "Trip Generation", 9th Edition, 2012.
[2] Trips are one-way traffic movements, entering or leaving.
[3] ITE Land Use Code 720 (Medical-Dental Office Building) trip generation average rates.

- Daily Trip Rate: 36.13 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound
- AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 2.39 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 79% inbound/21% outbound
- PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 3.57 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 28% inbound/72% outbound

[4] Existing site trip generation based on actual site driveway counts conducted during the weekday AM and
PM peak hours by the traffic count subconsultant (City Traffic Counters).  Copies of the existing site
driveway count summary worksheets are provided in Appendix A.  The existing site daily trips were forecast
based on the assumption that the AM peak hour volumes represents 10 percent (10%) of the
daily traffic volume.

- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



- 33 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

8.0 TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS METHODOLOGY
The study intersections were evaluated using the Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) 
methodology.  This method determines Volume-to-Capacity (v/c) ratio on a critical lane basis.  The 
overall intersection v/c ratio is subsequently assigned a Level of Service (LOS) value to describe 
intersection operations.  The LOS varies from LOS A (free flow) to LOS F (jammed condition).  
Descriptions of the ICU method and corresponding Levels of Service are provided in Appendix B 
and Appendix C for the City of Santa Fe Springs traffic analysis and City of Norwalk traffic 
analysis, respectively. 

The ICU calculations use a lane capacity of 1,600 vehicles per hour (vph) for left-turn, through, and 
right-turn lanes, and a dual left-turn capacity of 2,880 vph.  Additionally, a clearance adjustment 
factor of 0.10 was added to each Level of Service calculation. 

8.1 Impact Criteria and Thresholds
8.1.1 City of Santa Fe Springs Impact Criteria and Thresholds
The relative impact of the added project traffic volumes to be generated by the proposed project 
during the weekday AM and PM peak hours was evaluated based on analysis of future operating 
conditions at the study intersections, without and with the proposed project.  The previously 
discussed capacity analysis procedures were utilized to evaluate the future v/c relationships and 
service level characteristics at each study intersection. 

The significance of the potential project-generated traffic impacts was identified using the City’s 
traffic impact analysis guidelines.  According to the City of Santa Fe Springs’ guidelines, the impact 
is considered significant if the project-related increase in the v/c ratio equals or exceeds the threshold 
criteria presented in Table 8-1. 

Table 8-1 
CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

INTERSECTION IMPACT THRESHOLD CRITERIA
Final v/c Level of Service Project Related Increase in v/c 

> 0.70 - 0.80 C equal to or greater than 0.04 

> 0.80 - 0.90 D equal to or greater than 0.03 

 > 0.90 E and F equal to or greater than 0.01 
 

- 34 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

8.1.2 City of Norwalk Impact Criteria and Thresholds
Based on recent coordination with the City of Norwalk contract Traffic Engineer, it has been 
outlined in the City of Norwalk’s General Plan that the City has established LOS “D” as a threshold 
standard for peak hour intersection operations.  The City has also established a “target” LOS of LOS 
“C”.  The level of significance for an intersection is determined by the following: 

If an intersection is currently operating at LOS A or B and is found to operate at LOS C or 
better with the addition of the proposed project the impact is not considered significant.  No 
mitigation measures are necessary. 

If an intersection is currently operating at LOS C and is found to operate at LOS D or worse 
with the addition of the proposed project the impact is considered significant.  Mitigation 
measures are then necessary to bring the intersection back to LOS C operations. 

If an intersection is currently operating at LOS D or worse and is found to continue to 
operate at LOS D or worse with the addition of the proposed project and

8.2 Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios

 the project has 
resulted in an increase in the existing v/c ratio by 0.010 (1 percent) the impact is then 
considered significant.  Mitigation measures are necessary to bring the intersection back to its 
existing v/c ratio. 

The following sections summarize the traffic impact analysis scenarios analyzed herein pursuant to 
the City of Santa Fe Springs and City of Norwalk requirements. 

8.2.1 City of Santa Fe Springs Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios
Pursuant to the City’s traffic study guidelines, the study intersection calculations were prepared for 
the following analysis scenarios: 

(a) Existing (2013) conditions. 
(b) Condition (a) with one percent (1.0%) annual ambient traffic growth through year 

2015. 
(c) Condition (b) with completion and occupancy of the proposed project. 
(d) Condition (c) with implementation of the proposed project mitigation measures, 

where necessary. 
(e) Condition (c) with completion and occupancy of the related projects. 
(f) Condition (e) with implementation of cumulative mitigation measures, where 

necessary. 

It is important to note that the analysis scenarios were analyzed by evaluating the potential traffic 
impacts from the project only in Condition (c) prior to combining the cumulative traffic from other 
cumulative development projects (i.e., related projects) in the study area. 

- 35 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

8.2.2 City of Norwalk Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios
Pursuant to the City’s requirements, the City of Norwalk study intersection calculations were 
prepared for the following analysis scenarios: 

(a) Existing (2013) conditions. 

(b) Condition (a) with proposed project. 

(c) Condition (b) with implementation of mitigation measures, where necessary. 

(d) Condition (a) with a one (1.0%) annual ambient traffic growth through year 2015. 

(e) Condition (a) plus one percent (1.0%) annual ambient traffic growth through year 
2015 and with completion and occupancy of the related projects (i.e., future without 
project conditions). 

(f) Condition (e) with completion and occupancy of the proposed project. 

(g) Condition (f) with implementation of the proposed project mitigation measures, 
where necessary. 

The traffic volumes for each new condition were added to the volumes in the prior condition to 
determine the change in capacity utilization at the study intersections. 

- 36 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

9.0 CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS TRAFFIC ANALYSIS
The traffic impact analysis prepared all of the study intersections using the ICU methodology and 
application of the City of Santa Fe Springs significant traffic impact criteria is summarized in Table 
9-1.  The ICU data worksheets for the analyzed intersections are contained in Appendix B. 

9.1 Existing Conditions
As indicated in column [1] of Table 9-1, eight of the 11 study intersections are presently operating at 
LOS D or better during the weekday AM and PM peak hours under existing conditions.  The 
following study intersections are currently operating at LOS E or F under existing conditions during 
the peak hour shown below: 

Int. No. 3: Norwalk Blvd./Adoree St.-I-5 Fwy. AM Peak Hour: v/c=1.023, LOS F 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=1.162, LOS F 

Int. No. 4: San Antonio Dr./Union St.-I-5 Fwy. AM Peak Hour: v/c=1.339, LOS F 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=1.518, LOS F 

Int. No. 11: Carmenita Rd./Imperial Hwy.  PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.924, LOS E 

As previously mentioned, the existing traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday 
AM and PM peak hours are displayed in Figures 5-1 and 5-2, respectively. 

9.2 Existing With Ambient Growth Conditions
Growth in traffic due to the combined effects of continuing development, intensification of existing 
developments and other factors was assumed to be 1.0 percent (1.0%) per year through year 2015.  
This ambient growth incrementally increases the v/c ratios at all of the study intersections.  As 
shown in column [2] of Table 9-1, eight of the 11 study intersections are expected to continue 
operating at LOS D or better during the weekday AM and PM peak hours with the addition of 
ambient growth traffic through the year 2015.  The following study intersections are expected to 
operate at LOS E or F under existing with ambient growth conditions during the peak hour shown 
below: 

Int. No. 3: Norwalk Blvd./Adoree St.-I-5 Fwy. AM Peak Hour: v/c=1.041, LOS F 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=1.183, LOS F 

Int. No. 4: San Antonio Dr./Union St.-I-5 Fwy. AM Peak Hour: v/c=1.363, LOS F 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=1.546, LOS F 

Int. No. 11: Carmenita Rd./Imperial Hwy.  PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.940, LOS E 

- 37 -



LIN
SC

OT
T,

 LA
W

 &
 G

RE
EN

SP
AN

, e
ng

ine
er

s
LL

G
 R

ef
. 1

-1
3-

40
10

-1
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct

Ta
bl

e 9
-1

CI
TY

 O
F 

SA
NT

A 
FE

 S
PR

IN
GS

 - 
SU

MM
AR

Y 
OF

 V
OL

UM
E 

TO
 C

AP
AC

IT
Y 

RA
TI

OS
AN

D 
LE

VE
LS

 O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E

W
EE

KD
AY

 A
M 

AN
D 

PM
 P

EA
K 

HO
UR

S

[1
]

[2
]

[3
]

[4
]

[5
]

Y
E

A
R

 2
01

5
Y

E
A

R
 2

01
5

Y
E

A
R

 2
01

5
Y

E
A

R
 2

01
5

Y
E

A
R

 2
01

3
W

/ A
M

B
IE

N
T

W
/ P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
C

H
A

N
G

E
S

IG
N

IF
.

F
U

T
U

R
E

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
IG

N
IF

.
W

/ R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
C

H
A

N
G

E
M

IT
I-

P
E

A
K

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

G
R

O
W

T
H

P
R

O
JE

C
T

V
/C

IM
P

A
C

T
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

V
/C

IM
P

A
C

T
M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

V
/C

G
A

T
E

D
N

O
.

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

H
O

U
R

V
/C

L
O

S
V

/C
L

O
S

V
/C

L
O

S
[(

3)
-(

2)
]

V
/C

L
O

S
[(

4)
-(

2)
]

V
/C

L
O

S
[(

5)
-(

2)
]

1
I-

5 
Fw

y 
N

B
 O

ff-
R

am
p/

A
M

0.
53

9
A

[b
]

[b
]

--
-

--
-

[b
]

--
-

--
-

[b
]

--
-

--
-

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
PM

0.
52

9
A

[b
]

[b
]

--
-

--
-

[b
]

--
-

--
-

[b
]

--
-

--
-

2
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
/

A
M

0.
75

8
C

0.
77

2
C

0.
77

4
C

0.
00

2
N

O
0.

78
4

C
0.

01
2

N
O

0.
78

4
C

0.
01

2
--

-
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

PM
0.

77
8

C
0.

79
1

C
0.

79
2

C
0.

00
1

N
O

0.
80

4
D

0.
01

3
N

O
0.

80
4

D
0.

01
3

--
-

3
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
/

A
M

1.
02

3
F

1.
04

1
F

1.
04

2
F

0.
00

1
N

O
1.

04
9

F
0.

00
8

N
O

1.
04

9
F

0.
00

8
--

-
A

do
re

e 
St

re
et

-I
-5

 F
w

y 
N

B
 R

am
ps

PM
1.

16
2

F
1.

18
3

F
1.

18
5

F
0.

00
2

N
O

1.
19

0
F

0.
00

7
N

O
1.

19
0

F
0.

00
7

--
-

4
Sa

n 
A

nt
on

io
 D

riv
e/

A
M

1.
33

9
F

1.
36

3
F

1.
36

5
F

0.
00

2
N

O
1.

36
9

F
0.

00
6

N
O

1.
36

9
F

0.
00

6
--

-
U

ni
on

 S
tre

et
-I

-5
 F

w
y 

SB
 O

n-
R

am
p

PM
1.

51
8

F
1.

54
6

F
1.

55
0

F
0.

00
4

N
O

1.
55

4
F

0.
00

8
N

O
1.

55
4

F
0.

00
8

--
-

5
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
73

8
C

0.
75

1
C

0.
75

5
C

0.
00

4
N

O
0.

76
2

C
0.

01
1

N
O

0.
76

2
C

0.
01

1
--

-
Fl

or
en

ce
 A

ve
nu

e
PM

0.
81

3
D

0.
82

7
D

0.
83

2
D

0.
00

5
N

O
0.

84
2

D
0.

01
5

N
O

0.
84

2
D

0.
01

5
--

-

6
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
86

4
D

0.
87

9
D

0.
89

6
D

0.
01

7
N

O
0.

90
4

E
0.

02
5

Y
ES

0.
85

4
D

-0
.0

25
Y

ES
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

PM
0.

80
0

C
0.

81
4

D
0.

82
8

D
0.

01
4

N
O

0.
83

8
D

0.
02

4
Y

ES
0.

68
1

B
-0

.1
33

Y
ES

7
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
59

8
A

0.
60

8
B

0.
60

8
B

0.
00

0
N

O
0.

60
8

B
0.

00
0

N
O

0.
60

8
B

0.
00

0
--

-
C

iv
ic

 C
en

te
r D

riv
e

PM
0.

57
8

A
0.

58
7

A
0.

58
7

A
0.

00
0

N
O

0.
58

7
A

0.
00

0
N

O
0.

58
7

A
0.

00
0

--
-

8
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
53

7
A

0.
54

6
A

0.
54

7
A

0.
00

1
N

O
0.

55
1

A
0.

00
5

N
O

0.
55

1
A

0.
00

5
--

-
I-

5 
Fw

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

PM
0.

60
4

B
0.

61
4

B
0.

62
3

B
0.

00
9

N
O

0.
62

7
B

0.
01

3
N

O
0.

62
7

B
0.

01
3

--
-

9
Sh

oe
m

ak
er

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
73

0
C

0.
74

3
C

0.
74

9
C

0.
00

6
N

O
0.

76
0

C
0.

01
7

N
O

0.
76

0
C

0.
01

7
--

-
Fl

or
en

ce
 A

ve
nu

e
PM

0.
78

3
C

0.
79

6
C

0.
80

1
D

0.
00

5
N

O
0.

81
8

D
0.

02
2

Y
ES

0.
76

7
C

-0
.0

29
Y

ES

10
Sh

oe
m

ak
er

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
78

0
C

0.
79

4
C

0.
79

7
C

0.
00

3
N

O
0.

81
8

D
0.

02
4

Y
ES

0.
80

6
D

0.
01

2
Y

ES
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

PM
0.

70
6

C
0.

71
9

C
0.

72
3

C
0.

00
4

N
O

0.
73

3
C

0.
01

4
N

O
0.

71
5

C
-0

.0
04

--
-

11
C

ar
m

en
ita

 R
oa

d/
A

M
0.

74
4

C
0.

75
7

C
0.

76
0

C
0.

00
3

N
O

0.
78

1
C

0.
02

4
N

O
0.

78
1

C
0.

02
4

--
-

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
PM

0.
92

4
E

0.
94

0
E

0.
94

2
E

0.
00

2
N

O
0.

97
1

E
0.

03
1

Y
ES

0.
92

4
E

-0
.0

16
Y

ES

[a
]

A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

C
ity

's 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

cr
ite

ria
, a

n 
im

pa
ct

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 if

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t-r

el
at

ed
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

V
ol

um
e-

to
-C

ap
ac

ity
 (V

/C
) r

at
io

 e
qu

al
s o

r e
xc

ee
ds

 th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

ds
 sh

ow
n 

be
lo

w
:

[b
]

Th
is 

of
f-r

am
p 

w
as

 c
lo

se
d 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 b

y 
C

al
tra

ns
 o

n 
9/

13
/1

3.

Le
ve

l o
f S

er
vi

ce
Pr

e-
Pr

oj
ec

t I
C

U
Pr

oj
ec

t-R
el

at
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

 in
 V

/C
C

> 
0.

70
0 

- 0
.8

00
eq

ua
l t

o 
or

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 0
.0

40
D

> 
0.

80
0 

- 0
.9

00
eq

ua
l t

o 
or

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 0
.0

20
E/

F
> 

0.
90

0
eq

ua
l t

o 
or

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 0
.0

10

- 38 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

The existing with ambient growth traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM 
and PM peak hours are displayed in Figures 9–1 and 9–2, respectively. 

9.3 Existing With Ambient Growth Plus Project Conditions
As shown in column [3] of Table 9–1, application of the City of Santa Fe Springs’ threshold criteria 
to the “With Proposed Project” scenario indicates that the proposed project is not expected to create 
significant impacts at any of the 11 study intersections.  Incremental, but not significant, impacts are 
noted at the study intersections.  Because there are no significant impacts, no traffic mitigation 
measures are required or recommended for the study intersections.  The existing with ambient 
growth plus project (existing, ambient growth, and project) traffic volumes at the study intersections 
during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are illustrated in Figures 9–3 and 9–4, respectively. 

9.4 Future Cumulative Conditions
The v/c ratios at all of the study intersections are incrementally increased with the addition of traffic 
generated by the related projects listed in Table 6-1.  As shown in column [4] of Table 9-1, 
application of the City of Santa Fe Springs’ threshold criteria to the “Future Cumulative” scenario 
(i.e., existing, ambient, project plus related projects) indicates the addition of traffic associated with 
cumulative development projects is expected to create significant impacts at four of the 11 study 
intersections.  The following study intersections are forecast to be significantly impacted during the 
peak hours noted below under the Future Cumulative Conditions: 

Int. No. 6: Bloomfield Ave./Imperial Hwy.  AM Peak Hour: v/c=0.904, LOS E 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.838, LOS D 

Int. No. 9: Shoemaker Ave./Florence Ave.  PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.818, LOS D 

Int. No. 10: Shoemaker Ave./Imperial Hwy.  AM Peak Hour: v/c=0.818, LOS D  

Int. No. 11: Carmenita Rd./Imperial Hwy.  PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.971, LOS E 

The future cumulative (existing, ambient growth, project and related projects) traffic volumes at the 
study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are illustrated in Figures 9–5 and 9–
6, respectively. 

 

- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

10.0 CITY OF NORWALK TRAFFIC ANALYSIS
The traffic impact analysis prepared for the study intersections using the ICU methodology and 
application of the City of Norwalk significant traffic impact criteria is summarized in Table 10-1.  
The ICU data worksheets for the analyzed City of Norwalk study intersections (i.e., either wholly 
located within the City of Norwalk or shared with adjacent jurisdictions) are contained in Appendix 
C. 

10.1 Existing With Project Conditions
As shown in column [2] of Table 10–1, application of the City of Norwalk’s threshold criteria to the 
“Existing With Project” scenario indicates that the proposed project is expected to create a 
significant traffic impact at one of the five City of Norwalk study intersections.  Incremental, but not 
significant, impacts are noted at the other City of Norwalk study intersections.  The proposed project 
is forecast to create a significant impact at the following location according to the City of Norwalk 
impact criteria during the peak hour(s) shown below: 

Int. No. 6: Bloomfield Ave./Imperial Hwy.  AM Peak Hour: v/c=0.881, LOS D 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.814, LOS D 

10.2 Future With Project Conditions
As shown in column [4] of Table 10–1, application of the City of Norwalk’s threshold criteria to the 
“Future With Project” scenario indicates that the proposed project is expected to create a significant 
traffic impact at one of the five City of Norwalk study intersections (i.e., either wholly located 
within the City of Norwalk or shared with adjacent jurisdictions).  Incremental, but not significant, 
impacts are noted at the other City of Norwalk study intersections.  The proposed project is forecast 
to create a significant impact at the following location according to the City of Norwalk impact 
criteria during the peak hour(s) shown below: 

Int. No. 6: Bloomfield Ave./Imperial Hwy.  AM Peak Hour: v/c=0.904, LOS E 

PM Peak Hour: v/c=0.838, LOS D 

 

 

- 46 -



LIN
SC

OT
T,

 LA
W

 &
 G

RE
EN

SP
AN

, e
ng

ine
er

s
LL

G
 R

ef
. 1

-1
3-

40
10

-1
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct

Ta
bl

e 1
0-

1
CI

TY
 O

F 
NO

RW
AL

K 
- S

UM
MA

RY
 O

F 
VO

LU
ME

 T
O 

CA
PA

CI
TY

 R
AT

IO
S

AN
D 

LE
VE

LS
 O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E
W

EE
KD

AY
 A

M 
AN

D 
PM

 P
EA

K 
HO

UR
S

[1
]

[2
]

[3
]

[4
]

[5
]

Y
E

A
R

 2
01

5
Y

E
A

R
 2

01
5

Y
E

A
R

 2
01

5
Y

E
A

R
 2

01
3

F
U

T
U

R
E

F
U

T
U

R
E

F
U

T
U

R
E

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

P
R

E
-P

R
O

JE
C

T
W

IT
H

W
IT

H
Y

E
A

R
 2

01
3

W
IT

H
C

H
A

N
G

E
SI

G
N

IF
.

 W
/ A

G
 &

 R
E

L
.

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
C

H
A

N
G

E
SI

G
N

IF
.

P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
H

A
N

G
E

P
E

A
K

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

P
R

O
JE

C
T

V
/C

IM
P

A
C

T
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

P
R

O
JE

C
T

V
/C

IM
P

A
C

T
M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

V
/C

 M
IT

IG
A

T
E

D
N

O
.

IN
T

E
R

SE
C

T
IO

N
H

O
U

R
V

/C
L

O
S

V
/C

L
O

S
[(

2)
-(

1)
]

V
/C

L
O

S
V

/C
L

O
S

[(
4)

-(
3)

]
V

/C
L

O
S

[(
5)

-(
3)

]

1
I-5

 F
w

y 
N

B
 O

ff-
Ra

m
p/

A
M

0.
53

9
A

[a
]

---
---

[a
]

[a
]

---
---

[a
]

---
---

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
PM

0.
52

9
A

[a
]

---
---

[a
]

[a
]

---
---

[a
]

---
---

3
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
/

A
M

1.
02

3
F

1.
02

4
F

0.
00

1
N

O
1.

04
8

F
1.

04
9

F
0.

00
1

N
O

1.
04

9
F

0.
00

1
---

A
do

re
e 

St
re

et
-I-

5 
Fw

y 
N

B
 R

am
ps

PM
1.

16
2

F
1.

16
4

F
0.

00
2

N
O

1.
18

8
F

1.
19

0
F

0.
00

2
N

O
1.

19
0

F
0.

00
2

---

4
Sa

n 
A

nt
on

io
 D

riv
e/

A
M

1.
33

9
F

1.
34

0
F

0.
00

1
N

O
1.

36
7

F
1.

36
9

F
0.

00
2

N
O

1.
36

9
F

0.
00

2
---

U
ni

on
 S

tre
et

-I-
5 

Fw
y 

SB
 O

n-
Ra

m
p

PM
1.

51
8

F
1.

52
1

F
0.

00
3

N
O

1.
55

0
F

1.
55

4
F

0.
00

4
N

O
1.

55
4

F
0.

00
4

---

6
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
86

4
D

0.
88

1
D

0.
01

7
Y

ES
0.

88
7

D
0.

90
4

E
0.

01
7

Y
ES

0.
87

9
D

-0
.0

08
Y

ES
Im

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

PM
0.

80
0

C
0.

81
4

D
0.

01
4

Y
ES

0.
82

3
D

0.
83

8
D

0.
01

5
Y

ES
0.

70
6

C
-0

.1
17

Y
ES

8
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e/

A
M

0.
53

7
A

0.
53

8
A

0.
00

1
N

O
0.

54
9

A
0.

55
1

A
0.

00
2

N
O

0.
55

1
A

0.
00

2
---

I-5
 F

w
y 

N
B

 O
n-

R
am

p
PM

0.
60

4
B

0.
61

3
B

0.
00

9
N

O
0.

61
8

B
0.

62
7

B
0.

00
9

N
O

0.
62

7
B

0.
00

9
---

[a
]

Th
is

 o
ff-

ra
m

p 
w

as
 c

lo
se

d 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 b
y 

Ca
ltr

an
s o

n 
9/

13
/1

3.

C
ity

 o
f N

or
w

al
k 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

im
pa

ct
 th

re
sh

ol
d 

cr
ite

ria
 is

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

Ex
is

tin
g 

v/
c

LO
S

Pr
oj

ec
t R

el
at

ed
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 v
/c

>=
0.

70
0 

to
 0

.7
99

C
 

C
ha

ng
e 

to
 L

O
S 

D
>=

0.
80

0 
D

, E
 o

r F
eq

ua
l t

o 
or

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 0
.0

1

- 47 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

11.0 TRANSPORTATION MITIGATION MEASURES

11.1 Summary of Project Mitigation
As summarized in Subsection 9.3 (Existing With Ambient Growth Plus Project Conditions) herein, 
application of the City’s threshold criteria to the with proposed project scenario indicates that the 
proposed project is not expected to create significant impacts at the study intersections.  Incremental, 
but not significant, impacts are noted at the study intersections.  Because there are no significant 
impacts, no traffic mitigation measures are required or recommended for the study intersections. 

11.2 Summary of Cumulative Mitigation
As summarized in Subsection 9.4 (Future Cumulative Conditions) herein, it is calculated that the 
traffic associated with cumulative development projects is expected to create significant impacts at 
four of the 11 study intersections.  The recommended cumulative traffic mitigation program 
developed for these projects includes physical roadway improvements and traffic signal operational 
improvements.  The proposed project would be required to participate on a fair-share basis towards 
implementation of these measures to mitigate cumulative traffic impacts.  It is noted that the cost of 
cumulative mitigation measures and fair-share contributions likely will require agreements between 
the Lead Agency (i.e., City of Santa Fe Springs) and any other jurisdictions that may share 
responsibility for the study intersections.  The following paragraphs summarize the recommended 
cumulative transportation mitigation measures. 

The original recommended cumulative mitigation measure consisted of restriping the southbound 
approach to the intersection to provide a second left-turn lane.  Based on further coordination 
with the City of Norwalk it was noted that the southbound duel left-turn lane improvement 
would preclude future plans for the installation of a bike lane along Bloomfield Avenue.  It also 
was noted by the City of Norwalk that the Gateway Cities Council of Governments (COG) Hot 
Spot Study included analysis of this intersection.  A conceptual improvement plan provided by 
the City of Norwalk reflected the installation of dual westbound left-turn lanes, longer 
northbound, southbound and eastbound left-turn lanes and a traffic signal modification in 
response to vehicle queuing.  The traffic signal modification is also planned to incorporate 
optimized timing and an overlap traffic signal phase (i.e., northbound right-turn overlap phase to 
be run concurrently with the westbound left-turn phase).   As shown in Tables 9-1 and 10-1, this 
mitigation measure is anticipated to reduce the forecast cumulative impacts at the subject study 
intersection to less than significant levels. 

Intersection No. 6: Bloomfield Avenue/Imperial Highway 

It is noted that this intersection is under shared jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe Springs 
and City of Norwalk.  Should the City of Norwalk or the City of Santa Fe Springs not approve 
implementation of this feasible traffic mitigation measure for any reason, a suitable substitute 
mitigation measure can be developed.. 

 

- 48 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

The recommended cumulative mitigation consists of restriping the eastbound approach to the 
intersection to provide a right-turn only lane.  The resulting lane configuration of the eastbound 
approach would provide one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and one right-turn only lane.  As 
shown in Table 9-1, this cumulative mitigation measure is anticipated to reduce the forecast 
cumulative traffic impacts at the subject study intersection to less than significant levels. 

Intersection No. 9: Shoemaker Avenue/Florence Avenue 

The recommended cumulative mitigation consists of restriping the southbound approach to the 
intersection to provide a second left-turn lane.  The resulting lane configuration at the 
southbound approach would provide two left-turn lanes and one shared through/right-turn lane.  
The recommended cumulative mitigation also includes restriping the northbound approach to 
provide better alignment across the intersection while maintaining the same northbound lane 
configuration.    It is noted that a traffic signal modification would likely be required to 
accommodate this recommended mitigation measure.  As requested by the County of Los 
Angeles, Appendix D contains a copy of a conceptual plan for this improvement (Appendix 
Figure D-1).  As shown in Table 9-1, this cumulative mitigation measure is anticipated to reduce 
the forecast cumulative impacts at the subject study intersection to less than significant levels. 

Intersection No. 10: Shoemaker Avenue/Imperial Highway 

It is noted that this intersection is under shared jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe Springs 
and County of Los Angeles.  Should the County of Los Angeles not approve implementation of 
this feasible cumulative traffic mitigation measure, a suitable substitute mitigation measure can 
be developed. 

The recommended cumulative mitigation consists of restriping the northbound approach to the 
intersection to provide a right-turn only lane.  The resulting lane configuration at the northbound 
approach would provide one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and one right-turn only lane.  It is 
noted that it may be necessary to modify the raised median islands, both north and south of the 
intersection, to accommodate implementation of the recommended cumulative mitigation 
measure. As requested by the County of Los Angeles, Appendix D contains a copy of a 
conceptual plan for this improvement (Appendix Figure D-2).   As shown in Table 9-1, this 
cumulative mitigation measure is anticipated to reduce the forecast cumulative impacts at the 
subject study intersection to less than significant levels. 

Intersection No. 11: Carmenita Avenue/Imperial Highway 

It is noted that this intersection is under shared jurisdiction between the City of Santa Fe Springs 
and County of Los Angeles.  Should the County of Los Angeles not allow implementation of this 
feasible cumulative traffic mitigation measure, a suitable substitute mitigation measure can be 
developed. 

 

- 49 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

11.3 Fair Share Analysis 
The methodology and the calculations of the project’s pro-rata percentage at the study intersections 
that require cumulative improvement measures summarized in Table 11-1.  The method used for 
these calculations is consistent with that employed by Los Angeles County and the City of Santa Fe 
Springs and is based on the weekday AM and PM peak hours, project generated traffic volumes on 
the approaches to each affected study intersection divided by the project plus other development 
(related) project’s traffic volumes on those same approaches.  It should be noted that neither existing 
traffic volumes nor ambient growth traffic volumes are included in the calculations.  As shown in 
Table 11-1, the proposed project’s fair share contribution toward the cumulative improvements is as 
follows: 

Intersection No. 6: Bloomfield Avenue/Imperial Highway = 29.7% 

Intersection No. 9: Shoemaker Avenue/Florence Avenue = 19.4% 

Intersection No. 10: Shoemaker Avenue/Imperial Highway = 18.6% 

Intersection No. 11: Carmenita Avenue/Imperial Highway = 6.8% 

It is important to note that based on the City of Norwalk analysis methodology, a direct project 
significant traffic impact is noted for Intersection No. 6 and the cumulative mitigation measure also 
mitigates the direct project significant traffic impact.  Since this intersection is under shared 
jurisdiction, it is recommended the further coordination occur between the City of Santa Fe Springs 
and the City of Norwalk in order to determine the project applicant’s specific funding contribution 
and obtain status of additional fair-share contributions from applicants of other development 
projects.

- 50 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

The project's percentage share is derived by dividing project traffic by project plus other development (related)
projects traffic.  It should be noted that existing traffic volumes are not included in the calculations.

The following equation is provided to assist in calculating the project's pro-rata percentage to implement roadway
mitigation improvement measures:

where: P = Project's pro-rata percentage of the cumulative mitigation
improvement measures

P = Vp Vp = AM and PM Peak Hour volume at the intersection
Vp + (Vc-Ve) generated by the project

Vc = Future Cumulative [1]
AM and PM Peak Hour traffic volume at the intersection

Ve = Existing and Ambient Growth AM and PM Peak Hour 
traffic volume (must be subtracted when included in
cumulative AM and PM Peak Hour traffic volume)

6. Bloomfield Avenue/ Vp = 127 I = = 29.7 %
Imperial Highway Vc = 10,097 ( 127 ) + ( 10,097 - 9,796 )

Ve = 9,796

9. Shoemaker Avenue/ Vp = 53 I = = 19.4 %
Florence Avenue Vc = 6,575 ( 53 ) + ( 6,575 - 6,355 )

Ve = 6,355

10. Shoemaker Avenue/ Vp = 53 I = = 18.6 %
Imperial Highway Vc = 7,921 ( 53 ) + ( 7,921 - 7,689 )

Ve = 7,689

11. Carmenita Avenue/ Vp = 22 I = = 6.8 %
Imperial Highway Vc = 9,520 ( 22 ) + ( 9,520 - 9,220 )

Ve = 9,220

[1] Future cumulative traffic volumes include existing, ambient growth, project and related project volumes.

127

AM and PM

of Impact

Percentage

CalculationTraffic Volumes

Study Intersection Calculations

Intersection

Table 11-1
PRO-RATA PERCENTAGE OF CUMULATIVE MITIGATION COSTS

Project Traffic 
Project + Other Related Projects Traffic

Pro-Rata Percentage Methodology

AM and PM Percentage

Intersection Traffic Volumes Calculation of Impact

53

AM and PM Percentage

Intersection Traffic Volumes Calculation of Impact

22

53

AM and PM Percentage

Intersection Traffic Volumes Calculation of Impact

- 51 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

12.0 CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM TRAFFIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT
The Congestion Management Program (CMP) is a state-mandated program that was enacted by the 
State Legislature with the passage of Proposition 111 in 1990.  The program is intended to address 
the impact of local growth on the regional transportation system. 

As required by the 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County, a Traffic 
Impact Assessment (TIA) has been prepared to determine the potential impacts on designated 
monitoring locations on the CMP highway system.  The analysis has been prepared in accordance 
with procedures outlined in the 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County, 
County of Los Angeles Metropolitan Transportation Authority, July 2010. 

12.1 Intersections
The following CMP intersection monitoring locations in the project vicinity have been identified: 

CMP Station  

No. 94   Carmenita Road/Imperial Highway 

Intersection 

No. 113  Firestone Boulevard/Imperial Highway 

No. 114  Norwalk Boulevard/Imperial Highway 

The CMP TIA guidelines require that intersection monitoring locations must be examined if the 
proposed project will add 50 or more trips during either the weekday AM or PM peak hours.  The 
proposed project will not add 50 or more trips during either the weekday AM or PM peak hours (i.e., 
of adjacent street traffic) at CMP monitoring intersections, as stated in the CMP manual as the 
threshold criteria for a traffic impact assessment.  Therefore, no further review of potential impacts 
to intersection monitoring locations that are part of the CMP highway system is required. 

12.2 Freeways
The following CMP freeway monitoring locations in the project vicinity have been identified: 

CMP Station  

No. 1002  I-5 Freeway at Lemoran Avenue 

Segment 

No. 1075  I-605 Freeway north of Telegraph Road 

The CMP TIA guidelines require that freeway monitoring locations must be examined if the 
proposed project will add 150 or more trips (in either direction) during either the weekday AM or 
PM peak periods.  The proposed project will not add 150 or more trips (in either direction) during 
either the weekday AM or PM peak hours to CMP freeway monitoring locations which is the 
threshold for preparing a traffic impact assessment, as stated in the CMP manual.  Therefore, no 

- 52 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

further review of potential impacts to freeway monitoring locations that are part of the CMP 
highway system is required. 

12.3 Transit Impact Review 
As required by the 2010 Congestion Management Program, a review has been made of the potential 
impacts of the project on transit service.  As discussed in Subsection 4.5 herein, existing transit 
service is provided in the vicinity of the proposed Interhealth Corporation project. 

The project trip generation, as shown in Table 7–1, was adjusted by values set forth in the CMP (i.e., 
person trips equal 1.4 times vehicle trips, and transit trips equal 3.5 percent of the total person trips) 
to estimate transit trip generation.  Pursuant to the CMP guidelines, the proposed project is forecast 
to generate demand for 4 transit trips during the weekday AM peak hour and 6 transit trips during 
the weekday PM peak hour.  Over a 24-hour period, the proposed project is forecast to generate 
demand for 60 weekday daily transit trips.  Therefore, the calculations are as follows: 

Weekday AM Peak Hour = 80  1.4  0.035 = 4 Transit Trips 

Weekday PM Peak Hour = 125  1.4  0.035 = 6 Transit Trips 

Weekday Daily Trips = 1,227  1.4  0.035 = 60 Transit Trips 

As shown in Table 4–1,eight bus/train transit lines are provided adjacent to or in close proximity the 
project site.  As outlined in Table 4–1, under the “No. of Buses/Trains During Peak Hour” column, 
these three transit lines provide services for an average of (i.e., average of the directional number of 
buses/trains during the peak hours) generally 34 and 29 buses/trains during the weekday AM and 
PM peak hours.  Therefore, based on the above calculated weekday AM and PM peak hour trips, this 
would correspond to less than one additional transit rider per bus/train.  It is anticipated that the 
existing transit service in the project area will adequately accommodate the increase of project-
generated transit trips.  Thus, given the number of project-generated transit trips per bus/train, no 
project impacts on existing or future transit services in the project area are expected to occur due to 
the proposed project. 

12.4 CMP TDM Requirement
The proposed project will be required to comply with the CMP Transportation Demand Management 
(TDM) Ordinance which applies to all new non-residential development and requires certain TDM-
friendly development standards such as carpool/vanpool preferential parking.  The applicable 
development standards are triggered when a new project exceeds established gross square footage 
thresholds.5

                                                 
5 Source: Chapter 4, Transportation Demand Management Element, 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los 
Angeles County, County of Los Angeles Metropolitan Transportation Authority, July 2010 

  TDM measures are aimed at decreasing the number of vehicular trips generated by 
persons traveling to/from the site by offering facilities, services and actions designed to increase the 
use of alternative transportation modes (e.g., transit, rail, walking, bicycling, etc.) and ridesharing. 

- 53 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

13.0 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ANALYSIS
Based on recent coordination with Caltrans, it is noted that analyses of Caltrans facilities should be 
conducted when and if a proposed project is expected to add 50 or more peak hour trips in either 
direction on a freeway mainline segment or 10 or more peak hour trips to a freeway ramp location.  
While the proposed project in its entirety at build-out is expected to result in an increase of 80 AM 
peak hour vehicle trips and 125 PM peak hour vehicle trips, the project is not expected to generate 
50 or more vehicle trips on the mainline (I-5 Freeway) during either the weekday AM or PM 
commute peak hours.  Thus, as the threshold for preparation of a Caltrans freeway mainline analysis 
is not exceeded, no further analysis of the mainline freeway system is required.  In addition, while 
the proposed project will not add 10 or more vehicle trips during either the commuter AM or PM 
peak hours at any freeway ramp location, which is the threshold for preparation of a Caltrans ramp 
analysis, this traffic analysis includes for informational purposes a review of freeway ramp vehicle 
queuing.  As previously noted, much of I-5 Freeway in the vicinity of the proposed project is 
currently under construction as part of the Interstate 5 Corridor Improvement Project and many of 
the existing freeway ramp configurations are currently being modified and/or are under construction.  
Some freeway ramps will be permanently closed and replaced by ramp reconfigurations in the 
immediate vicinity.  Construction is expected to be completed after the proposed project.  Therefore, 
for illustration purposes, the existing ramp configurations have been maintained for purposes of 
evaluating the off-ramp vehicle queuing for year 2013 existing conditions and the existing with 
project conditions, so as to evaluate the changes in ramp queuing due to the proposed project. 

The supplemental analysis of vehicle queuing on freeway off-ramps within the vicinity of the project 
site was also prepared to address more formally comments received from the California Department 
of Transportation (Caltrans) with respect to the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND).Specifically, 
a detailed review was undertaken with respect to vehicle queuing on the freeway off-ramp 
approaches at two study locations (i.e., the I-5 Freeway Northbound Off-ramp at Imperial Highway 
and the I-5 Freeway Northbound Off-ramp at Norwalk Boulevard).  The queuing analysis was 
calculated using the Synchro 8 software package which implements the Highway Capacity Manual 
operational methods.  In forecasting vehicle queuing, the Synchro software considers traffic volume 
data, lane configurations, traffic signal timing and phasing for signalized locations, and available 
vehicle storage lengths for the respective traffic movements.  The queuing analysis also was 
prepared for the existing with project conditions.  Each of the two freeway off-ramp intersection 
approaches were reviewed in terms of expected maximum vehicle queues (i.e., 95th percentile 
queues) which represent the maximum back of vehicle queues with 95th percentile traffic volumes.  
The corresponding maximum vehicle queue lengths were then compared with the available ramp 
storage lengths (as measured from the applicable freeway/frontage road gore areas to the respective 
off-ramp approach limit lines/merge points). 

 

 

- 54 -



As presented in Table 14-1, both analyzed off-ramps provided adequate storage to meet existing 
year 2103 peak hour demands during the weekday AM and PM peak hours.  In addition, the 95th

percentile vehicle queues are only nominally increased with the addition of the project-generated 
traffic and as such vehicle queuing back onto the freeway mainline travel lanes is not expected at 
these off-ramp locations.  Therefore, based on a review of the queuing analyses and the available 
storage lengths, vehicle queuing back onto the I-5 Freeway mainline travel lanes was not expected.  
The corresponding weekday AM and PM peak hour HCM worksheets for purposes of determining 
the 95th percentile vehicle queues are contained in Appendix E. For informational purposes, Table 
14-2 presents a summary of the existing (year 2013) operations at the intersections operating under 
shared Caltrans jurisdiction.  Consistent with the analyses summarized herein, the following two 
locations are currently operating at LOS F during the AM and PM commuter peak hours: 

Int. No. 3: Norwalk Blvd./Adoree St.-I-5 Fwy. AM Peak Hour: delay exceeds 50 s/veh

PM Peak Hour: delay exceeds 50 s/veh

Int. No. 4: San Antonio Dr./Union St.-I-5 Fwy. AM Peak Hour: delay exceeds 80 s/veh 

PM Peak Hour: delay exceeds 80 s/veh 

As stated above, much of the I-5 Freeway in the vicinity of the proposed project is currently under 
construction as part of the Interstate 5 Corridor Improvement Project.  As such, many of the existing 
freeway ramp configurations are currently being modified and are under construction.  Some 
freeway ramps will be permanently closed and replaced by ramp reconfigurations in the immediate 
vicinity.  Construction is expected to be completed after the proposed project.  It is anticipated that 
this on-going improvement project, as stated in the Interstate 5 Corridor Improvement Project Draft 
and Final EIRs, will result in improved operations.  As such, no further analysis is required.  

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

- 55 -



Table 14-1
SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL FREEWAY OFF-RAMP VEHICLE QUEUING [1]

WEEKDAY AM AND PM PEAK HOURS

YEAR 2013 YEAR 2013 EXISTING

EXISTING CONDITIONS WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS

95TH 95TH

AVAILABLE PERCENTILE ADEQUATE PERCENTILE ADEQUATE

PEAK STORAGE [2] QUEUE [3] STORAGE QUEUE [3] STORAGE

RAMP LOCATION HOUR (FEET) (FEET) YES/NO (FEET) YES/NO

I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp/ AM 575 100 YES 100 YES

Imperial Highway PM 575 113 YES 113 YES

I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp/ AM 1,025 918 YES 928 YES

Norwalk Boulevard PM 1,025 690 YES 698 YES

[1] Intersection queuing analysis based on the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) methodologies.

[2] Available storage based on aerial measurements from Caltrans Earth.

[3] The 95th percentile queue is the maximum back of queue with 95th percentile traffic volumes. An average vehicle length of 25 feet is utilized.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

- 56 -



Table 14-2
CALTRANS INTERSECTION IMPACT ANALYSIS [a]

WEEKDAY AM AND PM PEAK HOURS

[1] [2]

YEAR 2013
YEAR 2013 EXISTING
EXISTING WITH PROJECT

TRAFFIC PEAK DELAY LOS DELAY LOS
NO. INTERSECTION CONTROL HOUR [b] [c] [b] [c]

1 I-5 Freeway Northbound Off-Ramp/ Signalized AM 6.2 A 6.2 A
Imperial Highway PM 6.4 A 6.4 A

3 Norwalk Boulevard/ TWSC AM >50.0 F >50.0 F
Adoree Street - I-5 Northbound Ramps PM >50.0 F >50.0 F

4 San Antonio Drive/ Signalized AM >80.0 F >80.0 F
Union Street - I-5 Southbound On-Ramp PM >80.0 F >80.0 F

8 Bloomfield Avenune/ Signalized AM 13.9 B 13.9 B
I-5 Freeway NB On-Ramp PM 14.7 B 14.9 B

[a] Intersection analysis based on the Highway Capacity Manual operational analysis methodologies, per the Caltrans'

Guide for the Preparation of Traffic Impact Studies , December 2002.

[b] Reported control delay values in seconds per vehicle.

[c] Signalized Intersection Levels of Service are based on the following criteria:

Control Delay (s/veh) LOS

<= 10 A

> 10-20 B

> 20-35 C

> 35-55 D

> 55-80 E

> 80 F

Unsignalized Intersection Levels of Service are based on the following criteria:
Control Delay (s/veh) LOS

<= 10 A
> 10-15 B
> 15-25 C
> 25-35 D
> 35-50 E

> 50 F

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project

- 57 -



 

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Rpt4.doc

14.0 CONCLUSIONS
This traffic analysis has been prepared to identify and evaluate the potential traffic impacts of the 
proposed Interhealth Corporation MOB project.  It is concluded that the proposed project is not 
expected to result in significant project-related traffic impacts at any of the 11 study intersections 
according to City of Santa Fe Springs analysis criteria.  It also is concluded that traffic associated 
with cumulative development projects is expected to result in significant traffic impacts at four of 
the 11 study intersections according to the City of Sante Fe Springs analysis criteria.  Cumulative 
mitigation measures are recommended to reduce these forecast future cumulative impacts to less 
than significant levels.  The project Applicant would be required to participate on a fair-share basis 
towards implementation of these measures.  In addition, one of the four locations anticipated to be 
significantly impacted by cumulative development is also expected to be significantly impacted by 
the proposed project according to City of Norwalk analysis criteria (i.e., Intersection No. 6: 
Bloomfield Avenue/Imperial Highway) as this intersection is shared jurisdiction between these two 
cities.  The cumulative traffic mitigation measure is also anticipated to reduce the project’s 
significant traffic impact to less than significant levels.  

 

- 58 -



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Appendix Covers.doc 

APPENDIX A
TRAFFIC COUNT DATA



File Name : Imperial5NB
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
I-5 NB Ramps
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

I-5 NB Ramps
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 333 54 21 0 1 0 232 0 641
07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 367 81 32 0 0 0 394 0 874
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 359 64 27 0 3 0 416 0 869
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 357 50 38 0 1 0 428 0 874

Total 0 0 0 0 1416 249 118 0 5 0 1470 0 3258

08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 345 47 56 0 4 0 411 0 863
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 319 56 62 0 2 0 402 0 841
08:30 AM 0 0 0 0 269 84 60 0 4 0 427 0 844
08:45 AM 0 0 0 0 265 66 31 0 0 0 341 0 703

Total 0 0 0 0 1198 253 209 0 10 0 1581 0 3251

04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 286 89 27 0 7 0 316 0 725
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 296 101 21 0 5 0 323 0 746
04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 317 112 39 0 10 0 374 0 852
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 323 122 29 0 2 0 349 0 825

Total 0 0 0 0 1222 424 116 0 24 0 1362 0 3148

05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 329 147 49 0 5 0 377 0 907
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 340 139 49 0 4 0 390 0 922
05:30 PM 0 0 0 0 319 127 48 0 7 0 341 0 842
05:45 PM 0 0 0 0 326 116 38 0 18 0 309 0 807

Total 0 0 0 0 1314 529 184 0 34 0 1417 0 3478

Grand Total 0 0 0 0 5150 1455 627 0 73 0 5830 0 13135
Apprch % 0 0 0 0 78 22 89.6 0 10.4 0 100 0

Total % 0 0 0 0 39.2 11.1 4.8 0 0.6 0 44.4 0

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : Imperial5NB
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

I-5 NB Ramps
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

I-5 NB Ramps
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 367 81 448 32 0 0 32 0 394 0 394 874
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 359 64 423 27 0 3 30 0 416 0 416 869
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 357 50 407 38 0 1 39 0 428 0 428 874
08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 345 47 392 56 0 4 60 0 411 0 411 863

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 0 1428 242 1670 153 0 8 161 0 1649 0 1649 3480
% App. Total 0 0 0 0 85.5 14.5 95 0 5 0 100 0

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .973 .747 .932 .683 .000 .500 .671 .000 .963 .000 .963 .995

 I-5 NB Ramps 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 I-5 NB Ramps 

Right
0

Thru
0

Left
0

InOut Total
242 0 242

R
ight
242

T
hru

1428
Left 0

O
ut

T
otal

In
1657

1670
3327

Left
153

Thru
0

Right
8

Out TotalIn
0 161 161

Le
ft0

T
hr

u
16

49
R

ig
ht0

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

15
81

16
49

32
30

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : Imperial5NB
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

I-5 NB Ramps
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

I-5 NB Ramps
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 317 112 429 39 0 10 49 0 374 0 374 852
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 323 122 445 29 0 2 31 0 349 0 349 825
05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 329 147 476 49 0 5 54 0 377 0 377 907
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 340 139 479 49 0 4 53 0 390 0 390 922

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 0 1309 520 1829 166 0 21 187 0 1490 0 1490 3506
% App. Total 0 0 0 0 71.6 28.4 88.8 0 11.2 0 100 0

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .963 .884 .955 .847 .000 .525 .866 .000 .955 .000 .955 .951

 I-5 NB Ramps 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 I-5 NB Ramps 

Right
0

Thru
0

Left
0

InOut Total
520 0 520

R
ight
520

T
hru

1309
Left 0

O
ut

T
otal

In
1511

1829
3340

Left
166

Thru
0

Right
21

Out TotalIn
0 187 187

Le
ft0

T
hr

u
14

90
R

ig
ht0

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

14
75

14
90

29
65

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : NorwalkImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Norwalk Blvd
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Norwalk Blvd
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 31 111 13 35 349 16 26 105 17 33 224 13 973
07:15 AM 21 158 13 49 381 7 20 110 18 61 274 21 1133
07:30 AM 34 167 18 50 342 10 26 152 23 43 304 28 1197
07:45 AM 33 219 26 48 339 12 25 151 36 45 308 38 1280

Total 119 655 70 182 1411 45 97 518 94 182 1110 100 4583

08:00 AM 36 140 36 50 312 12 29 165 42 48 291 34 1195
08:15 AM 35 177 20 39 297 14 27 145 43 43 281 32 1153
08:30 AM 31 144 20 44 285 14 26 135 37 44 301 31 1112
08:45 AM 27 115 11 35 289 10 39 119 36 40 254 27 1002

Total 129 576 87 168 1183 50 121 564 158 175 1127 124 4462

04:00 PM 29 214 31 44 326 14 35 148 44 38 269 33 1225
04:15 PM 36 200 25 52 305 11 35 127 46 38 254 32 1161
04:30 PM 39 225 32 61 320 10 41 130 37 28 288 27 1238
04:45 PM 37 225 43 57 335 17 42 117 50 31 272 25 1251

Total 141 864 131 214 1286 52 153 522 177 135 1083 117 4875

05:00 PM 28 245 43 50 346 11 36 109 41 41 297 21 1268
05:15 PM 25 246 38 53 335 17 40 123 46 46 285 33 1287
05:30 PM 38 237 33 51 341 14 41 121 41 37 297 21 1272
05:45 PM 32 209 27 56 339 18 44 128 37 36 270 22 1218

Total 123 937 141 210 1361 60 161 481 165 160 1149 97 5045

Grand Total 512 3032 429 774 5241 207 532 2085 594 652 4469 438 18965
Apprch % 12.9 76.3 10.8 12.4 84.2 3.3 16.6 64.9 18.5 11.7 80.4 7.9

Total % 2.7 16 2.3 4.1 27.6 1.1 2.8 11 3.1 3.4 23.6 2.3

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : NorwalkImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Norwalk Blvd
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Norwalk Blvd
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:30 AM

07:30 AM 34 167 18 219 50 342 10 402 26 152 23 201 43 304 28 375 1197
07:45 AM 33 219 26 278 48 339 12 399 25 151 36 212 45 308 38 391 1280
08:00 AM 36 140 36 212 50 312 12 374 29 165 42 236 48 291 34 373 1195
08:15 AM 35 177 20 232 39 297 14 350 27 145 43 215 43 281 32 356 1153

Total Volume 138 703 100 941 187 1290 48 1525 107 613 144 864 179 1184 132 1495 4825
% App. Total 14.7 74.7 10.6 12.3 84.6 3.1 12.4 70.9 16.7 12 79.2 8.8

PHF .958 .803 .694 .846 .935 .943 .857 .948 .922 .929 .837 .915 .932 .961 .868 .956 .942

 Norwalk Blvd 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Norwalk Blvd 

Right
100

Thru
703

Left
138

InOut Total
840 941 1781

R
ight

48
T

hru
1290

Left
187

O
ut

T
otal

In
1466

1525
2991

Left
107

Thru
613

Right
144

Out TotalIn
1022 864 1886

Le
ft

17
9

T
hr

u
11

84
R

ig
ht

13
2

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

14
97

14
95

29
92

Peak Hour Begins at 07:30 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : NorwalkImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Norwalk Blvd
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Norwalk Blvd
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:45 PM

04:45 PM 37 225 43 305 57 335 17 409 42 117 50 209 31 272 25 328 1251
05:00 PM 28 245 43 316 50 346 11 407 36 109 41 186 41 297 21 359 1268
05:15 PM 25 246 38 309 53 335 17 405 40 123 46 209 46 285 33 364 1287
05:30 PM 38 237 33 308 51 341 14 406 41 121 41 203 37 297 21 355 1272

Total Volume 128 953 157 1238 211 1357 59 1627 159 470 178 807 155 1151 100 1406 5078
% App. Total 10.3 77 12.7 13 83.4 3.6 19.7 58.2 22.1 11 81.9 7.1

PHF .842 .968 .913 .979 .925 .980 .868 .994 .946 .955 .890 .965 .842 .969 .758 .966 .986

 Norwalk Blvd 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Norwalk Blvd 

Right
157

Thru
953

Left
128

InOut Total
684 1238 1922

R
ight

59
T

hru
1357

Left
211

O
ut

T
otal

In
1457

1627
3084

Left
159

Thru
470

Right
178

Out TotalIn
1264 807 2071

Le
ft

15
5

T
hr

u
11

51
R

ig
ht

10
0

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

16
73

14
06

30
79

Peak Hour Begins at 04:45 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



City of Norwalk



City of Norwalk



City of Norwalk



City of Norwalk



File Name : BloomFlorence
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Bloomfield Ave

Southbound
Florence Ave
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Florence Ave
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 4 118 8 20 289 7 28 123 8 22 125 20 772
07:15 AM 9 92 11 17 291 44 19 114 4 28 147 21 797
07:30 AM 6 130 13 32 239 12 24 133 11 25 137 10 772
07:45 AM 6 123 12 47 245 28 12 125 6 32 119 17 772

Total 25 463 44 116 1064 91 83 495 29 107 528 68 3113

08:00 AM 5 132 6 12 229 23 12 136 8 38 114 9 724
08:15 AM 11 97 7 14 218 8 10 114 12 36 134 18 679
08:30 AM 6 95 15 14 212 6 16 112 16 24 145 15 676
08:45 AM 5 79 3 12 191 6 17 110 12 23 100 7 565

Total 27 403 31 52 850 43 55 472 48 121 493 49 2644

04:15 PM 18 130 10 13 200 12 18 97 20 23 226 14 781
04:30 PM 22 129 12 13 216 15 17 102 40 35 230 8 839
04:45 PM 11 195 13 14 209 33 36 161 22 32 267 13 1006

Total 51 454 35 40 625 60 71 360 82 90 723 35 2626

05:00 PM 21 201 55 11 230 10 37 170 31 39 248 16 1069
05:15 PM 19 164 30 10 228 7 40 124 24 31 214 8 899
05:30 PM 23 125 21 14 218 6 22 101 26 34 204 8 802
05:45 PM 20 122 20 12 216 5 19 90 22 29 200 11 766

Total 83 612 126 47 892 28 118 485 103 133 866 43 3536

Grand Total 186 1932 236 255 3431 222 327 1812 262 451 2610 195 11919
Apprch % 7.9 82.1 10 6.5 87.8 5.7 13.6 75.5 10.9 13.9 80.2 6

Total % 1.6 16.2 2 2.1 28.8 1.9 2.7 15.2 2.2 3.8 21.9 1.6

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomFlorence
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Florence Ave
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Florence Ave
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:00 AM

07:00 AM 4 118 8 130 20 289 7 316 28 123 8 159 22 125 20 167 772
07:15 AM 9 92 11 112 17 291 44 352 19 114 4 137 28 147 21 196 797
07:30 AM 6 130 13 149 32 239 12 283 24 133 11 168 25 137 10 172 772
07:45 AM 6 123 12 141 47 245 28 320 12 125 6 143 32 119 17 168 772

Total Volume 25 463 44 532 116 1064 91 1271 83 495 29 607 107 528 68 703 3113
% App. Total 4.7 87 8.3 9.1 83.7 7.2 13.7 81.5 4.8 15.2 75.1 9.7

PHF .694 .890 .846 .893 .617 .914 .517 .903 .741 .930 .659 .903 .836 .898 .810 .897 .976

 Bloomfield Ave 

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
  F

lorence A
ve 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
44

Thru
463

Left
25

InOut Total
693 532 1225

R
ight

91
T

hru
1064

Left
116

O
ut

T
otal

In
582

1271
1853

Left
83

Thru
495

Right
29

Out TotalIn
647 607 1254

Le
ft

10
7

T
hr

u
52

8
R

ig
ht68

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

11
91

70
3

18
94

Peak Hour Begins at 07:00 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomFlorence
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Florence Ave
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Florence Ave
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 22 129 12 163 13 216 15 244 17 102 40 159 35 230 8 273 839
04:45 PM 11 195 13 219 14 209 33 256 36 161 22 219 32 267 13 312 1006
05:00 PM 21 201 55 277 11 230 10 251 37 170 31 238 39 248 16 303 1069
05:15 PM 19 164 30 213 10 228 7 245 40 124 24 188 31 214 8 253 899

Total Volume 73 689 110 872 48 883 65 996 130 557 117 804 137 959 45 1141 3813
% App. Total 8.4 79 12.6 4.8 88.7 6.5 16.2 69.3 14.6 12 84 3.9

PHF .830 .857 .500 .787 .857 .960 .492 .973 .813 .819 .731 .845 .878 .898 .703 .914 .892

 Bloomfield Ave 

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
  F

lorence A
ve 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
110

Thru
689

Left
73

InOut Total
759 872 1631

R
ight

65
T

hru
883

Left 48

O
ut

T
otal

In
1149

996
2145

Left
130

Thru
557

Right
117

Out TotalIn
782 804 1586

Le
ft

13
7

T
hr

u
95

9
R

ig
ht45

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

11
23

11
41

22
64

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Bloomfield Ave

Southbound
Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 30 83 28 66 384 28 22 142 36 38 233 6 1096
07:15 AM 29 112 26 64 369 30 39 151 48 35 259 9 1171
07:30 AM 33 113 29 68 373 29 30 206 59 46 302 7 1295
07:45 AM 46 152 34 74 380 34 42 202 55 43 274 11 1347

Total 138 460 117 272 1506 121 133 701 198 162 1068 33 4909

08:00 AM 39 120 25 85 335 26 49 202 76 45 264 21 1287
08:15 AM 42 100 30 56 302 17 52 152 40 37 241 7 1076
08:30 AM 39 102 24 62 315 24 34 143 45 30 251 11 1080
08:45 AM 34 57 24 62 318 11 36 122 43 38 270 15 1030

Total 154 379 103 265 1270 78 171 619 204 150 1026 54 4473

04:00 PM 36 100 30 52 269 22 43 75 42 30 249 22 970
04:15 PM 31 115 31 41 253 21 41 96 57 18 272 19 995
04:30 PM 65 153 29 46 266 18 40 82 84 21 297 13 1114
04:45 PM 50 150 29 40 279 19 39 89 70 24 324 16 1129

Total 182 518 119 179 1067 80 163 342 253 93 1142 70 4208

05:00 PM 53 177 21 50 302 24 35 97 69 22 309 17 1176
05:15 PM 62 149 15 53 268 22 28 93 70 18 294 13 1085
05:30 PM 53 129 22 65 239 20 37 83 68 16 309 17 1058
05:45 PM 33 115 17 60 292 25 37 95 98 28 304 18 1122

Total 201 570 75 228 1101 91 137 368 305 84 1216 65 4441

Grand Total 675 1927 414 944 4944 370 604 2030 960 489 4452 222 18031
Apprch % 22.4 63.9 13.7 15.1 79 5.9 16.8 56.5 26.7 9.5 86.2 4.3

Total % 3.7 10.7 2.3 5.2 27.4 2.1 3.3 11.3 5.3 2.7 24.7 1.2

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 29 112 26 167 64 369 30 463 39 151 48 238 35 259 9 303 1171
07:30 AM 33 113 29 175 68 373 29 470 30 206 59 295 46 302 7 355 1295
07:45 AM 46 152 34 232 74 380 34 488 42 202 55 299 43 274 11 328 1347
08:00 AM 39 120 25 184 85 335 26 446 49 202 76 327 45 264 21 330 1287

Total Volume 147 497 114 758 291 1457 119 1867 160 761 238 1159 169 1099 48 1316 5100
% App. Total 19.4 65.6 15 15.6 78 6.4 13.8 65.7 20.5 12.8 83.5 3.6

PHF .799 .817 .838 .817 .856 .959 .875 .956 .816 .924 .783 .886 .918 .910 .571 .927 .947

 Bloomfield Ave 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
114

Thru
497

Left
147

InOut Total
1049 758 1807

R
ight
119

T
hru

1457
Left
291

O
ut

T
otal

In
1484

1867
3351

Left
160

Thru
761

Right
238

Out TotalIn
836 1159 1995

Le
ft

16
9

T
hr

u
10

99
R

ig
ht48

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

17
31

13
16

30
47

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 65 153 29 247 46 266 18 330 40 82 84 206 21 297 13 331 1114
04:45 PM 50 150 29 229 40 279 19 338 39 89 70 198 24 324 16 364 1129
05:00 PM 53 177 21 251 50 302 24 376 35 97 69 201 22 309 17 348 1176
05:15 PM 62 149 15 226 53 268 22 343 28 93 70 191 18 294 13 325 1085

Total Volume 230 629 94 953 189 1115 83 1387 142 361 293 796 85 1224 59 1368 4504
% App. Total 24.1 66 9.9 13.6 80.4 6 17.8 45.4 36.8 6.2 89.5 4.3

PHF .885 .888 .810 .949 .892 .923 .865 .922 .888 .930 .872 .966 .885 .944 .868 .940 .957

 Bloomfield Ave 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
94

Thru
629

Left
230

InOut Total
529 953 1482

R
ight

83
T

hru
1115

Left
189

O
ut

T
otal

In
1747

1387
3134

Left
142

Thru
361

Right
293

Out TotalIn
877 796 1673

Le
ft85

T
hr

u
12

24
R

ig
ht59

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

13
51

13
68

27
19

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomCC
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Bloomfield Ave

Southbound
Civic Center Dr

Westbound
Bloomfield Ave

Northbound
Civic Center Dr

Eastbound
Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 3 78 52 3 7 7 46 139 2 47 2 26 412
07:15 AM 1 65 46 11 18 9 40 146 2 64 4 27 433
07:30 AM 3 100 57 8 13 2 52 160 3 76 6 31 511
07:45 AM 3 104 81 10 21 12 79 175 3 79 6 29 602

Total 10 347 236 32 59 30 217 620 10 266 18 113 1958

08:00 AM 4 90 81 1 11 8 59 162 2 81 4 28 531
08:15 AM 3 86 54 3 9 6 38 171 0 57 3 20 450
08:30 AM 3 68 55 4 9 7 28 160 6 31 5 17 393
08:45 AM 5 45 43 3 9 5 25 140 1 41 6 16 339

Total 15 289 233 11 38 26 150 633 9 210 18 81 1713

04:00 PM 5 115 57 2 4 2 33 96 1 87 6 39 447
04:15 PM 2 114 63 1 8 1 32 97 3 80 4 38 443
04:30 PM 7 125 88 1 4 2 23 102 1 76 5 46 480
04:45 PM 4 113 85 2 3 3 18 117 4 77 8 57 491

Total 18 467 293 6 19 8 106 412 9 320 23 180 1861

05:00 PM 5 173 89 2 4 3 27 89 2 104 8 67 573
05:15 PM 5 130 74 1 2 1 33 88 4 84 4 34 460
05:30 PM 3 125 56 7 8 3 31 86 5 79 4 47 454
05:45 PM 3 117 57 3 4 3 29 90 3 82 9 57 457

Total 16 545 276 13 18 10 120 353 14 349 25 205 1944

Grand Total 59 1648 1038 62 134 74 593 2018 42 1145 84 579 7476
Apprch % 2.1 60 37.8 23 49.6 27.4 22.4 76.1 1.6 63.3 4.6 32

Total % 0.8 22 13.9 0.8 1.8 1 7.9 27 0.6 15.3 1.1 7.7

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomCC
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Civic Center Dr
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Civic Center Dr
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:30 AM

07:30 AM 3 100 57 160 8 13 2 23 52 160 3 215 76 6 31 113 511
07:45 AM 3 104 81 188 10 21 12 43 79 175 3 257 79 6 29 114 602
08:00 AM 4 90 81 175 1 11 8 20 59 162 2 223 81 4 28 113 531
08:15 AM 3 86 54 143 3 9 6 18 38 171 0 209 57 3 20 80 450

Total Volume 13 380 273 666 22 54 28 104 228 668 8 904 293 19 108 420 2094
% App. Total 2 57.1 41 21.2 51.9 26.9 25.2 73.9 0.9 69.8 4.5 25.7

PHF .813 .913 .843 .886 .550 .643 .583 .605 .722 .954 .667 .879 .904 .792 .871 .921 .870

 Bloomfield Ave 

 C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r 
D

r 
 C

ivic C
enter D

r 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
273

Thru
380

Left
13

InOut Total
989 666 1655

R
ight

28
T

hru 54
Left 22

O
ut

T
otal

In
40

104
144

Left
228

Thru
668

Right
8

Out TotalIn
510 904 1414

Le
ft

29
3

T
hr

u19
R

ig
ht

10
8

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

55
5

42
0

97
5

Peak Hour Begins at 07:30 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : BloomCC
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Civic Center Dr
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Civic Center Dr
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 7 125 88 220 1 4 2 7 23 102 1 126 76 5 46 127 480
04:45 PM 4 113 85 202 2 3 3 8 18 117 4 139 77 8 57 142 491
05:00 PM 5 173 89 267 2 4 3 9 27 89 2 118 104 8 67 179 573
05:15 PM 5 130 74 209 1 2 1 4 33 88 4 125 84 4 34 122 460

Total Volume 21 541 336 898 6 13 9 28 101 396 11 508 341 25 204 570 2004
% App. Total 2.3 60.2 37.4 21.4 46.4 32.1 19.9 78 2.2 59.8 4.4 35.8

PHF .750 .782 .944 .841 .750 .813 .750 .778 .765 .846 .688 .914 .820 .781 .761 .796 .874

 Bloomfield Ave 

 C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r 
D

r 
 C

ivic C
enter D

r 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
336

Thru
541

Left
21

InOut Total
746 898 1644

R
ight 9

T
hru 13

Left 6

O
ut

T
otal

In
57

28
85

Left
101

Thru
396

Right
11

Out TotalIn
751 508 1259

Le
ft

34
1

T
hr

u25
R

ig
ht

20
4

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

45
0

57
0

10
20

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : Bloom5NB
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Bloomfield Ave

Southbound
I-5 NB On Ramp

Westbound
Bloomfield Ave

Northbound
I-5 NB On Ramp

Eastbound
Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 0 0 0 66 0 7 0 53 120 0 0 0 246
07:15 AM 0 0 0 71 0 2 0 96 129 0 0 0 298
07:30 AM 0 0 0 121 0 6 0 79 167 0 0 0 373
07:45 AM 0 0 0 101 0 24 0 88 186 0 0 0 399

Total 0 0 0 359 0 39 0 316 602 0 0 0 1316

08:00 AM 0 0 0 96 0 11 0 66 171 0 0 0 344
08:15 AM 0 0 0 64 0 10 0 84 175 0 0 0 333
08:30 AM 0 0 0 81 0 12 0 85 143 0 0 0 321
08:45 AM 0 0 0 48 0 12 0 98 142 0 0 0 300

Total 0 0 0 289 0 45 0 333 631 0 0 0 1298

04:00 PM 0 0 0 102 0 19 0 95 89 0 0 0 305
04:15 PM 0 0 0 95 0 20 0 142 77 0 0 0 334
04:30 PM 0 0 0 89 0 32 0 89 102 0 0 0 312
04:45 PM 0 0 0 95 0 24 0 106 103 0 0 0 328

Total 0 0 0 381 0 95 0 432 371 0 0 0 1279

05:00 PM 0 0 0 104 0 29 0 120 91 0 0 0 344
05:15 PM 0 0 0 89 0 35 0 114 115 0 0 0 353
05:30 PM 0 0 0 91 0 15 0 104 82 0 0 0 292
05:45 PM 0 0 0 86 0 10 0 105 107 0 0 0 308

Total 0 0 0 370 0 89 0 443 395 0 0 0 1297

Grand Total 0 0 0 1399 0 268 0 1524 1999 0 0 0 5190
Apprch % 0 0 0 83.9 0 16.1 0 43.3 56.7 0 0 0

Total % 0 0 0 27 0 5.2 0 29.4 38.5 0 0 0

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : Bloom5NB
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

I-5 NB On Ramp
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

I-5 NB On Ramp
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:30 AM

07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 121 0 6 127 0 79 167 246 0 0 0 0 373
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 101 0 24 125 0 88 186 274 0 0 0 0 399
08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 96 0 11 107 0 66 171 237 0 0 0 0 344
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 64 0 10 74 0 84 175 259 0 0 0 0 333

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 382 0 51 433 0 317 699 1016 0 0 0 0 1449
% App. Total 0 0 0 88.2 0 11.8 0 31.2 68.8 0 0 0

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .789 .000 .531 .852 .000 .901 .940 .927 .000 .000 .000 .000 .908

 Bloomfield Ave 

 I-
5 

N
B

 O
n 

R
am

p 
 I-5 N

B
 O

n R
am

p 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
0

Thru
0

Left
0

InOut Total
368 0 368

R
ight

51
T

hru 0
Left
382

O
ut

T
otal

In
699

433
1132

Left
0

Thru
317

Right
699

Out TotalIn
382 1016 1398

Le
ft0

T
hr

u0
R

ig
ht0

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

0
0

0

Peak Hour Begins at 07:30 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : Bloom5NB
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

I-5 NB On Ramp
Westbound

Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

I-5 NB On Ramp
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 89 0 32 121 0 89 102 191 0 0 0 0 312
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 95 0 24 119 0 106 103 209 0 0 0 0 328
05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 104 0 29 133 0 120 91 211 0 0 0 0 344
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 89 0 35 124 0 114 115 229 0 0 0 0 353

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 377 0 120 497 0 429 411 840 0 0 0 0 1337
% App. Total 0 0 0 75.9 0 24.1 0 51.1 48.9 0 0 0

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .906 .000 .857 .934 .000 .894 .893 .917 .000 .000 .000 .000 .947

 Bloomfield Ave 

 I-
5 

N
B

 O
n 

R
am

p 
 I-5 N

B
 O

n R
am

p 

 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
0

Thru
0

Left
0

InOut Total
549 0 549

R
ight
120

T
hru 0

Left
377

O
ut

T
otal

In
411

497
908

Left
0

Thru
429

Right
411

Out TotalIn
377 840 1217

Le
ft0

T
hr

u0
R

ig
ht0

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

0
0

0

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : ShoeFlorence
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Shoemaker Ave

Southbound
Florence Ave
Westbound

Shoemaker Ave
Northbound

Florence Ave
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 4 81 5 13 302 11 32 89 21 22 108 29 717
07:15 AM 6 79 10 14 309 12 34 90 19 24 120 32 749
07:30 AM 5 84 9 12 259 10 35 94 22 29 127 34 720
07:45 AM 4 88 12 10 261 9 30 79 17 32 116 31 689

Total 19 332 36 49 1131 42 131 352 79 107 471 126 2875

08:00 AM 4 73 9 8 212 6 44 85 10 27 118 32 628
08:15 AM 1 54 13 11 243 11 32 69 15 30 155 27 661
08:30 AM 1 49 7 6 219 11 30 75 9 16 119 18 560
08:45 AM 3 52 8 8 188 7 29 69 11 19 101 16 511

Total 9 228 37 33 862 35 135 298 45 92 493 93 2360

04:00 PM 16 94 27 7 175 10 33 82 14 14 287 36 795
04:15 PM 3 67 14 12 166 5 27 88 18 11 251 39 701
04:30 PM 12 94 31 18 205 3 32 97 15 11 288 53 859
04:45 PM 12 93 22 10 190 1 21 81 25 11 284 31 781

Total 43 348 94 47 736 19 113 348 72 47 1110 159 3136

05:00 PM 19 137 27 11 153 2 44 152 36 8 271 40 900
05:15 PM 8 115 19 12 202 5 30 71 20 10 290 33 815
05:30 PM 10 87 16 8 161 6 24 68 12 15 273 32 712
05:45 PM 10 80 14 9 174 5 22 64 11 14 240 28 671

Total 47 419 76 40 690 18 120 355 79 47 1074 133 3098

Grand Total 118 1327 243 169 3419 114 499 1353 275 293 3148 511 11469
Apprch % 7 78.6 14.4 4.6 92.4 3.1 23.5 63.6 12.9 7.4 79.7 12.9

Total % 1 11.6 2.1 1.5 29.8 1 4.4 11.8 2.4 2.6 27.4 4.5

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : ShoeFlorence
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Shoemaker Ave
Southbound

Florence Ave
Westbound

Shoemaker Ave
Northbound

Florence Ave
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:00 AM

07:00 AM 4 81 5 90 13 302 11 326 32 89 21 142 22 108 29 159 717
07:15 AM 6 79 10 95 14 309 12 335 34 90 19 143 24 120 32 176 749
07:30 AM 5 84 9 98 12 259 10 281 35 94 22 151 29 127 34 190 720
07:45 AM 4 88 12 104 10 261 9 280 30 79 17 126 32 116 31 179 689

Total Volume 19 332 36 387 49 1131 42 1222 131 352 79 562 107 471 126 704 2875
% App. Total 4.9 85.8 9.3 4 92.6 3.4 23.3 62.6 14.1 15.2 66.9 17.9

PHF .792 .943 .750 .930 .875 .915 .875 .912 .936 .936 .898 .930 .836 .927 .926 .926 .960

 Shoemaker Ave 

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
  F

lorence A
ve 

 Shoemaker Ave 

Right
36

Thru
332

Left
19

InOut Total
501 387 888

R
ight

42
T

hru
1131

Left 49

O
ut

T
otal

In
569

1222
1791

Left
131

Thru
352

Right
79

Out TotalIn
507 562 1069

Le
ft

10
7

T
hr

u
47

1
R

ig
ht

12
6

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

12
98

70
4

20
02

Peak Hour Begins at 07:00 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : ShoeFlorence
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Shoemaker Ave
Southbound

Florence Ave
Westbound

Shoemaker Ave
Northbound

Florence Ave
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 12 94 31 137 18 205 3 226 32 97 15 144 11 288 53 352 859
04:45 PM 12 93 22 127 10 190 1 201 21 81 25 127 11 284 31 326 781
05:00 PM 19 137 27 183 11 153 2 166 44 152 36 232 8 271 40 319 900
05:15 PM 8 115 19 142 12 202 5 219 30 71 20 121 10 290 33 333 815

Total Volume 51 439 99 589 51 750 11 812 127 401 96 624 40 1133 157 1330 3355
% App. Total 8.7 74.5 16.8 6.3 92.4 1.4 20.4 64.3 15.4 3 85.2 11.8

PHF .671 .801 .798 .805 .708 .915 .550 .898 .722 .660 .667 .672 .909 .977 .741 .945 .932

 Shoemaker Ave 

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
  F

lorence A
ve 

 Shoemaker Ave 

Right
99

Thru
439

Left
51

InOut Total
452 589 1041

R
ight

11
T

hru
750

Left 51

O
ut

T
otal

In
1280

812
2092

Left
127

Thru
401

Right
96

Out TotalIn
647 624 1271

Le
ft40

T
hr

u
11

33
R

ig
ht

15
7

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

97
6

13
30

23
06

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : ShoeImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Shoemaker Ave

Southbound
Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Shoemaker Ave
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 25 99 25 8 370 20 10 41 6 46 153 16 819
07:15 AM 53 21 41 5 420 30 17 17 3 42 204 17 870
07:30 AM 58 13 32 1 434 30 15 8 0 34 290 14 929
07:45 AM 69 27 24 5 417 26 31 19 1 40 316 12 987

Total 205 160 122 19 1641 106 73 85 10 162 963 59 3605

08:00 AM 61 18 38 5 422 40 16 29 1 52 301 14 997
08:15 AM 56 9 22 2 331 31 6 6 6 43 258 24 794
08:30 AM 45 7 29 5 356 23 11 7 2 32 268 8 793
08:45 AM 34 15 22 4 373 35 12 7 4 27 219 4 756

Total 196 49 111 16 1482 129 45 49 13 154 1046 50 3340

04:00 PM 43 42 40 8 255 23 34 25 3 44 270 17 804
04:15 PM 47 12 25 5 276 27 25 15 2 46 330 14 824
04:30 PM 56 16 26 3 265 20 31 12 0 35 365 12 841
04:45 PM 46 12 22 7 261 34 23 14 5 41 427 11 903

Total 192 82 113 23 1057 104 113 66 10 166 1392 54 3372

05:00 PM 84 25 29 8 249 24 50 26 15 33 422 5 970
05:15 PM 95 30 23 5 258 22 43 27 5 45 403 6 962
05:30 PM 56 19 47 6 271 27 29 26 3 40 380 2 906
05:45 PM 58 13 22 9 273 32 28 28 3 42 396 13 917

Total 293 87 121 28 1051 105 150 107 26 160 1601 26 3755

Grand Total 886 378 467 86 5231 444 381 307 59 642 5002 189 14072
Apprch % 51.2 21.8 27 1.5 90.8 7.7 51 41.1 7.9 11 85.8 3.2

Total % 6.3 2.7 3.3 0.6 37.2 3.2 2.7 2.2 0.4 4.6 35.5 1.3

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : ShoeImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Shoemaker Ave
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Shoemaker Ave
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 53 21 41 115 5 420 30 455 17 17 3 37 42 204 17 263 870
07:30 AM 58 13 32 103 1 434 30 465 15 8 0 23 34 290 14 338 929
07:45 AM 69 27 24 120 5 417 26 448 31 19 1 51 40 316 12 368 987
08:00 AM 61 18 38 117 5 422 40 467 16 29 1 46 52 301 14 367 997

Total Volume 241 79 135 455 16 1693 126 1835 79 73 5 157 168 1111 57 1336 3783
% App. Total 53 17.4 29.7 0.9 92.3 6.9 50.3 46.5 3.2 12.6 83.2 4.3

PHF .873 .731 .823 .948 .800 .975 .788 .982 .637 .629 .417 .770 .808 .879 .838 .908 .949

 Shoemaker Ave 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Shoemaker Ave 

Right
135

Thru
79

Left
241

InOut Total
367 455 822

R
ight
126

T
hru

1693
Left 16

O
ut

T
otal

In
1357

1835
3192

Left
79

Thru
73

Right
5

Out TotalIn
152 157 309

Le
ft

16
8

T
hr

u
11

11
R

ig
ht57

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

19
07

13
36

32
43

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : ShoeImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Shoemaker Ave
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Shoemaker Ave
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 05:00 PM

05:00 PM 84 25 29 138 8 249 24 281 50 26 15 91 33 422 5 460 970
05:15 PM 95 30 23 148 5 258 22 285 43 27 5 75 45 403 6 454 962
05:30 PM 56 19 47 122 6 271 27 304 29 26 3 58 40 380 2 422 906
05:45 PM 58 13 22 93 9 273 32 314 28 28 3 59 42 396 13 451 917

Total Volume 293 87 121 501 28 1051 105 1184 150 107 26 283 160 1601 26 1787 3755
% App. Total 58.5 17.4 24.2 2.4 88.8 8.9 53 37.8 9.2 9 89.6 1.5

PHF .771 .725 .644 .846 .778 .962 .820 .943 .750 .955 .433 .777 .889 .948 .500 .971 .968

 Shoemaker Ave 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Shoemaker Ave 

Right
121

Thru
87

Left
293

InOut Total
372 501 873

R
ight
105

T
hru

1051
Left 28

O
ut

T
otal

In
1920

1184
3104

Left
150

Thru
107

Right
26

Out TotalIn
141 283 424

Le
ft

16
0

T
hr

u
16

01
R

ig
ht26

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

13
22

17
87

31
09

Peak Hour Begins at 05:00 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : CarmImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Unshifted
Carmenita Rd
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Carmenita Rd
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 16 165 4 21 285 19 49 99 13 9 150 25 855
07:15 AM 21 211 2 29 307 11 54 127 9 14 181 38 1004
07:30 AM 22 183 1 39 299 12 44 177 18 11 217 41 1064
07:45 AM 34 180 3 28 277 14 48 142 12 14 207 42 1001

Total 93 739 10 117 1168 56 195 545 52 48 755 146 3924

08:00 AM 19 150 2 31 289 29 49 117 26 18 211 32 973
08:15 AM 23 199 3 29 246 15 45 130 17 16 190 35 948
08:30 AM 25 138 1 29 250 14 50 150 28 13 189 32 919
08:45 AM 24 128 1 22 259 23 50 115 17 11 171 34 855

Total 91 615 7 111 1044 81 194 512 88 58 761 133 3695

04:00 PM 18 115 0 26 178 25 51 211 24 25 236 38 947
04:15 PM 14 129 3 24 181 40 41 203 26 18 269 38 986
04:30 PM 34 167 2 31 193 35 53 231 40 14 317 39 1156
04:45 PM 27 159 2 34 252 36 33 222 25 17 347 46 1200

Total 93 570 7 115 804 136 178 867 115 74 1169 161 4289

05:00 PM 27 213 3 17 218 37 59 280 38 22 380 38 1332
05:15 PM 24 178 4 28 226 13 51 276 35 23 374 47 1279
05:30 PM 23 166 4 29 230 21 42 236 22 20 360 33 1186
05:45 PM 16 137 2 23 215 42 41 266 24 17 331 40 1154

Total 90 694 13 97 889 113 193 1058 119 82 1445 158 4951

Grand Total 367 2618 37 440 3905 386 760 2982 374 262 4130 598 16859
Apprch % 12.1 86.6 1.2 9.3 82.5 8.2 18.5 72.4 9.1 5.3 82.8 12

Total % 2.2 15.5 0.2 2.6 23.2 2.3 4.5 17.7 2.2 1.6 24.5 3.5

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : CarmImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

Carmenita Rd
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Carmenita Rd
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 21 211 2 234 29 307 11 347 54 127 9 190 14 181 38 233 1004
07:30 AM 22 183 1 206 39 299 12 350 44 177 18 239 11 217 41 269 1064
07:45 AM 34 180 3 217 28 277 14 319 48 142 12 202 14 207 42 263 1001
08:00 AM 19 150 2 171 31 289 29 349 49 117 26 192 18 211 32 261 973

Total Volume 96 724 8 828 127 1172 66 1365 195 563 65 823 57 816 153 1026 4042
% App. Total 11.6 87.4 1 9.3 85.9 4.8 23.7 68.4 7.9 5.6 79.5 14.9

PHF .706 .858 .667 .885 .814 .954 .569 .975 .903 .795 .625 .861 .792 .940 .911 .954 .950

 Carmenita Rd 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Carmenita Rd 

Right
8

Thru
724

Left
96

InOut Total
686 828 1514

R
ight

66
T

hru
1172

Left
127

O
ut

T
otal

In
977

1365
2342

Left
195

Thru
563

Right
65

Out TotalIn
1004 823 1827

Le
ft57

T
hr

u
81

6
R

ig
ht

15
3

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

13
75

10
26

24
01

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : CarmImperial
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 3

Carmenita Rd
Southbound

Imperial Hwy
Westbound

Carmenita Rd
Northbound

Imperial Hwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:45 PM

04:45 PM 27 159 2 188 34 252 36 322 33 222 25 280 17 347 46 410 1200
05:00 PM 27 213 3 243 17 218 37 272 59 280 38 377 22 380 38 440 1332
05:15 PM 24 178 4 206 28 226 13 267 51 276 35 362 23 374 47 444 1279
05:30 PM 23 166 4 193 29 230 21 280 42 236 22 300 20 360 33 413 1186

Total Volume 101 716 13 830 108 926 107 1141 185 1014 120 1319 82 1461 164 1707 4997
% App. Total 12.2 86.3 1.6 9.5 81.2 9.4 14 76.9 9.1 4.8 85.6 9.6

PHF .935 .840 .813 .854 .794 .919 .723 .886 .784 .905 .789 .875 .891 .961 .872 .961 .938

 Carmenita Rd 

 Im
pe

ria
l H

w
y 

 Im
perial H

w
y 

 Carmenita Rd 

Right
13

Thru
716

Left
101

InOut Total
1203 830 2033

R
ight
107

T
hru
926

Left
108

O
ut

T
otal

In
1682

1141
2823

Left
185

Thru
1014

Right
120

Out TotalIn
988 1319 2307

Le
ft82

T
hr

u
14

61
R

ig
ht

16
4

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

11
24

17
07

28
31

Peak Hour Begins at 04:45 PM

Unshifted

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com



File Name : 12438bloomfield_South
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Bank 1
12438 Bloomfield Ave

Southbound
Norwalk City Yard Drvwy

Westbound
12438 Bloomfield Ave

Northbound
Norwalk City Yard Drvwy

Eastbound
Start Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Int. Total
07:00 AM 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
07:15 AM 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

07:45 AM 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Total 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

08:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Grand Total 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 8
Apprch % 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0

Total % 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 0

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com

Driveway Count



File Name : 12438bloomfield_South
Site Code : 00000000
Start Date : 6/6/2013
Page No : 2

12438 Bloomfield Ave
Southbound

Norwalk City Yard Drvwy
Westbound

12438 Bloomfield Ave
Northbound

Norwalk City Yard Drvwy
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:00 AM

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 6
% App. Total 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .500 .000 .000 .500 .000 .000 .500 .500 .000 .000 .000 .000 .750

 12438 Bloomfield Ave 

 N
or

w
al

k 
C

ity
 Y

ar
d 

D
rv

w
y 

 N
orw

alk C
ity Y

ard D
rvw

y 

 12438 Bloomfield Ave 

Right
0

Thru
0

Left
0

InOut Total
0 0 0

R
ight 0

T
hru 0

Left 4

O
ut

T
otal

In
2

4
6

Left
0

Thru
0

Right
2

Out TotalIn
4 2 6

Le
ft0

T
hr

u0
R

ig
ht0

T
ot

al
O

ut
In

0
0

0

Peak Hour Begins at 07:00 AM

Bank 1

Peak Hour Data

North

CITY TRAFFIC COUNTERS
626.447.4171

www.ctcounters.com

Driveway Count



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Appendix Covers.doc 

APPENDIX B
CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS:

ICU AND LEVELS OF SERVICE EXPLANATION
ICU DATA WORKSHEETS - WEEKDAY AM AND PM PEAK HOURS



INTERSECTION CAPACITY UTILIZATION (ICU) DESCRIPTION 

Level of Service is a term used to describe prevailing conditions and their effect on traffic.  Broadly interpreted, the Levels of Service 
concept denotes any one of a number of differing combinations of operating conditions which may occur as a roadway is 
accommodating various traffic volumes.  Level of Service is a qualitative measure of the effect of such factors as travel speed, travel 
time, traffic interruptions, freedom to maneuver, safety, driving comfort and convenience. 
 
Six Levels of Service, A through F, have been defined in the 1965 Highway Capacity Manual, published by the Transportation Research 
Board.  Level of Service A describes a condition of free flow, with low traffic volumes and relatively high speeds, while Level of Service 
F describes forced traffic flow at low speeds with jammed conditions and queues which cannot clear during the green phases. 
 
The Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) method of intersection capacity analysis has been used in our studies.  It directly relates 
traffic demand and available capacity for key intersection movements, regardless of present signal timing,  The capacity per hour of 
green time for each approach is calculated based on the methods of the Highway Capacity Manual.  The proportion of total signal time 
needed by each key movement is determined and compared to the total time available (100 percent of the hour).  The result of summing 
the requirements of the conflicting key movements plus an allowance for clearance times is expressed as a decimal fraction.  Conflicting 
key traffic movements are those opposing movements whose combined green time requirements are greatest. 
 
The resulting ICU represents the proportion of the total hour required to accommodate intersection demand volumes if the key 
conflicting traffic movements are operating at capacity.  Other movements may be operating near capacity, or may be operating at 
significantly better levels.  The ICU may be translated to a Level of Service as tabulated below. 
 
The Levels of Service (abbreviated from the Highway Capacity Manual) are listed here with their corresponding ICU and Load Factor 
equivalents.  Load Factor is that proportion of the signal cycles during the peak hour which are fully loaded; i.e. when all of the vehicles 
waiting at the beginning of green are not able to clear on that green phase. 
 

Intersection Capacity Utilization Characteristics 

Level of Service Load Factor Equivalent ICU 

A 0.0 0.00 - 0.60 
B 0.0 - 0.1 0.61 - 0.70 
C 0.1 - 0.3 0.71 - 0.80 
D 0.3 - 0.7 0.81 - 0.90 
E 0.7 - 1.0 0.91 - 1.00 
F Not Applicable Not Applicable 

 
SERVICE LEVEL A 
There are no loaded cycles and few are even close to loaded at this service level.  No approach phase is fully utilized by traffic and no 
vehicle waits longer than one red indication. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL B 
This level represents stable operation where an occasional approach phase is fully utilized and a substantial number are approaching full 
use.  Many drivers begin to feel restricted within platoons of vehicles. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL C 
At this level stable operation continues.  Loading is still intermittent but more frequent than at Level B.  Occasionally drivers may have 
to wait through more than one red signal indication and backups may develop behind turning vehicles. Most drivers feel somewhat 
restricted, but not objectionably so. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL D 
This level encompasses a zone of increasing restriction approaching instability at the intersection.  Delays to approaching vehicles may 
be substantial during short peaks within the peak hour, but enough cycles with lower demand occur to permit periodic clearance of 
queues, thus preventing excessive backups.  Drivers frequently have to wait through more than one red signal.  This level is the lower 
limit of acceptable operation to most drivers. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL E 
This represents near capacity and capacity operation.  At capacity (ICU = 1.0) it represents the most vehicles that the particular 
intersection can accommodate.  However, full utilization of every signal cycle is seldom attained no matter how great the demand.  At 
this level all drivers wait through more than one red signal, and frequently through several. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL F 
Jammed conditions.  Traffic backed up from a downstream location on one of the street restricts or prevents movement of traffic through 
the intersection under consideration. 



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

ff
-R

am
p 

@
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 O
ff

-R
am

p
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
1 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

 [
4]

15
3

16
00

0.
09

6
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

N
b 

T
hr

u 
[4

]
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
N

b 
R

ig
ht

 [
4]

8
16

00
0.

00
5

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
S

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

E
b 

T
hr

u
16

49
48

00
0.

34
4

*
33

16
82

0.
35

0
*

3
16

85
48

00
0.

35
1

*
0

16
85

48
00

0.
35

1
*

27
17

12
48

00
0.

35
7

*
0

17
12

48
00

0.
35

7
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
 [

3]
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

W
b 

T
hr

u
14

28
48

00
0.

29
8

29
14

57
0.

30
3

0
14

57
48

00
0.

30
3

0
14

57
48

00
0.

30
3

14
14

71
48

00
0.

30
6

0
14

71
48

00
0.

30
6

W
b 

R
ig

ht
24

2
16

00
0.

15
1

5
24

7
0.

15
4

1
24

8
16

00
0.

15
5

0
24

8
16

00
0.

15
5

0
24

8
16

00
0.

15
5

0
24

8
16

00
0.

15
5

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
53

9
0.

45
0

0.
45

1
0.

45
1

0.
45

7
0.

45
7

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

01
:2

2 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en

3
Fr

ee
-fl

ow
 m

ov
em

en
t.

4
Th

is
 o

ff-
ra

m
p 

w
as

 c
lo

se
d 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 b

y 
C

al
tra

ns
 o

n 
9/

13
/1

3.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

ff
-R

am
p 

@
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 O
ff

-R
am

p
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
1 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

 [
4]

16
6

16
00

0.
10

4
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

N
b 

T
hr

u 
[4

]
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
N

b 
R

ig
ht

 [
4]

21
16

00
0.

01
3

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
S

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

E
b 

T
hr

u
14

90
48

00
0.

31
0

30
15

20
0.

31
7

2
15

22
48

00
0.

31
7

0
15

22
48

00
0.

31
7

23
15

45
48

00
0.

32
2

0
15

45
48

00
0.

32
2

E
b 

R
ig

ht
 [

3]
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

T
hr

u
13

09
48

00
0.

27
3

26
13

35
0.

27
8

0
13

35
48

00
0.

27
8

0
13

35
48

00
0.

27
8

41
13

76
48

00
0.

28
7

0
13

76
48

00
0.

28
7

W
b 

R
ig

ht
52

0
16

00
0.

32
5

*
10

53
0

0.
33

2
*

5
53

5
16

00
0.

33
5

*
0

53
5

16
00

0.
33

5
*

0
53

5
16

00
0.

33
5

*
0

53
5

16
00

0.
33

5
*

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
52

9
0.

43
2

0.
43

5
0.

43
5

0.
43

5
0.

43
5

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

01
:2

2 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en

3
Fr

ee
-fl

ow
 m

ov
em

en
t.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 @
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
2 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

10
7

16
00

0.
06

7
2

10
9

0.
06

8
0

10
9

16
00

0.
06

8
0

10
9

16
00

0.
06

8
1

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
N

b 
T

hr
u

61
3

32
00

0.
19

2
*

12
62

5
0.

19
5

*
0

62
5

32
00

0.
19

5
*

0
62

5
32

00
0.

19
5

*
5

63
0

32
00

0.
19

7
*

0
63

0
32

00
0.

19
7

*
N

b 
R

ig
ht

14
4

16
00

0.
00

0
3

14
7

0.
00

0
7

15
4

16
00

0.
00

0
0

15
4

16
00

0.
00

0
7

16
1

16
00

0.
00

0
0

16
1

16
00

0.
00

0

S
b 

Le
ft

13
8

16
00

0.
08

6
*

3
14

1
0.

08
8

*
3

14
4

16
00

0.
09

0
*

0
14

4
16

00
0.

09
0

*
8

15
2

16
00

0.
09

5
*

0
15

2
16

00
0.

09
5

*
S

b 
T

hr
u

70
3

48
00

0.
14

6
14

71
7

0.
14

9
0

71
7

48
00

0.
14

9
0

71
7

48
00

0.
14

9
10

72
7

48
00

0.
15

1
0

72
7

48
00

0.
15

1
S

b 
R

ig
ht

10
0

16
00

0.
06

3
2

10
2

0.
06

4
0

10
2

16
00

0.
06

4
0

10
2

16
00

0.
06

4
4

10
6

16
00

0.
06

6
0

10
6

16
00

0.
06

6

E
b 

Le
ft

17
9

16
00

0.
11

2
*

4
18

3
0.

11
4

*
0

18
3

16
00

0.
11

4
*

0
18

3
16

00
0.

11
4

*
1

18
4

16
00

0.
11

5
*

0
18

4
16

00
0.

11
5

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

11
84

48
00

0.
24

7
24

12
08

0.
25

2
3

12
11

48
00

0.
25

2
0

12
11

48
00

0.
25

2
22

12
33

48
00

0.
25

7
0

12
33

48
00

0.
25

7
E

b 
R

ig
ht

13
2

16
00

0.
08

3
3

13
5

0.
08

4
0

13
5

16
00

0.
08

4
0

13
5

16
00

0.
08

4
0

13
5

16
00

0.
08

4
0

13
5

16
00

0.
08

4

W
b 

Le
ft

18
7

16
00

0.
11

7
4

19
1

0.
11

9
1

19
2

16
00

0.
12

0
0

19
2

16
00

0.
12

0
2

19
4

16
00

0.
12

1
0

19
4

16
00

0.
12

1
W

b 
T

hr
u

12
90

48
00

0.
26

9
*

26
13

16
0.

27
4

*
1

13
17

48
00

0.
27

4
*

0
13

17
48

00
0.

27
4

*
14

13
31

48
00

0.
27

7
*

0
13

31
48

00
0.

27
7

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

48
16

00
0.

03
0

1
49

0.
03

1
1

50
16

00
0.

03
1

0
50

16
00

0.
03

1
2

52
16

00
0.

03
2

0
52

16
00

0.
03

2

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
75

8
0.

77
2

0.
77

4
0.

77
4

0.
78

4
0.

78
4

LO
S

C
C

C
C

C
C

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en

3
Th

e 
no

rth
bo

un
d 

rig
ht

-tu
rn

 la
ne

 h
as

 a
n 

ov
er

la
pp

in
g 

ph
as

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

es
tb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 p
ha

se
. 



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 @
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
2 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

15
9

16
00

0.
09

9
*

3
16

2
0.

10
1

*
0

16
2

16
00

0.
10

1
*

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

*
0

16
2

16
00

0.
10

1
*

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

47
0

32
00

0.
14

7
9

47
9

0.
15

0
0

47
9

32
00

0.
15

0
0

47
9

32
00

0.
15

0
11

49
0

32
00

0.
15

3
0

49
0

32
00

0.
15

3
N

b 
R

ig
ht

17
8

16
00

0.
00

0
4

18
2

0.
00

0
4

18
6

16
00

0.
00

0
0

18
6

16
00

0.
00

0
2

18
8

16
00

0.
00

0
0

18
8

16
00

0.
00

0

S
b 

Le
ft

12
8

16
00

0.
08

0
3

13
1

0.
08

2
2

13
3

16
00

0.
08

3
0

13
3

16
00

0.
08

3
3

13
6

16
00

0.
08

5
0

13
6

16
00

0.
08

5
S

b 
T

hr
u

95
3

48
00

0.
19

9
*

19
97

2
0.

20
3

*
0

97
2

48
00

0.
20

3
*

0
97

2
48

00
0.

20
3

*
8

98
0

48
00

0.
20

4
*

0
98

0
48

00
0.

20
4

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

15
7

16
00

0.
09

8
3

16
0

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
4

16
4

16
00

0.
10

3
0

16
4

16
00

0.
10

3

E
b 

Le
ft

15
5

16
00

0.
09

7
*

3
15

8
0.

09
9

*
0

15
8

16
00

0.
09

9
*

0
15

8
16

00
0.

09
9

*
6

16
4

16
00

0.
10

3
*

0
16

4
16

00
0.

10
3

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

11
51

48
00

0.
24

0
23

11
74

0.
24

5
2

11
76

48
00

0.
24

5
0

11
76

48
00

0.
24

5
22

11
98

48
00

0.
25

0
0

11
98

48
00

0.
25

0
E

b 
R

ig
ht

10
0

16
00

0.
06

3
2

10
2

0.
06

4
0

10
2

16
00

0.
06

4
0

10
2

16
00

0.
06

4
1

10
3

16
00

0.
06

4
0

10
3

16
00

0.
06

4

W
b 

Le
ft

21
1

16
00

0.
13

2
4

21
5

0.
13

5
9

22
4

16
00

0.
14

0
0

22
4

16
00

0.
14

0
7

23
1

16
00

0.
14

5
0

23
1

16
00

0.
14

5
W

b 
T

hr
u

13
57

48
00

0.
28

3
*

27
13

84
0.

28
8

*
5

13
89

48
00

0.
28

9
*

0
13

89
48

00
0.

28
9

*
30

14
19

48
00

0.
29

6
*

0
14

19
48

00
0.

29
6

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

59
16

00
0.

03
7

1
60

0.
03

8
5

65
16

00
0.

04
1

0
65

16
00

0.
04

1
8

73
16

00
0.

04
6

0
73

16
00

0.
04

6

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
77

8
0.

79
1

0.
79

2
0.

79
2

0.
80

4
0.

80
4

LO
S

C
C

C
C

D
D

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en

3
Th

e 
no

rth
bo

un
d 

rig
ht

-tu
rn

 la
ne

 h
as

 a
n 

ov
er

la
pp

in
g 

ph
as

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

es
tb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 p
ha

se
. 



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 @
 A

do
re

e 
S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 R
am

ps
N

-S
 S

t:
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

A
do

re
e 

S
tr

ee
t-

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 R

am
ps

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

3 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

15
7

16
00

0.
09

8
3

16
0

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
N

b 
T

hr
u

22
16

32
00

0.
73

6
*

44
22

60
0.

75
0

*
3

22
63

32
00

0.
75

1
*

0
22

63
32

00
0.

75
1

*
13

22
76

32
00

0.
75

5
*

0
22

76
32

00
0.

75
5

*
N

b 
R

ig
ht

13
8

0
  

  
-

3
14

1
  

  
-

0
14

1
0

  
  

-
0

14
1

0
  

  
-

0
14

1
0

  
  

-
0

14
1

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

S
b 

T
hr

u
20

55
48

00
0.

46
7

41
20

96
0.

47
6

1
20

97
48

00
0.

47
7

0
20

97
48

00
0.

47
7

12
21

09
48

00
0.

47
9

0
21

09
48

00
0.

47
9

S
b 

R
ig

ht
18

7
0

  
  

-
4

19
1

  
  

-
0

19
1

0
  

  
-

0
19

1
0

  
  

-
0

19
1

0
  

  
-

0
19

1
0

  
  

-

E
b 

Le
ft

46
0

0.
02

9
1

47
0.

03
0

0
47

0
0.

03
0

0
47

0
0.

03
0

0
47

0
0.

03
0

0
47

0
0.

03
0

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

16
00

0.
16

8
*

0
0

0.
17

1
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
22

2
0

  
  

-
4

22
7

  
  

-
0

22
7

0
  

  
-

0
22

7
0

  
  

-
0

22
7

0
  

  
-

0
22

7
0

  
  

-

W
b 

Le
ft

30
16

00
0.

01
9

*
1

31
0.

01
9

*
0

31
16

00
0.

01
9

*
0

31
16

00
0.

01
9

*
4

35
16

00
0.

02
2

*
0

35
16

00
0.

02
2

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

4
32

0
0.

01
4

0
4

0.
01

4
0

4
32

0
0.

01
4

0
4

32
0

0.
01

4
0

4
32

0
0.

01
4

0
4

32
0

0.
01

4
W

b 
R

ig
ht

45
1

28
80

0.
15

7
9

46
0

0.
16

0
3

46
3

28
80

0.
16

1
0

46
3

28
80

0.
16

1
0

46
3

28
80

0.
16

1
0

46
3

28
80

0.
16

1

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
02

3
1.

04
1

1.
04

2
1.

04
2

1.
04

9
1.

04
9

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:S
ou

th
la

nd
 C

ar
 C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 @
 A

do
re

e 
S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 R
am

ps
N

-S
 S

t:
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

A
do

re
e 

S
tr

ee
t-

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 R

am
ps

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

3 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

20
6

16
00

0.
12

9
*

4
21

0
0.

13
2

*
0

21
0

16
00

0.
13

2
*

0
21

0
16

00
0.

13
2

*
0

21
0

16
00

0.
13

2
*

0
21

0
16

00
0.

13
2

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

23
80

32
00

0.
81

0
48

24
28

0.
82

6
2

24
30

32
00

0.
82

6
0

24
30

32
00

0.
82

6
13

24
43

32
00

0.
83

1
0

24
43

32
00

0.
83

1
N

b 
R

ig
ht

21
1

0
  

  
-

4
21

5
  

  
-

0
21

5
0

  
  

-
0

21
5

0
  

  
-

0
21

5
0

  
  

-
0

21
5

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

T
hr

u
32

50
48

00
0.

76
7

*
65

33
15

0.
78

3
*

9
33

24
48

00
0.

78
4

*
0

33
24

48
00

0.
78

4
*

16
33

40
48

00
0.

78
8

*
0

33
40

48
00

0.
78

8
*

S
b 

R
ig

ht
43

3
0

  
  

-
9

44
2

  
  

-
0

44
2

0
  

  
-

0
44

2
0

  
  

-
0

44
2

0
  

  
-

0
44

2
0

  
  

-

E
b 

Le
ft

41
0

0.
02

6
1

42
0.

02
6

0
42

0
0.

02
6

0
42

0
0.

02
6

0
42

0
0.

02
6

0
42

0
0.

02
6

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

16
00

0.
13

9
*

0
0

0.
14

2
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
18

1
0

  
  

-
4

18
5

  
  

-
0

18
5

0
  

  
-

0
18

5
0

  
  

-
0

18
5

0
  

  
-

0
18

5
0

  
  

-

W
b 

Le
ft

43
16

00
0.

02
7

*
1

44
0.

02
8

*
0

44
16

00
0.

02
8

*
0

44
16

00
0.

02
8

*
2

46
16

00
0.

02
9

*
0

46
16

00
0.

02
9

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

10
32

0
0.

03
0

0
10

0.
03

1
0

10
32

0
0.

03
1

0
10

32
0

0.
03

1
0

10
32

0
0.

03
1

0
10

32
0

0.
03

1
W

b 
R

ig
ht

35
4

28
80

0.
12

3
7

36
1

0.
12

5
2

36
3

28
80

0.
12

6
0

36
3

28
80

0.
12

6
0

36
3

28
80

0.
12

6
0

36
3

28
80

0.
12

6

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
16

2
1.

18
3

1.
18

5
1.

18
5

1.
19

0
1.

19
0

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:S
ou

th
la

nd
 C

ar
 C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e 
@

 U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

4 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

44
16

00
0.

02
8

1
45

0.
02

8
0

45
16

00
0.

02
8

0
45

16
00

0.
02

8
0

45
16

00
0.

02
8

0
45

16
00

0.
02

8
N

b 
T

hr
u

20
07

32
00

0.
62

7
*

40
20

47
0.

64
0

*
3

20
50

32
00

0.
64

1
*

0
20

50
32

00
0.

64
1

*
13

20
63

32
00

0.
64

5
*

0
20

63
32

00
0.

64
5

*
N

b 
R

ig
ht

63
16

00
0.

03
9

1
64

0.
04

0
0

64
16

00
0.

04
0

0
64

16
00

0.
04

0
1

65
16

00
0.

04
1

0
65

16
00

0.
04

1

S
b 

Le
ft

41
9

16
00

0.
26

2
*

8
42

7
0.

26
7

*
1

42
8

16
00

0.
26

8
*

0
42

8
16

00
0.

26
8

*
0

42
8

16
00

0.
26

8
*

0
42

8
16

00
0.

26
8

*
S

b 
T

hr
u

17
67

32
00

0.
55

2
35

18
02

0.
56

3
1

18
03

32
00

0.
56

4
0

18
03

32
00

0.
56

4
12

18
15

32
00

0.
56

7
0

18
15

32
00

0.
56

7
S

b 
R

ig
ht

10
8

16
00

0.
06

8
2

11
0

0.
06

9
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9

E
b 

Le
ft

50
7

0
0.

31
7

10
51

7
0.

32
3

0
51

7
0

0.
32

3
0

51
7

0
0.

32
3

0
51

7
0

0.
32

3
0

51
7

0
0.

32
3

E
b 

T
hr

u
53

16
00

0.
35

0
*

1
54

0.
35

7
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
15

9
16

00
0.

09
9

3
16

2
0.

10
1

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
W

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
33

9
1.

36
3

1.
36

5
1.

36
5

1.
36

9
1.

36
9

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

01
:2

0 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:S
ou

th
la

nd
 C

ar
 C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e 
@

 U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

4 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

30
16

00
0.

01
9

1
31

0.
01

9
0

31
16

00
0.

01
9

0
31

16
00

0.
01

9
0

31
16

00
0.

01
9

0
31

16
00

0.
01

9
N

b 
T

hr
u

23
20

32
00

0.
72

5
*

46
23

66
0.

73
9

*
2

23
68

32
00

0.
74

0
*

0
23

68
32

00
0.

74
0

*
13

23
81

32
00

0.
74

4
*

0
23

81
32

00
0.

74
4

*
N

b 
R

ig
ht

39
16

00
0.

02
4

1
40

0.
02

5
0

40
16

00
0.

02
5

0
40

16
00

0.
02

5
5

45
16

00
0.

02
8

0
45

16
00

0.
02

8

S
b 

Le
ft

62
2

16
00

0.
38

9
*

12
63

5
0.

39
7

*
5

64
0

16
00

0.
40

0
*

0
64

0
16

00
0.

40
0

*
0

64
0

16
00

0.
40

0
*

0
64

0
16

00
0.

40
0

*
S

b 
T

hr
u

27
79

32
00

0.
86

8
56

28
34

0.
88

6
5

28
39

32
00

0.
88

7
0

28
39

32
00

0.
88

7
16

28
55

32
00

0.
89

2
0

28
55

32
00

0.
89

2
S

b 
R

ig
ht

96
16

00
0.

06
0

2
98

0.
06

1
0

98
16

00
0.

06
1

0
98

16
00

0.
06

1
0

98
16

00
0.

06
1

0
98

16
00

0.
06

1

E
b 

Le
ft

46
5

0
0.

29
1

9
47

5
0.

29
7

0
47

5
0

0.
29

7
0

47
5

0
0.

29
7

0
47

5
0

0.
29

7
0

47
5

0
0.

29
7

E
b 

T
hr

u
21

16
00

0.
30

4
*

0
21

0.
31

0
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
19

8
16

00
0.

12
4

4
20

2
0.

12
6

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
W

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
51

8
1.

54
6

1.
55

0
1.

55
0

1.
55

4
1.

55
4

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

01
:2

0 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:S
ou

th
la

nd
 C

ar
 C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
nu

e
N

-S
 S

t:
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e

P
ea

k 
hr

:
A

M
D

at
e:

10
/2

9/
20

14
E

-W
 S

t:
F

lo
re

nc
e 

A
ve

nu
e

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

5 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

83
16

00
0.

05
2

*
2

85
0.

05
3

*
1

86
16

00
0.

05
4

*
0

86
16

00
0.

05
4

*
0

86
16

00
0.

05
4

*
0

86
16

00
0.

05
4

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

49
5

32
00

0.
16

4
10

50
5

0.
16

7
2

50
7

32
00

0.
16

9
0

50
7

32
00

0.
16

9
4

51
1

32
00

0.
17

0
0

51
1

32
00

0.
17

0
N

b 
R

ig
ht

29
0

  
  

-
1

30
  

  
-

3
33

0
  

  
-

0
33

0
  

  
-

0
33

0
  

  
-

0
33

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

25
16

00
0.

01
6

1
26

0.
01

6
0

26
16

00
0.

01
6

0
26

16
00

0.
01

6
3

29
16

00
0.

01
8

0
29

16
00

0.
01

8
S

b 
T

hr
u

46
3

32
00

0.
15

8
*

9
47

2
0.

16
2

*
10

48
2

32
00

0.
16

5
*

0
48

2
32

00
0.

16
5

*
13

49
5

32
00

0.
16

9
*

0
49

5
32

00
0.

16
9

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

44
0

  
  

-
1

45
  

  
-

0
45

0
  

  
-

0
45

0
  

  
-

1
46

0
  

  
-

0
46

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

10
7

16
00

0.
06

7
*

2
10

9
0.

06
8

*
0

10
9

16
00

0.
06

8
*

0
10

9
16

00
0.

06
8

*
0

10
9

16
00

0.
06

8
*

0
10

9
16

00
0.

06
8

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

52
8

32
00

0.
18

6
11

53
9

0.
19

0
0

53
9

32
00

0.
19

1
0

53
9

32
00

0.
19

1
20

55
9

32
00

0.
19

7
0

55
9

32
00

0.
19

7
E

b 
R

ig
ht

68
0

  
  

-
1

69
  

  
-

3
72

0
  

  
-

0
72

0
  

  
-

0
72

0
  

  
-

0
72

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

11
6

16
00

0.
07

3
2

11
8

0.
07

4
13

13
1

16
00

0.
08

2
0

13
1

16
00

0.
08

2
0

13
1

16
00

0.
08

2
0

13
1

16
00

0.
08

2
W

b 
T

hr
u

10
64

32
00

0.
36

1
*

21
10

85
0.

36
8

*
0

10
85

32
00

0.
36

8
*

0
10

85
32

00
0.

36
8

*
7

10
92

32
00

0.
37

1
*

0
10

92
32

00
0.

37
1

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

91
0

  
  

-
2

93
  

  
-

0
93

0
  

  
-

0
93

0
  

  
-

1
94

0
  

  
-

0
94

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
73

8
0.

75
1

0.
75

5
0.

75
5

0.
76

2
0.

76
2

LO
S

C
C

C
C

C
C

01
:2

0 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
nu

e
N

-S
 S

t:
B

lo
om

fie
ld

 A
ve

nu
e

P
ea

k 
hr

:
P

M
D

at
e:

10
/2

9/
20

14
E

-W
 S

t:
F

lo
re

nc
e 

A
ve

nu
e

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

5 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

13
0

16
00

0.
08

1
*

3
13

3
0.

08
3

*
5

13
8

16
00

0.
08

6
*

0
13

8
16

00
0.

08
6

*
0

13
8

16
00

0.
08

6
*

0
13

8
16

00
0.

08
6

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

55
7

32
00

0.
21

1
11

56
8

0.
21

5
14

58
2

32
00

0.
22

5
0

58
2

32
00

0.
22

5
13

59
5

32
00

0.
22

9
0

59
5

32
00

0.
22

9
N

b 
R

ig
ht

11
7

0
  

  
-

2
11

9
  

  
-

18
13

7
0

  
  

-
0

13
7

0
  

  
-

0
13

7
0

  
  

-
0

13
7

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

73
16

00
0.

04
6

1
74

0.
04

7
0

74
16

00
0.

04
7

0
74

16
00

0.
04

7
2

76
16

00
0.

04
8

0
76

16
00

0.
04

8
S

b 
T

hr
u

68
9

32
00

0.
25

0
*

14
70

3
0.

25
5

*
5

70
8

32
00

0.
25

6
*

0
70

8
32

00
0.

25
6

*
6

71
4

32
00

0.
25

8
*

0
71

4
32

00
0.

25
8

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

11
0

0
  

  
-

2
11

2
  

  
-

0
11

2
0

  
  

-
0

11
2

0
  

  
-

0
11

2
0

  
  

-
0

11
2

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

13
7

16
00

0.
08

6
*

3
14

0
0.

08
7

*
0

14
0

16
00

0.
08

7
*

0
14

0
16

00
0.

08
7

*
1

14
1

16
00

0.
08

8
*

0
14

1
16

00
0.

08
8

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

95
9

32
00

0.
31

4
19

97
8

0.
32

0
0

97
8

32
00

0.
32

1
0

97
8

32
00

0.
32

1
12

99
0

32
00

0.
32

4
0

99
0

32
00

0.
32

4
E

b 
R

ig
ht

45
0

  
  

-
1

46
  

  
-

2
48

0
  

  
-

0
48

0
  

  
-

0
48

0
  

  
-

0
48

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

48
16

00
0.

03
0

1
49

0.
03

1
7

56
16

00
0.

03
5

0
56

16
00

0.
03

5
0

56
16

00
0.

03
5

0
56

16
00

0.
03

5
W

b 
T

hr
u

88
3

32
00

0.
29

6
*

18
90

1
0.

30
2

*
0

90
1

32
00

0.
30

2
*

0
90

1
32

00
0.

30
2

*
22

92
3

32
00

0.
31

0
*

0
92

3
32

00
0.

31
0

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

65
0

  
  

-
1

66
  

  
-

0
66

0
  

  
-

0
66

0
  

  
-

3
69

0
  

  
-

0
69

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
81

3
0.

82
7

0.
83

2
0.

83
2

0.
84

2
0.

84
2

LO
S

D
D

D
D

D
D

01
:2

0 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
6 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 [

3]

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
3

16
3

0.
10

2
0

16
3

16
00

0.
10

2
0

16
3

16
00

0.
10

2
1

16
4

16
00

0.
10

3
0

84
16

00
0.

05
3

N
b 

T
hr

u
76

1
32

00
0.

23
8

*
15

77
6

0.
24

3
*

10
78

6
32

00
0.

24
6

*
0

78
6

32
00

0.
24

6
*

4
79

0
32

00
0.

24
7

*
0

79
0

32
00

0.
24

7
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
23

8
16

00
0.

14
9

5
24

3
0.

15
2

0
24

3
16

00
0.

15
2

0
24

3
16

00
0.

15
2

4
24

7
16

00
0.

15
4

0
24

7
16

00
0.

05
1

S
b 

Le
ft

14
7

16
00

0.
09

2
*

3
15

0
0.

09
4

*
4

15
4

16
00

0.
09

6
*

0
15

4
16

00
0.

09
6

*
5

15
9

16
00

0.
09

9
*

0
79

16
00

0.
04

9
*

S
b 

T
hr

u
49

7
32

00
0.

15
5

10
50

7
0.

15
8

2
50

9
32

00
0.

15
9

0
50

9
32

00
0.

15
9

6
51

5
32

00
0.

16
1

0
51

5
32

00
0.

16
1

S
b 

R
ig

ht
11

4
16

00
0.

07
1

2
11

6
0.

07
3

3
11

9
16

00
0.

07
5

0
11

9
16

00
0.

07
5

2
12

1
16

00
0.

07
6

0
12

1
16

00
0.

07
6

E
b 

Le
ft

16
9

16
00

0.
10

6
*

3
17

2
0.

10
8

*
13

18
5

16
00

0.
11

6
*

0
18

5
16

00
0.

11
6

*
0

18
5

16
00

0.
11

6
*

0
18

5
16

00
0.

11
6

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

10
99

48
00

0.
22

9
22

11
21

0.
23

4
0

11
21

48
00

0.
23

4
0

11
21

48
00

0.
23

4
38

11
59

48
00

0.
24

1
0

11
59

48
00

0.
24

1
E

b 
R

ig
ht

48
16

00
0.

03
0

1
49

0.
03

1
0

49
16

00
0.

03
1

0
49

16
00

0.
03

1
0

49
16

00
0.

03
1

0
49

16
00

0.
03

1

W
b 

Le
ft

29
1

16
00

0.
18

2
6

29
7

0.
18

6
0

29
7

16
00

0.
18

6
0

29
7

16
00

0.
18

6
1

29
8

16
00

0.
18

6
0

29
8

28
80

0.
10

3
W

b 
T

hr
u

14
57

48
00

0.
32

8
*

29
14

86
0.

33
5

*
0

14
86

48
00

0.
33

8
*

0
14

86
48

00
0.

33
8

*
16

15
02

48
00

0.
34

2
*

0
15

02
48

00
0.

34
2

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

11
9

0
  

  
-

2
12

1
  

  
-

17
13

8
0

  
  

-
0

13
8

0
  

  
-

1
13

9
0

  
  

-
0

13
9

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
86

4
0.

87
9

0.
89

6
0.

89
6

0.
90

4
0.

85
4

LO
S

D
D

D
D

E
D

01
:2

2 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en

3
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
G

at
ew

ay
 C

iti
es

 C
O

G
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

du
al

 w
es

tb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 la

ne
s,

 lo
ng

er
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
an

d 
so

ut
hb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 p
oc

ke
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d
al

on
g 

w
ith

 ti
m

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
tra

ffi
c 

si
gn

al
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 c
ap

ac
ity

 fo
r t

ho
se

 tr
af

fic
 m

ov
em

en
ts

.
Th

e 
no

rth
bo

un
d 

rig
ht

-tu
rn

 la
ne

 h
as

 a
n 

ov
er

la
pp

in
g 

ph
as

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

es
tb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 p
ha

se
.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
6 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 [

3]

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

14
2

16
00

0.
08

9
3

14
5

0.
09

1
0

14
5

16
00

0.
09

1
0

14
5

16
00

0.
09

1
0

14
5

16
00

0.
09

1
0

65
16

00
0.

04
1

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

36
1

32
00

0.
11

3
7

36
8

0.
11

5
5

37
3

32
00

0.
11

7
0

37
3

32
00

0.
11

7
6

37
9

32
00

0.
11

9
0

37
9

32
00

0.
11

9
N

b 
R

ig
ht

29
3

16
00

0.
18

3
*

6
29

9
0.

18
7

*
0

29
9

16
00

0.
18

7
*

0
29

9
16

00
0.

18
7

*
1

30
0

16
00

0.
18

7
*

0
30

0
16

00
0.

11
9

S
b 

Le
ft

23
0

16
00

0.
14

4
*

5
23

5
0.

14
7

*
23

25
8

16
00

0.
16

1
*

0
25

8
16

00
0.

16
1

*
1

25
9

16
00

0.
16

2
*

0
17

9
16

00
0.

11
2

S
b 

T
hr

u
62

9
32

00
0.

19
7

13
64

2
0.

20
0

14
65

6
32

00
0.

20
5

0
65

6
32

00
0.

20
5

6
66

2
32

00
0.

20
7

0
66

2
32

00
0.

20
7

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

94
16

00
0.

05
9

2
96

0.
06

0
18

11
4

16
00

0.
07

1
0

11
4

16
00

0.
07

1
0

11
4

16
00

0.
07

1
0

11
4

16
00

0.
07

1

E
b 

Le
ft

85
16

00
0.

05
3

2
87

0.
05

4
7

94
16

00
0.

05
9

0
94

16
00

0.
05

9
2

96
16

00
0.

06
0

0
96

16
00

0.
06

0
E

b 
T

hr
u

12
24

48
00

0.
25

5
*

24
12

48
0.

26
0

*
0

12
48

48
00

0.
26

0
*

0
12

48
48

00
0.

26
0

*
26

12
74

48
00

0.
26

6
*

0
12

74
48

00
0.

26
6

*
E

b 
R

ig
ht

59
16

00
0.

03
7

1
60

0.
03

8
0

60
16

00
0.

03
8

0
60

16
00

0.
03

8
1

61
16

00
0.

03
8

0
61

16
00

0.
03

8

W
b 

Le
ft

18
9

16
00

0.
11

8
*

4
19

3
0.

12
0

*
0

19
3

16
00

0.
12

0
*

0
19

3
16

00
0.

12
0

*
4

19
7

16
00

0.
12

3
*

0
19

7
28

80
0.

06
8

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

11
15

48
00

0.
25

0
22

11
37

0.
25

5
0

11
37

48
00

0.
25

6
0

11
37

48
00

0.
25

6
44

11
81

48
00

0.
26

7
0

11
81

48
00

0.
26

7
W

b 
R

ig
ht

83
0

  
  

-
2

85
  

  
-

9
94

0
  

  
-

0
94

0
  

  
-

5
99

0
  

  
-

0
99

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
80

0
0.

81
4

0.
82

8
0.

82
8

0.
83

8
0.

68
1

LO
S

C
D

D
D

D
B

01
:2

2 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en

3
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
G

at
ew

ay
 C

iti
es

 C
O

G
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

du
al

 w
es

tb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 la

ne
s,

 lo
ng

er
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
an

d 
so

ut
hb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 p
oc

ke
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d
 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 ti

m
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

tra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r t
ho

se
 tr

af
fic

 m
ov

em
en

ts
.

Th
e 

no
rth

bo
un

d 
rig

ht
-tu

rn
 la

ne
 h

as
 a

n 
ov

er
la

pp
in

g 
ph

as
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
es

tb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 p

ha
se

.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r 
D

riv
e

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r 
D

riv
e

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

7 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

22
8

28
80

0.
07

9
*

5
23

3
0.

08
1

*
0

23
3

28
80

0.
08

1
*

0
23

3
28

80
0.

08
1

*
0

23
3

28
80

0.
08

1
*

0
23

3
28

80
0.

08
1

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

66
8

32
00

0.
21

1
13

68
1

0.
21

5
10

69
1

32
00

0.
21

9
0

69
1

32
00

0.
21

9
9

70
0

32
00

0.
22

1
0

70
0

32
00

0.
22

1
N

b 
R

ig
ht

8
0

  
  

-
0

8
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

13
16

00
0.

00
8

0
13

0.
00

8
0

13
16

00
0.

00
8

0
13

16
00

0.
00

8
0

13
16

00
0.

00
8

0
13

16
00

0.
00

8
S

b 
T

hr
u

38
0

32
00

0.
11

9
8

38
8

0.
12

1
2

39
0

32
00

0.
12

2
0

39
0

32
00

0.
12

2
7

39
7

32
00

0.
12

4
0

39
7

32
00

0.
12

4
S

b 
R

ig
ht

27
3

16
00

0.
17

1
*

5
27

8
0.

17
4

*
0

27
8

16
00

0.
17

4
*

0
27

8
16

00
0.

17
4

*
0

27
8

16
00

0.
17

4
*

0
27

8
16

00
0.

17
4

*

E
b 

Le
ft

29
3

0
0.

18
3

*
6

29
9

0.
18

7
*

0
29

9
0

0.
18

7
*

0
29

9
0

0.
18

7
*

0
29

9
0

0.
18

7
*

0
29

9
0

0.
18

7
*

E
b 

T
hr

u
19

16
00

0.
19

5
0

19
0.

19
9

0
19

16
00

0.
19

9
0

19
16

00
0.

19
9

0
19

16
00

0.
19

9
0

19
16

00
0.

19
9

E
b 

R
ig

ht
10

8
16

00
0.

06
8

2
11

0
0.

06
9

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

W
b 

Le
ft

22
0

0.
01

4
0

22
0.

01
4

0
22

0
0.

01
4

0
22

0
0.

01
4

0
22

0
0.

01
4

0
22

0
0.

01
4

W
b 

T
hr

u
54

16
00

0.
06

5
*

1
55

0.
06

6
*

0
55

16
00

0.
06

6
*

0
55

16
00

0.
06

6
*

0
55

16
00

0.
06

6
*

0
55

16
00

0.
06

6
*

W
b 

R
ig

ht
28

0
  

  
-

1
29

  
  

-
0

29
0

  
  

-
0

29
0

  
  

-
0

29
0

  
  

-
0

29
0

  
  

-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
59

8
0.

60
8

0.
60

8
0.

60
8

0.
60

8
0.

60
8

LO
S

A
B

B
B

B
B

01
:1

9 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r 
D

riv
e

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

C
iv

ic
 C

en
te

r 
D

riv
e

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

7 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

10
1

28
80

0.
03

5
*

2
10

3
0.

03
6

*
0

10
3

28
80

0.
03

6
*

0
10

3
28

80
0.

03
6

*
0

10
3

28
80

0.
03

6
*

0
10

3
28

80
0.

03
6

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

39
6

32
00

0.
12

7
8

40
4

0.
13

0
5

40
9

32
00

0.
13

1
0

40
9

32
00

0.
13

1
7

41
6

32
00

0.
13

3
0

41
6

32
00

0.
13

3
N

b 
R

ig
ht

11
0

  
  

-
0

11
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

21
16

00
0.

01
3

0
21

0.
01

3
0

21
16

00
0.

01
3

0
21

16
00

0.
01

3
0

21
16

00
0.

01
3

0
21

16
00

0.
01

3
S

b 
T

hr
u

54
1

32
00

0.
16

9
11

55
2

0.
17

2
14

56
6

32
00

0.
17

7
0

56
6

32
00

0.
17

7
11

57
7

32
00

0.
18

0
0

57
7

32
00

0.
18

0
S

b 
R

ig
ht

33
6

16
00

0.
21

0
*

7
34

3
0.

21
4

*
0

34
3

16
00

0.
21

4
*

0
34

3
16

00
0.

21
4

*
0

34
3

16
00

0.
21

4
*

0
34

3
16

00
0.

21
4

*

E
b 

Le
ft

34
1

0
0.

21
3

7
34

8
0.

21
7

0
34

8
0

0.
21

7
0

34
8

0
0.

21
7

0
34

8
0

0.
21

7
0

34
8

0
0.

21
7

E
b 

T
hr

u
25

16
00

0.
22

9
*

1
26

0.
23

3
*

0
26

16
00

0.
23

3
*

0
26

16
00

0.
23

3
*

0
26

16
00

0.
23

3
*

0
26

16
00

0.
23

3
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
20

4
16

00
0.

12
8

4
20

8
0.

13
0

0
20

8
16

00
0.

13
0

0
20

8
16

00
0.

13
0

0
20

8
16

00
0.

13
0

0
20

8
16

00
0.

13
0

W
b 

Le
ft

6
0

0.
00

4
*

0
6

0.
00

4
*

0
6

0
0.

00
4

*
0

6
0

0.
00

4
*

0
6

0
0.

00
4

*
0

6
0

0.
00

4
*

W
b 

T
hr

u
13

16
00

0.
01

8
0

13
0.

01
8

0
13

16
00

0.
01

8
0

13
16

00
0.

01
8

0
13

16
00

0.
01

8
0

13
16

00
0.

01
8

W
b 

R
ig

ht
9

0
  

  
-

0
9

  
  

-
0

9
0

  
  

-
0

9
0

  
  

-
0

9
0

  
  

-
0

9
0

  
  

-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
57

8
0.

58
7

0.
58

7
0.

58
7

0.
58

7
0.

58
7

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

01
:1

9 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
-5

 F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

8 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

N
b 

T
hr

u
31

7
16

00
0.

19
8

*
6

32
3

0.
20

2
*

0
32

3
16

00
0.

20
2

*
0

32
3

16
00

0.
20

2
*

0
32

3
16

00
0.

20
6

*
0

32
3

16
00

0.
20

6
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
6

6
0

  
  

-
0

6
0

  
  

-

S
b 

Le
ft

38
2

16
00

0.
23

9
*

8
39

0
0.

24
4

*
2

39
2

16
00

0.
24

5
*

0
39

2
16

00
0.

24
5

*
0

39
2

16
00

0.
24

5
*

0
39

2
16

00
0.

24
5

*
S

b 
T

hr
u

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

R
ig

ht
51

16
00

0.
03

2
1

52
0.

03
3

0
52

16
00

0.
03

3
0

52
16

00
0.

03
3

1
53

16
00

0.
03

3
0

53
16

00
0.

03
3

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
E

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
W

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
53

7
0.

54
6

0.
54

7
0.

54
7

0.
55

1
0.

55
1

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

01
:1

9 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
-5

 F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

8 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

N
b 

T
hr

u
42

9
16

00
0.

26
8

*
9

43
8

0.
27

3
*

0
43

8
16

00
0.

27
3

*
0

43
8

16
00

0.
27

3
*

0
43

8
16

00
0.

27
7

*
0

43
8

16
00

0.
27

7
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
5

5
0

  
  

-
0

5
0

  
  

-

S
b 

Le
ft

37
7

16
00

0.
23

6
*

8
38

5
0.

24
0

*
14

39
9

16
00

0.
24

9
*

0
39

9
16

00
0.

24
9

*
2

40
1

16
00

0.
25

0
*

0
40

1
16

00
0.

25
0

*
S

b 
T

hr
u

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

R
ig

ht
12

0
16

00
0.

07
5

2
12

2
0.

07
7

0
12

2
16

00
0.

07
7

0
12

2
16

00
0.

07
7

4
12

6
16

00
0.

07
9

0
12

6
16

00
0.

07
9

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
E

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
W

b 
R

ig
ht

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
60

4
0.

61
4

0.
62

3
0.

62
3

0.
62

7
0.

62
7

LO
S

B
B

B
B

B
B

01
:1

9 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

S
ho

em
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
nu

e
N

-S
 S

t:
S

ho
em

ak
er

 A
ve

nu
e

P
ea

k 
hr

:
A

M
D

at
e:

10
/2

9/
20

14
E

-W
 S

t:
F

lo
re

nc
e 

A
ve

nu
e

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

9 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

13
1

16
00

0.
08

2
*

3
13

4
0.

08
4

*
0

13
4

16
00

0.
08

4
*

0
13

4
16

00
0.

08
4

*
2

13
6

16
00

0.
08

5
*

0
13

6
16

00
0.

08
5

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

35
2

32
00

0.
11

0
7

35
9

0.
11

2
1

36
0

32
00

0.
11

3
0

36
0

32
00

0.
11

3
10

37
0

32
00

0.
11

6
0

37
0

32
00

0.
11

6
N

b 
R

ig
ht

79
16

00
0.

04
9

2
81

0.
05

0
0

81
16

00
0.

05
0

0
81

16
00

0.
05

0
3

84
16

00
0.

05
2

0
84

16
00

0.
05

2

S
b 

Le
ft

19
16

00
0.

01
2

0
19

0.
01

2
0

19
16

00
0.

01
2

0
19

16
00

0.
01

2
0

19
16

00
0.

01
2

0
19

16
00

0.
01

2
S

b 
T

hr
u

33
2

32
00

0.
11

5
*

7
33

9
0.

11
7

*
3

34
2

32
00

0.
12

0
*

0
34

2
32

00
0.

12
0

*
18

36
0

32
00

0.
12

6
*

0
36

0
32

00
0.

12
6

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

36
0

  
  

-
1

37
  

  
-

7
44

0
  

  
-

0
44

0
  

  
-

0
44

0
  

  
-

0
44

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

10
7

16
00

0.
06

7
*

2
10

9
0.

06
8

*
1

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
*

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

*
3

11
3

16
00

0.
07

1
*

0
11

3
16

00
0.

07
1

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

47
1

32
00

0.
18

7
9

48
0

0.
19

0
1

48
1

32
00

0.
19

1
0

48
1

32
00

0.
19

1
12

49
3

32
00

0.
19

7
0

49
3

32
00

0.
15

4
E

b 
R

ig
ht

12
6

0
  

  
-

3
12

9
  

  
-

0
12

9
0

  
  

-
0

12
9

0
  

  
-

8
13

7
0

  
  

-
0

13
7

16
00

0.
08

5

W
b 

Le
ft

49
16

00
0.

03
1

1
50

0.
03

1
0

50
16

00
0.

03
1

0
50

16
00

0.
03

1
12

62
16

00
0.

03
9

0
62

16
00

0.
03

9
W

b 
T

hr
u

11
31

32
00

0.
36

7
*

23
11

54
0.

37
4

*
7

11
61

32
00

0.
37

6
*

0
11

61
32

00
0.

37
6

*
6

11
67

32
00

0.
37

9
*

0
11

67
32

00
0.

37
9

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

42
0

  
  

-
1

43
  

  
-

0
43

0
  

  
-

0
43

0
  

  
-

3
46

0
  

  
-

0
46

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
73

0
0.

74
3

0.
74

9
0.

74
9

0.
76

0
0.

76
0

LO
S

C
C

C
C

C
C

01
:1

8 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

S
ho

em
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 F
lo

re
nc

e 
A

ve
nu

e
N

-S
 S

t:
S

ho
em

ak
er

 A
ve

nu
e

P
ea

k 
hr

:
P

M
D

at
e:

10
/2

9/
20

14
E

-W
 S

t:
F

lo
re

nc
e 

A
ve

nu
e

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

9 20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/A
M

B
IE

N
T

 G
R

O
W

T
H

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

20
15

W
/R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
20

15
W

/R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

12
7

16
00

0.
07

9
*

3
13

0
0.

08
1

*
0

13
0

16
00

0.
08

1
*

0
13

0
16

00
0.

08
1

*
8

13
8

16
00

0.
08

6
*

0
13

8
16

00
0.

08
6

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

40
1

32
00

0.
12

5
8

40
9

0.
12

8
5

41
4

32
00

0.
12

9
0

41
4

32
00

0.
12

9
19

43
3

32
00

0.
13

5
0

43
3

32
00

0.
13

5
N

b 
R

ig
ht

96
16

00
0.

06
0

2
98

0.
06

1
0

98
16

00
0.

06
1

0
98

16
00

0.
06

1
12

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9

S
b 

Le
ft

51
16

00
0.

03
2

1
52

0.
03

3
0

52
16

00
0.

03
3

0
52

16
00

0.
03

3
3

55
16

00
0.

03
4

0
55

16
00

0.
03

4
S

b 
T

hr
u

43
9

32
00

0.
16

8
*

9
44

8
0.

17
1

*
2

45
0

32
00

0.
17

3
*

0
45

0
32

00
0.

17
3

*
13

46
3

32
00

0.
17

8
*

0
46

3
32

00
0.

17
8

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

99
0

  
  

-
2

10
1

  
  

-
4

10
5

0
  

  
-

0
10

5
0

  
  

-
3

10
8

0
  

  
-

0
10

8
0

  
  

-

E
b 

Le
ft

40
16

00
0.

02
5

1
41

0.
02

6
9

50
16

00
0.

03
1

0
50

16
00

0.
03

1
0

50
16

00
0.

03
1

0
50

16
00

0.
03

1
E

b 
T

hr
u

11
33

32
00

0.
40

3
*

23
11

56
0.

41
1

*
9

11
65

32
00

0.
41

4
*

0
11

65
32

00
0.

41
4

*
11

11
76

32
00

0.
41

8
*

0
11

76
32

00
0.

36
7

*
E

b 
R

ig
ht

15
7

0
  

  
-

3
16

0
  

  
-

0
16

0
0

  
  

-
0

16
0

0
  

  
-

3
16

3
0

  
  

-
0

16
3

16
00

0.
10

2

W
b 

Le
ft

51
16

00
0.

03
2

*
1

52
0.

03
3

*
0

52
16

00
0.

03
3

*
0

52
16

00
0.

03
3

*
4

56
16

00
0.

03
5

*
0

56
16

00
0.

03
5

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

75
0

32
00

0.
23

8
15

76
5

0.
24

3
4

76
9

32
00

0.
24

4
0

76
9

32
00

0.
24

4
14

78
3

32
00

0.
24

8
0

78
3

32
00

0.
24

8
W

b 
R

ig
ht

11
0

  
  

-
0

11
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

0
11

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
78

3
0.

79
6

0.
80

1
0.

80
1

0.
81

8
0.

76
7

LO
S

C
C

D
D

D
C

01
:1

8 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

S
ho

em
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
-S

 S
t:

S
ho

em
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
10 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

79
16

00
0.

04
9

2
81

0.
05

0
3

84
16

00
0.

05
2

0
84

16
00

0.
05

2
0

84
16

00
0.

05
2

0
84

16
00

0.
05

2
*

N
b 

T
hr

u
73

16
00

0.
04

6
*

1
74

0.
04

7
*

0
74

16
00

0.
04

7
*

0
74

16
00

0.
04

7
*

0
74

16
00

0.
04

7
*

0
74

16
00

0.
04

7
N

b 
R

ig
ht

5
16

00
0.

00
3

0
5

0.
00

3
0

5
16

00
0.

00
3

0
5

16
00

0.
00

3
0

5
16

00
0.

00
3

0
5

16
00

0.
00

3

S
b 

Le
ft

24
1

16
00

0.
15

1
*

5
24

6
0.

15
4

*
0

24
6

16
00

0.
15

4
*

0
24

6
16

00
0.

15
4

*
9

25
5

16
00

0.
15

9
*

0
25

5
28

80
0.

08
8

S
b 

T
hr

u
79

16
00

0.
13

4
2

81
0.

13
6

0
81

16
00

0.
13

8
0

81
16

00
0.

13
8

0
81

16
00

0.
14

1
0

81
16

00
0.

14
1

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

13
5

0
  

  
-

3
13

8
  

  
-

3
14

1
0

  
  

-
0

14
1

0
  

  
-

5
14

6
0

  
  

-
0

14
6

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

16
8

16
00

0.
10

5
*

3
17

1
0.

10
7

*
1

17
2

16
00

0.
10

8
*

0
17

2
16

00
0.

10
8

*
19

19
1

16
00

0.
12

0
*

0
19

1
16

00
0.

12
0

*
E

b 
T

hr
u

11
11

48
00

0.
24

3
22

11
33

0.
24

8
2

11
35

48
00

0.
24

9
0

11
35

48
00

0.
24

9
27

11
62

48
00

0.
25

4
0

11
62

48
00

0.
25

4
E

b 
R

ig
ht

57
0

  
  

-
1

58
  

  
-

1
59

0
  

  
-

0
59

0
  

  
-

0
59

0
  

  
-

0
59

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

16
16

00
0.

01
0

0
16

0.
01

0
0

16
16

00
0.

01
0

0
16

16
00

0.
01

0
0

16
16

00
0.

01
0

0
16

16
00

0.
01

0
W

b 
T

hr
u

16
93

48
00

0.
37

9
*

34
17

27
0.

38
7

*
10

17
37

48
00

0.
38

9
*

0
17

37
48

00
0.

38
9

*
13

17
50

48
00

0.
39

3
*

0
17

50
48

00
0.

39
3

*
W

b 
R

ig
ht

12
6

0
  

  
-

3
12

9
  

  
-

0
12

9
0

  
  

-
0

12
9

0
  

  
-

8
13

7
0

  
  

-
0

13
7

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
78

0
0.

79
4

0.
79

7
0.

79
7

0.
81

8
0.

80
6

LO
S

C
C

C
C

D
D

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

S
ho

em
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
-S

 S
t:

S
ho

em
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
10 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

15
0

16
00

0.
09

4
3

15
3

0.
09

6
2

15
5

16
00

0.
09

7
0

15
5

16
00

0.
09

7
0

15
5

16
00

0.
09

7
0

15
5

16
00

0.
09

7
*

N
b 

T
hr

u
10

7
16

00
0.

06
7

*
2

10
9

0.
06

8
*

0
10

9
16

00
0.

06
8

*
0

10
9

16
00

0.
06

8
*

0
10

9
16

00
0.

06
8

*
0

10
9

16
00

0.
06

8
N

b 
R

ig
ht

26
16

00
0.

01
6

1
27

0.
01

7
0

27
16

00
0.

01
7

0
27

16
00

0.
01

7
0

27
16

00
0.

01
7

0
27

16
00

0.
01

7

S
b 

Le
ft

29
3

16
00

0.
18

3
*

6
29

9
0.

18
7

*
0

29
9

16
00

0.
18

7
*

0
29

9
16

00
0.

18
7

*
9

30
8

16
00

0.
19

2
*

0
30

8
28

80
0.

10
7

S
b 

T
hr

u
87

16
00

0.
13

0
2

89
0.

13
3

0
89

16
00

0.
13

4
0

89
16

00
0.

13
4

0
89

16
00

0.
14

6
0

89
16

00
0.

14
6

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

12
1

0
  

  
-

2
12

3
  

  
-

2
12

5
0

  
  

-
0

12
5

0
  

  
-

19
14

4
0

  
  

-
0

14
4

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
3

16
3

0.
10

2
5

16
8

16
00

0.
10

5
0

16
8

16
00

0.
10

5
7

17
5

16
00

0.
11

0
0

17
5

16
00

0.
11

0
E

b 
T

hr
u

16
01

48
00

0.
33

9
*

32
16

33
0.

34
6

*
14

16
47

48
00

0.
35

0
*

0
16

47
48

00
0.

35
0

*
21

16
68

48
00

0.
35

4
*

0
16

68
48

00
0.

35
4

*
E

b 
R

ig
ht

26
0

  
  

-
1

27
  

  
-

5
32

0
  

  
-

0
32

0
  

  
-

0
32

0
  

  
-

0
32

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

28
16

00
0.

01
8

*
1

29
0.

01
8

*
0

29
16

00
0.

01
8

*
0

29
16

00
0.

01
8

*
0

29
16

00
0.

01
8

*
0

29
16

00
0.

01
8

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

10
51

48
00

0.
24

1
21

10
72

0.
24

6
5

10
77

48
00

0.
24

7
0

10
77

48
00

0.
24

7
33

11
10

48
00

0.
25

5
0

11
10

48
00

0.
25

5
W

b 
R

ig
ht

10
5

0
  

  
-

2
10

7
  

  
-

0
10

7
0

  
  

-
0

10
7

0
  

  
-

9
11

6
0

  
  

-
0

11
6

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
70

6
0.

71
9

0.
72

3
0.

72
3

0.
73

3
0.

71
5

LO
S

C
C

C
C

C
C

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

C
ar

m
en

ita
 R

oa
d 

@
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
C

ar
m

en
ita

 R
oa

d
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
11 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

19
5

16
00

0.
12

2
*

4
19

9
0.

12
4

*
3

20
2

16
00

0.
12

6
*

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

*
6

20
8

16
00

0.
13

0
*

0
20

8
16

00
0.

13
0

*
N

b 
T

hr
u

56
3

32
00

0.
19

6
11

57
4

0.
20

0
0

57
4

32
00

0.
20

0
0

57
4

32
00

0.
20

0
13

58
7

32
00

0.
20

6
0

58
7

32
00

0.
18

4
N

b 
R

ig
ht

65
0

  
  

-
1

66
  

  
-

0
66

0
  

  
-

0
66

0
  

  
-

6
72

0
  

  
-

0
72

16
00

0.
04

5

S
b 

Le
ft

96
16

00
0.

06
0

2
98

0.
06

1
0

98
16

00
0.

06
1

0
98

16
00

0.
06

1
1

99
16

00
0.

06
2

0
99

16
00

0.
06

2
S

b 
T

hr
u

72
4

32
00

0.
22

9
*

14
73

8
0.

23
3

*
0

73
8

32
00

0.
23

3
*

0
73

8
32

00
0.

23
3

*
25

76
3

32
00

0.
24

1
*

0
76

3
32

00
0.

24
1

*
S

b 
R

ig
ht

8
0

  
  

-
0

8
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

0
8

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

57
16

00
0.

03
6

*
1

58
0.

03
6

*
0

58
16

00
0.

03
6

*
0

58
16

00
0.

03
6

*
0

58
16

00
0.

03
6

0
58

16
00

0.
03

6
E

b 
T

hr
u

81
6

48
00

0.
20

2
16

83
2

0.
20

6
1

83
3

48
00

0.
20

6
0

83
3

48
00

0.
20

6
8

84
1

48
00

0.
21

4
*

0
84

1
48

00
0.

21
4

*
E

b 
R

ig
ht

15
3

0
  

  
-

3
15

6
  

  
-

1
15

7
0

  
  

-
0

15
7

0
  

  
-

27
18

4
0

  
  

-
0

18
4

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

12
7

16
00

0.
07

9
3

13
0

0.
08

1
0

13
0

16
00

0.
08

1
0

13
0

16
00

0.
08

1
25

15
5

16
00

0.
09

7
*

0
15

5
16

00
0.

09
7

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

11
72

48
00

0.
25

8
*

23
11

95
0.

26
3

*
3

11
98

48
00

0.
26

4
*

0
11

98
48

00
0.

26
4

*
14

12
12

48
00

0.
26

7
0

12
12

48
00

0.
26

7
W

b 
R

ig
ht

66
0

  
  

-
1

67
  

  
-

0
67

0
  

  
-

0
67

0
  

  
-

4
71

0
  

  
-

0
71

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
74

4
0.

75
7

0.
76

0
0.

76
0

0.
78

1
0.

78
1

LO
S

C
C

C
C

C
C

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
te

 5
00

, P
as

ad
en

a 
91

10
6

(6
26

) 7
96

.2
32

2 
  F

ax
 (6

26
) 7

92
-0

94
1

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

C
ar

m
en

ita
 R

oa
d 

@
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
C

ar
m

en
ita

 R
oa

d
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
11 20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

20
15

W
/A

M
B

IE
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

15
W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
W

/R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

20
15

W
/R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

e
d

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

A
d

d
e

d
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
  

 A
d

d
e

d
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

  
 A

d
d

ed
  

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
  

V
o

lu
m

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

 C
ap

ac
it

y
  R

at
io

  
V

o
lu

m
e

 V
o

lu
m

e
 C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

18
5

16
00

0.
11

6
4

18
9

0.
11

8
2

19
1

16
00

0.
11

9
0

19
1

16
00

0.
11

9
28

21
9

16
00

0.
13

7
0

21
9

16
00

0.
13

7
N

b 
T

hr
u

10
14

32
00

0.
35

4
*

20
10

34
0.

36
1

*
0

10
34

32
00

0.
36

1
*

0
10

34
32

00
0.

36
1

*
26

10
60

32
00

0.
37

8
*

0
10

60
32

00
0.

33
1

*
N

b 
R

ig
ht

12
0

0
  

  
-

2
12

2
  

  
-

0
12

2
0

  
  

-
0

12
2

0
  

  
-

26
14

8
0

  
  

-
0

14
8

16
00

0.
09

3

S
b 

Le
ft

10
1

16
00

0.
06

3
*

2
10

3
0.

06
4

*
0

10
3

16
00

0.
06

4
*

0
10

3
16

00
0.

06
4

*
4

10
7

16
00

0.
06

7
*

0
10

7
16

00
0.

06
7

*
S

b 
T

hr
u

71
6

32
00

0.
22

8
14

73
0

0.
23

2
0

73
0

32
00

0.
23

2
0

73
0

32
00

0.
23

2
17

74
7

32
00

0.
23

8
0

74
7

32
00

0.
23

8
S

b 
R

ig
ht

13
0

  
  

-
0

13
  

  
-

0
13

0
  

  
-

0
13

0
  

  
-

0
13

0
  

  
-

0
13

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

82
16

00
0.

05
1

2
84

0.
05

2
0

84
16

00
0.

05
2

0
84

16
00

0.
05

2
0

84
16

00
0.

05
2

0
84

16
00

0.
05

2
E

b 
T

hr
u

14
61

48
00

0.
33

9
*

29
14

90
0.

34
5

*
5

14
95

48
00

0.
34

7
*

0
14

95
48

00
0.

34
7

*
20

15
15

48
00

0.
35

3
*

0
15

15
48

00
0.

35
3

*
E

b 
R

ig
ht

16
4

0
  

  
-

3
16

7
  

  
-

5
17

2
0

  
  

-
0

17
2

0
  

  
-

7
17

9
0

  
  

-
0

17
9

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

10
8

16
00

0.
06

8
*

2
11

0
0.

06
9

*
0

11
0

16
00

0.
06

9
*

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

*
7

11
7

16
00

0.
07

3
*

0
11

7
16

00
0.

07
3

*
W

b 
T

hr
u

92
6

48
00

0.
21

5
19

94
5

0.
22

0
2

94
7

48
00

0.
22

0
0

94
7

48
00

0.
22

0
13

96
0

48
00

0.
22

3
0

96
0

48
00

0.
22

3
W

b 
R

ig
ht

10
7

0
  

  
-

2
10

9
  

  
-

0
10

9
0

  
  

-
0

10
9

0
  

  
-

1
11

0
0

  
  

-
0

11
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
92

4
0.

94
0

0.
94

2
0.

94
2

0.
97

1
0.

92
4

LO
S

E
E

E
E

E
E

01
:2

1 
P

M
*K

ey
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 IC

U
1

C
ou

nt
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

:C
ity

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Appendix Covers.doc 

APPENDIX C
CITY OF NORWALK:

ICU AND LEVELS OF SERVICE EXPLANATION
ICU DATA WORKSHEETS - WEEKDAY AM AND PM PEAK HOURS



INTERSECTION CAPACITY UTILIZATION (ICU) DESCRIPTION 

Level of Service is a term used to describe prevailing conditions and their effect on traffic.  Broadly interpreted, the Levels of Service 
concept denotes any one of a number of differing combinations of operating conditions which may occur as a roadway is 
accommodating various traffic volumes.  Level of Service is a qualitative measure of the effect of such factors as travel speed, travel 
time, traffic interruptions, freedom to maneuver, safety, driving comfort and convenience. 
 
Six Levels of Service, A through F, have been defined in the 1965 Highway Capacity Manual, published by the Transportation Research 
Board.  Level of Service A describes a condition of free flow, with low traffic volumes and relatively high speeds, while Level of Service 
F describes forced traffic flow at low speeds with jammed conditions and queues which cannot clear during the green phases. 
 
The Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) method of intersection capacity analysis has been used in our studies.  It directly relates 
traffic demand and available capacity for key intersection movements, regardless of present signal timing,  The capacity per hour of 
green time for each approach is calculated based on the methods of the Highway Capacity Manual.  The proportion of total signal time 
needed by each key movement is determined and compared to the total time available (100 percent of the hour).  The result of summing 
the requirements of the conflicting key movements plus an allowance for clearance times is expressed as a decimal fraction.  Conflicting 
key traffic movements are those opposing movements whose combined green time requirements are greatest. 
 
The resulting ICU represents the proportion of the total hour required to accommodate intersection demand volumes if the key 
conflicting traffic movements are operating at capacity.  Other movements may be operating near capacity, or may be operating at 
significantly better levels.  The ICU may be translated to a Level of Service as tabulated below. 
 
The Levels of Service (abbreviated from the Highway Capacity Manual) are listed here with their corresponding ICU and Load Factor 
equivalents.  Load Factor is that proportion of the signal cycles during the peak hour which are fully loaded; i.e. when all of the vehicles 
waiting at the beginning of green are not able to clear on that green phase. 
 

Intersection Capacity Utilization Characteristics 

Level of Service Load Factor Equivalent ICU 

A 0.0 0.00 - 0.60 
B 0.0 - 0.1 0.61 - 0.70 
C 0.1 - 0.3 0.71 - 0.80 
D 0.3 - 0.7 0.81 - 0.90 
E 0.7 - 1.0 0.91 - 1.00 
F Not Applicable Not Applicable 

 
SERVICE LEVEL A 
There are no loaded cycles and few are even close to loaded at this service level.  No approach phase is fully utilized by traffic and no 
vehicle waits longer than one red indication. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL B 
This level represents stable operation where an occasional approach phase is fully utilized and a substantial number are approaching full 
use.  Many drivers begin to feel restricted within platoons of vehicles. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL C 
At this level stable operation continues.  Loading is still intermittent but more frequent than at Level B.  Occasionally drivers may have 
to wait through more than one red signal indication and backups may develop behind turning vehicles. Most drivers feel somewhat 
restricted, but not objectionably so. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL D 
This level encompasses a zone of increasing restriction approaching instability at the intersection.  Delays to approaching vehicles may 
be substantial during short peaks within the peak hour, but enough cycles with lower demand occur to permit periodic clearance of 
queues, thus preventing excessive backups.  Drivers frequently have to wait through more than one red signal.  This level is the lower 
limit of acceptable operation to most drivers. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL E 
This represents near capacity and capacity operation.  At capacity (ICU = 1.0) it represents the most vehicles that the particular 
intersection can accommodate.  However, full utilization of every signal cycle is seldom attained no matter how great the demand.  At 
this level all drivers wait through more than one red signal, and frequently through several. 
 
SERVICE LEVEL F 
Jammed conditions.  Traffic backed up from a downstream location on one of the street restricts or prevents movement of traffic through 
the intersection under consideration. 



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

ff
-R

am
p 

@
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 O
ff

-R
am

p
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
1

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

 [
4]

15
3

16
00

0.
09

6
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

N
b 

T
hr

u 
[4

]
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

N
b 

R
ig

ht
 [

4]
8

16
00

0.
00

5
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

S
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

E
b 

T
hr

u
16

49
48

00
0.

34
4

*
3

16
52

48
00

0.
34

4
*

0
16

52
48

00
0.

34
4

*
27

17
09

48
00

0.
35

6
*

3
17

12
48

00
0.

35
7

*
0

17
12

48
00

0.
35

7
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
 [

3]
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*

W
b 

T
hr

u
14

28
48

00
0.

29
8

0
14

28
48

00
0.

29
8

0
14

28
48

00
0.

29
8

14
14

71
48

00
0.

30
6

0
14

71
48

00
0.

30
6

0
14

71
48

00
0.

30
6

W
b 

R
ig

ht
24

2
16

00
0.

15
1

1
24

3
16

00
0.

15
2

0
24

3
16

00
0.

15
2

0
24

7
16

00
0.

15
4

1
24

8
16

00
0.

15
5

0
24

8
16

00
0.

15
5

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
53

9
0.

44
4

0.
44

4
0.

45
6

0.
45

7
0.

45
7

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:C

ity
 T

ra
ffi

c 
C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en
3

Fr
ee

-fl
ow

 m
ov

em
en

t.
4

Th
is

 o
ff-

ra
m

p 
w

as
 c

lo
se

d 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 b
y 

C
al

tra
ns

 o
n 

9/
13

/1
3.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

ff
-R

am
p 

@
 I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
N

-S
 S

t:
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 O
ff

-R
am

p
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
1

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

 [
4]

16
6

16
00

0.
10

4
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

N
b 

T
hr

u 
[4

]
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

N
b 

R
ig

ht
 [

4]
21

16
00

0.
01

3
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-
0

0
0

  
  

-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

S
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*

E
b 

T
hr

u
14

90
48

00
0.

31
0

2
14

92
48

00
0.

31
1

0
14

92
48

00
0.

31
1

23
15

43
48

00
0.

32
1

2
15

45
48

00
0.

32
2

0
15

45
48

00
0.

32
2

E
b 

R
ig

ht
 [

3]
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

W
b 

T
hr

u
13

09
48

00
0.

27
3

0
13

09
48

00
0.

27
3

0
13

09
48

00
0.

27
3

41
13

76
48

00
0.

28
7

0
13

76
48

00
0.

28
7

0
13

76
48

00
0.

28
7

W
b 

R
ig

ht
52

0
16

00
0.

32
5

*
5

52
5

16
00

0.
32

8
*

0
52

5
16

00
0.

32
8

*
0

53
0

16
00

0.
33

2
*

5
53

5
16

00
0.

33
5

*
0

53
5

16
00

0.
33

5
*

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
52

9
0.

42
8

0.
42

8
0.

43
2

0.
43

5
0.

43
5

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:C

ity
 T

ra
ffi

c 
C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en
3

Fr
ee

-fl
ow

 m
ov

em
en

t.
Th

is
 o

ff-
ra

m
p 

w
as

 c
lo

se
d 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 b

y 
C

al
tra

ns
 o

n 
9/

13
/1

3.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 @
 A

do
re

e 
S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 R
am

ps
N

-S
 S

t:
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

A
do

re
e 

S
tr

ee
t-

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 R

am
ps

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

3

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

15
7

16
00

0.
09

8
0

15
7

16
00

0.
09

8
0

15
7

16
00

0.
09

8
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0

N
b 

T
hr

u
22

16
32

00
0.

73
6

*
3

22
19

32
00

0.
73

7
*

0
22

19
32

00
0.

73
7

*
13

22
73

32
00

0.
75

5
*

3
22

76
32

00
0.

75
5

*
0

22
76

32
00

0.
75

5
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
13

8
0

  
  

-
0

13
8

0
  

  
-

0
13

8
0

  
  

-
0

14
1

0
  

  
-

0
14

1
0

  
  

-
0

14
1

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*

S
b 

T
hr

u
20

55
48

00
0.

46
7

1
20

56
48

00
0.

46
7

0
20

56
48

00
0.

46
7

12
21

08
48

00
0.

47
9

1
21

09
48

00
0.

47
9

0
21

09
48

00
0.

47
9

S
b 

R
ig

ht
18

7
0

  
  

-
0

18
7

0
  

  
-

0
18

7
0

  
  

-
0

19
1

0
  

  
-

0
19

1
0

  
  

-
0

19
1

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

46
0

0.
02

9
0

46
0

0.
02

9
0

46
0

0.
02

9
0

47
0

0.
03

0
0

47
0

0.
03

0
0

47
0

0.
03

0

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

16
00

0.
16

8
*

0
0

16
00

0.
16

8
*

0
0

16
00

0.
16

8
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

0
0

16
00

0.
17

1
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
22

2
0

  
  

-
0

22
2

0
  

  
-

0
22

2
0

  
  

-
0

22
7

0
  

  
-

0
22

7
0

  
  

-
0

22
7

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

30
16

00
0.

01
9

*
0

30
16

00
0.

01
9

*
0

30
16

00
0.

01
9

*
4

35
16

00
0.

02
2

*
0

35
16

00
0.

02
2

*
0

35
16

00
0.

02
2

*

W
b 

T
hr

u
4

32
0

0.
01

4
0

4
32

0
0.

01
4

0
4

32
0

0.
01

4
0

4
32

0
0.

01
4

0
4

32
0

0.
01

4
0

4
32

0
0.

01
4

W
b 

R
ig

ht
45

1
28

80
0.

15
7

3
45

4
28

80
0.

15
8

0
45

4
28

80
0.

15
8

0
46

0
28

80
0.

16
0

3
46

3
28

80
0.

16
1

0
46

3
28

80
0.

16
1

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
02

3
1.

02
4

1.
02

4
1.

04
8

1.
04

9
1.

04
9

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:S

ou
th

la
nd

 C
ar

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

N
or

w
al

k 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 @
 A

do
re

e 
S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
F

w
y 

N
B

 R
am

ps
N

-S
 S

t:
N

or
w

al
k 

B
ou

le
va

rd
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

A
do

re
e 

S
tr

ee
t-

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 R

am
ps

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

3

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

20
6

16
00

0.
12

9
*

0
20

6
16

00
0.

12
9

*
0

20
6

16
00

0.
12

9
*

0
21

0
16

00
0.

13
2

*
0

21
0

16
00

0.
13

2
*

0
21

0
16

00
0.

13
2

*

N
b 

T
hr

u
23

80
32

00
0.

81
0

2
23

82
32

00
0.

81
0

0
23

82
32

00
0.

81
0

13
24

41
32

00
0.

83
0

2
24

43
32

00
0.

83
1

0
24

43
32

00
0.

83
1

N
b 

R
ig

ht
21

1
0

  
  

-
0

21
1

0
  

  
-

0
21

1
0

  
  

-
0

21
5

0
  

  
-

0
21

5
0

  
  

-
0

21
5

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

S
b 

T
hr

u
32

50
48

00
0.

76
7

*
9

32
59

48
00

0.
76

9
*

0
32

59
48

00
0.

76
9

*
16

33
31

48
00

0.
78

6
*

9
33

40
48

00
0.

78
8

*
0

33
40

48
00

0.
78

8
*

S
b 

R
ig

ht
43

3
0

  
  

-
0

43
3

0
  

  
-

0
43

3
0

  
  

-
0

44
2

0
  

  
-

0
44

2
0

  
  

-
0

44
2

0
  

  
-

E
b 

Le
ft

41
0

0.
02

6
0

41
0

0.
02

6
0

41
0

0.
02

6
0

42
0

0.
02

6
0

42
0

0.
02

6
0

42
0

0.
02

6

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

16
00

0.
13

9
*

0
0

16
00

0.
13

9
*

0
0

16
00

0.
13

9
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

0
0

16
00

0.
14

2
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
18

1
0

  
  

-
0

18
1

0
  

  
-

0
18

1
0

  
  

-
0

18
5

0
  

  
-

0
18

5
0

  
  

-
0

18
5

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

43
16

00
0.

02
7

*
0

43
16

00
0.

02
7

*
0

43
16

00
0.

02
7

*
2

46
16

00
0.

02
9

*
0

46
16

00
0.

02
9

*
0

46
16

00
0.

02
9

*

W
b 

T
hr

u
10

32
0

0.
03

0
0

10
32

0
0.

03
0

0
10

32
0

0.
03

0
0

10
32

0
0.

03
1

0
10

32
0

0.
03

1
0

10
32

0
0.

03
1

W
b 

R
ig

ht
35

4
28

80
0.

12
3

2
35

6
28

80
0.

12
4

0
35

6
28

80
0.

12
4

0
36

1
28

80
0.

12
5

2
36

3
28

80
0.

12
6

0
36

3
28

80
0.

12
6

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
16

2
1.

16
4

1.
16

4
1.

18
8

1.
19

0
1.

19
0

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:S

ou
th

la
nd

 C
ar

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e 
@

 U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

4

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

44
16

00
0.

02
8

0
44

16
00

0.
02

8
0

44
16

00
0.

02
8

0
45

16
00

0.
02

8
0

45
16

00
0.

02
8

0
45

16
00

0.
02

8

N
b 

T
hr

u
20

07
32

00
0.

62
7

*
3

20
10

32
00

0.
62

8
*

0
20

10
32

00
0.

62
8

*
13

20
60

32
00

0.
64

4
*

3
20

63
32

00
0.

64
5

*
0

20
63

32
00

0.
64

5
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
63

16
00

0.
03

9
0

63
16

00
0.

03
9

0
63

16
00

0.
03

9
1

65
16

00
0.

04
1

0
65

16
00

0.
04

1
0

65
16

00
0.

04
1

S
b 

Le
ft

41
9

16
00

0.
26

2
*

1
42

0
16

00
0.

26
3

*
0

42
0

16
00

0.
26

3
*

0
42

7
16

00
0.

26
7

*
1

42
8

16
00

0.
26

8
*

0
42

8
16

00
0.

26
8

*

S
b 

T
hr

u
17

67
32

00
0.

55
2

1
17

68
32

00
0.

55
2

0
17

68
32

00
0.

55
2

12
18

14
32

00
0.

56
7

1
18

15
32

00
0.

56
7

0
18

15
32

00
0.

56
7

S
b 

R
ig

ht
10

8
16

00
0.

06
8

0
10

8
16

00
0.

06
8

0
10

8
16

00
0.

06
8

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

0
11

0
16

00
0.

06
9

E
b 

Le
ft

50
7

0
0.

31
7

0
50

7
0

0.
31

7
0

50
7

0
0.

31
7

0
51

7
0

0.
32

3
0

51
7

0
0.

32
3

0
51

7
0

0.
32

3

E
b 

T
hr

u
53

16
00

0.
35

0
*

0
53

16
00

0.
35

0
*

0
53

16
00

0.
35

0
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

0
54

16
00

0.
35

7
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
15

9
16

00
0.

09
9

0
15

9
16

00
0.

09
9

0
15

9
16

00
0.

09
9

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

0
16

2
16

00
0.

10
1

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
33

9
1.

34
0

1.
34

0
1.

36
7

1.
36

9
1.

36
9

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:S

ou
th

la
nd

 C
ar

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e 
@

 U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 D
riv

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t-
I-

5 
S

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

4

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

30
16

00
0.

01
9

0
30

16
00

0.
01

9
0

30
16

00
0.

01
9

0
31

16
00

0.
01

9
0

31
16

00
0.

01
9

0
31

16
00

0.
01

9

N
b 

T
hr

u
23

20
32

00
0.

72
5

*
2

23
22

32
00

0.
72

6
*

0
23

22
32

00
0.

72
6

*
13

23
79

32
00

0.
74

4
*

2
23

81
32

00
0.

74
4

*
0

23
81

32
00

0.
74

4
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
39

16
00

0.
02

4
0

39
16

00
0.

02
4

0
39

16
00

0.
02

4
5

45
16

00
0.

02
8

0
45

16
00

0.
02

8
0

45
16

00
0.

02
8

S
b 

Le
ft

62
2

16
00

0.
38

9
*

5
62

7
16

00
0.

39
2

*
0

62
7

16
00

0.
39

2
*

0
63

5
16

00
0.

39
7

*
5

64
0

16
00

0.
40

0
*

0
64

0
16

00
0.

40
0

*

S
b 

T
hr

u
27

79
32

00
0.

86
8

5
27

84
32

00
0.

87
0

0
27

84
32

00
0.

87
0

16
28

50
32

00
0.

89
1

5
28

55
32

00
0.

89
2

0
28

55
32

00
0.

89
2

S
b 

R
ig

ht
96

16
00

0.
06

0
0

96
16

00
0.

06
0

0
96

16
00

0.
06

0
0

98
16

00
0.

06
1

0
98

16
00

0.
06

1
0

98
16

00
0.

06
1

E
b 

Le
ft

46
5

0
0.

29
1

0
46

5
0

0.
29

1
0

46
5

0
0.

29
1

0
47

5
0

0.
29

7
0

47
5

0
0.

29
7

0
47

5
0

0.
29

7

E
b 

T
hr

u
21

16
00

0.
30

4
*

0
21

16
00

0.
30

4
*

0
21

16
00

0.
30

4
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

0
21

16
00

0.
31

0
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
19

8
16

00
0.

12
4

0
19

8
16

00
0.

12
4

0
19

8
16

00
0.

12
4

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

0
20

2
16

00
0.

12
6

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*
0

0
0

0.
00

0
*

0
0

0
0.

00
0

*

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

1.
51

8
1.

52
1

1.
52

1
1.

55
0

1.
55

4
1.

55
4

LO
S

F
F

F
F

F
F

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:S

ou
th

la
nd

 C
ar

 C
ou

nt
er

s
2

C
ap

ac
ity

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 v
eh

/h
ou

r o
f g

re
en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, L

A
W

 &
 G

R
E

E
N

S
P

A
N

, E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
6

20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

13
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

L
U

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
JE

C
T

20
15

F
U

T
U

R
E

 W
IT

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
20

15
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 +
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 [
3

1
2

   
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
0

16
0

16
00

0.
10

0
1

16
4

16
00

0.
10

3
0

16
4

16
00

0.
10

3
0

84
16

00
0.

05
3

N
b 

T
hr

u
76

1
32

00
0.

23
8

*
10

77
1

32
00

0.
24

1
*

0
77

1
32

00
0.

24
1

*
4

78
0

32
00

0.
24

4
*

10
79

0
32

00
0.

24
7

*
0

79
0

32
00

0.
24

7
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
23

8
16

00
0.

14
9

0
23

8
16

00
0.

14
9

0
23

8
16

00
0.

04
8

4
24

7
16

00
0.

15
4

0
24

7
16

00
0.

15
4

0
24

7
16

00
0.

05
1

S
b 

Le
ft

14
7

16
00

0.
09

2
*

4
15

1
16

00
0.

09
4

*
0

15
1

16
00

0.
09

4
*

5
15

5
16

00
0.

09
7

*
4

15
9

16
00

0.
09

9
*

0
79

16
00

0.
04

9
*

S
b 

T
hr

u
49

7
32

00
0.

15
5

2
49

9
32

00
0.

15
6

0
49

9
32

00
0.

15
6

6
51

3
32

00
0.

16
0

2
51

5
32

00
0.

16
1

0
51

5
32

00
0.

16
1

S
b 

R
ig

ht
11

4
16

00
0.

07
1

3
11

7
16

00
0.

07
3

0
11

7
16

00
0.

07
3

2
11

8
16

00
0.

07
4

3
12

1
16

00
0.

07
6

0
12

1
16

00
0.

07
6

E
b 

Le
ft

16
9

16
00

0.
10

6
*

13
18

2
16

00
0.

11
4

*
0

18
2

16
00

0.
11

4
*

0
17

2
16

00
0.

10
8

*
13

18
5

16
00

0.
11

6
*

0
18

5
16

00
0.

11
6

*

E
b 

T
hr

u
10

99
48

00
0.

22
9

0
10

99
48

00
0.

22
9

0
10

99
48

00
0.

22
9

38
11

59
48

00
0.

24
1

0
11

59
48

00
0.

24
1

0
11

59
48

00
0.

24
1

E
b 

R
ig

ht
48

16
00

0.
03

0
0

48
16

00
0.

03
0

0
48

16
00

0.
03

0
0

49
16

00
0.

03
1

0
49

16
00

0.
03

1
0

49
16

00
0.

03
1

W
b 

Le
ft

29
1

16
00

0.
18

2
0

29
1

16
00

0.
18

2
0

29
1

28
80

0.
10

1
1

29
8

16
00

0.
18

6
0

29
8

16
00

0.
18

6
0

29
8

28
80

0.
10

3

W
b 

T
hr

u
14

57
48

00
0.

32
8

*
0

14
57

48
00

0.
33

2
*

0
14

57
48

00
0.

33
2

*
16

15
02

48
00

0.
33

8
*

0
15

02
48

00
0.

34
2

*
0

15
02

48
00

0.
34

2
*

W
b 

R
ig

ht
11

9
0

   
 -

17
13

6
0

   
 -

0
13

6
0

   
 -

1
12

2
0

   
 -

17
13

9
0

   
 -

0
13

9
0

   
 -

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
86

4
0.

88
1

0.
88

1
0.

88
7

0.
90

4
0.

85
4

LO
S

D
D

D
D

E
D

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:C

ity
 T

ra
ffi

c 
C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en
3

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

G
at

ew
ay

 C
iti

es
 C

O
G

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
du

al
 w

es
tb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 la
ne

s,
 lo

ng
er

 n
or

th
bo

un
d 

an
d 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 p

oc
ke

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d

al
on

g 
w

ith
 ti

m
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

tra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r t
ho

se
 tr

af
fic

 m
ov

em
en

ts
.

Th
e 

no
rth

bo
un

d 
rig

ht
-tu

rn
 la

ne
 h

as
 a

n 
ov

er
la

pp
in

g 
ph

as
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
es

tb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 p

ha
se

.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, L

A
W

 &
 G

R
E

E
N

S
P

A
N

, E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
m

pe
ria

l H
ig

hw
ay

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
A

nn
ua

l G
ro

w
th

:
1.

00
%

D
at

e 
of

 C
ou

nt
:

20
13

P
ro

je
ct

:
In

te
rH

ea
lth

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

M
O

B
 P

ro
je

ct
/1

-1
3-

40
18

-1
P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Y

ea
r:

20
15

F
ile

:
IC

U
6

20
13

E
X

IS
T

. 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
20

13
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

L
U

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
20

13
E

X
IS

T
. 

W
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
20

15
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
JE

C
T

20
15

F
U

T
U

R
E

 W
IT

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
20

15
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
JE

C
T

 +
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 [
3

1
2

   
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

   
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

   
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
   

V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

14
2

16
00

0.
08

9
0

14
2

16
00

0.
08

9
0

14
2

16
00

0.
08

9
*

0
14

5
16

00
0.

09
1

0
14

5
16

00
0.

09
1

0
65

16
00

0.
04

1
*

N
b 

T
hr

u
36

1
32

00
0.

11
3

5
36

6
32

00
0.

11
4

0
36

6
32

00
0.

11
4

6
37

4
32

00
0.

11
7

5
37

9
32

00
0.

11
9

0
37

9
32

00
0.

11
9

N
b 

R
ig

ht
29

3
16

00
0.

18
3

*
0

29
3

16
00

0.
18

3
*

0
29

3
16

00
0.

11
8

1
30

0
16

00
0.

18
7

*
0

30
0

16
00

0.
18

7
*

0
30

0
16

00
0.

11
9

S
b 

Le
ft

23
0

16
00

0.
14

4
*

23
25

3
16

00
0.

15
8

*
0

25
3

16
00

0.
15

8
1

23
6

16
00

0.
14

7
*

23
25

9
16

00
0.

16
2

*
0

17
9

16
00

0.
11

2

S
b 

T
hr

u
62

9
32

00
0.

19
7

14
64

3
32

00
0.

20
1

0
64

3
32

00
0.

20
1

*
6

64
8

32
00

0.
20

2
14

66
2

32
00

0.
20

7
0

66
2

32
00

0.
20

7
*

S
b 

R
ig

ht
94

16
00

0.
05

9
18

11
2

16
00

0.
07

0
0

11
2

16
00

0.
07

0
0

96
16

00
0.

06
0

18
11

4
16

00
0.

07
1

0
11

4
16

00
0.

07
1

E
b 

Le
ft

85
16

00
0.

05
3

7
92

16
00

0.
05

8
0

92
16

00
0.

05
8

2
89

16
00

0.
05

5
7

96
16

00
0.

06
0

0
96

16
00

0.
06

0

E
b 

T
hr

u
12

24
48

00
0.

25
5

*
0

12
24

48
00

0.
25

5
*

0
12

24
48

00
0.

25
5

*
26

12
74

48
00

0.
26

6
*

0
12

74
48

00
0.

26
6

*
0

12
74

48
00

0.
26

6
*

E
b 

R
ig

ht
59

16
00

0.
03

7
0

59
16

00
0.

03
7

0
59

16
00

0.
03

7
1

61
16

00
0.

03
8

0
61

16
00

0.
03

8
0

61
16

00
0.

03
8

W
b 

Le
ft

18
9

16
00

0.
11

8
*

0
18

9
16

00
0.

11
8

*
0

18
9

28
80

0.
06

6
*

4
19

7
16

00
0.

12
3

*
0

19
7

16
00

0.
12

3
*

0
19

7
28

80
0.

06
8

*

W
b 

T
hr

u
11

15
48

00
0.

25
0

0
11

15
48

00
0.

25
1

0
11

15
48

00
0.

25
1

44
11

81
48

00
0.

26
5

0
11

81
48

00
0.

26
7

0
11

81
48

00
0.

26
7

W
b 

R
ig

ht
83

0
   

 -
9

92
0

   
 -

0
92

0
   

 -
5

90
0

   
 -

9
99

0
   

 -
0

99
0

   
 -

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
80

0
0.

81
4

0.
71

0
0.

82
3

0.
83

8
0.

68
1

LO
S

C
D

C
D

D
B

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:C

ity
 T

ra
ffi

c 
C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en
3

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

G
at

ew
ay

 C
iti

es
 C

O
G

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
du

al
 w

es
tb

ou
nd

 le
ft-

tu
rn

 la
ne

s,
 lo

ng
er

 n
or

th
bo

un
d 

an
d 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 p

oc
ke

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d

al
on

g 
w

ith
 ti

m
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

tra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r t
ho

se
 tr

af
fic

 m
ov

em
en

ts
.

Th
e 

no
rth

bo
un

d 
rig

ht
-tu

rn
 la

ne
 h

as
 a

n 
ov

er
la

pp
in

g 
ph

as
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
es

tb
ou

nd
 le

ft-
tu

rn
 p

ha
se

.



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
-5

 F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

A
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

8

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
V

/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

N
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

N
b 

T
hr

u
31

7
16

00
0.

19
8

*
0

31
7

16
00

0.
19

8
*

0
31

7
16

00
0.

19
8

*
0

32
3

16
00

0.
20

6
*

0
32

3
16

00
0.

20
6

*
0

32
3

16
00

0.
20

6
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

6
6

0
  

  
-

0
6

0
  

  
-

0
6

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

38
2

16
00

0.
23

9
*

2
38

4
16

00
0.

24
0

*
0

38
4

16
00

0.
24

0
*

0
39

0
16

00
0.

24
4

*
2

39
2

16
00

0.
24

5
*

0
39

2
16

00
0.

24
5

*

S
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

R
ig

ht
51

16
00

0.
03

2
0

51
16

00
0.

03
2

0
51

16
00

0.
03

2
1

53
16

00
0.

03
3

0
53

16
00

0.
03

3
0

53
16

00
0.

03
3

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

E
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
53

7
0.

53
8

0.
53

8
0.

54
9

0.
55

1
0.

55
1

LO
S

A
A

A
A

A
A

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:C

ity
 T

ra
ffi

c 
C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en



L
IN

S
C

O
T

T
, 

L
A

W
 &

 G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

N
, 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

60
0 

S
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 5

00
, P

as
ad

en
a 

C
A

 9
11

06
(6

26
) 7

96
.2

32
2 

  F
ax

 (6
26

) 7
92

-0
94

1
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
@

 I
-5

 F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

N
-S

 S
t:

B
lo

om
fie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e
P

ea
k 

hr
:

P
M

D
at

e:
10

/2
9/

20
14

E
-W

 S
t:

I-
5 

F
w

y 
N

B
 O

n-
R

am
p

A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
:

1.
00

%
D

at
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

:
20

13
P

ro
je

ct
:

In
te

rH
ea

lth
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
M

O
B

 P
ro

je
ct

/1
-1

3-
40

18
-1

P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Y
ea

r:
20

15
F

ile
:

IC
U

8

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

. T
R

A
F

F
IC

2
0

1
3

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

U
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

3
E

X
IS

T
. W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 P

R
E

-P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

IT
H

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
2

0
1

5
F

U
T

U
R

E
 W

/P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 +

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

1
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

  
 V

/C
A

d
d

ed
T

o
ta

l
2

V
/C

A
d

d
ed

T
o

ta
l

2
  

 V
/C

M
o

ve
m

en
t

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
C

ap
ac

it
y

  
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
R

at
io

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

C
ap

ac
it

y
  

R
at

io

N
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

N
b 

T
hr

u
42

9
16

00
0.

26
8

*
0

42
9

16
00

0.
26

8
*

0
42

9
16

00
0.

26
8

*
0

43
8

16
00

0.
27

7
*

0
43

8
16

00
0.

27
7

*
0

43
8

16
00

0.
27

7
*

N
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

5
5

0
  

  
-

0
5

0
  

  
-

0
5

0
  

  
-

S
b 

Le
ft

37
7

16
00

0.
23

6
*

14
39

1
16

00
0.

24
4

*
0

39
1

16
00

0.
24

4
*

2
38

7
16

00
0.

24
2

*
14

40
1

16
00

0.
25

0
*

0
40

1
16

00
0.

25
0

*

S
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

S
b 

R
ig

ht
12

0
16

00
0.

07
5

0
12

0
16

00
0.

07
5

0
12

0
16

00
0.

07
5

4
12

6
16

00
0.

07
9

0
12

6
16

00
0.

07
9

0
12

6
16

00
0.

07
9

E
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

E
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

E
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

W
b 

Le
ft

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

0

W
b 

T
hr

u
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

0
0

0
0.

00
0

W
b 

R
ig

ht
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

0
0

0
  

  
-

Y
el

lo
w

 A
llo

w
an

ce
:

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

0.
10

0
*

IC
U

0.
60

4
0.

61
3

0.
61

3
0.

61
8

0.
62

7
0.

62
7

LO
S

B
B

B
B

B
B

*K
ey

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t a
s 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 IC
U

1
C

ou
nt

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
:C

ity
 T

ra
ffi

c 
C

ou
nt

er
s

2
C

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 v

eh
/h

ou
r o

f g
re

en



LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Appendix Covers.doc 

APPENDIX D
CONCEPTUAL DRAWINGS FOR LOS ANGELES COUNTY 

CUMULATIVE MITIGATION MEASURES







LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers  LLG Ref. 1-13-4010-1 
InterHealth Corporation MOB Project 

O:\JOB_FILE\4010\Report\4010-Appendix Covers.doc 

APPENDIX E
CALTRANS ANALYSIS WORKSHEETS



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing Conditions
1: I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp & Imperial Hwy Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 1649 0 0 1428 153 8
Number 4 14 3 8 5 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 0 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 1666 0 0 1442 155 8
Adj No. of Lanes 3 0 0 3 1 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 0 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 3284 0 0 3284 300 268
Arrive On Green 0.65 0.00 0.00 0.65 0.17 0.17
Sat Flow, veh/h 5421 0 0 5421 1774 1583
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 1666 0 0 1442 155 8
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1695 0 0 1695 1774 1583
Q Serve(g_s), s 9.3 0.0 0.0 7.6 4.3 0.2
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 9.3 0.0 0.0 7.6 4.3 0.2
Prop In Lane 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 3284 0 0 3284 300 268
V/C Ratio(X) 0.51 0.00 0.00 0.44 0.52 0.03
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 3294 0 0 3294 493 440
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 5.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 20.4 18.7
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.4 0.0
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 8.0 0.0 0.0 6.5 4.0 0.2
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.2 21.8 18.8
LnGrp LOS A A C B
Approach Vol, veh/h 1666 1442 163
Approach Delay, s/veh 5.6 5.2 21.7
Approach LOS A A C

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 2 4 8
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 14.1 39.9 39.9
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 15.0 35.0 35.0
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s 6.3 11.3 9.6
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 23.6 25.3

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 6.2
HCM 2010 LOS A



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing Conditions
1: I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp & Imperial Hwy Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 1490 0 0 1309 166 21
Number 4 14 3 8 5 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 0 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 1568 0 0 1378 175 22
Adj No. of Lanes 3 0 0 3 1 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 0 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 3261 0 0 3261 310 277
Arrive On Green 0.64 0.00 0.00 0.64 0.17 0.17
Sat Flow, veh/h 5421 0 0 5421 1774 1583
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 1568 0 0 1378 175 22
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1695 0 0 1695 1774 1583
Q Serve(g_s), s 8.7 0.0 0.0 7.2 4.9 0.6
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 8.7 0.0 0.0 7.2 4.9 0.6
Prop In Lane 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 3261 0 0 3261 310 277
V/C Ratio(X) 0.48 0.00 0.00 0.42 0.56 0.08
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 3276 0 0 3276 490 437
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 5.1 0.0 0.0 4.8 20.5 18.8
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.6 0.1
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 7.3 0.0 0.0 6.2 4.5 0.5
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.2 22.1 18.9
LnGrp LOS A A C B
Approach Vol, veh/h 1568 1378 197
Approach Delay, s/veh 5.6 5.2 21.8
Approach LOS A A C

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 2 4 8
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 14.5 39.8 39.8
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 15.0 35.0 35.0
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s 6.9 10.7 9.2
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 24.1 25.6

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 6.4
HCM 2010 LOS A



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing with Project
1: I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp & Imperial Hwy Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 1652 0 0 1428 153 8
Number 4 14 3 8 5 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 0 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 1669 0 0 1442 155 8
Adj No. of Lanes 3 0 0 3 1 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 0 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 3284 0 0 3284 300 268
Arrive On Green 0.65 0.00 0.00 0.65 0.17 0.17
Sat Flow, veh/h 5421 0 0 5421 1774 1583
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 1669 0 0 1442 155 8
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1695 0 0 1695 1774 1583
Q Serve(g_s), s 9.3 0.0 0.0 7.6 4.3 0.2
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 9.3 0.0 0.0 7.6 4.3 0.2
Prop In Lane 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 3284 0 0 3284 300 268
V/C Ratio(X) 0.51 0.00 0.00 0.44 0.52 0.03
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 3294 0 0 3294 493 440
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 5.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 20.4 18.7
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.4 0.0
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 8.0 0.0 0.0 6.5 4.0 0.2
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.2 21.8 18.8
LnGrp LOS A A C B
Approach Vol, veh/h 1669 1442 163
Approach Delay, s/veh 5.6 5.2 21.7
Approach LOS A A C

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 2 4 8
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 14.1 39.9 39.9
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 15.0 35.0 35.0
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s 6.3 11.3 9.6
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 23.5 25.3

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 6.2
HCM 2010 LOS A



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing with Project
1: I-5 Fwy NB Off-Ramp & Imperial Hwy Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 1492 0 0 1309 166 21
Number 4 14 3 8 5 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 0 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 1571 0 0 1378 175 22
Adj No. of Lanes 3 0 0 3 1 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 0 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 3261 0 0 3261 310 277
Arrive On Green 0.64 0.00 0.00 0.64 0.17 0.17
Sat Flow, veh/h 5421 0 0 5421 1774 1583
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 1571 0 0 1378 175 22
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1695 0 0 1695 1774 1583
Q Serve(g_s), s 8.7 0.0 0.0 7.2 4.9 0.6
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 8.7 0.0 0.0 7.2 4.9 0.6
Prop In Lane 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 3261 0 0 3261 310 277
V/C Ratio(X) 0.48 0.00 0.00 0.42 0.56 0.08
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 3276 0 0 3276 490 437
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 5.1 0.0 0.0 4.8 20.5 18.8
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.6 0.1
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 7.3 0.0 0.0 6.2 4.5 0.5
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.2 22.1 18.9
LnGrp LOS A A C B
Approach Vol, veh/h 1571 1378 197
Approach Delay, s/veh 5.6 5.2 21.8
Approach LOS A A C

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 2 4 8
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 14.5 39.8 39.8
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 15.0 35.0 35.0
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s 6.9 10.7 9.2
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 24.1 25.6

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 6.4
HCM 2010 LOS A



HCM 2010 TWSC 2013 Existing Conditions
3: Adoree St/I-5 Fwy NB On/Off-Ramp & Norwalk Blvd Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 12.3

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Vol, veh/h 46 0 222 30 4 451 157 2216 138 0 2055 187
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 20
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - Free - - None
Storage Length - - - 25 - 175 75 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 46 0 222 30 4 451 157 2216 138 0 2055 187

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 3573 4679 1121 3352 4772 1128 2242 0 - 2216 0 0
          Stage 1 2149 2149 - 2530 2530 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 1424 2530 - 822 2242 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.99 6.54 7.14 6.99 6.54 6.94 5.34 - - 4.14 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 6.54 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.54 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.67 4.02 3.92 3.67 4.02 3.32 3.12 - - 2.22 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver ~ 4 1 ~ 172 ~ 5 ~ 1 ~ 198 ~ 94 - 0 233 - -
          Stage 1 ~ 30 87 - ~ 28 55 - - - 0 - - -
          Stage 2 140 55 - 311 77 - - - 0 - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 1 ~ 172 - ~ 1 ~ 194 ~ 94 - - 229 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 1 - - ~ 1 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 ~ 30 87 - ~ 28 55 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - 55 - - 77 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 27.9 0
HCM LOS - -

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2WBLn3 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) ~ 94 - - - 1 194 229 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 1.67 - - - 4 2.325 - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) $ 421.1 - - -$ 6913.6 $ 650.6 0 - -
HCM Lane LOS F - - - F F A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 12.6 - - - 1.4 36.7 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



HCM 2010 TWSC 2013 Existing Conditions
3: Adoree St/I-5 Fwy NB On/Off-Ramp & Norwalk Blvd Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 173.4

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Vol, veh/h 41 0 181 43 10 354 206 2380 211 0 3250 433
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 20
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - Free - - None
Storage Length - - - 25 - 175 75 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 41 0 181 43 10 354 206 2380 211 0 3250 433

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 5074 6259 1842 4092 6475 1210 3683 0 - 2380 0 0
          Stage 1 3467 3467 - 2792 2792 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 1607 2792 - 1300 3683 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.99 6.54 7.14 6.99 6.54 6.94 5.34 - - 4.14 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 6.54 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.54 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.67 4.02 3.92 3.67 4.02 3.32 3.12 - - 2.22 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 0 ~ 55 ~ 1 0 ~ 175 ~ 16 - 0 200 - -
          Stage 1 ~ 3 17 - ~ 19 40 - - - 0 - - -
          Stage 2 108 40 - 155 13 - - - 0 - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 0 ~ 55 - 0 ~ 172 ~ 16 - - 196 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 0 - - 0 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 ~ 3 17 - ~ 19 40 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - 40 - - 13 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s $ 462.6 0
HCM LOS - -

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2WBLn3 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) ~ 16 - - - - 172 196 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 12.875 - - - - 2.058 - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) $ 5807.5 - - - - $ 539.8 0 - -
HCM Lane LOS F - - - - F A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 26.6 - - - - 27.6 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



HCM 2010 TWSC 2013 Existing with Project
3: Adoree St/I-5 Fwy NB On/Off-Ramp & Norwalk Blvd Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 12.3

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Vol, veh/h 46 0 222 30 4 454 157 2219 138 0 2056 187
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 20
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - Free - - None
Storage Length - - - 25 - 175 75 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 46 0 222 30 4 454 157 2219 138 0 2056 187

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 3576 4683 1122 3355 4776 1130 2243 0 - 2219 0 0
          Stage 1 2150 2150 - 2533 2533 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 1426 2533 - 822 2243 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.99 6.54 7.14 6.99 6.54 6.94 5.34 - - 4.14 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 6.54 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.54 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.67 4.02 3.92 3.67 4.02 3.32 3.12 - - 2.22 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver ~ 4 1 ~ 172 ~ 5 ~ 1 ~ 198 ~ 94 - 0 232 - -
          Stage 1 ~ 30 86 - ~ 27 55 - - - 0 - - -
          Stage 2 140 55 - 311 77 - - - 0 - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 1 ~ 172 - ~ 1 ~ 194 ~ 94 - - 228 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 1 - - ~ 1 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 ~ 30 86 - ~ 27 55 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - 55 - - 77 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 27.8 0
HCM LOS - -

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2WBLn3 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) ~ 94 - - - 1 194 228 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 1.67 - - - 4 2.34 - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) $ 421.1 - - -$ 6913.6 $ 657.5 0 - -
HCM Lane LOS F - - - F F A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 12.6 - - - 1.4 37.1 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



HCM 2010 TWSC 2013 Existing with Project
3: Adoree St/I-5 Fwy NB On/Off-Ramp & Norwalk Blvd Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 173.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Vol, veh/h 41 0 181 43 10 356 206 2382 211 0 3259 433
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 20
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - Free - - None
Storage Length - - - 25 - 175 75 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 41 0 181 43 10 356 206 2382 211 0 3259 433

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 5084 6270 1846 4098 6486 1211 3692 0 - 2382 0 0
          Stage 1 3476 3476 - 2794 2794 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 1608 2794 - 1304 3692 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.99 6.54 7.14 6.99 6.54 6.94 5.34 - - 4.14 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 6.54 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.54 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.67 4.02 3.92 3.67 4.02 3.32 3.12 - - 2.22 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 0 ~ 55 ~ 1 0 ~ 174 ~ 16 - 0 200 - -
          Stage 1 ~ 3 17 - ~ 19 40 - - - 0 - - -
          Stage 2 107 40 - 154 13 - - - 0 - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 0 ~ 55 - 0 ~ 171 ~ 16 - - 196 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 0 - - 0 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 ~ 3 17 - ~ 19 40 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - 40 - - 13 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s $ 462.3 0
HCM LOS - -

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2WBLn3 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) ~ 16 - - - - 171 196 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 12.875 - - - - 2.082 - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) $ 5807.5 - - - - $ 550.5 0 - -
HCM Lane LOS F - - - - F A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 26.6 - - - - 27.9 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing Conditions
4: San Antonio Dr & Union St/I-5 Fwy SB On-Ramp Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 507 53 159 0 0 0 44 2007 63 419 1767 108
Number 7 4 14 5 2 12 1 6 16
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 0.97 1.00 0.99 1.00 0.98
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1900 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 576 60 181 50 2281 72 476 2008 123
Adj No. of Lanes 0 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 336 35 320 120 1755 776 325 2164 952
Arrive On Green 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.07 0.50 0.50 0.18 0.61 0.61
Sat Flow, veh/h 1614 168 1538 1774 3539 1564 1774 3539 1557
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 636 0 181 50 2281 72 476 2008 123
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1782 0 1538 1774 1770 1564 1774 1770 1557
Q Serve(g_s), s 25.0 0.0 12.7 3.2 59.5 2.9 22.0 61.1 4.0
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 25.0 0.0 12.7 3.2 59.5 2.9 22.0 61.1 4.0
Prop In Lane 0.91 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 371 0 320 120 1755 776 325 2164 952
V/C Ratio(X) 1.71 0.00 0.56 0.42 1.30 0.09 1.46 0.93 0.13
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 371 0 320 325 1755 776 325 2164 952
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 47.5 0.0 42.6 53.7 30.2 16.0 49.0 20.9 9.8
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 332.1 0.0 2.3 1.7 139.2 0.2 224.8 8.5 0.3
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 83.7 0.0 16.4 3.0 113.3 2.4 55.9 41.4 3.2
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 379.6 0.0 44.9 55.4 169.5 16.2 273.8 29.4 10.1
LnGrp LOS F D E F B F C B
Approach Vol, veh/h 817 2403 2607
Approach Delay, s/veh 305.5 162.5 73.1
Approach LOS F F E

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2 4 5 6
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 26.0 64.5 29.5 12.1 78.4
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 4.0 5.0 4.5 4.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s22.0 59.5 25.0 22.0 59.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s24.0 61.5 27.0 5.2 63.1
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 142.6
HCM 2010 LOS F



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing Conditions
4: San Antonio Dr & Union St/I-5 Fwy SB On-Ramp Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 465 21 198 0 0 0 30 2320 39 622 2779 96
Number 7 4 14 5 2 12 1 6 16
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 0.97 1.00 0.99 1.00 0.98
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1900 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 465 21 198 30 2320 39 622 2779 96
Adj No. of Lanes 0 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1
Peak Hour Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 326 15 294 93 1637 723 414 2276 1002
Arrive On Green 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.05 0.46 0.46 0.23 0.64 0.64
Sat Flow, veh/h 1701 77 1534 1774 3539 1563 1774 3539 1559
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 486 0 198 30 2320 39 622 2779 96
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1778 0 1534 1774 1770 1563 1774 1770 1559
Q Serve(g_s), s 23.0 0.0 14.4 2.0 55.5 1.7 28.0 77.2 2.8
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 23.0 0.0 14.4 2.0 55.5 1.7 28.0 77.2 2.8
Prop In Lane 0.96 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 341 0 294 93 1637 723 414 2276 1002
V/C Ratio(X) 1.43 0.00 0.67 0.32 1.42 0.05 1.50 1.22 0.10
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 341 0 294 414 1637 723 414 2276 1002
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 48.5 0.0 45.0 54.8 32.2 17.8 46.0 21.4 8.1
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 208.2 0.0 5.9 1.5 191.5 0.1 238.5 103.6 0.2
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 55.7 0.0 18.1 1.8 127.0 1.3 74.0 126.1 2.3
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 256.7 0.0 50.9 56.2 223.7 17.9 284.5 125.0 8.3
LnGrp LOS F D E F B F F A
Approach Vol, veh/h 684 2389 3497
Approach Delay, s/veh 197.1 218.2 150.2
Approach LOS F F F

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2 4 5 6
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 32.0 60.5 27.5 10.3 82.2
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 4.0 5.0 4.5 4.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s28.0 55.5 23.0 28.0 55.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s30.0 57.5 25.0 4.0 79.2
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 179.8
HCM 2010 LOS F



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing with Project
4: San Antonio Dr & Union St/I-5 Fwy SB On-Ramp Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 507 53 159 0 0 0 44 2010 63 420 1768 108
Number 7 4 14 5 2 12 1 6 16
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 0.97 1.00 0.99 1.00 0.98
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1900 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 576 60 181 50 2284 72 477 2009 123
Adj No. of Lanes 0 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 336 35 320 120 1755 776 325 2164 952
Arrive On Green 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.07 0.50 0.50 0.18 0.61 0.61
Sat Flow, veh/h 1614 168 1538 1774 3539 1564 1774 3539 1557
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 636 0 181 50 2284 72 477 2009 123
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1782 0 1538 1774 1770 1564 1774 1770 1557
Q Serve(g_s), s 25.0 0.0 12.7 3.2 59.5 2.9 22.0 61.2 4.0
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 25.0 0.0 12.7 3.2 59.5 2.9 22.0 61.2 4.0
Prop In Lane 0.91 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 371 0 320 120 1755 776 325 2164 952
V/C Ratio(X) 1.71 0.00 0.56 0.42 1.30 0.09 1.47 0.93 0.13
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 371 0 320 325 1755 776 325 2164 952
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 47.5 0.0 42.6 53.7 30.2 16.0 49.0 20.9 9.8
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 332.1 0.0 2.3 1.7 140.0 0.2 226.1 8.5 0.3
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 83.7 0.0 16.4 3.0 113.6 2.4 56.1 41.4 3.2
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 379.6 0.0 44.9 55.4 170.2 16.2 275.1 29.4 10.1
LnGrp LOS F D E F B F C B
Approach Vol, veh/h 817 2406 2609
Approach Delay, s/veh 305.5 163.2 73.4
Approach LOS F F E

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2 4 5 6
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 26.0 64.5 29.5 12.1 78.4
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 4.0 5.0 4.5 4.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s22.0 59.5 25.0 22.0 59.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s24.0 61.5 27.0 5.2 63.2
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 143.0
HCM 2010 LOS F



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing with Project
4: San Antonio Dr & Union St/I-5 Fwy SB On-Ramp Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 465 21 198 0 0 0 30 2322 39 627 2784 96
Number 7 4 14 5 2 12 1 6 16
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 0.97 1.00 0.99 1.00 0.98
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1900 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 465 21 198 30 2322 39 627 2784 96
Adj No. of Lanes 0 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1
Peak Hour Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 326 15 294 93 1637 723 414 2276 1002
Arrive On Green 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.05 0.46 0.46 0.23 0.64 0.64
Sat Flow, veh/h 1701 77 1534 1774 3539 1563 1774 3539 1559
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 486 0 198 30 2322 39 627 2784 96
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1778 0 1534 1774 1770 1563 1774 1770 1559
Q Serve(g_s), s 23.0 0.0 14.4 2.0 55.5 1.7 28.0 77.2 2.8
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 23.0 0.0 14.4 2.0 55.5 1.7 28.0 77.2 2.8
Prop In Lane 0.96 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 341 0 294 93 1637 723 414 2276 1002
V/C Ratio(X) 1.43 0.00 0.67 0.32 1.42 0.05 1.51 1.22 0.10
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 341 0 294 414 1637 723 414 2276 1002
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 48.5 0.0 45.0 54.8 32.2 17.8 46.0 21.4 8.1
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 208.2 0.0 5.9 1.5 192.0 0.1 243.8 104.5 0.2
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 55.7 0.0 18.1 1.8 127.3 1.3 75.1 126.6 2.3
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 256.7 0.0 50.9 56.2 224.3 17.9 289.8 125.9 8.3
LnGrp LOS F D E F B F F A
Approach Vol, veh/h 684 2391 3507
Approach Delay, s/veh 197.1 218.8 152.0
Approach LOS F F F

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2 4 5 6
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 32.0 60.5 27.5 10.3 82.2
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 4.0 5.0 4.5 4.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s28.0 55.5 23.0 28.0 55.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s30.0 57.5 25.0 4.0 79.2
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 181.0
HCM 2010 LOS F



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing Conditions
8: I-5 Fwy NB On-Ramp & Bloomfield Ave Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement SBL SBR SEL SET NWT NWR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 382 0 0 0 317 0
Number 1 16 2 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 1863 0
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 420 0 348 0
Adj No. of Lanes 1 0 1 0
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 2 0
Cap, veh/h 690 0 724 0
Arrive On Green 0.39 0.00 0.39 0.00
Sat Flow, veh/h 1774 1863 0
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 420 348 0
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1774 1863 0
Q Serve(g_s), s 8.5 6.3 0.0
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 8.5 6.3 0.0
Prop In Lane 1.00 0.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 690 724 0
V/C Ratio(X) 0.61 0.48 0.00
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 690 724 0
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 1.00 0.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 11.0 10.3 0.0
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 4.0 2.3 0.0
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 8.5 6.6 0.0
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 15.0 12.6 0.0
LnGrp LOS B B
Approach Vol, veh/h 420 348
Approach Delay, s/veh 15.0 12.6
Approach LOS B B

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 22.5 22.5
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s17.5 17.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s10.5 8.3
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 0.9

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 13.9
HCM 2010 LOS B



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing Conditions
8: I-5 Fwy NB On-Ramp & Bloomfield Ave Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement SBL SBR SEL SET NWT NWR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 377 0 0 0 429 0
Number 1 16 2 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 1863 0
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 397 0 452 0
Adj No. of Lanes 1 0 1 0
Peak Hour Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 2 0
Cap, veh/h 690 0 724 0
Arrive On Green 0.39 0.00 0.39 0.00
Sat Flow, veh/h 1774 1863 0
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 397 452 0
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1774 1863 0
Q Serve(g_s), s 7.9 8.8 0.0
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 7.9 8.8 0.0
Prop In Lane 1.00 0.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 690 724 0
V/C Ratio(X) 0.58 0.62 0.00
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 690 724 0
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 1.00 0.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 10.8 11.1 0.0
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 3.5 4.0 0.0
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 8.0 8.9 0.0
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 14.3 15.1 0.0
LnGrp LOS B B
Approach Vol, veh/h 397 452
Approach Delay, s/veh 14.3 15.1
Approach LOS B B

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 22.5 22.5
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s17.5 17.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s9.9 10.8
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 1.1

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 14.7
HCM 2010 LOS B



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing with Project
8: I-5 Fwy NB On-Ramp & Bloomfield Ave Weekday AM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement SBL SBR SEL SET NWT NWR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 384 0 0 0 317 0
Number 1 16 2 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 1863 0
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 422 0 348 0
Adj No. of Lanes 1 0 1 0
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 2 0
Cap, veh/h 690 0 724 0
Arrive On Green 0.39 0.00 0.39 0.00
Sat Flow, veh/h 1774 1863 0
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 422 348 0
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1774 1863 0
Q Serve(g_s), s 8.6 6.3 0.0
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 8.6 6.3 0.0
Prop In Lane 1.00 0.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 690 724 0
V/C Ratio(X) 0.61 0.48 0.00
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 690 724 0
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 1.00 0.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 11.0 10.3 0.0
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 4.0 2.3 0.0
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 8.5 6.6 0.0
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 15.0 12.6 0.0
LnGrp LOS B B
Approach Vol, veh/h 422 348
Approach Delay, s/veh 15.0 12.6
Approach LOS B B

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 22.5 22.5
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s17.5 17.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s10.6 8.3
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 0.9

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 13.9
HCM 2010 LOS B



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary 2013 Existing with Project
8: I-5 Fwy NB On-Ramp & Bloomfield Ave Weekday PM Peak Hour

InterHealth Corporation MOB Project (1-13-4010-1) Synchro 9 Report
LLG Engineers 10/29/2014

Movement SBL SBR SEL SET NWT NWR
Lane Configurations
Volume (veh/h) 391 0 0 0 429 0
Number 1 16 2 12
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 0 1863 0
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 412 0 452 0
Adj No. of Lanes 1 0 1 0
Peak Hour Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 0 2 0
Cap, veh/h 690 0 724 0
Arrive On Green 0.39 0.00 0.39 0.00
Sat Flow, veh/h 1774 1863 0
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 412 452 0
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1774 1863 0
Q Serve(g_s), s 8.3 8.8 0.0
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 8.3 8.8 0.0
Prop In Lane 1.00 0.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 690 724 0
V/C Ratio(X) 0.60 0.62 0.00
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 690 724 0
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 1.00 0.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 10.9 11.1 0.0
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 3.8 4.0 0.0
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(95%),veh/ln 8.3 8.9 0.0
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 14.7 15.1 0.0
LnGrp LOS B B
Approach Vol, veh/h 412 452
Approach Delay, s/veh 14.7 15.1
Approach LOS B B

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 22.5 22.5
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 5.0 5.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s17.5 17.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s10.3 10.8
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.3 1.1

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 14.9
HCM 2010 LOS B












































